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Welcome to Amec Foster Wheeler

Amec Foster Wheeler's visionis to be
the most trusted partner for our
customers by consistently delivering
excellence - bringing together the
knowledge, expertise and skills of our
people from across our global network.
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Performance highlights

2014 was a year of resilient delivery

for us, both financially and operationally
— despite the challenging backdrop of
difficuit markets, reducing capex and
falling commodity prices

Revenue’ Adjusted profit before tax*2?
4,088 32
£m 3,974 3,993 £m 323 327 3 317
286
3133

2,786

2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2010 201 2012 2013 2014
. |
Profit before taxt? Adjusted diluted EPS* 24
o 261 268 .4 s ! } 872

786 795
73.2
63.3
155

2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2010 201 2012 2013 2014
. @ Continuing operations
Dividend per share
p pe 420 433 2 Figures for 2012 201! and 2010 have been restated to reflect the

36,5 reclassification in 2013 of the UK conventional power business as
a discontinued operation and the adoption of IAS 19 {Revised 2011)
305 Employee Benefits
265

3 Adjusted profit before tax represents profit before tax before exceptional
items the amortisation of intangible assets asbestos related costs
and interest expense (net of insurance recovenes) and the group s share
of tax on the resuits of joint ventures

4 Adjusted diluted earmings per share represents profit for the year before
exceptional items the amortisation of intangible assets asbestos related
costs and interest expense {net of insurance recoveries) and the tax effect
of those items divided by the diluted number of ordinary shares

2010 201 2012 2013 2014

Key performance indicators

We use a vanety of other key performance indicators to track
our progress towards our goals These relate to the elements of
our business model and ¢an be found in the strategic report on
pages 14 and 15

Adjusted performance measures used by the Group are
explained and reconciled to the equivalent IFRS measures in the
section entitled Performance measures on pages 169 to 172
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Amec Foster Wheeler at a glance

. |
With revenues of £5.5bn and over 40,000  Fercentage split of revenue

employees in more than 50 countries, e oS
Amec Foster Wheeler operates across the  ameaas urope
whole of the oll and gas industry — from GlobalPower Group
production through to refining, processing

and distribution of dervative products

17

28

47

—and in the mining, clean energy and
|
environment and infrastructure markets  Totat pro forma scope revenue 2014

£5.5bn

Office locations

.|
Percentage split of average aggregate employees 7 Aggregate employees 2014

% 23
Americas
N Europe & CIS 40 k
AMEA & S Europe
Global Power Group

29
a1

Amec Foster Wheefer
o Annual repert and accounts 2014



S
Our operations

From 1 January 2015, our operations are structured into the

four business units described here Compared to 2014 only

the Americas business unit has the same geographical rermit

as there were previously three AMEC divisions (Americas,
Europe and Growth Regions) and two Foster Wheeler divisions
{Engineering & Construction and Global Power Group)

The new company structure has been designed to further
enable collaboration and promote greater growth opportunities

Americas

The targest of our business units, with around 16 000
employees and approximately 150 offices in 10 countries,
across the two continents

Qur business 1s balanced across our markets and we have

a growing mid/downstream Oil & Gas business in North
America a presence In the Gulf of Mexice and Brazil upstream
offshore and we are the market leader in mineable oil sands
We are the leading mining consultant in the region and have
good solar and bigprocess positions in the US nuclear and
wind positions in Canada and we are a leading environmental
consultancy

AMEA & Southern Europe

The Asia, Middle East Africa & Southern Europe (AMEASE)
unit has over 9,000 employees spread across more than

40 locations with strong capabilities and customer reach
across each of our Oil & Gas Environment & Infrastructure
and Mining markets In addition we have our Consultancy and
Spectal Construction group which 1s focused on infrastructure
planming design and construction serving government

Qil & Gas and Mining customers across key geographies

in and beyond the AMEASE region

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual repert and accounts 2014

From 2015,

our operations are
structured into
four business units

Northern Europe & CIS

Northern Europe & the Commonwealth of Independent States
has arcund 12,000 employees operating 1n more than 120
locations across 15 countries with its expertise extending into
many more

The umit has broad-based customer reach across three of
our markets, in Environment & Infrastructure Clean Energy
- notably in the nuclear industry including asset support,
decomrmissioning and new-build programmes, and Oil & Gas
- across the value chain and lifecycle for projects on and off
shore from pre-feasibility consulting to late-hfe management
and decommissioning

Global Power Group

Operating four manufacturing facihbies, two cogeneration
plants, 11 engineering and service centres in eight countries
and employing around 2,600 employees this business unit
designs supplies and erects bollers auxihary steam and

air pollution control equipment as well as a wide range of
aftermarket preducts and services

Delvering projects and services virtually anywhere in the
world we enable utilities, independent power producers and
industrial customers to achieve their power, process steam
and environmental goals

Collaboration and
leveraging of skills
around the world
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Amec Foster Wheeler at a glance continued

.|
Our customers include

BG Honeywell
BP KNPC
Canadian Natural Resources Ltd Natioral Grid
ConocoPhillips Newmaont
Dow Chermical Novartis

EDF Energy Pemex

Enterprise Products
ExxonMobil

Royal Dutch Shell

Saudi Arameo

Freeport McMoRan Sempra Energy

GDF Suez US Government
]
Order book 6
Y% 25

Americas

N Europe &CIS
AMEA & S Europe
Global Power Group

32
37

Order book

£6.3bn

Providing safe and
sustainable project
solutions for

our customers
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|
Our four markets

We have positioned our operations across four markets
because we believe a diversified approach minimises risk

and maximises opportumty over the long term In Oil & Gas
Mining, Clean Energy and Environment & Infrastructure,

we provide similar services winning work through strong
customer relationships and our proven ability to deliver projects
successfully Many of the services we provide to our customers
are transferable across markets

Ol & Gas

We are involved in every part of the project delivery phase
across the oil and gas value chain, but we specifically do not
operate in early cycle exploration or drilling

Clean Energy

In renewables we provide a full service engineering
procurement and construction solution on wind, solar, biomass
and biofuels projects We alsc support the full ifecycle of
nuclear energy and are a respected leader in the design and
supply of combustion and steam generation equipment

Mining

We offer mining consultancy (including ore resource estimation
mine planning and feasibility studies) design project and
construction management services

Environment & Infrastructure (E&I)

We are a leading consulting engineering and project
management firm with strong market positions especially
in the water transportation and mfrastructure government
services and industrial sectors

Amec Faster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014
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Delivering challenging
and complex upstream
ol and gas projects

Downstream
Pre-eminent provider

of services to the ol and
gas industry

Governance

Nuclear

Expertise spanning the
entire lifecycle of complex
nuclear assets

Power
Shaping the future
of clean energy

M
(=4
1]
-

Global expertise in every
aspect of water from
source to ocean

Industrial/Pharmaceutical
Offering a whole world of
technical expertise

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Midstream

Providing transportation
for the midstream oil and
gas industry

Mining & Metals
Expertise and defivery
from concept to closure

Renewables/Bioprocess
A century of expenence
supporting today's
renewable energy

Transmission & Distribution
Innovative and high value
added solutions

Financials

Government
Comprehensive engineering
services and solutions

Transportation &
Infrastructure

innovative sclutions for
complex transportation needs

Additional information



Chairman's statement

. |
2014 was a year of quantum change

for our business

|
John Connolly
Chairman
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In the closing months of 2014 we saw a fundamental change
N our busingss with the completion of the transformational
Foster Wheeler deal it brings greater strength and depth
across many markets and provides your Company with access
throughout the ol & gas value chain The dramatic drop

n global ol prices will prove an unfortunately-timed testing
ground for our new business proposition over the coming
years — however, | and your board retain complete confidence
n your Cormpany s potential

We begin 2015 with a new name reflecting the power of both
brands a new identity, which encapsulates the depth and
breadth of cur potential, and a new culture which meshes the
best of both breeds and will provide the bedrock of our future
operational success These are covered in more detail in the
Chief Executive’s staternent

Your board

The board of directors 1s responsible for goverring the
organisation by establishing broad policies and objectives
monitoring the performance of the management team
ensuring the avalabihty of adequate financial resources

and being held accountable to you, the shareholders for the
Company s performance and longer term potential

We support the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code) and
believe we have complied with the provisions of the September
2012 edition throughout the year ended 31 December 2014

We continue te focus on diversity within our business

Not just the diversity of human charactenstics and skills

but alsc diversity of thought - as we believe that part of cur
role 1s to constantly challenge the business to ensure we are
at the top of our game We must, of course continue to deliver
the highest possible standards in safety collaboration and value
creation We must also ensure that we nurture an environment
where new thinking and creative solutions can thrive for our
customers The complementary merging of our operations
with those of Foster Wheeler not anly enhances this potential
but it also provides greater resilience to market cyclicality

In November, upon the closing of the Foster Wheeler offer,

we appointed Stephanie Newby to the board and to the
company s audit and health safety, secunty, environmental

and ethics committees Stephame was an independent
non-executive director of Foster Wheeler and she brings

a wealth of boardroom expertise and experience of being

a director of a company listed on a US stock exchange — as your
Company now has a listing of its Amenican Depositary Shares
on the New York Stock Exchange

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014




Dividend per share for the year

43.3p

Adjusted diluted EPS for 2014*

79.5p

Amec Foster Wheeler
has In place a strong,
hughly competent board
that performs well

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

Since the year-end we have announced other board changes
In February Kent Masters joined the board Kent was the

CEO and a board director of Foster Wheeler In February we
also announced that Simon Thompson will step down from the
beoard at the upcoming annual general meeting after serving
six years as a director of the Company Simon also holds the
important roles of Senior Independent Director and chatrman
of the remuneration commuttee | am very grateful for Simon's
contnbution to the beoard during a period of significant change
wn your company Neil Carson will assume the roles of seruor
independent director and chairman of the remunegration
committee at the conclusion of the annual general meeting

on 14 May 2015 The board has commenced a process to recruit
one or two new non-executive directors Announcements on
the new directors will be made in the next few months

Our prionties

Each of your directors has been actively engaged in our board
meetings and has contributed to debates on future strategy
and direction In 2015 the board will continue with a programme
of regular engagements with management teams across the
group Our priorities gomng forward include monitoring the
execution of the integration plans and the implementation of
the new operating model referred to in the Chief Executive’s
statement Recognising the enlargement and changes in the
group combined with the challenging markets in our sector,

a significant prnionity for the board 15 working with the Group
Leadership Team to set the strategy and medium-term business
plan for the Group

Your Company's performance

Across our four markets we have seen a full range of conditions
n 2014 ranging from tough and challenging to robust stable
and growing In these markets our trading profit! was £321m
A further indication of our behef in the model and your
company's potential 1s the proposed final dividend of 28 5p
making a total of 43 3p per share for the year - a 3% increase
on 2013 and dividend covert of 1 8 times If approved at the
Company's annual general meeting on 14 May 2015 1t will

tbe paid on 2 July 2015 to those shareholders on the register
at 29 May 2015 1t remains the board s intention to continue
with a progressive dividend palicy

Conclusion

| and my fellow directors remain strongly convinced of the
potential for your company We helieve that Amec Foster
Wheeler has the right strategy a strong customer base
an improved customer proposition and the right skills for
it to achseve Its true potential

On your behatf | would like to thank Samir Brikho and hus
management team and all of the 40000 people in Amec
Foster Wheeler for therr valued contribution to date and
their future potential

John Connolly
Chairman
26 March 2015

1 Non iFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 168 to 172)
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Chief Executive's statement

We have the will to win, the desire to
succeed and, in the newly created Amec
Foster Wheeler, the right combination

to achieve our true potential

Samir Brikho
Chief Executive

This annual report reflects on 2014 - a year in which the fourth
guarter saw everything change We completed the acquisition
of Foster Wheeler, created a new operating model for our
business — designed for the future — and we created a new
organisation with a clear vision, a strong identity and a culture
hungry for success

Our vision is clear We want to be the most trusted partner for
our customers by consistently delivering excellence - bringing
together the knowledge expertise and skiils of our people from
across our network

Whilst | will cover the recent performance of the business
much of my statement will look forward as we seek to create
sustainable stable growth and to deliver the potential which
| believe we have at Amec Foster Wheeler

2014 results

2014 was a year of resibent delivery for us both financially
and operationally - despite the challenging backdrop of
economic uncertainty reducing capex and falling commeodity
prices We have delivered a Trading Profit! of £321m, on flat
revenues of £3 993m and we have delivered our 18th year

of dividend growth

Our cash conversion rate! was 88% and adjusted earnings
per share! of 79 5p lan McHoul our Chief Financial Officer,
discusses our financiat performance in more depth on page 30

Our will to win

Ahead of the deal closing we were able to prepare for day one’
So we were really able to hit the ground running — announcing
several contract wins in the first few weeks some of which are
detailed below

We have created a skilled and experienced team of around
40000 people These colleagues are our greatest asset and we
will continue to focus on their development, mobility and our
new employer brand, as we want to be the company for whom
people want to work

We have to deliver for our customers Qur good customer
relations and execution skills have won some contract awards
and we have further nurtured and enhanced relationships with
our existing and potentiaf clients

A great example s our recently announced Anagold Madencdik
contract win in Turkey where we are contracted to prowvide
front-end engineering services for the expansion of the Gdpler
Gold Mine This perfectly demonstrates the power of our
combination, leveraging the proven gold processing expertise
of the AMEC team and Foster Wheeler's highly regarded
Turkish operaton and successful project delivery track record
in the country

1Non IFRS measure (see Pertormance measures on pages 169 1o 172)

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Strong cash conversion,
demonstrating our
continuing financial
discipline

£6.3bn order book

We have deliberately
diversified our business
across energy and
power markets and this
remains our strategy.

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

The desire to succeed

Success for any company 1s not just about the numbers

For Amec Foster Wheeler 1t also means we have to be recognised
as a company that listens to its customers, understands market
challenges and s prepared to change We have to propose

new ways of thinking, better quality of delivery and offer higher
predictability of project delivery on time and on budget

We operate in complex arenas, designing, delivering and
maintaimng strategic and complex assets for a wide range of
customers throughout the global energy and related sectors

Qur largest market remains Oil & Gas and we are operating
across the whole value chain from production through to
refining, processing and distnibution of derivative products
This significantly enhances our capability to service customers
and - If we make the most of our new platform by working
collaboratively, partnering effectively, and providing the best
possible skills to deliver for our customers — this puts us in the
frame for projects that neither AMEC nor Foster Wheeler would
have won as separate compames

We have long recognised the benefits of diversity We encourage
it in our workforce 1n our thinking when salving customers’
problems and in our strategy All our end markets have long-
term growth potential - but they are also all cyclical That 1s
why we deliberately maintain strong and established positions
In mining, ¢lean energy, power generation environment and
infrastructure alongside the oil and gas market

And as an employer success 1S to see our employees being
engaged Inspired committed and accountable Our people
need to be excited about our future iving our values fostering
a culture of collabaration, transparency and honesty, helping
each other with the client being the focal point

And our customers need to see that in the way we operate
on their behalf

Amec Foster Wheeler 1s proud to be delivering the Engineering
Procurement, Construction Management (EPCM) contract for
Swakop Uramum s Husab Project in Namibia in joint venture
with Tenova Bateman We have deployed a highly-skilled project
team, who have amassed over 10 million man-hours working
on the mine Once completed Husab will be the second largest
uranum ming in the world

The right combination

Amec Foster Wheeler has three main stakeholders - our
shareholders our customers and our employees - and we
have to deliver excellence to all of them by creating the rnight
environment for success

We have identified increased deal synergies from $75m to
$125m and our newly introduced operating model (see page 16)
1s already bearing fruit With more intelligent use of our

High Value Execution Centres we can further support the
husinesses whilst recognising and managing the project risks
through our Identify Acquire, Deliver process (see below)
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Chief Executive’s statement continued

We are also not compromising on safety This remains our
paramount focus and we have again run a company-wide Safety
First campaign at the start of the year

Anllustration of our dedication here can be seen in the work we
are doing for a new rubber plant on Jurong Island, Singapore
This complex project the largest of its kind in the world, involves
state-of-art technologies and compact design that demands a
hughly committed and collaborative project team to embrace
the challenges and deliver excellence, with approximately six
million safe man-hours

Achieving our potential

2014 saw our Global Power Group rated the number one global
market position for the supply of Circulating Fluidised Bed
(CFB) bellers and Heat Recovery Steam Generators

Add to this industry plaudits for our work in solar and nuclear
energy ol & gas and mining and you can see we have a firm
foundation from which to build

However understanding and managing our project
performance 1s a prerequisite of delivering excellence to our
customers and providing governance So the Group Project
Review Committee meets quarterly to better understand the
performance of key projects within Amec Foster Wheeler and
to ensure they are meefing our clients’ expectations

The Group Leadership Team (see page 75) has been expanded
to incorporate the new functions of Strategy and Business
Development and Project Delivery We have changed the way
we win work, and Business Development has an increased
prominence throughout our business We have created a
consistent structure throughout the business units which

will aid understanding and global collaboration between the
regions units and functions

Emphasising our quality controls we have introduced our new
identify Acquire and Deliver process with clear decision rights
and roles for Strategy and Business Development, Operations,
and the functions in winning and executing work There are
three key decision gates

» pursue/not pursue — to pnonitise leads and opportunities
with good strategic fit and to align on optimal resourcing
solutions early in the process

» bid/no bid — to ensure all requirements of responding to
a tender are understood and can be met, and

» perrmission to submit - to ensure that a fully defined and
approved proposal I1s formally issued to the customer

We have a new sense of purpose and intend to build to achieve
our true potential

10
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Our largest market remains

01l & Gas, and we are
operating across the whole
value cham from production
through to refining,
processing and distribution
of derivative products.

]
2014 saw our Global Power

Group rated the number one
global market position for
the supply of Circulating
Fluidised Bed (CFB) boilers
and Heat Recovery Steam
Generators.

My aim 1s for Amec
Foster Wheeler to
emerge fromthe
current economic
situation stronger than
our industry peers

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014




Outlook

Commodity price falls are impacting both our 01l & Gas and
Mining businesses We have seen price decreases of up to
60% impact several of our projects and customers adjust their
capital expenditure even deferring some projects

Current economic conditions are undoubtedly challenging and
an unclear pricing cutlook implies further difficult times ahead
In some of our key markets However | believe that the winners
in our industry will be those who add value to therr clients

in good times and in bad Despite being a new company

Amec Foster Wheeler's heritage goes back over 150 years and

our customer service model has been built to operate through
such fluctuations

Undoubtedly customers will seek reduced engineering project
cosis and refined proposals we have to continue to engage with
our customers to satisfy these needs We will need to provide
greater simplicity m our innovative solutions and focus on more
standardised delwery alongside specific bespoke offerings

fo ensure projects are sanctioned by our customers

We understand the challenges, we have reinvented ourselves
and we are ready and capable of proposing such solutions,
to partner with our customers and make money despite the
€ConoImIc pressures

And my aim s for Amec Foster Wheeler to emerge from the
current economic situation stronger than our industry peers,
with a business that s based on a more cost-effective, stable
and sustainable growth platform as the partner of choice
for our customers

Samir Brikho

Chief Executive
26 March 2015

Amec Foster Wheeler
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I believe that the winners

in our industry will be those
who add value to their
chents, 1n good times and
in bad.
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The Samcheok green power project
marks a significant development in
clean coal power.

After a comprehensive study and
evaluation of the technology options,
Korean Southern Power chose us due
to our advanced technology experence,
coupled with our capability and

track record to deliver a large-scale
quality product

By 2016, four of our 550
megawatt CFB boilers will
produce 2,100 megawatts
of electricity from coal,
biomass and recycled
materials, setting a new
standard for clean, large-
scale power generation.
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Our business model

We convert the talents of our people
and their customer relationships into
alow-rsk, cash-generative business

To succeed we need to deliver excellence
to our customers

Delivering excellence

People are our principal asset
Read more on page 16

We are customer focused
Read more on page 17

Customers rely on our services and solutions
Read more on page 18

We have a flexible and low-risk business model
Read more on page 15

14

What this means

Our employees are clever people Therr skills are a scarce
resource

Our highly skilled engineers project managers, consultants
and scientists deliver for our customers, creating long-term
customer relationstups and a strong reputation for excellence

We have a wide range of customers around the world

They include some of the largest international ol companies
such as ExxonMobil and BP chemical companies such as Dow,
miners such as Rio Tinte, utility comparies such as EDF and
government bodies such as 1S DoD

We provide high-value services — consulting, engineering
project and construction management, and supply chain
management

These skills are critical to the successful development and
operation of our customers’ assets — right across their
Ifecycle

We have a particularly strong reputation for delivering
engineering solutions for complex projects

The majority of our contracts reimburse us for our people’s
time We often also get additional payments by achieving
pre-agreed performance measures Many of these are
long-term contracts

in selected circumstances we take on fixed-price work

The breadth of our market and customer exposure gives
us great growth opportunities, and reduces the impact during
lower levels of activity in one market

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014
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Managing the challenges

Our future success relies on attracting developing and
retaining the best people

We need to be flexible, using our skills on those projects
which bring greatest advantage

We maintain the highest standards of safety and ethics

We win business because of our reputation for delivery
and the strength of our iong-term customer relationshtups

Our diversified customer base imits our dependence
on any cne customer

We are adaptable to ensure we offer our customers the
right services when and where they need thermn

We must be able to deliver these servicesin a
cost-effective way

We work across a range of cyclical markets which can
impact demand for our services

Our reputation for delivery 1s very important to our
continued success

We take fixed-price work when we know the customer
and the project well

We have a good track record predicting earnings from
each project and contract

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

» We listen, understand and respond

» We agree on clear expectations
Delivering

» We aspire to consistent excellence
on promises

» Wa Invest in our people

Developing

full potential  * We #mbrace diversity and inclusion
» We connect globally as one team

Doing the

right thing » We put safety first

» We act ethically and with integrity

» We care about our communities

. _____________________________________________________|]
How we measure success

We look at the utiisation rate of employees gender diversity
and employee-instigated turnover

We measure the engagement of our people and the
development activity that has taken place and a number
of safety measures

Read more on page 16

We track levels of customer satisfaction and look t¢ improve
our win-to-bid ratio

Read more on page 17

We track our revenue growth and our margin progression

We also look at the mix of services we provide and where they
sit in the lifecycle of our customers’ assets

Read more on page 18

Our profit margin and cash conversion reflect the quality
of project delvery

We also have a range of non-financial measures, including
greenhouse gas emussions and completion of project and
peer reviews

Read more on page 19

15
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Delivering excellence

People are our principal asset

|
Our success depends upon our

people delivering projects successfully
for our customers.

To foster the nght culture iIn which

our people can succeed, our values

(see page 15) are entrenched throughout
our business

We perpetuate the very highest standards of safety mutual
respect and ethical behaviour that we can and this combined
with caring for the environment in which we operate, underpins
our approach to being a sustainable people business (read
more about our commitment teo sustainabiity on page 24 and
on our dedicated sustainability microsite to be launched on
amecfw com)

New leadership and integration

AMEC and Foster Wheeler both employed highly skilled
customer focused workforces providing high value services
such as engmeering design and project management to their
customers

Now as one team, we have more than 40 000 employees and
the increased scale i1s expected to provide efficiencies, such
as increased workflow between offices, known as multi-office
delivery

The Group Leadership Team itself reflects this integration and
combines the best talents frorn both organisations (see page 75
for more details)

Around 23,500 of our people met at least one of the new

Group Leadership Team through an extensive roadshow around
our offices in the first three weeks following the creation of
Amec Foster Wheeler on 13 Novernber The extended leadership
team, of 100 people (85% male, 15% female), met in London to
ensure we were thoroughly prepared for the launch of the new
operating model

New operating model

On 1 January 2015, we introduced our new operating model
The early signs are very encouraging, with changes to the way
we dentify acquire and deliver work and also how we assure
each part of this process

Key principles include global standards for execution of
projects creating centres of excellence and muiti-office delivery

16

Investing in talent

We have developed both technical and leadership training

to ensure we maintain a pipehne of skilted talent to meet our
growth aspirations

Group-wide training i1s led by The Academy, our in-house
development programme

Adapting to dynamic markets

Delivering a project for our customers reguires us to put
together teams of people to match the needs of the project and
the customer

During 2014 we recruited 9 425 people into project teams

Of these new hures rmore than 85% were recruited directly

We have also seen 2,997 people leave as projects finish, or therr
roles change Together this means that our utilisation rates
reman very hugh

Diversity and inclusion

The business case 1s clear An organisation that enjoys diverstty
enjoys a richness of rdeas that leads to better solutions for the
custormer

Gender s just one part of this and women now make up 24%

or 8 823 members of our directly employed workforce 12% (50
people) of our executive grade employees 10% (one person) of
our Group Leadership Team and 22% (two people) of our board

Age gender, ethnicity, etc  are all important and assessed
but dversity of thought, for instance, cannot be measured as
accurately Our approach Is to survey our employees, to ask
how they feel and feed the findings into the Group Leadership
Team

We are committed to providing a safe and secure workplace
where people are free from harassment and where diversity and
inclusion are the norm, with equal opporturnties for progression
and development for all

Our Code of Business Conduct highlights our commitment
to human rights and we respect those of any individual, or
commurity, with whom we are involved and we support the
elimination of child labour

Incentivisation

We have completely refreshed our approach The top layers of
management are now all rewarded against one set of common
group-wide incentives Please see page 67 for more detail

Prionities for 2015

As usual, the most important priority remains that our people
are safe at work and that we continue to attract develop and
retain skilled employees !

]
Spit of employees 7
% 23
® Americas
N Europe and CiS
AMEAand S Europe
Global Power Group

29
41
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We are customer focused

We have a wide range of customers and
work for some of the world's largest
corporations and government bodies,
designing and mamntaining critical assets
Qur customers expect us to deliver
excellence every day We are very proud
of the high proportion of repeat business
we generate.

Qur customers include some of the largest international oil
companies such as ExxonMobil and BP chermucal companies
such as Dow miners such as Rio Tinto, utiity companies such
as EDF and government bodies such as the US Department
of Defense

Qur top 10 customers accounted for approximately 30%
of revenue

|
Diversified customer base 61
%

Top 10

1120

Others

30

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual repart and accounts 2014

Strategic customer management
Developing long term and worldwide retationships with
key customers i1s a priority

With additional service offerings and new customers
across a broader geographic footprint, there are much
greater opportunities to cross-sell and a strategic approach
to managing our customer relationships 1s no fonger a
nice-to-have — it 1s a necessity We now have three tiers

of customer retationship global, regional and local

Global accounts will be managed centrally by the business
development teamn We expect to expand this over the coming
years

By utilising strategic account management and global
accounts, we are upping our game' to expand and deepen our
relationstups with our most significant customers

Cur goal 1s to get closer to our customers and be their trusted
partner Regional and local account management will remain
animportant component

Achievements in 2014

We are pleased that in the first few weeks after the merger
was completed, several contracts with customers ghlighted
the benefits of our new approach

In November we were awarded a front-end engineering
contract with Alacer on the Copler Gold Mine project in Turkey
combining the gold-processing expertise of the AMEC team

i North Amenca and Foster Wheeler's highly regarded Turkish
operation

And earlier this year we had more success with new
combinations of heritage expertise winning a feasibility study
in Chile that combined Power & Process Americas, our Milan
team and the ports experts in our E&I team

Prionties for 2015
The development of long term and worldwide customer
relationships will continue to be our key priority

Integrating the former AMEC and Foster Wheeler relationships
will prowvide us with significant new opportunities particularly
in the mid- and downstream Oil & Gas market

For example we will be able to offer enhanced project delivery
to the combined upstream and downstream customer

across new-build and brownfield projects We will be offering
environmental services to former Foster Wheeler customers
for the first time too

We are also planning to expand the geographic reach of
our services for instance by offering brownfield services in
countries where AMEC did not have a major presence and
where Foster Wheeler did not serve the upstream market

17
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Delivering excellence continued

Customers rely on our services
and solutions

In each market or sector, the range
of services provided to our customers
IS similar

We are experts in designing, delivering
and maintaining strategic and complex
assets, offering total life of asset support
from feasibility planning nght through

to decommissioning

Our diversified service offering partially offsets the cychical
nature of our customers capital expenditure plans, and reduces
our dependence on any one part of the energy mix

Core services 28 s
%
Design & supply
Consulting 12
Engmeenng
EPCM/PMC
Other
Project delivery 5
16

3

Core services

Qur core services include engineering project management
construction and construction management hook-up and
commissioning decommissioning, and related consultancy
work

We have a reputation for delivering engineering solutions for
complex projects and operating in remote and harsh locations

Our Clean Energy offering also now includes Circulating
Fludised Bed (CFB) and heat recovery steam generators,
condensers and emission control equipment for improved
environmental performance

18

Working through the lifecycle

We provide high value services across the life-cycle of our
customers assets and the range of services we are able to
provide 1s similar in each of our four markets

Many of our services are provided through long-term contracts
giving us the opportunity to provide critical services in
partnership with our customers Forinstance, we have been
supporting the current fleet of UK nuclear reactors for more
than 50 years Same of these contracts have been renewed
several times

Project delivery team

Our new operating model has an enhanced project delivery
function with responsibility for ensuring the identification
and management of project nsks driving the use of common
systems and toals, supporting the development and
mobihsation of our teams and ultimately helping us to deliver
excellence on all our projects

Achievements in 2014
Contract wins announced in 2014 include

» Australia Early stage project support for Hillside copper
project (Rex Minerals)

» Austria/Germany 5-year integrated project management
framework for refineries (OMV),

» Azerbaijan EPCM for Shah Deniz 2 topsides (BP)
» Bulgaria Design and supply 50 MWe CFB bailer (Solvay Sodi)
» Canada FEED for Canada LNG project (Shell)

» Chile Engmmeering and design for secondary ore processing
facitity (Codelco).

» China MOU for JV to establish nuclear decommissioning
and life extenston services {(CNNC),

» Finland Design, supply and erection of SCR at Naantal
unit 3 (TSE)

» Kuwait FEED for onshore LNG import and regasiication
terminal (KNPC)

» Libya FEED for onshore ail field development in
Area 47 (Nafusah),

» Mexico EPC for delayed coking factlities at two refineries
(Pemex)

» Poland Owners engineer role for nuclear new build
programme (PGE Polska),

» Turkey Design and supply two CFBs and flue gas scrubbers
(Harbin Electric),

» UK North Sea FEED for Captain expansion (Chevron)

» US Design and construction of specialist facilities for
DoD program (US Space Fence) and

» Vietnam Design and supply two pulverised coal steam
generators (Vietnam Electricity)

Priorities in 2015
Our main priority 1s to implement the new operating model
and show customers the strength of our platform and people

Amec Foster Wheeler
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We have a flexible and low-risk
business model

|
We have a flexible and low-nisk business

model, the majority of our contracts are
on a cost-plus basis

When we agree fixed-price work we take
the time to get to know the customer and
the project first.

By using common systems we can deliver
work consistently and share work across
offices and time zones.

As aresult, our business is more flexible
and sustainable, and our financial
performance less volatile than others

In the majority of our contracts, our customers reimburse us
for our people s ime and any matenals we consurme We often
arrange to get additional payments if we achieve pre-agreed
performance measures

In selected circumstances we take on fixed-price work
Typically we will do this where we know the custermer and the
project well

Where this 1s not possible, we may look to partner with others
to gain access to projects which would otherwise be unavailable
tous

Each year we do work on numerous contracts — some of which
are multi-year - this, together with the breadth of our market
and customer exposure, reduces the impact of lower levels

of activity in any one area of our business

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Revenue by contract styla 262

Reimbursable
Fixed price
Technology

Flexibihity
The Global Power Group has a different business model te our
engineering and project management business

In addition to engineering and project delivery it includes
fabrication in its typical scope of activities

Enhanced risk management

This plays a vital role in ensuring that we win projects with the
greatest possible opportunity for success maximising the value
we get for our resources and addressing risks that are part of
contracting in our industry

We use a detalled workflow system which addresses the risks
associated with tenders (for both lump sum and reimbursable
contracts) in areas such as techmcal challenges financial

and pricing terms joint venture/partner risks as well as a full
range of governance Issues, such as human rights, safety and
environmental risks

Achievements in 2014
Qur order book grew from £4 1bn to £6 3bn during the year
On a like-for-like basis it was flat

We completed our fixed-price detailed design and engineering
services for Roy Hill s iron ore processing plant and bulk ore
handling facility at the Port Landside works for Samsung C&T -
the EPC contractor on the project

We transferred key staff from the upstream project teamin
Houston to work in the downstream propane dehydrogenation
project for Enterprise in Texas

Priorities for 2015

Despite some tough market conditions we want to win new
contracts which will maintain our fow-risk and flexible business
model

We will continue to increase collaboration across the group -
between teams from different sectors and countries as well as
substantially increasing the share of work carried out through
multi-office detivery
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Principal risks and uncertainties

|
Amec Foster Wheeler operates in more

than 50 countries, serving a broad range
of markets and customers As such, the
Group Is subject to certain general and
industry specific nsks. Where practicable,
the Group seeks to mitigate exposure

to all forms of sk through effective risk
management and risk transfer practices

Risk management process

The acquisition of Foster Wheeler was completed in the fourth
quarter of 2014 and we are currently reviewing the control
framework and integrating the risk and control systems with
those of the wider group

A mandatory procedure detailing the nsk management process
15 used at project operating unit business unit and group levels
to identify the key risks that could have a significant impact on
Amec Foster Wheeler s ability to achieve its objectives These
are recorded In risk registers and evaluated to determine the
ikely impact and probabihty of occurring

Control actions are developed to mitigate or eliminate nsks that
are considered unacceptable Risk owners are identified and
gwen respansibility for ensunng actions are implemented with
appropriate review dates

The nisk registers are reviewed and updated at least quarterly
with the relevant risk owners

Reporting and monitoring
Reporting to the beard, the risk committee 1s chaired by the
Chief Executive and meets at least twice each year to

» review risk management policies procedures and processes

» review the Amec Foster Wheeler plc risk register and make
recommendations as appropriate

» review, approve and make recommendations inrespect
of those risks which Amec Foster Wheeler 1s willing to accept
or assume in the ordinary course of business (nsk appetite),

» review any 15sues raised by other committees of the board
that impact on the rnisk profile of Amec Foster Wheeler

» review any emerging risks and any potential impact they may
have on risk appetite,

» review and consider reports on key risk issues such as new
business and geographical locations for operations
or projects, and

» 1Ssue nsk reports and make recommendations to the board

We acknowledge Guidance on Risk Management Internal
Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting 1ssued
by the Financial Reporting Council in September 2014, and
the terms of reference of the nisk commuttee have been
amended accordingly

Roles and responsibilities

Board

plc

Chief Executive/
risk committee

Group function heads

Head of Risk
Management

Risk oversight

» énsure appropnate risk management
processes are in place

» ensure management i1s positioned
to dentify and respond to risk

» ensure relevant information 1s raised
to the appropriate level

Risk owner/risk manager
» participate m the dentification of nisk

=]
3
wn Business unit Leadership teams/ Business Unit » participate in the identification of nsk %
§ 8 presidents function heads Head of Commercial/ management action plans c
g5 Head of Project » ensure action plans are implemented g
@ Delivery » monitor and report on risk status a
]
G
Operating unit Leadership teams/ QOperating Unit Head
heads function heads of Commercial/

Operatmg
unit

Dehvery

Project manager Project team

Projects

N
o

Head of Project

Project risk owners

Risk co-ordinator

» ensure risk management process
1s followed

» facilitate rrisk management reviews

» collate and 1ssue risk management
reports/registers

» promote learning and consistency

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Principal business and strategic risks

The table below shows Amec Foster Wheeler s principal business and strategic nsks Each i1s specific to the Group and could have
a matenal impact on it Actions have been taken to mitigate these nsks and these are also shown

Other financial nsks that may impact the Group are shown on pages 134 to 139 - note 19 Capital and financial risk management
L . _______________________________________________________________ ]

Risk

Mitigation

Geopolitical and economic conditions

Amec Foster Wheeler expects to derve the majority of its
revenues from Europe the US and Canada and 1s therefore
particutarly affected by pobtical and economic conditions
In those markets

Changes in general economic conditions may influence
custemers' decisions on capital investment and/or

asset maintenance, whtch could lead to volatility in the
development of Amec Foster Wheeler s order intake These
may also lead to change in the customer base, competition
and 1n the way customers procure the services we provide
Anincrease in competition for new contracts may lead to
different less favourable contract terms and conditions

Continuing and escalating unrest in the Middle East may
have a negative mpact on existing and future opportunities
in the region

Amec Foster Wheeler seeks to maintan a balanced geographic
presence and, through acquisitions and organic growth will continue
to increase its exposure to other attractive regions of the world

The nisk associated with economic conditions resulting in a
downturn and affecting the demand for Amec Foster Wheeler's
services has been addressed asfar as practicable, by seeking

to maintain a balanced business partfolio in terms of geographies
markets clients and service offering/business model

In ight of continuing global economic uncertainties steps have
been taken to assess and monitor any potential impact on Amec
Foster Wheeler's business opportunities and address potential
increased supply chain and, more broadly counterparty rnisk

The introduction of a new focused Strategy and Business
Development function to realise the synergies across cur
customers, markets, geographies service offerings and
relationships

Changes in commodity prices

A sustained and significant reduction in ol and gas or
commodity prices would have an adverse impact on the level
of custormer spending in Amec Foster Wheeler s markets and
consequently represents a risk to organic growth

The fall in oil prices has had an impact on the investment
behaviour of Amec Foster Wheeler customers in this sector
with pressure on capital expenditure now leading to a greater
focus on smaller projects and operating expenditure

This risk 1s mitigated by maintaining a balanced business portfolio
of geographies, markets, clients and service offerings

Improved efficiencies through increased workflow between offices
and the effective use of centres of excellence and High Value
Execution Centres

Integration of the AMEC and Foster Wheeler businesses
Amec Foster Wheeler may fall to extract value from the
successful integration of the AMEC and Foster Wheeler
businesses This may result from a number of factors
including a continuing deterioration in market conditions
management time being focused on the integration of

the businesses which could distract management from
delivering on base businesses to the detnment of safety
performance project delivery, insufficient engagement
between the AMEC and Foster Wheeler businesses at vanous
levels and/or poor communication with customers

Amec Foster Wheeler has mitigated this risk with
» detailed planning for cost and revenue synergies

» continuing prioritisation of plans to ensure delivery of critical
items,

» plans to ensure clear allocations of resource to integration
management, whilst focusing remaining resources and efforts
on the base businesses

» the launch of a new operating model on schedule
» timely and ongoing communication with customers and

» detailed integration planning and success factars with regular
progress reports against them

Project delivery

Failing to maintain discipline and meet customer
expectations on project delivery could result in damage to
reputation, loss of repeat business and potentially lead to
litigation and/or claims against Amec Foster Wheeler

Amec Foster Wheeler has created a new focused and prominent
Project Delivery function including a Group Project Delivery
Director reporting directly to the Chief Executive The role of the
Project Delvery function i1 to assure and drive project execution
and to support the development training and mobilisation of
personnel to enhance execution competencies

In addition the system of globally applied policies and procedures
combined with comprehensive management oversight, the risk
management process, project reviews internal audit peer reviews
and customer feedback mitigate the nsk to successful project
delivery

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014
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Principal nsks and uncertainties continued

Risk

Mitigation

Lump sum contracts

Lump sum centracts carry different risks than reimbursable
contracts with the contractor agreeing the contract price
at the start of the contract and accepting the nsk of cost
overruns in completing the project

This risk 1s mitigated by having skills and competencies fully
aligned with the project scope Itis further mitigated by having

a clear, delegated authority structure in place combined with

the formal global mandatory procedures relating to contracting
principles and the contract review process In addition the Project
Delivery function referred to in the project delivery risk above will
perform reviews provide assurance and drive project execution

Staff recrultment and retention

An thabtlity to attract and retain sufficient high-calibre
employees could become a barrier to the continued success
and growth of Amec Foster Wheeler

Senior management departures or prolonged absences
could also adversely affect our ability to implement our
strategy and manage our operations efficiently

This nsk s mitigated with a ctear Human Resources (HR)
strategy, which i1s aligned to the business strategy and focused on
attracting developing and retaining the best people for the Group
with succession planning as appropriate It is underpinned by an
employee framework which descnbes how we manage our people
consistently

In addition, there i1s a continual review of compensation and
benefits to ensure sector and geographic competitiveness and
there are localised recruitment teams capable of recruiting large
numbers into Amec Foster Wheeler

Amec Foster Wheeler Academy delivers development activities to
enhance delivery and prepare employees for more advanced roles

Health, safety, security and environment

Amec Foster Wheeler 1s involved in activities and
environments that have the potential to cause serious injury
to personnel or damage to property or the environment and
damage to our reputation

These activities may involve operations such as design
construction, commissioning and decommissioning, which
have potential to cause serious environmental damage
poliution and hatatat destruction

In order to control nsk and prevent harm, Amec Foster Wheeler
15 focused on achieving the highest standards of health, safety
and secunty management This s achieved through setting

of an effective policy and putting in place clear standards
which underpin our health, safety, security and environmental
management systems

We have put in place processes to assure that our systems work
effectively throughout the organisation and health and safety
performance Is regularly rewiewed against agreed targets to
facilitate continualmprovement

Amec Foster Wheeler employs environmental and engineening
speciabists to support projects in implementing comprehensive
project management planming at all stages of a project These
processes are governed by appropriate quality management
systems and are supported by risk identification tools aimed at
identifying and managing all aspects of project environmental risk

Environmental licences

Amec Foster Wheeler's build/own/operate facilities and
fabrication/manufactuning sites rely on maintaining
environmental licences to operate, which includes protecting
the environment and achieving iegally enforceable operating
parameters Failure to maintain these standards may

result in the revocation of all or part of the licence and the
suspension of operation, resulting In criminal ar civil action
and/or financial risk to the business Failure to maintain
assets and/or pallution abatement equipment may result

in a faillure to meet legally-binding objectives and targets

for the operation

Environmental management systems are in place to moritor and
mitigate this nsk

Information technology (IT)

Amec Foster Wheeler 15 exposed to the nsk that the IT
systems on which it relies fail and/or that sensitive data held
by the Group s lost due to ineffective data governance or

as a result of unauthorised access to Amec Foster Wheeler
systems or malware attacks

Appropnate controls are in place to mitigate the risk of systems
falure and data loss including systems back-up procedures,
data security breach response plan disaster recovery plans and
globally distributed data centres prowding a secure and reliable
environment for hosting critical applications There 1s also
appropriate virus protection malware detection and remediation
network security controls and penetration testing and encryption
of mobile devices
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Risk

Mitigatien

Ethical breach

A substantive ethical breach and/or non-comphance with
laws or regutations could potentially lead to damage to Amec
Foster Wheeler's reputation, fines, litigation and ¢laims for
compensation

Thus risk 1s heightened as we transition from two Codes

of Business Conduct and two systems for raising ethical
concerns to a single Code of Business Conduct and a single
system for raising ethrcal concerns for the combined group
Confusion could arise amongst employees and give rnise to an
increased risk of substantive non-compliance with the Codes
of Business Conduct In addition personnel could engage in
activities which could be in substantive breach of laws and
regulations

Amec Foster Wheeler has a number of measures in place in the two
legacy businesses to mitigate the risk of a substantive ethical breach
and/or non-comphance with taws or regutations, including

» embedded policies and procedures

» Codes of Business Conduct

» segregation of duties,

» management oversight

» financial and operational controls,

» independent whistle-blowing mecharnism

» appointment of ethics and comphance officers
» anti-fraud and other internal audits

» legal team advice

» ethics training programme, and

» oversight by the ethics committee of the board
{now the HSSEE commuttee — see page 57)

Work 1s underway to estabhsh a single combined Code of Business
Conduct revised global mandatory policies and procedures and
pravide further appropriate training in 2015

Pensions

Amec Foster Wheeler operates a number of defined benefits
pension schemes where careful judgement 1s required in
deterrmining the assumptions for future salary and pension
increases discount rate inflation, investment returns and
member longevity There Is a risk of underestimating this
hability

This risk to Amec Foster Wheeler's pension schemes 1s mitigated by
» maintaining a relatively streng funding position over time

» taking advice from independent qualified actuaries and other
professional adwvisers

» agreeing appropnate investment policies with the trustees and

» close monitoring of changes in the funding position with
reparatory action agreed with the trustees in the event that
a sustained deficit emerges

See note 14 on page 126 for further details on our pension schemes

Legacy nsks
Litigation and business claims from divested and non-core
businesses remain a risk to Amec Foster Wheeler

Managing non-core legacy assets until divestment may
require skills that are not common to the rest of the
Company

Ground contaminants remain at sorne former Amec Foster
Wheeler operational localities where the pollutant may
have been as a result of the Company s operations or the
Company is responsible for its clean-up Thereis arisk
that pollution may result in a nsk to human health or the
environment There s potential for civil and/or criminal
action against the Company for such pollutants

The estabhished legacy team manages these clams with internal
and external legal advice The airm s to seek cost-effective
management of liigation and promote commercially sensible
settlements where appropriate

Amec Foster Wheeler has made provisions for the legacy 1ssues
that are believed to be adequate and 1s not aware of any other
current 1ssues relating to disposed businesses which are likely
to have a material impact Specialist teams with the appropriate
knowledge are brought in as required

In the case of any historical contarminated land strategies have
been developed to minimise the risk posed by such contarminated
land, including asset management and land remediation projects
and they remain under continuing review

Ashestos liahitity

The legacy Foster Wheeler business 1s exposed to significant
numbers of claims relating to alleged exposure to asbestos
The quantum of these claims Is actuanally forecast each
year and provisions are held against these loss projections
However there 15 a risk that these loss projections will be
exceeded and the provisions could be inadequate to meet
the habihties

There s a dedicated in-house finance and legal resource
comprising a team of specialist asbestos lawyers who manage
the claims assisted by National Co-ordinating Counsel {(NCC)
and local counsel A claims strategy has been developed with the
NCC and regular reviews are undertaken

The team monitors legal developments in these claims and the
strategy to deal with them on a regular basis

The quantum of these claims 1s actuanally forecast each year
and provisions are held against the ultimate loss projections

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annuat report and accounts 2014
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Sustainability

Sustainable development i1s shaping
our business every day It s at the heart
of our values,

Greenhouse gas emissions
]

2004 2013
COm COe
emissions in emis5ons in
Year ended 30 September tonnes tonnes
Combustion of fuel and operation
of facihties 24126 283863
Electricity, heat. steam and cooling
purchased for own use 34,397 32226
Per employee 216 213
Per £1m revenue* 15.74 1537

*Based on AMEC revenue only for 2014

The figures show scope one and two emissions™® from our global
business where we have operational control

The 12-month period to 30 September (the carbon reporting year),
rather than the calendar year, has been used This ensures actual
data can be reported even for those regions where energy/fuel
usage 1s more difficult to access By reducing reliance on estimation,
a more accurate footprint can be provided in a timely manner

In our figures we use accepted methods of calculation based on the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard (revised edition} We first adopted our operational
control approach in 2001 We have used national conversion factor
guidehnes (e g Environmental Protection Agency Environment
Canada) where appropnate We have restated our reported 2013
carbon data following the discovery that some project diesel fuel use
had not been included in the figure previously stated and through
improvement in company car data reporting within the Americas

Our figures for 2013 and 2014 are based on the AMEC business,
as the Amec Foster Wheeler business did not come into effect
until after the carbon reporting year had ended It 15 our intention
to report carbon emissions for the whole Amec Foster Wheeler
business for the 2015 carbon reporting year and beyond - and
launch a real-time microsite for public accountability

. ]
Carbon emissions 3.2

Tonnes COse per employees 31 3
scopel 2and 3

2012 2013 2014

*Scope 1 ermussions - all direct greenhouse gas emissiens from owned
or cantrolled sources

Scope 2 emissions - (ndirect greenhouse gas emissions from consumption
of purchased electricity heat or steam

Scope 3 erissions - other indirect ermissions such as transport in vehicles
not owned or controlled by the Company
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Our approach to sustainable business

Our growth aspirations will only be achieved by focusing
on our customers and how we deliver our projects safely
and sustainably

We believe sustainable business i1s about integrating social,
environmental and economic concerns into ¢ore vatues and
operations in a transparent and accountable manner

Cur customers face increasing legislative and other pressures
to operate in a sustainable way and we aim to support them
working with our partners and supply chain We are working
with them to provide innovative solutions to minimize resource
use {(water materals energy), consider the long-term social
requirements on projects (utihsing local workforce and
suppliers, supporting the local communities In which we work,
etc¢ )} and ensuring the delivery of safe projects (iInherent within
the design, on site during delivery and onwards durng the
operation)

In each of these areas, we utilise our internal programmes and
tools along with our technical and scientific expertise to ensure
censistent excellence

Forus sustamabihty 1s integrated into the very core of our
business and within our decision making processes We want

to be recognised as a leader in sustainable business practice,
ceontinually validating our social icense to operate by ensuring
employees’ behaviours and actions are in ine with our values

In 2015 we will be developing and launching a new sustainability
strategy for Amec Foster Wheeler which will support the
business and our custemers in delivering in these areas

Further details can be found in the 2014 sustainability report

to be 1ssued via the new microsite in May 2015

Additionally

» we continue to support SOS Children as our global strategic
charity and during 2014 our employees held events to raise
monies to fully fund a water project in the SOS village 1in
Callao Peru to which the Company donated £69 069

» we provided expertise to the International Federation of
Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies, designing transitional
shelters to be used in disaster situations

» we made additional payments of £384,694 to 274 charities,
for which employees raised £530,591,

» our total carbon foctpnint reduced by 3 579 tonnes 1n 2014
to 84,154 tonnes in comparison to 2013 however our carbon
per person remained the same over the period

» AMEC was awarded industry leader in the Dow Jones
Sustainability Index for 2014/15 and were given a gold class
sustainability award by RobecoSAM Global Sustainatility
Index and

» following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, we began an
extensive stakeholder engagement process to identify and
prioritise the most material sustainability 1ssues on which we
will focus our attention moving forwards This results of this
exercise will form the basis of a new sustainability strategy
for the business which will be published nud-2015

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual repont and accounts 2014




Global market trends

Our markets are all cyclical and we are
not immune to the recent falls in key
commodity prices — such as oll, gas,
copper and iron ore — which are all at
five-year lows.

Each of our markets 1s expected to grow
In the long term

We are positioned across sectors so as
to benefit whatever the relative weighting
In the energy mix

This diversity means we are not dependent
on any one part of the energy mix

Positive long-term trends

At the time of wnting in early 2015 the full impact of the recent
oll price decline 1s not yet clear The early consensus appears
to be that global economic activity may recerve a small

boost from lower fuel costs — but this will largely be offset by
negative conseguences from lower levels of iInvestment in the
energy sector

Ofl price m noso
At year end 107.38

$ per barrel 9475

5733

Socurce Bloomberg
Brent (USD/barrely 2010 2011 202 2013 2014

Despite the current volatility long-term forecasts for global
energy demand and supply have not changed significantly over
the past year The International Energy Agency (IEA) World
Energy Outlock 2014 predicts a 37% increase by 2040

Long-term o1l demand 1s expected to increase more than 20%
from just over 90 to 110 mullion barrels of o1l per day by 2035

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Changing hydrocarbon production mix

A change from today s production mix s still expected with
crude oil falling and a greater share being taken by natural gas
liguids and unconventional sources

In recent years the rapid increase in tight ail production —
mainly from the ol sands in Canada and shale ol in the US -
together with huge investments in hquefied natural gas projects
has changed the nature of the energy market and created
regional trade imbalances

In 2005 the US imported more than 12 million barrels of oll per
day. and it 1s now forecast to be se!f-sufficient during the 2030s
Qver the same penod, China 1s expected to import more than
13 mullion barrels per day and to become the largest importer

Changing energy mix

Concerns around resource depletion dangerous emissions
stricter regulation and consumer preference are driving
renewable forms of energy, including nuclear, to increase their
share of total energy production Amongst fossil fuels, gas 15
expected to grow 1ts share, with oil and coal reducing

]
Energy mix 7
% 4

Ol & Gas 3

Coal 30

Renewable

Nuclear

Other

56

The nuclear industry remains a fragmented market with a
consequence that our opportunities vary significantly We
expect to see new bulld in the UK Eastern Europe and in some
countries in Asia, reactor life extensions in the UK, Europe and
North America and decommissioning work n the UK Europe
and North America Qverall the IEA forecasts nuclear will be
used to generate around 12% of electricity in 2035, shightly
above today s level

Emissions controls and the need for greater efficiency are also
driving change Today many renewable technologies benefit
from local and regional subsidies, which 1s currently supporting
thew growth

Strong resource fundamentals remain

More than 1 5bn peaple In emerging markets are expected to
become urbanised in the period to 2035, a key underlying driver
of long-term growth for the mining ndustry

However, lower commodity prices and general econormic
uncertainty have caused the postponement or cancellation
of some projects in the near term

In addition a number of major mining companies have
announced delays to projects and cost reduction programmes
in order toincrease returns to their shareholders

Solid growth in environmental consultancy

The global environmental consultancy market 1s expected
to grow consistently in hine with GDP, with services related to
climate change energy and contaminated land/remedtation
expected to grow particularly strongly
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Our markets

We operate in more than 50 countries,
focusing on four markets

» Qil & Gas

» Clean Energy

» Mining

» Environment & Infrastructure

|
We provide similar services in each of our

markets.

We win work through strong customer
relationships and our proven ability to
deliver projects successfully

Many of our services are transferable
across markets

We have positioned our operations across four markets
because we believe a diversified approach mmnimises nisk and
maximises opportunities over the long term

We are always on the look-cut for strategic opportunities

to enhance our position in our chosen markets For example
our January 2015 acquisition of Scopus complements our
existing Ot & Gas position by adding further cost-effective
services across the whole lifecycle of a project In particular

the enhanced lean engineering capability will allow us to provide
a low-cost solution at the late-life stage of a facility prior to
decommussioning

Competitive environment

There 1s no ane competitor operating in all the same markets
with the same geographic foctprint and with a similar approach
to risk as Amec Foster Wheeler

|
2014 scope revenue' by end market 10
%

Ol & Gas

Mining

Clean Energy

Environment & Infrastructure
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1 Non IFRS measure (see Perlormance measures on pages 169 to 172)
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0il & Gas
The combination of AMEC and Foster Wheeler transformed
our market offering

We do not operate in early cycle exploration or dnling but we
are now involved in every part of the project delivery phase
across the oil and gas value chain

In the upstream market the majonty of our activity 1s for
offshore assets, where we support fixed platforms and floating
praoduction units largely above the waterline

We are a market leader in UK North Sea brownfield services
and provide integrated solutions to new entrant operators
In the region

We also support onshore o1l and gas fields booster stations
gathering centres tank farms gas-oil separation plants and
pipelines

]
Qil & Gas scope revenue' a1
%

Upstream

Midstream

Downstream

7 52

Recent advances in the extraction of gas reserves in onshore
locations around the world have made gas monetisation one
of the fastest growing sectors in the global oil and gas industry,
where we hope to build on extensive experience

In the downstream market we work on new-builds and major
expansions and revamps wncluding clean fuels projects to meet
new legislation and residue upgrading to produce higher-value
products

We have more than 60 years of experience in the chermicals
industry encompassing plants producsing olefins, aromatics
fertihzers and a wide range of specialty and fine chemicals

Amec Foster Whegler
Annual report and accounts 2014



Clean Energy

In renewables our focus 1s on delivering projects for our
customers most of which are local utilities We provide a full
service engineering procurement and construction (EPC)
solution on wind, solar, biomass and biofuels projects This s
mostly in North America however we also plan to expand our
positions in the Middle East

Over the past three years we have seen strong growth in the
US for solar power spurred on by subsidies which are due to be
reviewed in 2017

Qur nuclear capabihity has been developed over 60 years
positioning us to support the full lifecycle of nuclear energy,
from new build and reactor support (including ifetime extension)
to nuclear decommissioning and waste management We have
experience of a wide range of nuclear technology

Qur nuclear customers include major utilities, governments,
national regulators reactor suppliers and other significant
stakeholders We have a particularly strong presence in the

UK and Canada a growing business in the US, a good presence
in Central and Eastern Europe and South Africa, and nascent
propositions in Asia

We also have a long-standing relationship in the UK and
a growing presence In Canada with the transmission and
distribution system owners

We offer a full range of steam generator equipment clean

ar technologies aftermarket products and services to the
power industnal and waste-to-energy sectors Inaddition to
engineering and procurement, we offer fabrication facilities
located in Europe and Asia to deliver our products

Qur experience comes from designing, servicing and improving
fossil generating plants that come from over 200 million hours
of successfully and reliably logged operation

Mining
We support our customers projects in a diverse range of
commaodities, iIncluding potash iron ore copper and gold

We offer muning ¢onsultancy (including ore resource estimation,

mine planning and feasibihty stuches) design project and
construction management services and have whole-Ife service
capabilities

We are a leading international consultancy, with a leading
positionin the North and South American engineering
procurement and construction management (EPCM) markets

In addition to our established position in Austrahia, we are
growing our African business

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

Environment & infrastructure (E&I)

The environmental consulting and engineering market includes
services provided to all four of our markets with skills that are
easily transferable across customers

By positioning ourselves as a trusted partner right at the
beginning of a project — often the early site development and
permitting stage — we can deliver comprehensive solutions
across the hfecycle of our customers’ assets

We are currently operating predominantly in the US, Canada
and the UK, with an emerging presence in the Middle East
Africa and Australasia

Our E&! market alone consists of four sectors

Water

Our primary areas of focus are water resource management
water policy coastal management asset planning and
management and wastewater collection and treatment

Water services are also commenly provided to customersin our
other markets including Mining & Metals and Qil & Gas

Transpertation/infrastructure

We provide programme management planning and design,
project and construction management, asset development
and long-term asset support Our customers include
government transportation agencies, national and local
customers and private developers tn Canada and the US
We have over 50 years experience in the sector

Government services

We provide a broad range of services to various clients
including the US Federal Government whichs the largest
procurer of environmental services in the weorld Customers
also include various branches of the military and state/
provincial agencies Services range from remediation
programmes to design and delivery of infrastructure facilities
including airfield faciities housing and site improvements

at installations globally

Industrial/commercial

We prowvide compliance and due diligence services, ranging
from geotechnrcal and environmental to materials and water
resources consulting
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Connected

excellence

Previously capable of
tracking approximately
23,000 basketball-sized
objects in space, the new
system will be capable of
tracking up to 200,000
such objects,

28

through
customer
iNsight




]
The Space Fence Program will enhance US
detection and tracking of space objects to
help prevent space-based collisions

Qur customer insight will enable us

to deliver facilities and infrastructure,
Including radar array builldings, mechanical
and operations buildings, power
generation plants and site work to create
the largest ground-based radar of its

type ever constructed
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Financial review

|
{an McHoul
Chief Financial Officer
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Reported under IFRS
]
£m unless stated 2014 203 Change
Continuing operations

Revenue 3,993 3974 0%
Profit before net financing

expense 148 243 -389%
Profit before tax 155 255 -39%
Cash flow from operations 200 292 -32%
Drtluted earmings per share 35.1p 62 5p -44%

Dividend per share 43.3p! 42 Op +3%

1 Includes the proposed final dividend for 2014 of 28 Sp per ordinary share

Adjusted measures
|

Underlying
£m unless stated 2014 2013 Change change?
Continuing operations
Scope revenue! 3,920 3854 +2% +1%
Trading profit2 321 343 -6%

Trading margin® 8.2% 89% -70bps
Adjusted profit

before tax* 317 332 -5%
Trading cash flow? 283 341 -17%
Cash conversion® 88% 99% -110ps
Adjusted diluted

earnings per share’ 79.5p 872p 9%

1 Scope revenue represents reported revenue less flow-through
procurement revenue

2 Trading profit represents profit befere net financing expense bhefora the
amortisation of intangible assets asbestos related costs (net of Insurance
recoveries) and exceptional items but including the Group s share of the
trading profit of jeint ventures

3 Trading margin represents trading profit expressed as a percentage
of scope revenue

4 Adjusted profit before tax represents profit before tax before exceptional
Items the amoertisation of Intangible assets asbestes related costs and
interest expense (net of nsurance recoveries) and the Group s share of tax
on the results of joint ventures

5 Tradng cash flow represents cash generated from eperations before
cash flows arising from exceptional items asbestos-related payrnents
(net of Insurance recoveries) the difference between retirement benefit
contributions and the current service cost legacy settlements and
discontinued operations, and currency transtation differences on working
capital but including dividends receved from Joint ventures

& Cash conversion represents trading cash flow expressed as a percentage
of trading profit

7 Adjusted diluted earmings per share represents profit for the year from
continuing operations before exceptional items the amortisation of
intangible assets asbestos related costs and interest expense (net of
msurance recoveres) and the tax effect of those tems divided by the
diluted number of ordinary shares

8 Underlying change excludes the effect of flow-through procurement
acquisitions and disposals of businesses and currency exchange rate
movements

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Basis of preparation

Accounting policies

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS as adopted for use in the EU and those parts of

the Companies Act 2006 that are applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS From the Group's perspective, there are
no differences between IFRS as adopted for use In the EU and
IFRS as 1ssued by the |IASB

The Group's principal accounting policies during 2014 were
unchanged compared with 2013

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

As outlined in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
management considers that the most significant areas of
judgement and estimation made in preparing the consolidated
financial statements arise in relation ta the accounting for
long-term contracts business cormbinations defined benefit
pensions and other retirement benefits and provisions
(including asbestos-related hiabilities), and in assessing the
recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets

Adjusted performance measures

We report adjusted performance measures because they
provide both management and investors with useful additional
information about the underlying trading performance of the
business

Before we acquired Foster Wheeler, the adjusted performance
measures that we reported excluded the amortisation of
Intangible assets and exceptional items and, where relevant
the tax effects of those items

On the acquisition of Foster Wheeler we assumed significant
additional asbestos-related obligations in relation to claims

for damages made or expected to be made by individuals who
allege that they have suffered personal injury from exposure

to asbestos primarily in connection with equipment allegedly
manufactured by Foster Wheeler s subsichanes during the
1970s and earlier When Foster Wheeler s obhgations are added
to AMEC's existing though much less significant, asbestos-
retated obligations, there 1s the possibility i the future that the
Group’s results and cash {lows will be materially affected by
changes in these asbestos-related obligations or our provisions
for these obhgations We have therefore additionally excluded
from the adjusted performance measures the asbestos-related
costs and interest expense (net of Insurance recoveries) and
where relevant the tax effect of those items In previous years
asbestos-refated costs incurred by AMEC were not matenal

to the Group s trading performance and therefore there has
been no restatement of the adjusted performance measures
presented for 2013 and 2012

Adjusted performance measures used by the Group are
explained and reconciled to the equivalent IFRS measures in the
section entitled Performance measures on pages 169 to 172

Amec Foster Wheefer
Annual report and accounts 2014

Continuing operations

Revenue

Revenue for the year was broadly unchanged compared with
last year at £3 993m (2013 £3 974m)

Revenue declined by £175m in the Amenicas and by £108m
Europe but increased by £54m inthe Growth Regions Revenue
from Ol & Gas was down 13%, Mining was down 14% and E&I
down 3%, but revenue from Clean Energy was up 11% Revenue
in all markets was adversely affected by the strength of sterling
particularly against the US dollar Overall, currency exchange
rate movements reduced revenue by £238m in 2014 compared
with 2013

Foster Wheeler contnbuted £274m to the Group s revenue
during the last seven weeks of the year following 1ts acquisition
in November 2014

Flow-through procurement decreased by £47mto £73m
(2013 £120m)

Excluding flow-through procurement the effect of acquisitions
and currency movements underlying revenue increased by 1%
Underlying revenue from Ol & Gas was down 5% and that from
Mining down 6%, but Clean Energy was up 16% and E&| was
up 5%

Seasonality

The Group s revenue s generally higher in the second half of
the year principally because weather conditions in the northern
hemisphere are typically more conducive to project activity

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were £354m (2013 £293m), including
exceptional items intangibles amortisation and asbestos-
related costs (net of insurance recoveries) totalling £135m
(2013 £65m)

Administrative expenses before intangibles amortisation
excephional items and net asbestos-related costs declined

by 4% to £219m (2013 £228m) principally due to the impact
of currency movements and reduced share-based payment
charges Also deterrmined on this basis, Foster Wheeler s
administrative expenses following its acquisition were £26m

Caorporate costs, which comprise the costs of operating
central corporate functions and certain regional overheads,
were £4m lower at £31m (2013 £35m)

Profit before net financing expense

Profit before net financing expense was significantly lower at
£148m (2013 £243m) largely due to exceptional costs incurred
during 2014 in relation te the acquisition of Foster Wheeler
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Financial review continued

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

intangible assets principally comprise goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets that were recognised in relation to acquired
businesses Goodwill1s not amortised but is subject to an
annual impairment test No impatrment was recognised in
either 2014 or 2013

Intangibles amortisation was £49m (2013 £47m) Whilst an
additional amortisation expense of £11m was recognised on

the intangible assets acquired with Foster Wheeler and there
was the full-year amortisation of intangible assets recognised

N acquisitions completed in 2013 the year-on-year change was
reduced because the amortisation expense in 2013 included the
accelerated amortisation of certain intangible assets We expect
the full-year impact of the amortisation of intangible assets
acquired with Foster Wheeler to be approximately £85m

Asbestos-related costs (net of insurance recoveries)

During 2014, the Group recognised net asbestos-related costs
of £8m (2013 Znil) in profit before net financing expense which
largely related to the reduction between the acquisition date
and the year-end date in the discount rate applied to the net
asbestos-related liabilities assumed on the acquisition of Foster
Wheeler Inaddition, the Group recognised an asbestos-related
interest expense of £1m (2013 Znil)

Exceptional tems

Net excephional costs totalling £98m (2013 £25m) were
recogmised in arriving at profit before tax from continuing
operations, as follows

» costs of £41min relation to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler
(Including transaction costs of £37m within administrative
expenses and acquisition-related facility fees amortisation
of £4m within net financing expense),

» costs of £35m relating to the integration of AMEC and Foster
Wheeler (including internal staff costs associated with
identifying and achieving cost synergies),

» costs of £6m incurred in completing the restructuring
of AMEC s business onto a geographical basis, and

» a net loss of £16m on the exit of businesses comprising a
loss of £21m on businesses sold in the year (principally the
reverse premium payable on exit from the Group s investment
in the Lancashire Waste project), which was parhally offset by
a gan of £5m on the release of a provision ne longer required
in respect of a business closed in a previous year
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Trading profit and trading margin
]

Undertying
£m uniess stated 2014 2013 Change change!
Revenue 3993 3.974 0%
Flow-through
procurement (73) (120)

Scope revenue! 3,920 3,854 +2% +1%
Profit before net
financing expense 148 243
=~ Intangibles
ameortisation 49 47
— Net asbestos-
related costs 8 -
— Excephtional tems 94 25
- Share of trading
profit of joint
ventures 22 28
Trading profit! 321 343 -6%
Trading margint 8.2% 89% -7Obps
Order book £6.3bn  £41bn +55%

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 169 to 172)

Trading profit decreased by 6% to £321m (2013 £343m)
Trading margin decreased by 70 basis points to 8 2%
(2013 89%)

In Americas, trading profit fell due to the impact of currency
translation and lower levels of actimty in Ol & Gas and Mining,
being partially offset by increased work in Clean Energy Trading
margin dechned parhally due to this change in market mix
towards lower margin Clean Energy and because of the timing
of large contract close-outs which were particularly favourable
in 2013 In Europe trading profit and trading margin both
increased compared with 2013 largely as a result of the non-
recurrence of the losses from the Teesside Gas Processing Plant
contract In the Growth Regwons trading profit fell due to the
impact of currency translation and a lower contribution from
Clean Energy and E&I Compared with 2013 Growth Regions
trading margin fell due to pricing pressure from customers and
investment for growth

Currency exchange rate movements reduced trading profit
by £22m in 2014 compared with 2013

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014




Net financing expense

Net financing expense was £5m (2013 £2m) including net
bank interest payable of £/m (2013 £2m), net foreign exchange
losses of £nil (2013 £1m) and net interest income on pension
assets and labihties of £2m (2013 £1m) In 2014 net financing
expense also included a net expense of £1m (2013 £nil) due

to the unwinding of the discount on asbestos-related habilities
{net of Insurance recoveries)

A net currency exchange loss of £4m (2013 loss of £1m)

was recogrised in the translation reserve In respect of foreign
currency borrowings and derivatives held in designated net
investment hedging relationships

Share of results of joint ventures
The Group s share of joint ventures’ profit for the year was £12m
(2013 £14m)

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was £155m (2013 £255m) after intangibles
amorhisation of £49m (2013 £47m), net asbestos-related costs
and interest expense of £9m (2013 Lnil), exceptional items of
£98m (2013 £25m) and the Group s share of joint ventures’
tax expense of £6m (2013 £5m)

Adjusted profit before tax was 5% lower at £317m
(2013 £332m) reflecting the overall decline in the Group's
trading performance in 2014 compared with 2013

Taxation

Our tax policy 1s to manage our obligations in comphance with
all relevant tax laws, disclosure requirements and regulations
We seek to ensure that our approach to tax and the tax
payments that we make in all territories in which we have
operations are fully consistent with local requirements taking
into account available tax incentives and allowances and are
aligned with the Group's wider business strategy We seek to
develop good, open working relationships with tax authorties
and to engage with them proactively, recognising that tax
legislation can be complex and may be subject to differing
interpretations

During 2014 there was a tax credit on exceptional items

of £6m (2013 tax charge of £6m) and a tax crecit of £12m on
intangibles amortisation (2013 £20m) In addition, there was
an exceptional tax charge of £16m in 2013

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

The Group's share of joint ventures income tax expense was
£6m (2013 £5m)

The Group s effective tax rate on continuing operations
(including 1ts share of joint ventures’ income tax expense

but before exceptionalitems intangibles amortisation and
asbestos-related tems) increased to 23 0% (2013 21 9%)
Theincrease principally reflected reduced prior period credits
which resutt from agreement of historical tems with various
tax authorities In addition, 2013 included a credit following

a reduchon in the tax rate applied to the UK pension surplus
which was not repeated in 2014

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Profit for the year from continuing operations was £106m
(2013 £186m) after intangibles amartisation of £49m
(2013 £47m) the net asbestos-related expense of £9m
(2013 £nil}, net exceptional items of £98m (2013 £25m),
and an income tax credit on those items of £18m

(2013 charge of £2m)

Adjusted profit for the year from continuing operations was 6%
lower at £244m (2013 £260m)

Non-controlling interests
During 2014 there was aloss of £3m attributable to non-
controlling interests (2013 loss of £1m)

Earnings per share

Diluted EPS was 26 5p (2013 59 8p) comprising earnings per
share of 35 1p (2013 62 5p) from continuing operations and a
loss of 8 6p (2013 2 7p) from discontinued operations

Adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operatiens was lower at
79 5p (2013 872p) due to the decline in the profit for the year
from continuing operations and the increase in the number

of shares in 1ssue as a consequence of the acquisition of
Foster Wheeler

Dividend

The board recommends a final dividend of 28 5p per share
which together with the interim dividend of 14 8p per share
results in a total dividend of 43 3p per share (2013 42 Op), an
increase of 3% Subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM
on 14 May 2015, the final dividend will be payable on 2 July 2015
to shareholders on the register at the close of business on

29 May 2015

Dividend cover for 2014151 8 times (2013 2 1 times) based
on adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations Going
forward the board expects to maintan a progressive dividend
policy whilst maintaining dividend cover at around two times
adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations
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Financial review continued

Results by operating segment

Americas
]
Underbying

£munless stated 2014 2013 Change change!
Revenue 2,072 2247 -8%
Flow-through
procurement (73) (120)
Scope revenuet 1,999 2,127 6% +4%
Profit before net
financing expense 195 211
- Intangibles

amaortisation 17 18
- Exceptional items (6) 10
- Share of trading

profit of joint

ventures 1 2
Trading profit! 207 241 -14%
Trading margin! 10.2% 113% -110bps
Order book £12bn  £14bn -14%

1 Non-IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 169 to 172)

Revenue in Americas was £2 072m (2013 £2.247m), adeclne
of 8% Excluding flow-through procurement the effect of
acquisitions and currency movernents underlying revenue was
up 4% Growth in underlying revenue in Clean Energy and E&I
was partially offset by dechines in Ol & Gas and Mining

Trading profit fell by 14% to £207m (2013 £241m) largelyas a
result of the reduced levels of activities in Ol & Gas and Mining
Trading margin was 10 2% down by 110 basis points compared
with 2013 Trading margin dechned principally due to increased
weighting of lower-margin Clean Energy in the product mix
and due to the timing of large contract close-outs, which were
particularly favourable in 2013
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Europe
|
Underlying

Em unless stated 2014 2013 Change change!
Revenue 119 1,227 -9% -8%
Profit before net
financing expense 70 63
—Intangibles

amortisation 17 17
— Exceptional items 3 1
— Share of trading

profit of 1otnt

ventures n 12
Trading profit? 101 93 +9%
Trading margin! 9.1% 76% +150bps
Order book £1.8bn  £17bn +3%

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performarnce rmeasures on pages 169 to 172)

Revenue 1in Europe felt by 9% to £1,119m (2013 £1227m)
primanly due to the reduced level of Onl & Gas activity in the
North Sea Underlying revenue declined by 8%

Trading profit increased by 9% to £101Im (2013 £93m) Trading
margin was 9 1% up 150 basis points compared with 2013,
largely as a result of the non-recurrence of losses from the
Teesside Gas Processing Plant

Growth Regtons

. ]
Underlying

£m unless stated 2014 2013 Change change!
Revenue £m 590 536 +10% +18%
Proiit before net
financing expense 20 10
- Intangibles
amortisation 4 12
- Exceptional items 2 7
— Share of trading
profit of joint
ventures 4 4
Trading profit! 30 33 -9%
Trading margin! 5.1% 6 2% -110ps
Order book £0.9bn  £0Sbn

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 169 to 172}

Revenue in Growth Regions improved by 10% to £590m
(2013 £536m), primarily driven by increased revenue from
O & Gas activities in the Middle East and a partial recovery
in Mining revenue In Austraha Underlying revenue increased
fy 18% principally due to the exclusion of adverse currency
exchange rate movements

Trading profit fell by 9% to £30m (2013 £33m), reflecting lower
contributions from Clean Energy and E&| Trading margin was
51% down 110 basis points compared with 2013 due to pricing
pressure from customers and investment for growth

Amec Foster Whesler
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E&C Services and Global Power Group

E&C Services and Global Power Group are Foster Wheeler
business units and therefore contributed to the Group s
performance only for the final seven weeks of the year following
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler in November 2014

E&C Services contributed revenue of £221m and a trading
profit of £4m (before intangibles amortisation of £7m) As at
31 December 2014, the value of E&C Services order book was
£20bn

Global Power Group contributed revenue of £53m and a trading
profit of £2m (before intangibles amortisation of £4m) As at

31 December 2014 the value of Global Power Group's order
book was £0 4bn

Investment Services

During the periods under review, Investment Services
principally comprised the Incheon Bridge PPP project in Korea
and the Lancashire Waste project (which the Group exited

in 2014) the Group's insurance captive, the Group s wind
development activities and a range of other non-core activities

Revenue in Investment Services was £6m (2013 £6m)
Investment Services incurred a loss before net financing
expense of £16m (2013 £3m), after deducting an exceptional
loss on disposals of businesses of £21m (2013 £nily Trading
profit was £8m (2013 £11lm) of which £3m (2013 £7m) was
derived from joint ventures

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent the residual assets and
retamed obligations of businesses sold in prior years together
with the UK conventional power business that was classified
as a discontinued operation during 2013

Discontinued operations generated a trading loss before tax

of £10m (2013 loss of £10m) and after a tax credit of £2m
(2013 £2m) generated a loss for the year of £8m (2013 loss of
£8m) During 2014, negative revenue of £13m was recognised
due to the settiement of final accounts and additional
provisions on certain contracts within the UK conventional
power business

Discontinued operations included a loss on disposals of £23m
{2013 loss £6m) anising from additional indemruty provisions
and costs associated with businesses sold in prior years In
2014, the loss on disposals included a provision of £11min
respect of a new claim received in the year related to a contract
completed by the Built Emvironment business which was sold
n 2007

Discontinued operations generated an overalt loss for the year
of £27m (2012 £8m)

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Acquisitions

Acquisition of Foster Wheeler

0On 13 November 2014 the Group acquired a 95 3% interest in
Foster Wheeler AG by way of a pubbc tender offer Consideration
payable for the interest acquired totalled £1,915m, of which
£979m was settled in cash £919m was settled by the issue

of approximately 85m of the Company s ordinary shares and
ADSs and £17m was settled by the grant of replacement share
ophions and awards

Management's preliminary assessment shows that the net
identifiable assets of Foster Wheeler amounted to £362m at
the acquisition date Adjustments made in the purchase price
altocation included the recognition of iIdentihiable intangible
assets of £738m, an increase 1n net asbhestos-related habilities
of £178m, additional provisions for project htigation of £66m
and prowisions for unfavourable property leases of £70m As
at 31 December 2014, provisional goodwill of £1 583m was
recognised on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler Acquisiticn
costs relating to Foster Wheeler totaling £37m were recognised
within administrative expenses during 2014

In January 2015 the Group acquired the remaining 4 7%
interest in Foster Wheeler AG by way of a ‘'squeeze-out merger
under Swiss law for consideration of £85m of which £51m was
paid in ¢cash and £34m was settled by the issue of 4 3 mulhon of
the Company's ordinary shares and ADSs

Further details of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial staterments

Acquisition of Scopus

0On 15 December 2014 the Group acquired the entire Issued
share capital of Scopus Group {Holdings) Limited for

£68m 1n cash (of which payment of £1m 1s deferred until the
first anmiversary of the acquisition)

Management § preliminary assessment shows that the net
identifiable assets of Scopus amounted to £34m at the
acquisition date As at 31 December 2014 provisional goodwill
of £34m was recognised on the acquisition of Scopus

Liquidity and capital resources

Cash flow

Trading cash flow

Trading cash flow was lower at £283m (2013 £341m)
principally due to the reduction in trading profit and an increase
in working capital of £31m

Cash conversion fell back to 88% (2013 99%)

Cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations was £200m (2013 £292m)

a decrease of £92m which was largely due to the £58m decline
in trading cash flow and the increase of £37m in the cash outflow
an exceptional items (principally acquisition-related costs}
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Financial review continued

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was £31m (2013 £23m) Additionally,

in 2014, purchases of computer software amounting to £33m
were financed using deferred payment arrangements

Acqurisitions and disposals

Cash consideration paid on the acquisition of business
was £1,049m, which comprised £982m for Foster Wheeler
(including a currency hedging loss of £3m) and £6/m for
Scopus

During 2014 the net cash outflow on acquisitions was £781m
(2013 £21m), after deducting cash and cash equivalents of
£268m (2013 £nil) held by the acquired businesses Also during
2014, there was a cash outflow of £23m (2013 outflow of £4m)
i relation to businesses sold, which principally related to the
reverse premium paid to exit Lancashire Waste After taking

into account debt owed by acquired businesses, the effect of
acquisitions and disposals was to increase the Group s net debt
by £876m (2013 £31m)

Movement in net (debt)/cash
The movement in net (debt}/cash may be analysed as follows

2014 2013
Year ended 31 Decamber £&m £m
Trading cash flow 283 341
Net asbestos-related payments (9 -
Excess of retirement benefit contributions
over current service cost {2) -
Cash outflow on exceptional items {58) 21
Legacy settlements and discontinued
operations {9) (14)
Dwidends received from joint ventures (14) 8)
Exchange rate movements 5 (6)
Cash generated from operations 200 292
Income taxes paid (net) (54) (52)
Interest paid (net) 3) {2)
Capital expenditure (net of disposals) (31) 22)
Acquisitions and disposals (net) (876) (3D
Ordinary dividends (124) (108)
Net share movements 6 (40)
Exchange and other movements 7 5
Cash movement in net (debt)/cash (B75) 42
Non-cash moverments (49) (20)
Movement in net {debt)/cash (924) 22
Opening net (debt)/cash 121 89
Closing net (debt)/cash (803) 121
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Net (debt)/cash compnised
. _____________________________________ ]

2014 2013
As at 31 December £m £m
Cash balances 516 250
Bank overdrafts - (9)
Bank loans (net of facility fees) (1,258) (120}
Finance lease obligations {61) -
Net (debt)/cash {(803) 121

Cash balances

We manage our cash balances such that there 15 no
significant concentration of risk in any one bank or other
financial mstitution We monitor closely the credit quahty
of the institutions that hold the Group's deposits Similar
consideration is given to the Group s portfolio of derivative
financial instruments

As at 31 December 2014 the Group had cash balances totalling
£516m (2013 £250m) of which 85% was held in institutions
with a long term credit rating of at least A- (or equivalent) by

at least two of Standard & Poor s Moody's or Fitch

Borrowings

Borrowing facilities

We seek to maintain a balanced capital structure comprising

a mix of debt and equity which 1s determined by considering
the Group s business profile and strategy, financial policies
and the availability and cost of funding We expect the Group s
long-term net debt to be no more than two times trading profit
Whilst we may choose to exceed this mit if required we would
expect any such increases to be temporary given the Group's
net trading cash inflows

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had committed banking
facilities of £1 863m (2013 £477m)

In February 2014, the Group entered into a US$2 160m
credit facility agreement with a syndicate of lenders In July
2014, the faciity agreement was amended to, among other
things increase the financing available under the facility to
US$2 260m As at 31 December 2014, the facilities available
under the agreement were as follows

» Faciity A a US$250m bridge to cash faciity maturing
August 2015

» Faciity B a US$830m bridge facility maturing February 2015
(with two six-month extensions available at the Group s option)

» Facility C, a US3830m term loan maturing in equal
nstalments in 2017 2018 and 2019 and

» Facility D a US$350m revolving credit facility maturing
May 2016

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Facilities A B and C were for the purpose of financing the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler including the payment of all

fees costs and expenses associated with the acquisition and
the repayment of the Group s £100m 12-month term loan

that matured in April 2014 Facility D is avallable for general
corporate purposes but may not be used for the same purposes
as Facihtres A B and C Faciity D is currently uttlised only for
providing bank guarantees

We extended Facility B for six months in February 2015 and
intend to refinance this facility in the capital markets during
2015

We also have a five-year £377m mulhi-currency revolving credit
facility that matures in July 2017

As at 31 December 2014 the Group had committed borrowing
headroom of £440m (in addition to cash balances of £516m)

Faciity Orawings Headroom
£m Im m

Credit facility agreement
—Facility A 160 70) 90
- Faciity B 532 (532) -
~ Facihty C 532 (532) -
—Faciity D 225 (157) 68
Revolving credit facility 377 (95) 282
Project debt 37 (37 -
Finance leases &l (6l) -
Committed faciities 1924  (1484) 440
Uncommuitted facilities 30 - 30
Total facilities 1,854  (1484) 170

Interest rate profile
The majority of the Group's borrowings are denominated in US
dollars and bear interest at floating rates

Qur policy 1s to maintain between 30% and 70% of the Group s
borrowings at fixed rates of interest We achieve this by using
interest rate swaps and other interest rate derivatives As

at 31 Decemnber 2014 only 23% of the Group s borrowings
were effectively at fixed interest rates but we Increased this
proportion above 309 in January 2015

As at 31 December 2014, the weighted average effective cost of
the Group s outstanding borrowings was 2 0% and the effective
Interest matunty was 19 months

Borrowing covenants

We are subject to customary covenants, representations and
warranties in relation to our borrowing facilities Our debt
financing facility contains certain financial covenants as defined
in the facility agreement including

» the ratic of consolidated net total borrowings to adjusted
conschdated EBITDA must not exceed 3 25 times EBITDA and

» the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to consolidated net finance
costs must not be less than 30 times

We satisfied these financial covenants by a comfortable margin
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Armec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

Currency profile of debt

We aim to mamtain the currency of the Group's debt in
proportion to the currencies in which the net assets of the
Group s businesses are denominated We achieve the desired
currency profile of the Group's debt by entering currency
derivative contracts

As at 31 December 2014, the effect of our hedging activity
on the currency profile of the Group’s debt was as follows

Debt befora Etfect of Debt after
hedges hedges hedges
am £m £m

Currency
- Sterling 116 71 187
- US dollar 1161 (494) 667
- Euro 42 192 234
- Canadian dollar - 231 231
1,319 - 1,319

Other assets and liabilities

Goodwill and other intangibles

As at 31 December 2014 the carrying amount of goodwill was
£2,390m (2013 £757m), with the increase durning the year
principally due to the addition of the goodwill recogrised on the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler (£1,583m) and Scopus (£34m)

As at 31 December 2014 the carrying amount of other
intangibles was £929m (2013 £150m), which compnised
acquired identifiable intangible assets of £851m (2013 £113m)
and computer software of £78m (2013 £37m) We recognised
identifiable intangible assets amounting to £738m an the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler and £31m on the acquisition of
Scopus which principally comprised customer relationships,
brands and trademarks and their respective order backlogs
Whilst additions to other intangible assets were significant
the amortisation expense increased only shghtly to £49m
(2013 £47m) because both Foster Wheeler and Scopus were
acquired late in 2014

Research and development

Our engineering, project management and consultancy
businesses seek to develop advanced engineering solutions

for our customers targeted towards the achievernent of new

or improved functions and performance of therr assets Our
businesses are invalved In front-end and detailed engineering
design and implementation and testing activities acress a broad
range of markets including the Oil & Gas, Mining and Clean
Energy sectors

GPG also conducts research and development activities

in the areas of combustion sold, flud and gas dynamics,
heat transfer, matenials and solid mecharics GPG licenses
its technology to a imited number of third parties in select
countries or markets

In the UK the US and Canada the Group claims research and
development government credits Research and development
expenditure net of amounts recoverable from customers and
government credits claimed s not matenial to the Group s
operating results
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Financial review continued

Property plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2014 property, plant and equipment
amounted to £157m (2013 £39m) with the increase during the
year largely due to property amounting to £84m and plant and
equipment amounting to £34m acquired with Foster Wheeler
and Scopus

We hold the majority of the properties through which the Group
operates under operating feases which are for varying periods
and on differing terms The Group has a network of over 350
offices worldwide, which range from regional hubs with a
headcount of between 1 000 and 2,500 employees, to smaller
offices with more local focus It 1s expected that the number

of properties that are occupied by the Group wtll be reduced
following the integration of Foster Wheeler's businesses

Due to the geographical spread of the Group s operations
there 1s no individual facibty the loss of which would have a
matenal adverse impact on the Group's operations Eqgually
there are no plans to construct expand or improve faciities
that woutd on completion or cancellation, significantly affect
the Group's operations

Post-retirement benefits

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension plans

n a number of countnes Following the acquisition of Foster
Wheeler, there are three principal plans two in the UK and one
in the US Each of these plans 1s closed to new entrants and
the two Foster Wheeler plans are also closed to future service
accruals As at 31 December 2014 the net deficit on the Group's
defined benefit pension plans amounted to £86m (2013 net
surplus of £40m) Dunng 2014, the Group contributed £32m
(2013 £29m) to defined benefit pension plans and expects

to contribute £33m in 2015 including special contributions

of £6m

Further information on the Group s retirement benefit plans
15 provided in note 14 to the consclidated financial statements

Asbestos-related obligations

Both AMEC and Foster Wheeler are subject to claims by
individuals who allege that they have suffered personal
injury from exposure to asbestos primarily in connection
with equipment allegedly manufactured by certain of their
subsidiaries during the 1870s and earher

As at 31 December 2014, the Group recognised

» asbestos-related habilities of £407m (after the effect of
discounting of £76m), which included estimates of ndemnity
amounts and defence costs for open and yet to be asserted
claims expected to be incurred in each year in the period to
2050 and

» tnsurance recoveries of £107m (after discounting of £4m)
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Provisions

Provisions held at 31 December 2014 amounted to £696m
(2013 £163m) with the substantial increase duning the

year arising principally due to the recognition of obligations
assumed on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler Otherwise,
additional provisions of £20m were recogrused in relation

to businesses sold in prior years and additional provisions

of £5m were recognised in relation to the Group s insurance
captive Unutilised provisions amounting to £11m were released
during 2014

Provisions may be summarised as follows
|

2014 2013
As at 31 December £m &m
Asbestos-related litigation 372 12
Project itigation 120 37
QObligations relating to disposed
businesses 87 71
Property-related provisions 85 8
Other provisions 32 35
696 163

Details of the provisions held by the Group are set out in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements

Non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2014, non-cantrolimg interests m equity
amounted to £29m (2013 £2m) with the increase during the
year being principally due to the addition of the 4 7% non-
controlling interest in Foster Wheeler AG that existed when the
Group took control of Foster Wheeler in Novermber 2014 and
was subsequently acquired by the Group In January 2015

Distributable reserves
As at 31 December 2014 the Company's distributable reserves
stood at £726m (2013 £842m)

£m
As at 31 December 2013 842
Cwidends paid during 2014 (124)
Dwidends receved from subsidiaries 75
Transaction and integration costs 50)
Other costs (17)
As at 31 December 2014 726

During 2012 the Company generated a significant profit from

a group restructuring which becomes distributable as qualifying
consideration i1s received by the Company in settlement of

the assoctated loan During 2014 the Company recewved £nul
(2013 £163m)
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Contractual obligations

As at 31 December 2014, the Group s contractual cbligations were as follows
|

Earlest penod in which payment due

Less than Between one Between two After more
Total one year and two years and five years than five years
£m £m £m £m £m

Bank and other loans
- Principal 1.267 706 5 545 1
- Interest! 57 11 13 22 1
Derivative financial iInstruments? 19 15 2 2 -
Finance leases 80 12 12 35 21
Operating leases 472 99 108 141 124
Post-retirement benefits? 33 33 - - -
Total* 1,928 876 140 745 167

1 Floating rate interest payments and payments on the floating rate fegs of interest rate derivatives are estimated based on market interest rates as at

31 December 2014

2 Payments on foreign currency denvatives are estimated based on market exchange rates as at 31 December 2014

3 Post employment benefit obligations represent contributians to which the Group 1s commutted and are not subject to potential future adjustment to reflect

investment performance and other actuarial factars

4 Future payments relating to the Group s uncertain tax positions are not included because it 1s not practicable to estimate reliably the timing of these

cash outflows

Off-balance sheet arrangements

At 31 December 2014 the Group had no off-balance sheet
arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a
current or future effect on the Group’s financial condition
revenues or expenses results of operations, ligurdity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that 1s material to investors

Details of the Group s operating lease commitments are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

Qutlook for 2015

During the remainder of 2015 we expect to see a continuation
of recent trends - with growth in Clean Energy downstream and
Middle Eastern Ol & Gas markets offsetting tougher conditions
elsewhere We expect this mix of performance, together with
the increased customer pricing pressure and cost saving plans,
to lead to a modest reduction in like-for-like trading margins

On current market forecasts the reversal of the currency
headwinds we expenenced 1n 2014 will add approximately
£150m to the Group s scope revenue in 2015

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

Going concern

Based oninternal forecasts and projections that take into
account reasonably passible changes in the Group s trading
performance the directors consider that the Company and
the Group have adequate financial resources to continue In
operation for the foreseeable future Accordingly the directors
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Company's and the Group's financial staternents

We outline on pages 21 to 23 the principal nsks and
uncertainties that may affect the Group s results cash flows
and financial position
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Qur business units from 1 January 2015

Americas

The Americas is the largest business
unit, with material market positions
In each of our four core markets.

Ol & Gas, Mining, Clean Energy, and
Environment & Infrastructure

2014 Scope Revenue' 16
%
Ol & Gas
Miming 0
Clean Energy
Environment & Infrastructure
41
13

S e S
— e e e e

Northern Europe and CIS

Our 12,000 people focus on three

key markets. Ol & Gas, Clean Energy,
and Environment & Infrastructure

Our newly combined capabilities give
us real opportunities to deliver new

and existing services for our customers
in all these markets.

Le—,——————, e o o i ]
2014 Scope Revenue! a
a6 22

Qi & Gas

Clean Energy

Environment & Infrastructure

74

We have around 16 000 expert employees in over 150 offices
geographically our region covers northern Canada to southern
Chile and from Vancouver Island to Newfoundiand

Our experts support our customers in consulting through
the EPC project lifecycle (including engineenng procurement
project management and construction) into operations

& maintenance and remediation and reinstatement

Key O1l & Gas projects currently underway include o1l sands
work for Imperial Oil, Syncrude CNRL Suncer and Shell among
others, and the provision of consulting and project services

in US shale gas In downstream we continue to work on the
Propane Dehydrogenation project in Texas for Enterprise
Products and projects for Lyondell Bassell and Dow in Latin
America we continue to build our relationship through project
actiity with PEMEX in Mexico and Ecopetrol in Colombia

Mining activity In project delivery include a number of copper
gold and potash EPCM projects for Codelco Newmont
Thompson Creek, PotashCorp and K+S Potash InE&l site
remediation programme for Honeywell and Duke

Caontracts won in the past 12 months include the speciality
construction contract for the US Space Fence Program,
EPCM for Rainy River Gold project in Canada and engineering
and design work for the secondary ore processing facility

at Chuguicamata copper concentrator

40

Key projects worked on during the year include BP s Clair Ridge
GDF Suez Cygnus fields in the North Sea continuing work

on long-term brownfield engineering contracts with Taisman
and Shell ONEgas New projects included an EPCM award for
the Shah Deniz 2 topsides for BP in Azerbanan, and front-end
engineering and design for Chevron s Captain expansion
six-year brownfield contract with Nexen for the UK North Sea

Beyond o1l & gas projects, on-going clean energy projects
include reactor services support work for EDF's nuclear
power stations in the UK New projects include the owner s
engineer role for PGE Polska on its potential nuclear new build
programme In Poland, environmental impact assessments for
Nugen for its nuclear new build programme in the UK, and an
EPC contract with Seltafield for the Box encapsulation project
We also signed a specialist technical services framework for
the UK MoD and a framework agreement with National Grid
for high voltage cables

1Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures en pages 16% to 172)
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AMEA and Southern Europe

We now have enhanced capabilities
and significantly increased customer
reach which positions us well for
growth across all of our four markets -
O1l & Gas, Mining, Clean Energy,

and Environment & Infrastructure

|
2014 Scope Revenue! 8
% 12

il & Gas

Mining

Ervironment & Infrastructure 80

This 1s a diverse region with over 9 000 employees spread
acreoss more than 40 locations

Key projects include providing asset support for ConocoPhillips’
Bayu-Undan gas faciities in East Timor Sea, operationat
readiness services for Chevron's Wheatstone facility offshore
Australia and onshore turnaround and maintenance support

to ENI s onshore gas treatment plant and offshore unmanned
wellhead platform also in Austraiia In the Middle East, we are
providing support to KNPC's new ol refinery at Al Zour and

KOC s major projects programme

New projects this year in Austraha include EPCM work on
Arrow s expansion of its Daandine and front end engineering
for the Surat coal seam gas projects and early stage project
work with Rex Minerals at the Hillside copper project In China
we have worked on a new pipe rack project at the Zhongtian
Hechuang coal to gas plant and signed a memorandum of
understanding with the China National Nuclear Corporation to
work with them on life extension and decommussioning

1Non IFRS measure {see Perforrnance measures on pages 169 10 172)
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Global Power Group

We have world class capabilities in the
design, supply and erection of bollers,
auxihary steam and arr pollution control
equipment, including a wide range of
aftermarket products and services
Customers include utilities, ndependent
power producers, and industnal concerns.

Qur 2 600 people are spread across 11 engineering and service
centres and four manufacturing faciities in eight countnes

We have a record of competitively delivering projects virtually
anywhere in the world

We have world-class capabilities in the design, supply and
erection of bollers auxihiary steam and ar polletion control
equipment (APC) including a wide range of aftermarket
products and services

Qur products and services enable ubilities, independent power
producers (IPP), and industnal chents achieve their power,
process steam and environmental goals

Sigmficant projects include the Samcheok green power project
in South Korea and the Lagisza power plant 1n Poland

We see growth in several areas of our served markets including
opportunihes to expand our Circulating Flurdised Bed (CFB)
into the large supercritical utility sectors in Asia and the Middle
East (petroleum coke), the industnal boiler sectors in North
America and new natural gas power gas generation globally

]
Director’s approval statement

The strategic report as set out on pages 1to 41, has been
reviewed and approved by our board of directors

Samur Brikho
Chief Executive
26 March 2015
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To be successful we need to ensure we
have global reach and long-standing
relationships with our customers

Today, ours span all forms of oIl company
and we operate in some 50 countries,
with 40,000 employees covering around
100 nationalities.

Our strong partnership with BP sees
Amec Foster Wheeler engaged inthe
second phase of the Clarr Ridge oilfield
off the Shetland Islands in North East
Scotland, UK

42




Connected

excellence

through
olobal
capabilities

Our scope of work inciudes
engineering and project
management services for
detail design, procurement
supply chain, hook-up and
commissioning for topside
installations and a bridge
link between the two new
platforms.
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Charrman’s governance overview

|
Effective governance is the mainstay of all

successful compantes, and your board takes
Its responsibilities very seriously, carefully
outlining its goals and agenda at the start of
the year and then measuring its performance
against these as the year progresses.

Dear shareholder,

It 1Is important that the nght tone 1s set by the board and equally
important that strong governance frameworks are applied
throughout the group This report explains how the Amec Foster
Wheeler group 1s governed by setting out details of the work of the
board over the last year and the processes adopted by the board

It s considered best practice for boards to engage an external
speciahst to review therr activity every three years In 2014 we
engaged Lintstock to assist us in this We utilise their services on
an annual basis and this year the board effectiveness review was
facihtated by way of a number of detalled questionnaires In 2015
the process will be more in-depth and will also involve externally
facilitated face-to-face interviews

In 2014 your board undertook reviews of the terms of reference

of the board and management committees including the
membership of each to ensure that the most effective use was
being made of each of the non-executive directors' time This takes
into account the additional requirements following the completion
of our acquisttion of Foster Wheeler AG, and has included the
creation of a disclosure committee (see page 76)

Such contmnual appraisal of the constitution of your board has
resuited in more diverse discussions and expertise from which to
draw and | have been pleased to welcome Stephanie Newby and
Kent Masters to our ranks

Your board has also continued its practice of formally reviewing
the company s strategy on an annual basis This not only provides
appropriate context in which corporate transactions such as
that of Foster Wheeler, can be assessed and appraved, but 1t

also ensures that we benefit from the full range of skills and
insight afforded us by each board member Such assessment
provides your board with a consistent and clear view of long-term
value creation opportunities for our shareholders whilst closely
monitoring potential areas of nsk = for which we have further
specific assessment criteria Our approach to risk management
can be found on page 20 and our key business risks can be found
in each relevant section of the business model, to give you a
clearer more germane perspective on them

In my letter to you last year | spoke about our approach to
diversity and inclusion and | am pleased to report that the new
operating model adopted by your company followng the inciusion
of Foster Wheeler s businesses, reinforces that approach from top
down and bottom up - throughout the organisation Embracing
diversity and inclusion 1s one of our core values for which
everyone in the company 1s accountable And, rest assured, we
are not merely looking at gender diversity —where we continue to
support the objectives of the Davies Report on'Women on Boards
For your company 1t 1s just as important to welcome diversity of
thought and inclusion as natural elements of the business matnix

A4

Qur health safety, security, environmental and ethics (HSSEE)
committee has an increasingly key role as the business continues
to expand In 2014 we expanded the remit of the ethics committee
to include health safety security and environmental matters and
the commuttee terms of reference were revised We have taken
the opportunity through the Foster Wheeler transaction to further
assess our global policies and global mandatory procedures
ensuring that we benefit from best in class approach, which 1s
clear for English and non-Enghsh speaking colleagues alike They
continue to be an important part of our governance framework
and you can see this displayed in pictorial format on page 48

Your company has retained its focus on investor relations and
| and senior management are all engaged in meeting regularly with
and talking to our major shareholders

Hawving incorporated a number of suggestions made by you at
last year's annual general meeting (AGM), this year s report 1s
somewhat different to previous years We now also have to adhere
to the reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commussion (SEC) - following the successful isting of aur shares
in the form of Amenican Depositary Shares on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) at the end of 2014

We continue to strive to make the annual report an informative
guide with relevant information to assist you on your own
investment deliberations, providing not only the information you
need to understand our business model and strategy for growth,
but also the atility to assess our perfarmance towards our goals

| and my fellow directors believe the 2014 annual report and
accounts offers you a far balanced and understandable
presentabion of your company, as we confirm in the directors’
responsibility statements on page 86

| mentioned in my statement at the front of this report and repeat
here for reference that as a board we completely support the

UK Corporate Governance Code* (the Code) and beheve we

have complied with the prowistons of the September 2012 edition
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014

We are required to file an annual report in the UK which complies
with the Code and to also file our annual report in the US on Form
20-F, which complies with the rules of the NYSE US securities
laws and the rules of the SEC applicable to foreign private 1ssuers
We have produced a combined annual report and annual report
on Form 20-F to ensure consistency in the information provided
to our UK and US investors As required by the SEC a summary
outlining the significant differences between the company s
corporate governance practices as a UK listed company and those
followed by US companies can be found on page 187

Finally, may | take this opporturity of firstly reminding you that

you can find additional and more in-depth information on your

company s website (amecfw com) and that secondly our AGM
1S to be held in London onThursday 14 May 2015 where | hope
to see many of you in person

John Connolly
Chairman
26 March 2015

*Printed copies of the Code
can be obtamned from
www frepublications com
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Our board of directors

- |
Our board members are selected to

ensure a good mix of skills and experience
They have particular expertise in the areas
in which Amec Foster Wheeler operates
and inthe duties and responsibilities
associated with being adirector of a

isted company

In accordance with the recommendations
of the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
directors are subject to re-election at each
annual general meeting of the company

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014

]
John Connolly

Chairman of the board Chairman

of the nominations cormmittee and

a member of the remuneration
committee

A chartered accountant John

spent his career until May 2011

with global professional services
firm Celoitte John joined the firm

in 1980 serving in various roles of
increasing responsibility During his
time at Deloitte he held a wide range
of senior leadership positions in the
United Kingdom and internationally
He was Global Charrman between
2007 and 2011 and Global Managing
Director from 2003 to 2007

He was Senior Partner and CEQ of
the UK Partnership from 1999 until
his retirement from the Partnership
n 2011

John s chairman of G48 plc and also
of a number of private companies

Beyond commercial business roles
John s on the Board of Governors
of Lendon Business School 1s
Chairman of the Board of Trustees
of Great Ormond Street Hospital
Charity and a member of the

CBI President s Advisory Council

Term of office

Jehn was appointed as non executive
Chairman on 1 June 2011 and was
considered to be independent on
appointment vy accordance with the
requirements of the Code

His term of office was extended In
March 2015 for a second three year
term to the date of the 2018 AGM

]
Samir Brikho

Chief Executive

Prior to Joining Amec Foster Wheeler
Samir served in various capacities

at ABB Ltd incluching as a member
of the group executive committee
Head of the Power Systerns Division
and Chairman of ABB Lummus Global
Switzerland ABRB s international
projects and services businegss from
2005 to 2006 and chief executive
from 2003 to 2005 Between 1999
and 2003 he was employed by Alstorm
S A nn Germany Belgium and France
first as Chief Executive Officer of
ABB Alstorn Kraftwerke and then as
Senigr Vice President International
Business and Chief International
Operations Officer leading all of
Alstom s operations abroad He hegan
his career in 1983 and held various
seripr management positions in sales
and project management with ABB
Ltd culmenating inthe role of Semor
Vice President & Maraging Director
ot ABB Kraftwerke AG Samir holds
an engineenng degree a Master of
Science in Thermal Technology from
the Royal Institute of Techrology in
Stockholm Sweden and completed
the Young Managers Programme at
INSEAD in France in 1991 In 2000
Samr also completed a senior
executive programme at Stanford
University US

Term of office

Samir was appointed Chief Executive
on1 October 2006 and has no fixed
term ot office His service contract 1s
terminable on six and twelve months
notice by him and the company
respectively

External appointments
Samir has been an iIndependent non
executive director of Skandinaviska
Enskilda Banken AB (SEB) since
Marech 2013 and a member of the
advisory board of Stena AB since
February 2011 He s a UK Business
Ambassador co chairman of both
the UAE UK Business Council and
the UK-Korea CEQ Forum and is
adirector of the UK-Japan 21st
Century Group He 1s chairman of the
Step Change Charty and co charr
of the World Economic Forum s
Infrastructure & Urban Development
Industries Committee
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Our board of directors continued

]
lan McHoul

Chief Financial Officer

lan qualified as a Chartereg
Accountant with KPMG in 1984

His early career was spent in the
brewing industry Between 1985 and
1995 he held various positions with
the Foster s Brewing Group including
General Manager Strategy He was
Finance & Strategy Director of the
Inntrepreneur Pub Company Limsted
from 1995 to 1998 and then served
at Scottish & Newcastle pic from
1998 to 2008 first as Finance
Director of Scottish Courage and
later as Group Finance Director of
Scottish & Newcastie plc lan holds

a BSc in Mathematics from the
University of Bristol

Term of office

lan was appointed Chief Financial
Otficer on 8 September 2008 and
has no fixed term of office His
service contract s terminable on $ix
and twelve months notice by him
and the company respectively

External appointments

lan has been a non executive director
of Britvic plc since March 2014 and
was a non execuhve director of
Premier Foods pic from July 2004

to April 2013
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Linda Adamany

MNon executive Director Chairman
of the health safety security
environmental and ethues (HSSEE)
committee and a member of the
audit and nominations committees
Linda has over 35 years business
experience with 27 inthe
interrnational energy sector Between
1980 and 2007 Linda held a number
of executive positions at BP pic in
the UK and the US During that time
she held varnous executive roles in
refining and marketing exploration
and production and petrochermicals
inctuding Chief Executive of BP
Shipping and Group Vice Prestdent
and Commerciat Director BP
Refining & Marketing

In March 2013 Linda was appointed
anon executive director of Coeur
Mining Inc aUS based publicly
quoted primary silver producer
where she serves as chairman of the
audit committee and 15 2 member
of the environmental health

safety and social responsibibity
committee InMarch 2014 Linda was
appointed to the board of directors
of Leucadia National Corporation

a US based NYSE listed diversified
halding company engaged through
its consolidated subsidiaries in

a variety of businesses where

she 15 a member of the audit and
the nominating and corparate
governance committees From 2006
to 2012 prior to joiming Amec Foster
Wheeler Linda was a non executive
director of National Gnd plc and a
member of their audit nominations
and safety environment and heaith
committees Lindais aqualfied
accountant (CPA) with a BScin
Business Administration from John
Carroll University Ohip and has
also undertaken post graduate

non degree executive programmes
atHarvard Cambridge and Tsinghua
universities

Term of office

Linda was appointed a non executive
director on 1 Qctober 2012 far an
initial term of three years which will
end at the 2016 AGM

|
Nelil Carson

Non executive Director and a
member of the audit remuneration
and health safety secunty
envirchmental and ethics (HSSEE)
commuttees

Neil was Chief Executive of Johnson
Matthey Plc the FTSE 100 speciality
chemical company from 2004 to
June 2014 and stepped down as a
member of the board in September
2014 He joined the company in 1980
after completing an engineering
degree and held a number of seror
management positions in both the
UK and the US including Managing
Director of Catalysts & Chemicals
from 1599 to 2004 and Division
Director of Catalytic Systems from
1997 to 1999

In July 2014 Neil became a non
executive director of PayPoint plc
where he also serves as chairman
of the remuneration committee
and senior Independent director
He s also co-char of the Chermistry
Growth Partnership which 1s
working with the government to
stimulate growth inthe industry
inthe Urited Kingdem He was
previously a founding member

of the Prince of Wales Corporate
Leaders Group on Climate Change
Nell receved an engineering degree
from Lanchester Polytechnic (now
Coventry University) and has been
awarded an Honorary Doctor of
Business Adrmunistration from
Angha Ruskin University

Term of o¥fice

Nell was appointed a non-executive
director on 31 August 2010 His term
of office was extended in February
2014 for a second three year term

to the date of the 2017 AGM

As announced on 20 March 2015
Neil will take on the roles of Sermior
Independent Director and Chairman
of the rernuneration committee at
the conclusion of the 2015 AGM

|
Colin Day

Nan executive Director Chairman

of the audit committee and a
member of the remuneratian and
nominations committees

Colinhas more than 25 years of
experience of blue chip companies
ncluding Aegis Group Plc ABB
Group De La Rue Group Plc and
British Gas Colin was appointed
Chuef Executive Officer of Essentra
plc (formerly Filtrena pic) on 1 Apnil
2011 prior te which he was Chief
Financial Officer of Reckitt Benckiser
Group plc from 2000 to 2011
Between 1995 and 2000 he served
as Group Finance Director of Aegis
Group plc He spent six years in a
number of dvisional finance director
positions with ABB Group and served
as Group Finance Director of ABB
Kent Instrumentation and ABB

Kent plc from 1988 to 1994 Cohn
started his career in 1973 as a trainee
accountant at Kodak He 1s a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and helds

an MBA from Cranfield School of
Management UK

Calinhas been a director of FM
Global since January 2014 and a

non executive director of WPP Group
ple since 2005 Colin was appointed
ta the FRC Audit Advisory Group on
3 July 2014

Term of office

Colin was appeinted a non-executive
director on 14 October 2010 His term
of office was extended in February
2014 for a second three year term to
the date of the 2017 AGM
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Kent Masters

Non executive Director and member
of the health safety securnty
environmental and ethics committee
(HSSEE)

Kent was the Chief Executive Officer
of Foster Wheeler AG from 1 October
2011 and its President from 1 January
2014 until the completion of the
acquisttion by AMEC in November
2014 Prior to joimng Foster Wheeler
he served as a member of the
Executrve Board of Linde AG a

waorld leading gases and engineering
company from Septemnber 2006

to September 2011 At Linde Kent
had responsibilty for the Americas
Africa the Seuth Pacific the global
business unit Healthcare and

the business area Merchant and
Packaged Gases Me was employed
by BOC Group plc from 1984 until the
acquisition of BOC by Linde in 2006
Kent served in roles of increasing
responstbility at BOC inctuding

as Chief Executive Industrial and
Special Products from 2005 to
2006 and as President Process Gas
Solutions Americas from 2002 to
2005 He also served on the board of
directors of BOC from 2005 to 2006

Kent joined the board of Albemarle in
January 2015 following its acquisition
of Rockwood Holdings Inc where

he had served as a director since
2007 At Rockwood Kent had served
on the audit and compensation
committees Kent also served as the
non executive chairman of African
Oxygen Limited from Apnil 2005 to
May 2011

Term of office

Kent was appointed a non executive
director on 13 February 2015 for an
iritial term of three years which will
end at the 2018 AGM |In accordance
with the company s articles of
association Kent will retire fram
office at the forthcorming AGM and
offer himself for election
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|
Stephanie Newby

Non executive Director member of
the audit and health safety security
environmental and ethics (HSSEE)
committees

Stephanie is the Chief Executive
Officer of Crimson Hexagon abig
data social analytics company She
15 the founder of Golden Seeds LLC
which has provided investment
capital to early stage high growth
companies since 2004 and1s a
Managing Partner of its venture
capital funds Prior to that she spent
20 years warking in the financial
services industry in Sydney London
and New York with the majority of
her career spent with J P Morgan
where she headed several global
businesses serving as Global Head
of Futures and Options Head of
international Private Banking Chief
Operating Officer of Global Equities
and Head of eCommerce

Appointed in 2004 Stephanie was
amember of the Foster Wheeler

AG board until the completion of

the acquisition by AMEC serving

on the audit and governance and
norminating committees She also
previously served as a non executive
drector and member of the audit and
compensation and HR committees
of RiskMetncs Group In¢

Term of office

Stephanie was appointed a non
executive director on 13 November
2014 for an imtial term of three years
which will end at the 2018 AGM In
accordance with the company s
articles of associatton Stepharnie will
retire from office at the forthcoming
AGM and offer herself for election

|
Simon Thompson

Senior Independent Director
Charman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the
audit and nominations commttees
Simon held a number of senior
positions with the Anglo American
group from 1995 to 2007 including
executive directer of Anglo American
plc from 2005 to 2007 chawrman

and chief executive of the base
metals dvision chairman of the
exploraticn divisicn and chairman

of the Tarmac Group Before joining
the Anglo American group he held
varwus Investment banking positions
with S G Warburg & Co Ltd and

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

Simon has been a non executive
director and chairman of Tullew Ol
plc since May 2011 and January
2012 respectively a non executive
director of Rio Tinto plc and Rio
Tinto Lirmited since April 2014 and

a non-executive director of Sandvik
AB since Aprnl 2008 He was a

non executive director of Newmont
Mining Corporation from 2008 to
Apnil 2014 an independent director
of United Company Rusal from 2007
to 2009 and a non-executive director
of AngloGold Ashanti Limited from
2004 to 2008 Simon helds an

MA In Geplogy from University
College Oxford

Term of office

Simon was appointed a non
executive director on 21 January
2009 and became the Senior
Independent Director in Apnil 2014

He will be retiring from the board

at the close of the 2015 AGM
having served two three-year terms
as a director

We will continue to seek to
build upon and complement
the board s existing skills

set with a focus on increasing
dversity whether thes

15 through gender, race
nationalty or generat
background The review of
the effectiveness of the board
In 2014 dentified the need
for additional expertise In

oll and gas markets and this
will be the focus of future
appointments

|
Independence of non-executive
directors

The board considers that with

the exception of Kent Masters

the non executive directors are
independent and free from any
relationships or circumstances

that could affect their independent
Judgement

Kent s previous employment
by Foster Wheeler precludes
him from meeting the required
Independence criteria
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Governance overview

Amec Foster Wheeler supports the UK Corporate Governance
Code and n the opinion of the directors the company has
complied with the provisions of the September 2012 edition of the
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 This section
explains In more detail how we have applied these provisions

Amaec Foster Wheeler governance structure

Behaviours, Vision, Values,

Code of Business Conduct, Global policies

Board
The beard has ownership
of the global policies

Board committees
Suppart the board in 1ts work with specific review and oversight

Audit Nominations Health, Safety, Secunty, Remuneration

Provides independent Identfies and makes Environmental and Ethics Aims to attract and retain
scrutiny of the company s recommendations Assists in upholding our good management and to
financial and non-financial cancerning the core value of integrity and incentivise them to create
performance risks and composition of the board mamntaining eur HSSEE shareholder value

audit functions and that of its committees commitments for a safe and

secure working environment

Group Leadershlp Team
Responsible for implementation of the global policies

Chief Executive

Primarily responsibfe for runmng
Amec Foster Wheeler s businesses
with the objective of creating
sharehalder value

Management committees
Deal generally with more operational matters

Share allotment Pensions and Risk HSSE review
retrement benefits
Corporate transactions Tender review Disclosura Project review
Chief Financial Officer
Business Unit leaders Functional leaders
Business Unit teams Functional teams

Global
mandatory procedures

Local jurisdictional
policies and procedures
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Board role and responsibilities

Amec Foster Wheeler s board 15 ultimately responsible for
promating the long-term success of the Company In accordance
with the expectations of, and its abhgations to, all stakeholders

The directors believe that the board leads and controls the
group effectively and that all directors act in accordance with
what they consider to be the best interests of the Company
consistent with therr statutory duties under the Companies Act
2006 and other legistation

In order to ensure it retains appropniate overall control of the
group, the board maintains a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval These include

» annual strategic and short-range plans
» financial and treasury policles

» nisk identification risk appetite risk management and internal
control systems,

» major acquisitions and disposals,

» Code of Business Conduct,

» full and half-year accounts

» dividend policy,

» succession planning for directors and senior executives,
» group-wide policy framework, and

» ensuring the effectiveness of governance practices

This schedule 1s rewiewed for continued acceptability on an
annual basis No changes were proposed at the time of the
annual review in August 2014 In hght of the acquisition of
Foster Wheeler the schedule was the subject of a brought
forward review in March 2015 A number of changes have been
made to take account of the UK Corporate Governance Code,
the recently revised terms of reference of the various board
and management committees, the Chairman’s board plan for
2015 and the company s new operating mode!

The board has responsibility for maintaining strong corporate
governance practices and regularly reviewing the effectiveness
of the Company’s governance framework The Code of Business
Conduct forms the foundation of Amec Foster Wheeler s
approach to corporate governance and s apphcable to all
employees including the Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
and other senior financial professionals It 1s the responsibility
of and)s upheld by the board and ensures that the board and ali
those who work for and under Amec Foster Wheeler s direction
understand the behaviour that 1s expected of them Following
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler a new Code of Business
Conduct 1s being launched to take account of and provide a
prachical apphcation of Amec Foster Wheeler s new values and
expected working behaviours in the delivery of the Company s
vision and values The Code of Business Conduct complhes

with relevant UK and US regulations and 1s available on the
Company s website at amecfw com/ethics

The board approves the group-wide policy framework and other
mechanisms for ensuring the effectiveness of governance in the
group s working practices On a day-to-day basis the board has
delegated responsitility for the implementation of the glohal
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policies and ownership of the supporting global mandatory
procedures to the Group Leadership Team

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, the globa! policies
and procedures and working practices of Foster Wheeler and
AMEC have been reviewed The purpose of this review was to
create the necessary foundation needed to support a consistent
approach in the direction and management of the group s
businesses in accordance with Amec Foster Wheeler's vision
and values The revised glcbal policies and global mandatory
procedures are in the process of being 1ssued and provide a
detailed description of expected working behaviours as we
continue to integrate the two businesses

QOverall operational management 1s delegated to the Chief
Executive who together with the Group Leadership Team

1s responsible for providing the company’s overall strategy
and vision driving execution growing markets and customers
and developing our people The board regularly reviews its
operational structure and as more fully described in the
strategic report on 1January 2015 further to the acquisition
of Foster Wheeler, launched a new operating model defining
how our new company 1s structured and the changes to the way
we will work together in our commitment to deliver excellence
to our customers

]
Find out more online

See amectw com/aboutus/corporate governance for further detaiis on the
Code of Business Conduct

Board committees

The beard is supported in its work by four board committees
(audit remuneration nominations and HSSEE (health safety
security, environmental and ethics)), chaired by either the
board Chairman or ancther non-executive director, and a
number of management comrttees chaired by executive
directors {or other senior ndividuals), to which specific
responsibilities have been formally delegated

]
Find out more online

Full written terms of reference for each board committee can be found at
amecfw com/aboutus/corporate governance

Details of the membership, duties, responsibilities and work
of the commuittees are set out on pages 50 to 74

With effect from 1 January 2015 the membership of each of
the board committees has been restructured to ensure the
rmost effective use of each non-executive director s time
Previously all of the board s iIndependent non-executive
directors were members of each of the board cormmittees and
these have been amended to more appropnately reflect their
skills and experience

The board ensures that the committees are provided with
whatever resources they need to undertake their duties

and that therr membership continues to be appropnate

The secretary of the committees produces timely records of
all meetings which are circulated to each member In addition
the chawrman of each board committee reports fully tothe
board following each meeting

49

Governance Strategic report

Financials

Additional information



Audit committee

The main objectives of the audit
committee are to provide independent
scrutiny of the company's financial

and non-financial performance, the
adequacy of the sk management
framework and the internal controls and
the performance of both the external
and internal audit functions. This is of
particular mportance given the added
responsibilities of conforming to the

US SEC requirements The wide diversity
of experience and knowledge on the
committee helps to achieve these
objectives and constructive challenge
and guidance continues to be provided
to the executive team.

Dear Shareholder

The acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG in November 2014 was a
celebratory moment in AMEC s long history as weli as being
a very busy time for this committee The level of due diligence
performed by the management team and their advisors was
substantial as you might expect tor the size of this transaction
and also for the numerous regulatory requirements that had
to be complied with here in the UK, as well as in the US and
Switzerland Your committee and board played a key role in
overseeing and scrutimsing this due diligence and, where
necessary requesting and receiving additional detailled
information for further examination

Of course, while the acguisition of Foster Wheeler was a

busy time for all concerned, there was stili the day job to

be done The committee continued to play its vital role of
scrutimsing the integrity and relevance of the existing group s
financial reporting requirements the appropriateness of the
internal control environment across numerous geographies
and the continued suitability of the group's system of nsk
management as well as overseeing the internal and external
audit activibies In addition, the committee has paid particular
attention to matenal projects and has discussed the key
features risks and opportunities these present
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in September 2014, AMEC's management detected a fraud
In one of its overseas operations The fraud 1s not material

at the group level, however it 1s sigmificant at the local entity
level Management took immediate steps to prevent further
loss and a criminal complaint was filed Two former ermployees
have been arrested pending criminal proceedings The
prosecutors have required that the details of the case remain
confidential for the time being to avoid any prejudice to their
ongaing investigation and to any future criminal proceedings
The external auditors were notified at the time this fraud was
uncovered by management

Qur aim continues to be one of being proactive and to prowide
constructive challenge over the information we receive Over
this past year we have again been served particularly well

with the timehness and quality of information provided by
management and from the internal and external auditors Their
reports have been relevant and clear which has enabled this
committee to discharge its duties effectively

Your committee 1s mindful of its additional responsibilities
now the combined business 1s isted on both the London and
New York stock exchanges We are working on a programme
of integration and overseeing compliance with the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act (SOX) which the combined group will need to
achieve full compliance with by 2015 year-end \

The compaosition of your committee 1s changing | very

much welcome the appointment of Stephanie Newby to the
committee, Stephanie previously served as a non-executive
director on the board and audit committee of Foster Wheeler

l am sure the knowledge Stephanie brings of the Foster
Wheeler business will add value and insight to this committee
As already announced by the company Simon Thompscon

15 stepping down from the board and this committee at the
conclusion of the 2015 AGM Simon has served this committee
extremely well over a number of years and | would hike to thank
him for hus valuable contribution

Colin Day
Chairman of the audit committee
26 March 2015 |

Members

During 2014 the audit committee comprised al the
independent non-executive directors The committee meets at
least three times each year and the quorum for the committee
15 two members
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Membership and attendance of the audit committee
up to 31 December 2014

|
Scheduled Unschedufed

Colin Day (Chairman) 3/3 3/3
Linda Adamany 3/3 3/3
Neil Carson 3/3 2/3
Tim Faithfull (up to 3 April 2014) 11 171
Simon Thompsecn 3/3 273
Stephanie Newby (from 13 Novemnber 2014} 1/1 1/1

Unscheduled meetings were convened throughout the year to
consider matters relevant to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler
As these were not scheduled rmembers were not always able
to attend but were provided with full packs of information and
their comments were invited

There were three scheduled audit committee meetings in 2014
and three unscheduled meetings

Colin Day has relevant and recent experience in auditing and
accounting and the board considers that he has sufficient
financial experience and qualifications to satisfy the criteria
under US rules for an audit committee financial expert
Biographies of all committee members can be found on pages
4510 47

The membership of the committee currently comprises

Colin Day (Chairman), Linda Adamany Neil Carson

Stepharie Newby and Simon Thompson Simon will step down
from the committee following the AGM in May

The company chairman, the executive directors the

Group Financial Controlter the Head of Internal Audit and
representatives of the external auditor also attend meetings
by invitation

During 2014, the committee charrman met separately with

the external auditor the Head of Internal Audit and the CFO

n each case without others being present No areas of concern
were raised

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, we have
established a disclosure committee, which 1s a management
committee that reports to the audit commuttee and which will
assist the comnittee with regard to verifying the information
that is required to be disclosed in the company s matenal
public disclosures and in its penodic reports This 1s intended
to ensure such disclosures are in compliance with all relevant
laws, rules and regulations, including the UK Listing Authority,
the London Stock Exchange the New York Stock Exchange and
the US Securities and Exchange Commussion (SEC)
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Key responsibilities

» Reviewing the annual and half-yearly financiat statements
with particular focus on key accounting and audit judgement
and making recommendations to the board for their approval

» Monitoring the clanty of disclosures, going concern
assumptions and compliance with UK and US accounting
standards

» Reviewing and monitoring the internal controls and nisk
management systems

» Overseeing the retationship with the external auditor
including the approval of the engagement letter, letter of
representation and statutory audit fees, with particular focus
on independence and rotation in accordance with UK and US
rules or requirements

» Promoting an effective internal audit function

» Overseeing the company s compliance with London and New
York stock exchanges FCA and SEC requirements

» Reviewing arrangements whereby staff may raise concerns
about any suspected or known improprieties and ensuring
that such matters are investigated and appropnate actions
taken

» To monitor and review UK corporate governance and US SOX
compliance

» To receive the reports of the disclosure committee

Activities of the committee

On 17 December 2014 the board adopted revised terms of
reference for the committee te take account of the additional
obligations placed on the committee as a result of the
Company s new US listing These are available to view at
amecfw com

Traiming prowided to the committee in the year included

a presentation in December 2014 from the Chief Carporate
Comphance Officer on SOX requirements and information
from Ernst & Young LLP (EY) on changes in EU regulation of
non-audit services

In 2014 as part of the external review of board effectiveness
respondents were asked about the perceived performance

of the audit committee This was highly rated overall It was
acknowledged that significant work would be needed to meet
the addittonal demands required by the US listing

In preparatton for each meeting, the CFO prepares an extensive
report covering all matenal financial tax and treasury matters
Particular areas of focus in 2014 ncluded

» given the size of the Foster Wheeler acquisition and the
estimates involved 1n the purchase price allocation exercise,
the committee undertook a thorough review of an in depth
report from the Chief Financial Officer and challenged the
appropriateness of the fair values assigned thereto

» with regard to the allocation of goodwill and impairment
testing anising from the acquisition, the committee challenged
and stress tested the assumptions that were being made in
the process
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Audit committee continued

» contract risks and material contracts (those above £10m
in contract value) showing a deteriorating position over time
such as TGPP and Bluewater The commuttee momitored
management s enhancements to its early warning system
to augment visibity, at an earlier stage to the board of
potentally underperforming material contracts for further
scrutiny This process identified potential issues with the
Buncefield contract which had been placed on the watch list,
as it had suffered margin dechne and delays,

» with regard to the provisions and estimates (including
htigation) within the accounts, the commuttee n conunction
with the external auditor, spent time focusing on these and
satisfying itself as to their appropriateness

» revenue recognition, which s by necessity based on
management estimates and assumptions, particularly with
regard to timing In conjunction with the external auditor
the judgements of management were challenged, especially
those relating to end-life forecast estimates The group s
policies and processes that control the estimates made in
such areas were also examined to ensure that they continued
to be relevant and robustly and consistently applied

» the ongoing quality and acceptability of the group's
accounting policies and the going concern statement
No 1ssues were identified

» an n depth review and challenge of the deferred tax assets
and the tax provisions

» a thorough review of the uphft external audit procedures in
order to meet the requirements of the SEC/Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (PCAQB) in the US,

» consideration of the external auditor s transaction fees in
respect of the Foster Wheeler acquisition Details of these
fees can be found on page 54,

» a full review of the group accounts for 2011 2012 and 2013,
which had been restated and updated to be concurrent with
the 2013 accounts in connection with the then prospective
Foster Wheeler acquisition,

» as part of the CFO's report the committee receives details
of all breaches of treasury policy This has increased the
committee s knowledge of how relatively minor 1ssues are
identified and addressed to ensure they do not become
more significant matters In the year, minor breaches were
dentified inrelation to bank counterparty limits but none
were considered to be matenial and

» agreeing the appropriate disclosures and treatment of all
exceptional items, including the disposal of the group s
investment in the Lancashire Waste Project in March 2014
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In its reviews of the full and half-year results particular
emphasis continued to be placed on contractual issues
where the reported financial position was fully analysed and
discussed in the CFO's report and the findings were validated
by means of In depth questioning

At the request of the board the commuttee has also
reviewed and provided advice on whether the annual report
and accounts, when taken as a whole, 1s fair. balanced and
understandable to enable the company’s shareholders to
assess the company’s performance business model and
strategy

In coming to i1ts view that it 1s satisfied with the overall farness
balance and c¢larity of the document the committee took into
account

» Its own knowledge of the group its strategy and performance
in the year

» the comprehensive guidance provided to all contributors
to the annual report and accounts,

» a thorough internal venfication of the factual content withun
the document

» the comprehensive reviews undertaken at different ievels in
the group to ensure consistency and overall balance, and

» 2 detailed review by serior management

Internal controls and risk management

The commuttee reviews the processes by which the company s
control environment 1s evaluated A control risk self-
assessment Is undertaken every year with comprehensive
integrity checks, and the exercise in 2014 again wdentified no
significant areas of concern The group s senior management
1s formally required to confirrn comphance within their
businesses with the group s Code of Business Conduct

its policies and procedures and any areas of cancern need

to be fully explained and addressed A revised Code of
Business Conduct for the combined business is in the course
of preparation

The Head of Internal Audit reports to the committee on any
alleged or suspected wrongdoings reported through the
independently run helplings or otherwise All such incidents
in the year were investigated and didn t reveal any significant
internal control failures or have a matenal financial impact
at group level The committee also reviewed management
actions, which included enhancements made to existing
controls or procedures and, in a few instances disciplinary
action taken against employees which included dismissals
where warranted
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The commuittee s primary responsibihties in relation to risk
management are in ensuring that robust processes are in
place for managing nisk throughout the group We completed
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler in the fourth quarter of
2014 and are currently reviewing the control framewoerk and
integrating the rnisk and control systems with those of the wider
group Although Foster Wheeler was de-listed from NASDAQ
and de-registered from the SEC subsequent to completion
of the acquisition the SOX programme of testing the group s
key hinancial controls for compliance continued to its usual
conclusion Management testing was undertaken in ine with
previous years and the overall conclusion was that Foster
Wheeler continued to be SOX compliant for 2014

The group s principal business and strategic risks are shown
In the strategic report on pages 21 to 23 and the approach to
managing risk s shown in more detail on page 20

Internal audit

In 2014 the committee continued to momitor and review the
operation of the internal audit function receving a full report
at each meeting from the Head of Internal Audit The Head of
Internal Audit formally reports to the committee chairman

The findings of each internal audit review are summarised
and the commuttee focuses its discussions on unsatisfactory
findings and on the action plans in place to address them
Particular areas of concern during 2014 included breaches
of policy with regard to the appointment of advisors by the
operations i1ssues with the appointment of recruiting service
providers and an instance of expense abuse in an overseas
company, which had been raised through the ethics helpline

External audit

During 2014 the committee continued to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor Ernst & Young LLP

(EY) The commuttee reviews both the procedure for the
engagement of the external auditor and the procedure for the
appointment of the external auditor every year In 2014 both
procedures were amended to reflect US requirements

Each year the retevant audit nisks are assessed Asin previous
years, the primary risks identified were revenue recognition
valuation of work in progress and recewvables the accuracy

of end Iife forecasts the adequacy of contract provisions and
legacy liabilities

For this year new areas included impaiwrment testing of goodwill
and purchase price allocation following the Foster Wheeler
acquisition provisicns and contingent habilities generally

Other risk areas included the adequacy of tax planmning and
reserves the adequacy of provisions in respect of legacy
habilities presentation of exceptional items and the risk of
fraud and management overnde Throughout the year and in
conjunction with EY, the committee challenged management
and assured itself that the nsks were being addressed and that
reporting on the matters was balanced

Amec Foster Wheeler
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The audit differences and qualty of earmings schedule for

the year ended 2014 was presented by EY at the March 2015
meeting The value of unadjusted differences and the quality
of earnings high level review of the impact of items that could
be considered non-recurring in nature were discussed in detail
The audit differences were not considered to be material and
the quality of earmings was considered appropriate

On behalf of the commitiee the Head of Internal Audit
undertakes an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the
external auditor, overseen by the Company Secretary The
views of senior members of the finance teams throughout the
group are sought as well as qualitative feedback Responses
can be measured and directly compared with previous surveys,
50 that progress can be monmitored

In March 2015 the committee recewved a report on the
effectiveness of the external auditor during 2014 Management
indicated that EY’s performance had again been generally
satisfactory but that additional focus should be given to the
audit of the integrated Foster Wheeler business going forward

EY were appointed as Amec Foster Wheeler's external auditor
1in 2010, following a formal tender process Both EY and the
audit partner responsible for the group audit have now been
in place for five years and therefore a new audit partner will
be In place for the 2015 audit The commuttee takes account
of and endorses the relevant provisiens of the UK Corporate
Governance Code with regard to the appointment of the
external auditor, which means that the external audit contract
will be put out to tender at the latest by 2020, subject to
further regulatory change

Amec Foster Wheeler has formal procedures relating to its
relationship with the external auditor including for the provision
of non-audit services, to ensure that such work does not impair
the external auditor s objectivity and independence This
procedure clearly ocutlines the category of work the external
auditor 1s permitted to carry out and the rules governing what
15 not permitted The procedure follows the guidelines and
requirements set out by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and was amended during the year to

take account of the requirements of SOX and the PCACB

The committee now delegates authonty to the Chairman of

the audit commuttee to pre-approve all non-prohibited services
undertaken by the external auditor Inaddition all non-audit
services performed by the external auditor will be disclosed

to investors in the company's perodic reports

The process 1s continually monitored by the Head of Internal
Audit and details of all ‘other services performed are

formally presented to the audit committee twice a year it

15 the responsibihty of the audit committee to monitor the
overall level of non-audit fees relative to audit fees from

an independence point of view and to confirm that auditor
independence has been safeguarded If there are any concerns
about this for the avordance of doubt, the undertaking of such
work would not be permitted
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Audit committee continued

The level of non-audit fee awarded to EY in 201415 considerably
fugher than would normally be the case, as shown in the table
opposite In conjunction with the CFO the audit committee
charman approved the services of EY to undertake and
support management's continued due diligence work for the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler The substantial due diligence
performed by EY primarily covered the balance sheet profit

& loss, accounting policies revenues provisions habilities
general accounting tax corporate finance and differences
between US GAAP and IFRS

The decision to appoint EY to undertake this work was
considered by the audit committee to be in the best interest of
shareholders The firm has a deep understanding of the group
placing them at a distinct advantage to support the board In
this regard In addition, following completion of the acquisition
a sizeable portion of the work performed by EY did not need to
be repeated thereby making the most efficient and economic
use of shareholders’ funds

Following completion of the offer for Foster Wheeler

on 13 Novemnber 2014 EY were appointed as the independent
registered public accounting firm of Foster Wheeler AG in place
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {(PwC) EY therefore acted In
such role for the period from 13 November 2014 to

31 December 2014

Fees payable by the group to the company’s statutory auditor
EY and its associates were as follows

2004 2013
£Em Em
Audit fees
Audit of the company s accounts 39 03
Audit of the accounts of the
company s subsidiaries 15 11
54 14
Tax fees
Tax compliance services 0.4 03
Tax advisory services - 01
0.4 04
All other fees
Corporate finance transactions 6.4 16
Other non-audit services 0.1 01
6.5 17
12.3 35

Fees for the audit of the company’s accounts relate to the
audit of the parent company’s accounts and the consoltdated
financial statements

All EY s fees for non-audit work in 2014 were approved in
accordance with the company s policy covering non-audit
services As aresult of the application of this policy and
additional discussions with them the directors do not believe
that EY s independence has been compromised because

of this additional work on behalf of the company

Buring 2014, EY were paid non-audit fees of £2 7m by Foster
Wheeler prior to the acquisition date Any services that would
have been prohibited for a statutory auditor to perform ceased
hefore the acquisition date when EY took on the responsibility
of statutory auditor for the combined group
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Nominations committee

. _____________________|
The nominations committee is primarily

focused on evaluating the board of
directors and on examining the skills and
characteristics that are needed in board
candidates

Dear shareholder,

I have referred already in this report to the transformational
changes through which your company has gone and so, more
than ever the role of the nominations committee 1s a key one

Your board has changed in s1ze and compoesition and there wilt
be further changes following our annual general meeting in
May 2015 Succession and evolutionary change remain our key
pniorities, taking into account our commitment to diversity and
inclusion

You can see from the charts on page 77 that we have a streng
blend of skills experience and length of service amongst your
board of directors and | see no reason that this should not be
maintained as your company rises to the challenges we will
undoubtediy face in 2015 and beyond

John Connolly
Chairman of the nominations committee
26 March 2015
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Members

During 2014 the nominations committee comprised all the
nen-executive directors including the Charrman The quorum
for the commuttee was three members There were four
committee meetings held in the year

Membership and attendance of the nominations
committee up to 31 December 2014
|

Meeting attendance

John Connolly (Chairman) 3/4!
Linda Adamany 4/4
Neil Carson 3/42
Colin Day 4/4
Tim Faithfull {up to 3 Apni 2014) 11
Simon Thompson 4/4

1 The Chairman was unable to attend one meeting due to iliness

2 Netl Carson was unable to attend one meeting due to an unavoidable prior
commitment

Meetings of the committee are sometimes called at short
notice to consider matters as they anse This means that
members may not always be avallable but they are always
fully apprised of matters to be discussed and their views
sought and taken into account

On 17 December 2014, the board adopted revised terms
of reference for the committee These are avatlable to review
on amecfw com

With effect from 1 January 2015, the membership of the
committee changed and now comprises John Connolly
{Chairman) Colin Day, Simon Thempson and Linda Adamany
Simon will step down as a member of the committee at the
end of the AGM in May 2015 The quorum for the committee
is now two members

Key responsibilities

The committee considers the structure, size and compaosition
of the board and its commuttees including the rmix of skills
experience, independence and knowledge of the directors

In considering recornmendations to the board, the committee
considers the appropriate balance of skills and expertence

to progress the group s strategy, and takes account of the
benefits of diversity in¢lucing but not hmited to gender

The committee also reviews board succession planning In
conjunction with reports from the Chief Executive and Group
Human Resources Director on senior management succession
planning 50 as to ensure that an appropriate balance of skills1s
mamntained both within the senor management team and

on the board

As part of the externally conducted board effectiveness review
undertaken in 2014, the performance of the committee was
also evaluated This was generally rated highly overall

55

Governance Strategic report

Financials

Addibional information



Nominations committee continued

Activities of the committee

Tim Faithfull stepped down in April 2014, having served nine
years on the board In view of the proposed acquisition

of Foster Wheeler the committee decided not to commence

a search for a new director In February 2014 we announced
that, as part of the acquisition, two directors of Foster Wheeler
would join the board following the acquisition Subsequent

to this the committee undertook an interview process and

as aresult, recommended that Stephanie Newby and Kent
Masters should join the board as non-executive directors
Stephanie and Kent joined the board on 13 November 2014 and
13 February 2015 respectively No external recruitment firms
were used and the committee based its decision on

the benefits that their experience and knowledge would add
to the board in view of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler

Following Tim Faithfull's retirement the cormnmittee considered
potential replacements for his role as Senior Independent
Director and as Chairman of the remuneration committee
After careful consideration the committee concluded that
Simon Thompson best met the required critena and a
recommendation was made to the board accordingly

The committee also recommended that Linda Adamany
should replace Simon as chairman of the ethics committee,
which s now known as the health safety, security,
environmental and ethics (HSSEE) commuttee

Having served six years on the bhoard, Simon Thompsen has
indicated that he does not intend to stand for re-election

at the 2015 AGM The commuttee will therefore commence
a search for one or two non-executive directors to join

the board for which an executive search firm will be used
Further information in respect of any new appointments to
the board will be given in due course

In July 2014 the committee considered and recommended
the adoption by the board of certain board selection critena,
to be used to identify any gaps in the overall experience and
knowledge of the board as a whole and assist appropriately
in the future board selection process

In 2014 the cornmittee considered the reappointment of

Ne:l Carson and Colin Day for second three-year terms of
office as therr first three-year terms ended at the 2014 AGM
Their significant external experience and their full participation
in board and commuttee discussions, providing constructive
challenge, resulted in a recommendation being made to the
board to reappoint both directors for second three-year terms

In early 2015, the committee considered the reappointment
of John Connolly as Chairman for a second three-year term

of office as his first three-year term will end at the 2015

AGM On the basis of his wide experience and his excellent
chairmanship during a period of significant change the
commuittee recommended that he should be reappointed for
a second three-year term The Chawrman did not participate in
these deliberations which were led by an independent
non-executive chrector
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In anticipation of Simon Thompson's forthcoming retirement
at the conclusion of the 2015 AGM the commuttee also
considered potential replacemnents for the role of the Semor
Independent Directer and Chairman of the remuneration
committee and after careful consideration, concluded

that Neil Carson best met the required criteria and made a
recommendation to the board accordingly

The board continues to recognise the importance of diversity
both in the boardroom and across the group more generally

In 2014 Amec Foster Wheeler's diversity initiatives have
continued to focus onits group-wide commitment to diversity
and inclusion including encouraging and enabling greater
diversity of thinking The implementation of this comritment
includes measurement and momtoring of progress on diversity
and inclusion activities

As part of the company's broader diversity initiative,

it supports the objectives of the Davies Report on Women

on Boards Candidates for board appointments are evaluated
in light of the requirements of the role having appropriate
regard to the abjectives of the Davies Report and to the
group-wide commitment to diversity and inclusion We are
pleased to say that with the appointment of Stephanie Newby
two out of our nine directors are female representing just
aver 22% of our board

. __ ]
Gender diversity of the board s
%
Fernale
Male
22

The gender diversity of the company and 1ts senior
management 1s shown on page 16
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Health, safety, security, environmental and ethics (HSSEE) committee

The core role of the HSSEE committee
1S to assist the board in upholding

the company's principal value of doing
the right thing, to review the HSSE
policy statement and to satisfy itself
that all significant health, safety, secunity
environmental and ethics nsks are
identified and controlled.

Dear sharehoider

On 1 lanuary 2015, the board created the HSSEE committee to
replace the ethics committee and extend its terms of reference
(full details of which can be found on amecfw com) The HSSEE
committee provides an additional level of governance to Amec
Foster Wheeler's health safety secunty and envirenmental
activities n addition to ethics, and | look forward to telling you
about the commuttee s activities during 2015

We have in place a strong framework to support Amec Foster
Wheeler as it grows, integrates and becomes more global
ensuring that our employees and those who work with and for
us, act with integnty wherever they are based Our employees
should alsec be able to work 1n a safe and secure environment
which 1s particularly important in a company that has over
40,000 people working in more than 50 countries

We have a well developed independent third party reporting
systemn for employees to report their concerns or report
1ssues in complete confidence The committee treats all
reports, however reported to us, with the respect they deserve
Thankfully nothing of significance to the group as a whole was
reported in 2014 and any infractions identified were dealt with
appropriately

Linda Adamany

Chairman of the health safety security. environmental
and ethics commuttee

26 March 2015
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Members

The ethics commuttee comprised all the independent non-
executive directors The quorum for the commuittee was two
members In 2014 there were three scheduled committee
meetings held, and no unscheduled meetings

The company chairman the executive directors and the

Chief Ethics Officer also attended each meeting by inwvitation
From December 2014 the Chief Corporate Compliance Officer
has also been in attendance

Linda Adamany replaced Simon Thompson as the Chairman
of the ethics commuttee following the conclusion of the 2014
AGM

From 1January 2015, the membership of the committee was
Linda Adamany (Chairman) Stepharie Newby and Nerl Carson
Kent Masters joined the committee upon his appointment on
13 February 2015 The quorum remains at two members

Membership and attendance of the ethics committee
up to 31 December 2014
]

Meeling attendance

Linda Adamany (Chairman) 3/3
Simon Thompson 3/3
Neil Carson 3/3
Calin Day 3/3
Tim Faithfull (up to 3 April 2014) 1/1
Stephanie Newby (from 13 November 2014) 1/1

Key responsibilities of the HSSEE committee

With effect from 1 January 2015, new terms of reference were
adopted for the HSSEE committee which now covers health
safety security and environmental matters as well as ethics
matters

The committee reviews Amec Foster Wheeler s HSSE Policy

at least annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose and meets
requirements in all respects It also examines the processes

in place to satisfy itself that all significant health safety,
security and environmental risks are identified and mitigated

The commuttee oversees the operations and activities of the
HSSE review commuttee which is a management committee,
detalls of which are outlined on page 76

The committee reviews and monitors business ethics within the
group ncluding comphance with relevant legislation regulation
and current best practice It also reviews and approves the
Group's Code of Business Conduct at least annually

It considers and reviews the scope and planming of all
compliance activity within the Group and reviews the extent
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal traning and external
reporting of compliance and ethics matters

In the event of an actual or suspected material breach of
the Code of Business Conduct or any ather serious matter
a member of the comimittee will take responsibibity for and
manage any investigation into the relevant matter with the
support of the General Counsel and Company Secretary
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Health, safety, security, environmental and ethics (HSSEE) committee continued

Activities of the ethics committee
The committee reviewed AMEC s Code of Business Conduct
in August 2014 and endorsed its continuing use

There was particular focus on the effectiveness of procedures
to prevent bribery and corruption As a result, additional
traiming on anti-bribery and corruption that was commenced
in late 2013 continued during the year This included face-to-
tace training for around 1 200 people in the higher risk areas
of activity

Duning the year a total of 56 concerns were raised m AMEC in
respect of alleged or suspected ethical breaches most of which
were reported through the independent third party reporting
systems that we have set up A relatively small number of
these involving alleged or suspected ethical breaches required
further investigation None of the investigations highlighted
any significant control failure or noteworthy financial impact
but each valid report was taken seriously The outcome of
these investigations resulted in appropriate disciplinary action
as well as enhancements to the existing control environment
where necessary

In December 2014, the committee received a report on legacy
Foster Wheeler ethics matters

The process for recording reporting and investigating ethical
issues within Foster Wheeler during the period following

the acquisition to the year-end remained the same as prior to
the transaction Its widely advertised hotline service remained
avallable allowing all Foster Wheeler employees to raise 1ssues
either with their line manager, via the hotline website,

or by calling one of the dedicated hotline telephone numbers
The website and telephone numbers are provided by a third
party Duning the period following the acquisition to the year-
end, two ethics issues relating to the Foster Wheeler Group
were raised in total and investigated as appropriate Neither
of the investigations revealed any significant control failure or
noteworthy financial impact As above and where necessary,
appropnrate disciphnary action and enhancements to the
existing control environment were undertaken following the
conclusion of the investigations

Following the acguisition of Foster Wheeler, a new Code of
Business Conduct 1s being launched and the independent
third-party reporting systems of AMEC and Foster Wheeler
will be combined and the ethics traiming programmes of the
two businesses integrated

As part of the externally conducted board effectiveness review
undertaken in 2014, the performance of the committee was
also assessed and the result of this was confirmation that the
committee’s performance was rated hughly
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Remuneration commitiee

. .. |
The remuneration committee’'s aim

Is to design and apply a reward policy
that promotes the long-term success
of the Company.

Dear shareholder,

This year the commuttee’s deliberations have taken place
against the backdrop of the Foster Wheeler acquisition and
the sharp downturnn the oil and gas market

We indicated last year that we would be reviewing our
remuneration approach both in the ight of the acquisition

and shareholder expectations As aresult of that review we
decided that some changes are appropriate We consulted

with our major shareholders and investor governance advisory
bodies the overwhelming majority of which were supportive of
the changes proposed The revised policy which we expect to
apply for the next three years 1s set out in full on pages 61to 66
and approval 1s being sought for thus in resolution number 3 at
our 2015 Annual General Meeting

In summary the proposed changes designed to simplify our
incentive arrangements and to achieve greater alignment with
shareholder interests, are as follows

» Our previous annual bonus policy provided that an element
of bonus up to 25% of salary would be deferred in shares for
three years, but this element related only te an addbonat
stretch profit target and hence the deferral was only likely
to apply in circumstances of significant outperformance We
are proposing to drop this separate stretch element and to
provide that 25% of any bonus earned during the year will be
deferred in shares for three years and subject to claw-back
The overall bonus maximum remains unchanged at 150% of
salary for the Chief Executive and 125% for the CFO, and

» The arrangement under the existing Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP), whereby participants may invest their own funds
In company shares and receve a matching award wili be
removed Instead we will introduce a requirement to retain
any shares that vest at the end of the three-year performance
penod for a further two years Vested shares will be held in
trust and subject to claw-back The overall LTIP maximum
remains unchanged at 250% of salary for both Chief
Executive and CFO

We are seeking shareholder approval for a new LTIP that
reflects these changes for the executive directors, as well as
some other changes for participants below board level and
renewal of approval for cur all-employee Sharesave Plan
These are set out in resolutions 15 and 16

The second part of the report, on pages 67 to 74 1s our annual
report on remuneration This explains how our policy has been
implemented dunng 2014 and s subject to an advisory vote
{resolution 4)

Given that the acquisition was not concluded until near the
end of the year, bonuses have been determined in relation to
the targets that were oniginally set for the AMEC business
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Annual report and accounts 2014

The standalone AMEC business delivered aresiient financial
performance in the face of challenging market conditions in
some of its key markets Nevertheless it did not meet some

of the targets set by the cormnmuttee at the start of the year
This outcome 1s refiected in the overall remuneration of the
executive directors annual bonus payments were lower than
last year and none of the PSP awards made in 2012 will vest
Your commuttee continues to take a robust approach to setting
and measuring targets We want to ensure that high reward 1s
only achieved for outstanding performance

We also set out below how we intend to apply the new policy
in 2015 Notwithstanding the increased scale and complexity
of the Company, we have concluded that there should be no
increase to base salares for the executive directors or to the
fees payable to the Chairman and non-executive directors
(with the exception of the fee payable to the chairman of the
Audit Committee) This 1sin line with the approach generally
across the Company, where increases for staff in most parts
of the business have been imited to promotions and other
exceptional cases

The 2015 targets for annual bonus have been aligned to

reflect the strategic priorities with an emphasis on the
successful integration of Foster Wheeler and implementation
of our new operating model These abjectives are being
applied consistently to the entire senior management cadre

in the Company LTIP awards will continue to be subject to

two independent performance measures of relative Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) and Earning per Share (EPS) growth
with equal weighting The TSR element will be subject to a
financial underpin that allows any vesting to be reduced at the
discretion of the committee and the stretching EPS growth
targets take account of the anticipated contribution from
Foster Wheeler over the next three years The proposed policy
makes provision for a third measure hinked to specific strategic
objectives to be introduced at some future date if appropriate

We have reviewed the effectiveness of the application of our
remuneration policy to date and continue to be satisfied that
the overall approach provides good alignment of executive
behawiour with shareholder interests and does not encourage
excessive risk Both of our executive directors have high levels
of personal shareholdings, considerably in excess of our
minimum guidehne (see page 72)

As previously announced | will be stepping down as a director
at the AGM and will be replaced as chairman of the commuittee
by Neil Carson

Simon Thompson
Chairman of the remuneration committee
26 March 2015
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Remuneration committee continued

Membership and attendance of the remuneration
committee up to 31 December 2014

.|
Scheduled  Unscheduled

Simon Thompson 3/3 272
{Chairman from 3 April 2014)

Tim Faithfull 171 0/0
(Chairman up to 3 April 2014}

Linda Adamany 373 2/2
Neil Carson 373 2/2
John Connolly 3/3 2/2
Colin Day 3/3 272

During 2014, the remuneration committee compnsed all the
non-executive directors including the Chairman The
membership of the committee currently comprises

Simon Thompson (Chairman) John Connelty Colin Day and
Neill Carson The quorum for the committee 1s two members
There were three scheduled meetings held in 2014 and two
unscheduled meetings

The Chief Executive and the Group Human Resources Director
attend meetings by invitation

Simon Thompson will be retiring as a director at the
conclusion of the 2015 AGM He will be succeeded as
committee chairman by Neil Carson

In considening the matters within its remit the committee
takes account of recommendations from the Chairman in
respect of the Chief Executive and from the Chief Executive
in respect of the other executive directors and designated
executives Itis advised independently by New Bridge Street
(NBS) NBS was reappointed by the committee in 2014 and
its terms of engagement are available from the Company
Secretary NBS does not undertake any matenal additional
work for the Company NBS s whoily cwned by Aon plc and
while other compames within the Aon group do undertake
matenal work for the Company, this1s net in the area of
executive remuneration and arrangements are in place
within the Aon group to nng-fence NBS from other services
provided Accordingly the committee does not believe that
the independence of its adviser 1s compromised in any way
NBS was paid £41,226 during the year for the advice provided
to the committee on the basis of ime expended and seniority
of Individuals providing the advice

The committee 1s also supported by the Company’s human
resources department who may from time to time use third
parties to provide data and technical advice

The committee normally meets three times a year and has
an established annual agenda of items that it considers

at the various meetings the major elements of which are
summarised below

February » Confirmation of short and long-term incentive
outcomes
» Approval of Directors’ remuneration report
» New Long Term Incentive awards
August » Shareholder feedback/consultation
» Remuneration policy including risk review
» Committee processes and appointment
of consultants
December » Review of individual base salaries and total

remuneration

» Incentive plan targets

An additional meeting was held in October 2014 to confirm
changes to remuneration policy and to authonse the chairman
to consult with shareholders on these

In order to fully take account of the impact of the acquisition
and the changed market outiook the decisions that would
normally have been made at the December 2014 meeting were
largely deferred to a meeting in March 2015 the outcomes

of which are described in this report
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Directors’ remuneration report
Remuneration policy

Introduction

The description that follows sets out the pohcy that 1s subject to the statutory binding vote at the 2015 AGM [t 1s intended that
if approved 1t will take effect from that date The main changes from the previously approved policy relating to the operation of
annual bonus and LTIP are described in the chairman s introductory letter on page 59 Some additional minor ¢changes have been
made to provide greater clarity on aspects of policy

Remuneration policy table
This table sets out the components of the directors’ remuneration package (except on recruitments or promotions which are

described on page 64) It s also part of this policy that we will honour payments or awards crystallising after the effective date of
this pelicy but arising from commitments entered inte prior to the effective date of the new policy or at a time when the relevant
individual was not a director of the Company

Executive directors

Lomponent and how this
supports strategy

How this operates

Maximum

Salary

Enables the business
to attract and retain
individuals with the
personal attributes
skills and experience
required to deliver
our strategy This also
applies to the other
elernents of fixed
remuneration below
(pension and other
henefits)

Reviewed annually from 1 lanuary Interim reviews only in case of significant changes
of responsibility

Salary increases for
executive directors will not
normally exceed the average
ncrease awarded to other
employees based in the
same country In¢reases
may be above this level if
there s an increase in the
scale scope complexity or
responstbility of the role or
to allow the base salary of
newly appointed executives
to move towards market
nerms as therr expenence
and contribution increase
2015 salaries for executive
directors are shown cn
page 67

Pension and Normally through a fixed allowance some or all of which can be paid in the form of a company To aliow for the fluctuating
retfated benefits contribution to a defined contribution pension plan with any balance paid as a cash supplement value of defined benefit
Where the plan permits individuals may also sacrifice on a hke-for ke bass part of base salary pension accrual and cost of
in return for an enhanced company contributton Pension plan membership 1s available on the lide assurance the aggregate
same basis as for senior employees generally in the country in which the individual 1s based and value of those arrangements
there are no special arrangements for directors company contribution
to a defined contribution
Life assurance Is also provided
arrangerment and cash
Samir Brikho has a historic arrangement that provides for a pension payable from age 60 mace supplement will not exceed
up of 4 17% of final pensionable salary in respect of service to 31 December 2007 and one-thirtieth 509 of annual salary
of career averaged revalued earnings in respect of service thereafter Salary and earnings for
pension purposes are subject to a ¢cap currently £157 500 pa for tax year 2014715 Thecapis
Increased annually broadly in ine with UK inflation He also receives the cash supplement on salary
above thts cap as a cash supplement
Cther henefits Standard benefits typically include disabity and healthcare insurance {including cover for eligible The actual value of these

dependants) car/travel allowance working lunches and tax return preparation assistance

Addittonal benefits may be paid where an indwidual 1s required by the Company to relocate
This can include tempaorary housing prior to full relocation and a one off payment to cover specific
costs of moving home or an allowance of an equivalent amount paid for a fixed number of years

Where individuals are required to work in another country on a temporary basis housing travel
tax equalisation and cost of Iving adjustments may also be paid in ine with the Company s nermal
policy for employees generally

Other benefits may be provided from time 10 time where the committee feels it appropnate and
in line with market practice to do so in the country in which the director 1s based

The Company may from time to time operate other arrangements that are open to employees
tn a particular country (for example retating to savings discounted purchase salary sacrifice
holiday buy and sell service recognition awards) that executive directors may participate inon
the same basis as other employees inthe country in which they are based

benefits will vary from time
totime depending among
other things onthe cost of
insuring thermn The intention
15 that the aggregate cost
would be in ine with market
practice and will not exceed
100% of annual salary
where there 1s a relocation/
expatriate element and 20%
of annual salary otherwise
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration policy continued

Companent and how this
supports strategy

How this operates

Maximum

Annual bonus
Rewards the
achievement of annual
financial arnd delvery
of other strategic
business targets

Calculated by reference to a mix of financial and other strategic objectives set by the remuneration
committee that vary from year to year and may vary between mdividuals to reflect the business
pnorities assocated with each role Profit based measures will have a weighting of not tess

than 50% The commuttee will determene for each year threshold and target levels of bonus that
willbe payable for meeting predefined performance levels against the objectives set for the year
Target bonus will not exceed twe thirds of maximum

Details of the actual measures and the tevels of threshold and target banus for the periods under
review are included in the annual report on remuneration on page 69

25% of any bonus earned 1s paid in the form of Amec Foster Wheeler shares deferred for three
years during which 1t ts subject to claw back in the event that the accounts for the year for which
the shares were earned are required to be restated for a correction of a prior period error or

at the commuttee s discretion for personal misconduct

The balance of the bonus 15 normally paid as a cash allowance following the end of the year to
which the payment relates However to facilitate higher levels of executive share ownership the
bonus may at the director s option and subject to the committee s agreement be in the form of
ntl cost options over company shares of equivalent value instead of cash payment The vesting

1s deferred for three months during which t 1s forfeit if the individual s a bad leaver Such options
have a six-month exercise window

The committee has discretion to amend performance measures and targets or adjust bonus
pay outs to take account of exceptionat items unbudgeted acquisitions or disposals and other
aspects of performance which have not been specifically identified in the targets

The maximum cpportunity
15 150 per cent of annual
salary for the Chief Executive
and 125 per cent for other
executive directors

Long-term incentive
plan

Incentivises directors to
achieve long term value
creation and ahgnment
with long-term returns
to shareholders

Annual awards of conditignal awards or nil-cost options (with an 18 month exercise period atter
vesting) Following vesting and where relevant exercise all shares {net of tax} will be held in trust
for two years from the original vesting date During this period shares will not normally be able to be
transferred and may be subject to claw back in the event that the accounts for any year over which
the shares were earned are required to be restated for correction of a prior period error There (s
further provision to reduce leaver awards retrospectively cn an individual basis as set out on page 65

Awards are subject to EPS growth and relative TSR measured over a three year period with equal
weighting on each measure and any additional strategic measures that the commuttee may
consider appropnate for any particular set of awards Addtionally awards are subject to a provision
that allows the committee to reduce vesting in the event of a matenally adverse misstatement of
results for any year of the performance period to correct errors or for personal misconduct The
number of shares vesting from these awards s ncreased to take account of reinvested dividends

The committee will determine the applicable EPS range for each set of awards with 25% of the
relevant porticn of the awards vesting if the bottom of the range 1s actieved and 100% if the
top s achieved with straight line vesting between EPS 1s adjusted for certain defined items and
calculated on a consistent basis between base and final years

The commuttee will determine the TSR comparator group for each set of awards with 25% of the
relevant portion of the awards vesting if Amec Foster Wheeler s ranking 1s at median and 100% if it
15 at upper quartile with straight ine vesting between The committee atits discretion may reduce
or ehminate the portion of the LTIP deterrmined by reference to relative TSR if it 15 not satisfied with
the underlying financial performance of the business during the performance period

The committee may amend the perfarmance tonditions if an event happens which the committee
considers to be of a genuine exceptional nature so that amended performance condition(s)
would be a fairer measure of performance and would be materially neither easier nor more difficult
to satisfy

In the event of 2 change of control and in the absence of an exchange of awards being agreed
awards will normally vest to the extent that the performance conditions have been met at that
time The commuttee has discretion to measure performance based solely against one of the
performance conditions

Award of shares with a face
value at the time of award
of up to 250 per cent of
annuat salary (1ignonng
dividend equivalents)

Sharesave
Provides alignment with
shareholders interests

Sharesave (s an employee share plan under which discounted options over Amec Foster Wheeler
shares are granted linked to a savings arrangement with the ophions becoming exercisable at the
end of the savings period The exercise price can be up to a 20% discount to the share price at the
time of offer and the number of shares 1s that which can be bought at the exercise price with the
expected proceeds of the savings contract Executive directors are eligible to participate in this
plan on the same basis as other employees in the country in which they are located Invstations

to participate may be made annually

Sharesave 1s not subject to performance conditions as the terms of the plan are subject to tax
legislation in the UK and certain other countnes including the US that preclude this

Sharesave options become exercisable to the extent of savings made s the event of a change
of contral

The maximum monthly
savings leve! under any
concurrent Sharesave plans
1511 line with the hmit set
by the UK government from
time to time for such plans
(currently £500 per month
or the equivalent in other
currencies)
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Chairman and non-executive directors
Note The remuneration of non-executive directors 1s set by the Charrman and Chief Executive under delegated authority from the
board rather than by the remuneration committee

Companent and how this

supports strategy How this operates Maximum
Fees Non executive directors receive only fees for their services and do not participate in any of the Increases in the Charman s
To attract and retain incentive or benefit schemes of the group Fee structure comprises a base fee and additional fres fee will not normally exceed
individuals with the to reflect ime commitment and responsitulity of specific roles (for example SID and commitiee the average increase
personal attributes chair) Addtional fees may also be paid to directors not resident in the UK to recognise the awarded to executive
skills and experience addrional travelling time in attending meetings directors
:?al.l:'g;zgetermme The Chairman whilst a non-executive director will not participate in any of the incentive or benefit The company s articles

schemes of the group currently set an aggregate
governance to apply lirmit of £600 000 for base
executive oversight Directors (including the Chairman) are reimbursed for expenses relating to performing their duties fees lor non executive
and to represent and any tax thereon

directors Total fees will not

sharehglders interests exceed market norms

Selection of performance targets

Financial performance targets under the annual bonus plan are set so that the target level of bonus 1s paid normally for achieving
the Company s short-range ptan To achieve maximum bonus higher targets have to be met In deterrmining targets the
committee takes account of the general business circumstances inciuding the perceived difficulty inherent in the short-range

plan and the need to balance stretch against risk Profit 1s chosen as the most appropriate measure of the Company’s short-term
performance and the cash measures are chosen to reflect the conversion of profit to cash across the year Strategic targets are set
to reflect other key business objectives during the year

EPS targets under the Long-term Incentive Plan are set to reflect the Company's longer-term growth objectives at a level where
the maximum represents genuine outperformance aganst expectations EPS 15 chosen as the most appropriate measure of
absolute growth in line with the Company s strategy TSR 1s chosen to measure relative long-term performance agamnst a peer
group comprising UK and international companies against which Amec Foster Wheeler competes directly Other strategic targets
may be set to reflect other key busingss objectives during the particular three year cycle
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration policy continued

Recruitment pay policy
. |

item

External ure

internal prometion to the board

Base salary

Take account of current terms and any premium required
to secure high calibre appointment

Take account of current terms relatnities with cther board
members and whather any previous plc board experience

If instial salary 1s below market benchmark for rote would expect
to move progressively to that level over next 24 months based
on performance in role

| Pension and related
benefits

Existing arrangements may be continued otherwise 1n ine with
standard policy

Existing arrangements may be continued otherwise in line with
standard policy

Other benefits

Normally in line with standard policy but may include special
transitianal arrangements e g overseas hire where dependants
remain outside the UK

Existing arrangements may be continued otherwise in line with
standard policy

Annual bonus

inclusion in annuat bonus for year of hire based on pro rated
salary

Maximum opportunity {as a percentage of salary) no greater
than that for Chief Executive

Where relevant tncrease existing bonus opportunity to
level applicable to new role and apply pro rata from date of
promotion including any amendment to performance measures

Maximum cpportunity (as a percentage of salary) no greater
than that for Chief Executive

Long-term
Incentive plan

Inctusion in LTIP for year of hire subject to same performance
conditions as others but with three-year vesting period running
from date of joining

Maximum oppoertunity in line with standard policy

Maximum opportunity in line with standard policy allowing
for an additional award to be made in year of appointment to
reflect the timing of the appaintment and the extent of other
enhancements to remuneration terms Previous awards will
continue on their original terms

Sharesave

Inclusion in next offer subject to meeting any gualifying period
of service that applies for new employees generally

Inclusion in next offer subject to any restrictions as a result
of savings imits

Notice periods

Where It 1s necessary to secure the services of a particutar
individual the remuneration committee has discretion to agree
mnihial notrce penods of not meore than 24 months reducing to
normal policy level over a period not mare than 12 months

Apply standard policy immediately including if relevant
reducing any maore favourable existing terms

One-off
arangements

Where individuals forfeit bonus or long term incentive payments
trom their former ermployer as aresult of resigning to jon

Amec Foster Wheeler then the committee has the discraticn

to make additional one off awards in the form of cash and/or
shares and subject to performance and/or other conditions
ncluding holding periods as appropriate The maximum
amounts to be awarded would be based on an estimate of actual
loss discounted for any accelerated payment and the extent to
which the loss 15 otherwise compensated for by the new terms
overall

Individuals may be compensated for actual expenses including
temporary accormmodation in the event that they are requered
to relocate to take up the new role Alternatively atemporary
cash allowance may be paid for a hmited period of time which
equates to the estimated relocation cost that would otherwise
have been resmbursed These amounts will include any grossing
up for tax

tndividuals may be compensated for actual expenses including
temporary accommodation 1n the event that they are required
to relocate to take up the new role Alternatively a ternporary
cash allewance may be paid for a imited period of ime which
equates to the estimated relocation cost that would otherwise
have been reimbursed These amounts will Include any grossing
up tor tax
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Policy on notice and payment for loss of office
Newly appointed executive directors will be employed on contracts that include the following provisions

» the iIndividual will be required to give six months notice if they wish to leave and the Company will give up to 12 manths’ notice
of termination other than for gross miscenduct or other circumstances where employment may be terminated without notice

» at the Company s discretion the indmidual may be placed on garden leave for some or all of the period between the giving of
notice and terrmination in which case the Company will continue to pay salary and benefits for the garden leave period but will not
make new share or other incentive awards and

» at any time, at the Company s discretion, employment may be terminated before the end of the required notice period by making
a payment in hieu of the balance and subject to mitigation as described more fully in the table below

In the event of long-term incapacity employment would not normalty be terminated so long as the executive was entitled to
payments under the Company's group income protection insurance arrangements but the executive would be required to stand
down from their role and as a director

Payment for loss of office will be determined according to the following principles set out below and for the current executive
directors, having regard to their existing contractual terms as described following the table

. ___________________________________]
Notice The executive will receve base salary pension and other benefits for any part of the notice period worked (and any period of garden
leave) On terrmination the executive will be entitled to payment for any accrued but untaken holiday pay

The Company may elect to pay a sum in lieu of netice for all or any part of the notice penod calculated by reference to the value of
salary pens:on and other contractual benefits (excluding bonus) In determiming the payments to be made and the structure of such
payments the Company will have regard to the executive s ability to mitsgate thesr loss Inrespect of any defined benefit pension
rights an augmentation of benefits for the relevant part of the notice period may be made The committee has discretion to continue
to provide certain benefits to the end of the notice penod rather than inctuding them in the payment in heu

Where the employment 1s being termmated by the Company for gross misconduct (or other circumstances entithing the Company
to treat the contract as at an tnmediate end) terminaton will be immediate and ne payment 1n llieu of notice will be made

Annual No bonus will be paig in the event of termination for gross misconduct

Bonus In all other circumstances the committee will consider whether 1t 1s appropniate to make a bonus payment for the year in question

taking into account all relevant circumstances including performance and conduct Payment will usually be determined and paid in
cash at the normal time

Deferred bonus In the event of termination due to nisconduct by the indiwvidual the Remuneration Committee may determine that some or all
from prior years at its discretion of the deferred shares will be forfeit

In the case of death the shares will be released in full to the estate as soon as practicable thereafter

In other circumstances they will continue to be subject to the deferral period and only released at the end of & providing no further
claw back applies

Long-term All unvested awards will lapse on leaving In the event of termination for gross misconduct or other bad leaver circumstances
incentive plan An exampte of a bad leaver would be an individuzl resigning i order to take up a pesition with a competitor

Awards will mmediately vest in fullin the event of death

In other cases unvested awards will be pro rated for service which may include any period for which payment was made in lieu

For pre 2015 awards provided the associated investment shares remain lodged matched awards will normally be retained in full
unless the committee decide to pro rate for service A further reduction may be made at the commutteg s discretion to take account
of relevant circumstances at the time of leaving The retained awards will vest in the normal way taking account of the relevant
performance conditions and ai the normal time subject to the committee being satisfied at that ime that the individual remaimns

a good leaver

Other Redundancy pay In line with statutory provisions or those applying to employees generatly in the country in which the director Is based
will be provided in the event of termination due to redundancy

The cost of legal tax ar other advice incurred by the individual iIn connection with the termination and/or support with seeking
alternative employment may be met up to a maximum of £100 000

Additignal payments may be made where required to settle legal disputes or as consideration for new or amended post employment
restrictions

Where an indwidual s in receipt of relocation or expatriation benefits the costs of actual expenses incurred in relation to any
arrangements that are subject to term contracts may continue to be reimbursed for up to s» months or at the Company s discretion
a one-off payment made to cover the costs of premature cancellation The cost of repatniation will also be covered where this was part
of the criginal expatriation terms

Sharesave options lapse unless the director leaves because of specified good leaver reasons in which case they can be exercised for
a hmited period to the extent of savings made to the date of exercise
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Remuneration policy continued

Sarmir Brikhe and lan McHoul are both employed under contracts (dated April 2007 and September 2008 respectively) with
notice periods of twelve months from the Company and which require them to give six months notice of resignation The
contracts permut for payment to be made in lieu of all or part of the required notice pericd at the Company s discretion but there 1s
no prescribed methodology for calculating such payment in heu or applying mitigation Should circumstances arise where notice
1s given and the executive 1s not required to work all or part of the notice period the terms of the existing contracts would be
honoured The individuals may be placed on garden leave for part of the notice period in which case the committee may determine
that it 1s appropriate to pay an element of bonus for that garden leave period

Existing directors' service contracts
The notice provisions for Sarmir Bnkho and lan McHoul are described above There are no specified change-of-control provisions

The Chairman s engagement may be terminated on six months’ notice on either side

The contracts of non-executive directors may be terminated by the individual at any time There are no specific provisions for
compensation in the event of early terrmination by the Company Our practice is that all directors submit themselves for re-election
on an annual basis 1n hne wath the recommendations in the UK Corporate Governance Code

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in company and shareholder views
Our approach to the annual review of base salanes 1s to take account of personal performance company performance, and pay
levels more broadly within the Company External benchmarking 1s also taken into account, particularly for new appointments

Any proposals to change remuneration policy are considered against the best practice guidelines produced by shareholder
bodies and major shareholders are consulted directly when formulating any proposals for significant changes The committee
did consider these guidelines as well as representations made by certain individual shareholders i formulating its policy as noted
in the chairman s introductory letter on page 59 There was no direct consultation with employees

The Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the remuneration committee make themselves available at any time and also
at each annual general meeting to discuss any 1ssues raised

Differences in policy for directors compared to other employees

The structure of remuneration for executive directors is m line with other senior management The primary differences compared
to other employees are the structure of vanable pay which for senior management 1s 1In the form of performance-related
incentives and for other employees 15 largely in the form of overtime and allowances reflecting the different emphases of the roles
and in the level of accrual under defined benefit arrangements

IMustrations of application of policy
The total remuneration for each of the executive directors that could result from the proposed remuneration policy in 2015 under
three different performance levels 1s shown below

Samir Brikho 3 tan McHoul 3 3
£m 5069 £m 264
Fixed pay 5 7% Fixed pay 50%
Annuzl bonus Annual bonus
LTIP 4 3399 LTIP 2 1760
3 37% 40%
28% 25%
‘ 1243 2% T 0654 2%
i 100% 39% 25% 100% 39% 25%
] Fixed elerment On target Maximum 4] Fixed element On target Maxaimum
Notes

1 Fixed pay is base salary for 2015 plus the value of pension and benefits The value of pension and benefits in kind I1s taken from the single total figure
of remuneration for 2014

2 On target performance Is the level of performance required te deliver 66 67% of the maximum annual bonus and 50% of the full LTIP award
3 Maximum performance would result in the maximum bonus and 100% vesting of LTIP award

4 LTIP values ignore any change in share price or dividend equivalents

66 Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and acsounts 2014




Directors’ remuneration report continued
Annual report on remuneration

Application of remuneration policy for 2015
Changes to base salaries for executive directors
The base salaries of the two executive directors are not being increased in 2015

20135 2014 % change
Samir Brikho £954,000 £954 000 n/c
lan McHoul £530,000 £530,000 n/c

Annual bonus measures and targets

The annual bonus plan will operate in 2015 consistent with the amended policy described above The following bonus measures
and therr weightings (maximum opportunity as a percentage of base salary) have been agreed for 2015 They reflect arange of
financial and strategic measures that support the key strategic objectives of the Company

Measure Samir Brikho lan MeHoul
EBITA 90% 75%
Cash conversion 15% 12 5%
Cost synergies 15% 12 5%
Other strategic objectives 30% 25%
Totals 150% 125%

2015 targets against these measures are commercially sensitive and may be subject to revision so have not been disclosed
They will be disclosed retrospectively in next year s report to the extent that they do not remain commercially sensitive at that time

Long-term incentive awards to be made in 2015

Subject to shareholder approval at the AGM for the new long-term incentive plan awards equivalent to 250% of base salary will

be made Half of the award will be subject to a comparative TSR measure and the other half will be subject to an EPS performance
measure TSR will be measured against a peer group compnsing Amec Foster Wheeler and 20 UK and international companies
against which Amec Foster Wheeler competes directly The EPS target range will be 5 percent compound annual growth for
threshold vesting and 10 percent for maximum vesting measured from a pro forma 2014 base that mncludes a full-year contribution
from the Foster Wheeler acquisition The measures will operate in the manner described in the policy set out in page 62 above

Changes to Charrman s and non-executive directors fees
The fee for the Chairman and non-executive directors are not being increased for 2015 other than that for the Audit commuttee
chairman to reflect the increased time commitment ansing from the ongoing US hsting obhigations

2015 2014 % change
Chairman £318,000 £318 000 n/c
Board fee £60.500 £60 500 n/c
Audit comrmittee chairman £30,000 £18,500 +62%
Remuneration commuttee chairman £13,000 £13000 n/c
HSSEE committee chairman £6.000 £6,000 n/c
Senior Independent Director £5,500 £5 500 n/c
Non-UK director (additional travel trme) £12,100 £12 100 n/c
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Annual report on remuneration continued

The information from this point onwards up to and including the statement
of directors’ share interests and shareholding on page 72 1s subject to audit.

Single total figure of remuneration for 2014

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration in respect of qualifying services for the 2014 financial year for each
director together with comparative figures for 2013

Salary/fees Taxatle benefits Bonus LTIP Sharesave Pension Total
000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2014 2013 2014 2013 2004 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Executive

Samir Brikho 954 927 43 66 594 717 0 420** - - 246 240 1,837 2,370
lan McHoul 530 515 18 15 268 315 0 233* - & 106 103 922 1187

Non-executive
John Connolly 318 309 - - - - - - - - - - 318 309
Simon Thompson 76 64 - - - - - - - - - - 76 64
Neil Carson 61 58 - - - - - - - - - - 61 58
Colin Day 79 76 - - - - - - - - - - 79 76
Linda Adamany 77 70 - - - - - - - -~ - - 7 70
Stephane Newby* 13 - - - - - - - - - - - 13 -
Tim Faithfull* 21 76 - - - - - - - - - - 21 76

*Stephanie Newby joined the board in November 2014 and Tim Faithtull teft the Board in April 2014 Stephanie Newby s fees include an amount paid in relation
to her angoing past acquisition service as a director of Foster Wheeler AG from 13 November 2014 to 31 Decernber 2014 this ceased from 19 January 2015

**The 2013 values have been updated from the estimates included in last year s report as detailed on page 70

Taxable benefits for the executive directors comprise disability and healthcare insurance, car/travel allowance working iunches
and tax return preparation assistance

The 2013 Sharesave figure for lan McHoul is the gain made on exercising an option over 1,512 shares made under the Savings-
related Share Option Scheme (Sharesave) at an option price of £6 00 The closing share price on the date of exercise, 3 May 2013,
was £10 25, resulting in a gain on exercise of £6,426

Samir Brikho 1s @ member of the advisory board of Stena AB and a non-executive director of Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB
he received fees of CHF 60 000 during the year in relation to the first appointment and SEK 599 435 in relation to the second |an
McHoul 1s a director of Britvic plc and received fees of £45,385 during the year in relation to this appointment Such appointments

are subject to prior approval of the board Directors are permitted to retain fees (These amounts are not subject to audit and are
not included in the single total figure table above)

Total pension entitlements
The pension amount shown in the 2014 single total figure of remuneration above comprises the following

Accrued DB pension Value of Cash Total

at 31712714 D8 benefit allowance pensicn benefit

£000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Samir Brikho 42 87 159 246
lan McHoul - - 106 106

Samir Brikho has a normal retirement age of 60 1n relation to the stated defined benefit (DB) pension There are ne additional
pension benefits that become payable for either director in the event of early retirement

The cash allowance in the case of Mr Brikho represented 20% of salary above the pension scheme cap and in the case
of lan McHoul represented 20% of full salary
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Annual bonus
The bonus payments in respect of 2014 that will be paid in 2015 to the executive directors (expressed as a percentage of base
salary earned during the year) are shown below reflecting the indicated outcomes agamst the various performance elements

Sarrur Brikho lar MeHoul
Percentage of

Measure Target range Actual max achieved Max Actual Max Actual
EBITA* £335-370m 338 30% 70% 21.1% 55% 16.6%
£BITA addstional stretch 0% 25% 0% 25% 0%
Cash conversion full year 80-80% 88% 59% 1875% n.1% 15% 8.9%
Cash conversion half year 45-50% <45% 0% 6 25% 0% 5% 0%
Other strategic objectives See note 30% 30% 25% 25%
Totals 150% 62.2% 125% 50.5%

*For bonus purposes EBITA (after exceptional items which may be disallowed for bonus purposes at the committee s discretion) 1s normalised for exchange
rate movements and cost of share based payments the target and actual figures shown abave are before any such adjustrnents

‘Other strategic objectives’ measures for the Chief Executive included actions to establish the acquisition implementation plan
and strategy for the new combined business develop the executive management team deliver higher revenue in Growth Regions
and safety leadership For the CFO they included estabiishing finance integration and cost synergy plans, implementation

of shared services and T systems, and delivering performance from the Investment Services activities The committee has
discretion to take other factors into account and uses its judgement in determining the amount to be paid under this item

For 2014 the committee considered performance against these objectives and resolved that it was appropriate to award
maximum bonus for thus element

None of the bonus earned for 2014 Is subject to compulsory deferral, as the EBITA additional stretch mimmum target was not met

The original EBITA targets were adjusted to remove a provision for contribution from small acquisitions given the focus on
completing the Foster Wheeler acquisition and the actual results were adjusted to exclude the contribution in 2014 frorn the
Foster Wheeler acquisition

Performance Share Plan

The LTIP amount shown in the 2014 ‘single total figure of remuneration’ on page 68 i1s the award made under the Performance
Share Planin 2012 Vesting 1s due to take place on 3 April 2015 and 1s subject to two performance conditions each measured
over three-year periods (1) earnings per share (EPS*) growth between 2011 and 2014 and (i) total shareholder return relative
to a comparator group based on average share prices in the first 11 weeks of 2015 compared to those in the corresponding
period 1in 2012 (also subject to the committee being satisfied that there has been sustained financial growth of the Company)
The two performance conditions operate independently on different parts of the award half of the basic award i1s dependent
on EPS and the other half on TSR the matched award depends solety on EPS

*EPS for this measure means the diluted earnings per share expressed to one decimal place of Amec Foster Wheeler plc before goodwill and intangible
amortisation the charge or credits associated with executive share awards and exceptional items Real growth means in excess of the change in the UK Retail
Prices Index for December 2014 compared to December 2011

The committee took account of the share buyback that took place during 2012 and 2013 in determining the outcome for the
EPS element and also excluded the contribution in 2014 from the Foster Wheeler acquisition The perfermance achieved against
the £PS target and the TSR outcome are as follows

2011 awards performance measure Thresheld - 25% vesting Maximum — 130% vesting Qutcome Percentage of max achieved
Real annual cornpound growth in EPS 5% 12% <6% 0%
Total shareholder return ranking Median Upper quartile 17th out of 24 0%

Accordingly no shares will vest from these awards

Amec Foster Wheeler 9
Annual report and accounts 2014 6

Governance Strategic report

Financials

Additional informatson



Directors’ remuneration report continued
Annual report on remuneration continued

The LTIP amount shown in the 2013 single total figure of remuneration on page 68 1s the award made under the Performance
Share Plan in 2011 that vested in April 2014 An estimated figure was included for this inlast year s report and this has now been
updated to reflect the actual outcome as set out below Vesting took place on 5 April 2014 at a share price of £12 25 The balance
of the original award lapsed at the same time

Total number of
shares vesting

Ongnal award = including dvidend Vesting value
2011 PSP awards number of shares equivalents £ 000
Samir Brikho 184,695 34 275 420
lan McHoul 102 667 18,051 233

1 These awards were in the form of nil cost options with an 18 month exercise period post vesting If the option has not been exercised before the end of the
period 1t will be exercised automatically at that stage Additional dividend equivalents are accrued between vesting and exercise and thus is reflected in the
table on page 72

Details of share awards during year

Awards were made under the Performance Share Plan on 27 March 2014 that will vest three vears later subject to the outcome
against the performance conditions and may be exercised up to 18 months after vesting The face value of the awards i1s based
on the share price at the date of award which was £11056

Face value Percentage vasting at End of performance
Type of wierest awarded  Basts of award £ 000 threshold pesformance Number of shares penod
Samur Brikho Nil-cost options  Basic award - 1670 25% 151085 31 December
175% of salary 2016
Nil-cost options  Matched award 715 25% 64,750 31 December
- up to 75% of 2016
salary on two for
one investment
share match
Total 250% of salary 2,385 215,835
lan McHoul Nil-cost options  Basic award — 928 25% 83936 31 December
175% of salary 2016
Nil-cost options  Matched award 397 25% 35972 31 December
- up to 75% of 2016
salary on two for
one investment
share match
Total 250% of salary 1,325 119,908

Half of the basic award 1s subject to a TSR performance condition and the other half and all of the matched award 1s subject to
an EPS performance condition

The TSR measure Is based on Amec Foster Wheeler s ranking against the comparator group set out below based on the average
share price over the final quarter of 2016 compared to the corresponding period in 2013 The threshold for any vesting to occur
15 that Amec Foster Wheeler needs to be ranked at median or higher If upper quartile ranking 1s achieved full vesting will occur
Vesting is on a straight Iine basis between these thresheld and maximum targets
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Comparator group in respect of 2014 awards
-]

Aker Solutions Norway Melrose UK
AMEC UK Petrofac UK
Babcock Intl UK Rotork UK
Baker Hughes USA Saipem Italy
Balfour Beatty UK Schlumberger USA
Cameron Intl USA Serco Group UK
Carnlhon UK  SNC-Lavalin Group Canada
Chicago Bridge & Iron USA Spirax-Sarco UK
Fluor USA Technip France
Halhburton USA URS USA
IM! UK Weir Group UK
Jacobs USA  Wood Group (John) UK
KBR USA  Worley Parsons Australia

Foster Wheeler has been removed from the original comparator group The committee has discretion to make further adjustments
to the hist when necessary to take account of mergers acquisitions or other such events

The EPS measure 1s based on the compound annual growth {CAGR) to 2016 from an adjusted 2013 base EPS for this purpose

15 defined as the diluted earnings per share expressed to one decimal place of Amec Foster Wheeler plc before goodwill and
intangible amortisation, the charge or credits associated with executive share awards and exceptional items (at the committee s
discretion) The adjustment took account of the Foster Wheeler acquisition Threshold (25%) vesting will occur if CAGR 1s 5% and
maximum {100%}) vesting will occur if CAGR 15 10% or higher with straight line vesting for a result between these targets

The number of shares vesting as determined by the performance conditions outcomes will be increased to take account
of reinvested dividends including the UK tax credit in the period between award and vesting

Details of the specific companies included in the TSR comparator groups for both the 2012 and 2013 awards were included in the
directors remuneration reports for those years and may be obtained on request from the Company Secretary

Payments to former directors
No payments (including payments for loss of office) were made to former directors
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Annual report on remuneration continued

Directors’ share interests and shareholding requirements

As at 31 December 2014 (or in the case of Tim Faithfull as at the date he ceased to be a director) the beneficial interests in the
share capital of the Company of the directors and therr connected persons were as follows

Vested but unexercised

Urvested share aptians
subjact to performance

Unvested share options
not subject to performance

Legally owned shares share options conditions (PSP awards) conditians {Sharesave)
John Connolly 35538 - - -
Samir Brikho 1894682 36491 631,659 1,032
fan McHoul 318443 19,540 350920 1046
Tim Faithfull 10000 - - -
Neil Carson 5000 - - -
Colin Day 21466 - - -
Simon Thompson 4744 - - -
Linda Adamany 3100 - - -
Stephanie Newby 21899 - - -

The unexercised share options for Sarmir Brikho and lan McHoul include those vesting during 2014 from the PSP awards made in 2011 as described on
page 70 and in the case of Mr Brikho 1 335 options under the Sharesave Plan with an exercise price of £6 74 and an exercise period frem January to Jurne 2015
Suffricient shares may be sold on exercise of options Lo meet tax withholding requirerments

Details of the unvested options for Samir Brikho and lan McHoul are as follows

Date of award Type of award Number of shares Exercise price Exercise period

Samur Brikho Apni 2012 PSP 197194 Nil April 2015 to October 2016
March 2013 PSP 218630 Nil March 2016 to September 2017

March 2014 PSP 215 835 Nil March 2017 to September 2018

Cctober 2014 Sharesave 1,032 £872 January to June 2018

lan McHoul April 2012 PSP 109,551 Nii April 2015 to October 2016
March 2013 PSP 121461 Nil March 2016 to September 2017

October 2013 Sharesave 1046 £860 January to June 2017

March 2014 PSP 119908 Nil March 2017 to September 2018

On 5 January 2015 John Connelly and lan McHoul acquired 601 and 28 shares respectively and on 7 January 2015 Colin Day
acquired 363 shares, all of these were in lieu of the interim dividend paid on 5 January 2014 The unexercised share options arising

from PSP awards increased by 621 for Mr Brikho and 347 for Mr McHoul in respect of dividend equivalents Mr Brikho exercised his

Sharesave option over 1,335 shares on 9 March 2015 There were no other changes in the directors interests in the share capital
of the Company between 31 December 2014 and 26 March 2015 No director has used any of their shareholdings in hedging

arrangements or as collateral for loans

Guidelines are in place requinng executive directors and members of the Group Leadership Team to build up and retain a holding
of Amec Foster Wheeler shares recewved from incentive plans or purchased by them The level of targeted shareholding 1s 250%
of salary for executive directors and 125% for other sentor executives

Based on the average share price and salanes during December 2014, the legally-owned shares shown above represented the
following percentages of base salary which are both considerably In excess of the shareholding requirement

Samir Brikho 1721%
lan McHoul 521%

There 1s no shareholding requirement for the Chairman or non-executive directors
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Total shareholder return
This graph compares the TSR performance of Amec Foster Wheeler plc, assuming dwvidends are re-nvested with the
TSR performance of the FTSE 100 over the period 31 December 2008 to 31 December 2014

Total shareholder retum 360
Amec Foster Wheeler
FTSE 100 Index 240
220
200
iao
66
40
20
100
Source Thamson Reuters 80 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Chief Executive's pay in the last six years
. _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ]

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Single total figure of remuneration £ 000 4103 3,295 4590 3092 2 370 1,837
Bonus awarded as % of maximum 58% 97% 64% 57% 52% 41%
LTIP vesting as % of maximum 100% 80% 1% 50% 19% 0%

Percentage change in Chief Executive’s remuneration

The table below shows how the percentage change between 2013 and 2014 in the Chief Executive s salary benefits and bonus
compares with the percentage change in the average of each of those elements of pay for a comparator group of employees
The committee has selected employees in the UK as the comparator group as they have broadly the same structure of
remuneration and to ehiminate the impact of exchange rate movements if employees in other countries were included

Salary Taxable benefits Benus

2014 2013 9 change 2014 2013 % change 2014 2013 % change

Chief Executive 954 927 +3% 43 66 -35% 594 717 -17%
UK staff +3% +4% -16%

The year-on-year change for UK staff taxable benefits is based on data for tax years ending in 2014 and 2013 averaged over
the number of employees in receipt of those benefits The year-on-year changes for UK staff salary and bonus are based on the
aggregate amounts paid 1in each year divided by the average number of employees in that year
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Directors’ remuneration report continued
Annual report on remuneration continued

Relative importance of spending on pay

The chart below illustrates the relative importance of spending on pay compared to distributions to shareholders (dividends and
share buy-back) and other disbursements from profit or cash flow that are considered by the directors to be the most material
expenditures in relation to the Company s strategy

. _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
Relative importance 35
of spending on pay

£bn

2014
2013 20
2012

15

10

05

] Statf casts Dividends Share buybacks Acguisitions

Shareholder voting on remuneration policy and report at last AGM
At the annual general meeting held on 3 April 2014 votes were cast as follows

Shares for {incluchng

Resclution discretionary) % in favour Shares against % against Shares withheld
To approve the remuneration report 166,409,640 8835 21949194 1165 2103756
To approve the remuneration policy 153,158,481 8127 35308450 1873 1995659

The committee do not consider that the votes against either resolution were substantial requiring any specific explanation or
action In respanse As noted above shareholders were consulted during 2014 regarding proposed changes to remuneration policy
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Our Group Leadership Team

. |
The team 1s comprised of senior

operational and functional management,
each of whom brings a depth of
knowledge and experience to their role,

|
Simon Naylor

Group President Americas

Simon was appointed Group
President Amencas in October
2012 Pnior to that Stimon had

been President Natural Resources
Americas since 2007 where he

led the growth and successful
development of the company s
leading positions in the core market
sectors of Mining Ci! & Gas and

Qill Sands In his 22 years with

the company Simon has worked
across the project hife cycle from
consulting engineering and project
management A natural resources
professional his experience includes
project develocpment asset support
strategy customer relationship
management and operations
leadership

Ssmon has an MBA from Cranfield
Scheol of Management and a BSc
from University College London in
Chemical Engineering

|
Roberto Penno

Group President

AMEA & Southern Europe

Roberto was appointed Group
President AMEA & Southern Europe
on 1 January 2015 immediately
prior to which he was CEO of Foster
Wheeler s Global E&C Group -

a position he held since 2013
Previously he was CEQ of the Global
E&C Group s Asia Pacific Region

A 27 year veteran of Foster Wheeler
he has held a variety of positions
with the company including
managing director of Global Sales
Marketing and Strategic Planning
directer of commercial operations
for Foster Wheeler Asia Pacific and
other semior roles in operating unit
management sales and commercial
management in Europe Asia and
the US

Roberto has a degree in Mechanical
Engineering from University
Politecrmco Milan
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|
Gary Nedelka

Group President Global Power Group
Gary was apponted Group President
Global Power Group on 1 January
2015 having served as Chief
Executwve Officer of Foster Wheeler s
Global Power Group since January
2009 Prior to this he served as
President and Chief Executive Cfficer
of Foster Wheeler North America
Corp an indirect wholly cwned
subsidiary within the Global Power
Group Previously he was President
and General Manager of operating
companies in China and he held

a variety of positions of increasing
responsibility in commerciai
aperations and engineering
management He joined Foster
Wheeler in 1975 and 1s a member of
the American Society of Mechanical
Engineers

Gary holds a BSc in mechanical
engineering from Clarkson College
of Technology

]
Jett Reilly

President Strategy & Business
Development

Jefi was appointed President
Strategy & Business Development
on 28 April 2014 He started his
career with Stone & Webster
Engineering Corp as a Chemical
Process Design Engineer and
developed his career there and at
ABB Lummus Global Inc as company
Vice President at both engineering
and construction organisations

He joined ConocoPhilhps in 2005
imtially as Major Contracts Manager
thenled upstrearn and downstream
majer project portfolios globally and
was appointed as Chief Procurement
Officer in 2012

Jeft has a BS Chemical Engineering
from The University of Texas at
Austin an MBA 0 Finance and
International Business from the
University of Houston

In addition to the executive directors shown on pages 45 and 46
Amec Foster Wheeler s Group Leadership Team consists of the

following individuals

Jonathan Nleld

Group Project Delivery Director

Jon was appointed Group Project
Delwery Director on 13 November
2014 immediately prior to which

he served as Vice President Project
Risk Management of Foster Wheeler
- a pasition he held since May 2011
Previously he was a director of
Foster Wheeler Energy Limited and
he has served In various executive
posstions with that company He
was a member of the Foster Wheeler
team for more than 25 years

Jon has a BS¢ in Mechanical
Engineenng from Newcastle
University an MSc in Project
Managernent frorm Cranfield School
of Management He currently serves
as adirector of the Engineering &
Construction Risk Institute

L]
Will Serle

Group Human Resources Director
Will was appointed Group Hurman
Resources Director on 1 May 2011
having previously held the position
of Hurman Resources Operations
Director since 2009 Willis also
responsible tor sustainability at
Amec Foster Wheeler He jotned

the Compariy in 2000 a5 Hurnan
Resources Director tor the O1l & Gas
business moving to the Natural
Resourees role in 2006

Wit holds a Master s degree In
Human Resources from The Robert
Gordon University and 1s a Fellow
of CIPD

]
John Pearson

Group President

Northern Eurcpe & CIS

Before taking the role of Group
President Northern Europe & CIS
on 1 January 2015 John was Group
President of Eurcpe and prior to
that he was Managing Director of
the OIt & Gas business in Europe and
West Africa He joined the company
10 1980 and has worked m a variety
of roles in engtneering and project
management Irthe past John has
led the ¢cornpany s Ot & Gas projects
and Asset Support business streams
globally Prior to joining the business
John worked for Chevron and has
worked around the world having
spent time based in Aberdeen

San Frangisco Baku and London
John is currently joint contractor

co chair of Oil & Gas UK and sits as
a board member for PILOT the Fiscal
Forum and the OGA

John helds a BSc Honours
Engineering degree from Aberdeen
University

|
Alson Yapp

General Counsel and

Cormpany Secretary

Alison was appointed General
Counsel and Company Secretary
onlDecember 2012 Immediately
prior {0 joining the company she was
Company Secretary and General
Legal Counsel of Hays plc previous
to which she was Company Secretary
and Group Legal Adviser of Charter
plc Shes a solicitor and has more
than 20 years experence as a senior
lawyer n industry She began her
career In private practice at Turner
Kenneth Brown adwvising corporate
and commercial clients in M&A
before moving in house to Johnson
Matthey plc where she held varigus
senior legal roles

Alison holds an LLB {(Hons) from
Bristol University and 1s a qualified
solicitor
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Management committees

The board has also created a number
of management committees that deal
generally with more operational matters.

These are chaired by executive directors or other senior
indwiduals and members are drawn from senior management
within the group The minutes of each of these meetings are
circulated to each board meeting The terms of reference of all
these committees have been reviewed and updated following
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler

Corporate transactions

Members

Chief Executive (chairman) Chief Financial Officer General Counsel and
Company Secretary Head of Mergers and Acquisitions

Responsibilities

The corporate transactions committee considers mergers acquisitions
and disposals and approves transactions where the consideration or
assumption of habilities as appropriate 1s £5m or less and above this
level it submits recommendations to the board for approval Inaddition
it determines transaction guidehnes that are in ine with group policies
and procedures

Disclosure {from January 2015)

Members

Group Firancial Controller (chairman) General Counsel and Company
Secretary Head of Risk Management and Insurance Chief Corporate
Compliance Officer Head of Internal Audit Director of Tax and Treasury
Group Corporate Affairs Director Head of Investor Relations

Respensibiities

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheealer we have established a
disclosure committee which will assist the audit committee with regard to
verifying the information that s required to be disclosed in the company s
material public disclesures and in its periodic reports This Is intended to
ensure such disclosures are in cormnphance wath all refevant laws rules and
regulations including the UK Listing Authority the Londen Stock Exchange
the New York Stock Exchange and the US Securities and Exchange
Commission

Group project review (from March 2015)
Members
Group Leadership Team Commercial Director

Responsibilities

The group project review committee reviews project execution and financial
performance on higher nsk higher value projects that could have a material
affect on group performance

Health, safety, security and environmental (HSSE) review
Members

Chief Executive (chairman) Group Human Resources Director
General Counsel and Company Secretary

Responsibilities

The HSSE review commuttee s key responsibility 1s to provide effective
oversight of the company s performance and managernent of H3SE
155ues across the group This includes the evaluaton of the effectiveness
of the group s policies and management systems in respect of managing
health safety security and environmental risk in both current and future
operations associated with the company s growth strategy

76

Pensions and retirement benefits

Members

Chief Financial Officer (charman) Group Human Resources Director
Head of Pensicns General Counsel and Company Secretary

Responsibilities

The pensions and rettrement benefits committee reviews and recommends
the establishment of any new or replacement pension arrangements

any material amendments to existing pension schemes and the
discontinuance winding up or merger of any existing arrangement

It also agrees with the trustees of those pension arrangerments appropriate
funding pians to secure the benefits promisad

Risk

Members

Chiel Executive (chairman} Chiet Financial Officer General Counse!
and Company Secretary Group Commercial Director Head of Risk
Management and Insurance Group Project Delivery Director

Responsibilities

The risk committee performs an integral role in the governance of risk
within Amec Foster Wheeler by helping the board fulfil its responsibiities in
determiming the risk appetite of the group and the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal contral systems that support it It also reviews
the Armec Foster Wheeler plc risk register and the potential impact of any
1ssues on the risk appetite and the nisk profile of the group It reports on
key risk 1ssues such as new business and geographical locations and also
makes recommendations on the insurance programme for the group

Share allotment

Members

Any two directors or a director and the General Counsel and Company
Secretary or the Deputy Company Secretary (the chairman to be appointed
from those directors present)

Responsibrlities

The share allotment comimittee approves the aliotment of new shares or
the 1ssue of existing shares held in treasury following the exercise of options
under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme

Tender review

Members

Chief Executive (chairman) Chief Financial Qfficer General Counsel
and Company Secretary Head of Risk Management and Insurance
Group Comrmercial Director Group Progect Delivery Director

Responsibilities

The tender raview committee primarily reviews and approves proposed
tender subrmissions for contracts to be undertaken by the business units
that are outside the delegated authonity of the Group Presidents
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Leadership

Board composition

As at 31 December 2014 the board compnsed the non-executive
chairman, two executive directors (the Cheef Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer), and five non-executive directors As a
result of the Foster Wheeler acquisition, Kent Masters joined the
board on 13 February 2015 as a non-executive director Given his
former role as Chief Executive Officer of Foster Wheeler AG, Kent
15 not considered to be independent Details of the directors,
including thewr biographies, other significant commitments and
committee memberships can be found on pages 45 to 47

]
Membership of the board 6
Non-executive Chairman 1
Executive director
Non-executive directer

The balance of executive and non-executive directors,
reinforced by adherence to sound governance procedures
ensures no one individual or group of indviduats, dominates
the board s decision-making process The varied backgrounds
and commercial experience of the non-executive directors and
their ndependence from management, ensures rigorous debate
at meetings and the constructive challenge and oversight of

the executive directors in relation to the strategic direction and
performance of the group

|
Experience of the board 7
Financial management and
carporate finance
Corporate governance
International experience &
Experience in business sectors
relevant to Amec Foster Wheeler 6
HSSE
Strategy 5

5

Number of board directors

with experience in each topic 9

The board 1s mindful of the need to maintan an appropnately
diverse mix of skills experience independence and knowledge
of the group to ensure the delivery of the group s strategy and
performance The nominations commuttee regularly reviews the
composition of the board against these criteria

The Company's articles of association require all directors

to seek re-election by shareholders at the AGM following their
imtial appointment and every three years thereafter However,
in ine with the recommendations of the Code our practice

1s that all directors submut themselves for re-election on an
annual basis All of the directors wishing to continue serving
and considered eligible by the board will offer themselves for
re-election at the 2015 AGM

Details of the directors’ service contracts emoluments and
share interests are set out In the remuneration report on pages
66t072
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|
Directors’ tenure as at 31 December 2014

John Connolly 3yrs7m
Samir Brikho 8 3m
lan MeHoul 6 yrs 3m
Linda Adamany 2 3m
Nell Carson 4yrs 4m
Colin Day 4 2m
Stephanie Newby im
Simon Thompson Syrg 1llm

2005 1 2006 12007 | 200812005 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014

Attendance at meetings

The board holds a minimum of six regular meetings throughout
the year scheduled in accordance with an annual timetable
Additional board meetings and telephene conferences are held
as required to deal with specific 1ssues In 2014 there were six
scheduled meetings and ten unscheduled meetings

Directors are expected to attend all scheduled board and
relevant committee meetings unless they are prevented from
doing so by unavoidable prior business commitments or other
valid reasons All directors are provided with full papers in
advance of each meeting Where a director 1s unable to attend
a meeting they are encouraged to discuss any 1ssues arising
with the Chairman or Chief Executive as appropriate

Number of meetings attended
]

Scheduled  Unscheduled

John Connolly! 5/6 10/10
Samir Brikho 6/6 10710
lan McHoul 6/6 10/10
Linda Adamany 6/6 10/10
Neil Carson 6/6 6710
Colin Day 6/6 9/10
Tim Faithful! (to 3 April 2014) 171 2/2
Stephanie Newby (from 13 November 2014) 171 2/2
Simon Thompson 6/6 10/10

1 The Chairman was unable to attend one meeting due to ilness

Unscheduled meetings were convened throughout the year
to consider matters relevant to the Foster Wheeler acquisition
As these were not scheduled members were not always able
to attend but were provided with full packs of information and
were invited to make comments
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Leadership continued

At least one scheduled meeting each year takes place away
from Amec Foster Wheeler's head office in London This
provides the board with an opportunity to understand more
about Amec Foster Wheeler s business and to meet employees
based locally InJune 2014 the board meeting took place in
our offices in Aberdeen UK where the board met with local
management and also visited the Robert Gordon University
accessing the state of the art Drilling and Rig Traning (DART)
simulator developed by the university to help address this area
of skills shortage in our iIndustry

Amec Foster Wheeler has a strong working relationship with
the university which is very closely affiated with the o1l and gas
industry and has provided many of the company’s engineering
graduates

In addition to the matters reserved for the board, certain

items are considered at every scheduled board meeting

The Chief Executive provides a report on business performance,
strategy execution and emerging i1ssues and the Chief Financial
Officer updates the board on financial results and progress
against the short range plan Executive reports are received

on investor relations and market issues, HR and health and
satety Inaddition, the Charman and the General Counsel and
Company Secretary provide an update on legal and governance
matters and twice yearly the General Counsel and Company
Secretary provides updates on material claims and disputes

Business unmit management is regularly invited to present

at board meetings and led by the Group Presidents, provide
deep dive reviews of each region In addition to standing items
discussed at each meeting. the board cycles through a schedule
of financial and planning matters including the approval of
financial results and dividends, strategic and special matters
including the review and approvat of strategy the determination
of major risks and risk appetite and transaction and competitor
reviews The board recetves an annual presentation from the
Group Human Resources Director on sermor management
succession planning and management development

In 2014, this took place In June and the board were advised

of the creation of a new people forum the purpose of which
was to ensure that succession was considered more deeply
throughout the orgamsation The board has also identified a
range of topic reviews that are addressed annually and these
include the strategies followed by the group s functions e g

Tax, Treasury and IT, as well as the board effectiveness and
composition reviews

The board also holds a separate additional meeting each year
to perform a full strategic review of the group On account of the
timing of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, the strategy event
scheduled for October 2014 was postponed until Apnl 2015
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The Chairman and Chief Executive

The company does not combine the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive There 15 a clear and well defined division of
accountability and responsibibty between the roles of the
Chairman and Chief Executive and these are set out In writing
and have been agreed by the board The consequence of this
clear division of responsibility at the head of the company

15 such that ne indwidual has unfettered powers of decision
The Chairman and Chief Executive are committed to ensuring
the development and maintenance of an effective and trusting
refationship with the appropriate balance between challenge
and support

The Charrman 1s pnmarily responsible for the leadership and
effectiveness of the board At a high level, he 1s accountable for
facilitating constructive relations between and the participation
of all board members so as to encourage a culture of openness
and debate and enable the board to fulfil all aspects of its

role The Chairman has undertaken to ensure that the board
discharges its duties to promote the success of the company
and to guide Amec Foster Wheeler s business and conduct in
accordance with the highest ethical standards

Each year the Chairman preduces a board plan intended to
summarise the board s activities in executing its duties during
the year The plan highlights the prionties the board has
identified for the year and those of the Chief Executive

and 1s modified to take account of unscheduled developments
In setting the agenda for board meetings the Chairman ensures
sufficient time 15 available for discussion and meaningful
challenge of all matters, particularly strategy performance,
value creation and accountabihty

The Chief Executive is responsible, subject to those matters
reserved to the board for running Amec Foster Wheeler's
businesses with the primary objective of creating shareholder
value Consistent with this objective, the Chief Executive has
ultimate responsibility for the proposal development and
implementation of the group s strategy The buillding and
maintenance of an effective executive management team and
the allocation of responsibility therein are key components of
and essential to the performance of the Chief Executive s role

The Chief Executive takes the lead role in the promotion

of Amec Foster Wheeler, gives personal leadership to the
realisation of the company s vision and values and encourages
the highest standards of health, safety, security environmental
and ethical performance
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Senior Independent Director

Simon Thompson has acted as the board s Semior Independent
Director since the conclusion of 2014 AGM, following the
retirement of Tim Faithfull Simon was selected for the role

on account of his significant knowledge of Amec Foster
Wheeler and its operations and his experience as a director

of international comparies in sectors that are relevant to the
group The Senior Independent Director s responsible for

» providing additronal support to and acting as a sounding board
for the Charrman,

» acting as an additional channe! of communication between
the Chairman and the other directors

» being available to sharehelders for concerns they may have
that have not been resolved through the normal channels of
the Chairman Chief Executive or other executive directors
or which are not appropnate to raise through these channels

» acquiring an objective understanding of the 1ssues and
concerns of Amec Foster Wheeler's shareholders through
attendance at a sufficient number of meetings with the
company’s major shareholders and financial analysts,

» at least annually establishing the views of the non-executive
directors as to the performance of the Chairman

» following completion of the above evaluation exercise,
providing feedback to the Chairman on his performance and

» overseeing the recruitment of the Charrman

As previously noted Simon Thompson will step down from the
board at the conclusion of the 2015 AGM having served six
years on the board Following Simon s rettrement Neil Carson
wili take on the role of Senior Independent Birector Both the
nominations committee and the board considered that

Neil Carson best met the critenia required for the role

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors are crucial in bringing an external
perspective and wide range of skills experience, expertise

and dversity of views to the board s dehberations and the
development of strategy They constructively challenge and
scrutinise the performance of management against agreed
objectives and provide an invaluable contribution to the work
of the board s commuttees The board benefits greatly from the
contnbution and balance they bring To ensure this continues,
the Chairman holds meetings with the non-executive directors
without the executive directors present immediately following
most scheduled board meetings

The board s policy 1s that non-executive director appointments
are normally for three consecutive three-year terms, subject

to assessment by the nominations commuttee after the end

of each term The committee makes recommendations on
reappointment to the board

Amec Foster Wheeler
Apnual report and accounts 2014

Prior to appointment and on any matenal changes, the external
commitments of each non-executive director, including those
of the Chairman are reviewed During the year John Connolly
became the chairman of 2 small private company the Elian
Group which s based in Jersey Linda Adamany was appointed
as a non-executive director of Leucadia National Corporation
Neil Carson was appointed as a non-executive director of
PayPoint Plc and Colin Day became a director of FM Global and
was appointed to the FRC Audit Advisory Group In accordance
with the board s pelicy to ensure that non-executive directors
are not confhicted and are able to commut sufficient time to
meet their duties and responsibiiities to Amec Foster Wheeler
the prospective appomtments were disclosed to the board

for approval In no case was it considered that the external
appointment would have a detrimental effect Each director s
undertaking as to their ongoing commutment to the role,
together with an assessment of therr continued independence
1s reviewed as part of therr annual performance evaluation

Amec Foster Wheeler s non-executive directors are not
employed by the company in any capacity, nor have they
previously been Kent Masters was the former Chief Executive
Otficer of Foster Wheeler AG and Stephanie Newby was
formerly an independent non-executive director of Foster
Wheeler AG The letters of appointment of the non-executive
directors are avallable for inspection at the company s
registered office by request to the Company Secretary and will
be available for inspection at the company's forthcoming AGM

Conflicts of interest

The board has procedures in place for the disclosure and
review of conflicts of interest No matenal conflicts of interest
arose In 2014 Prior to appointment, director-elects provide
information on any conflicts of interest, and thereafter any
potential conflicts of interest are considered at the start of
each board meeting Accordingly each director is aware of their
responsibility to avoid a situation where they have an actual or
potential conflict of interest the requirernent to keep the same
under review and inform the Chairman and Company Secretary
of any change Iin therr situation An effective procedure is In
place for the board to authorise conflict situations, should they
arise, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the
company s articles of association

The Company Secretary 1s responsible for keeping appropriate
records including the scope, of any authorisations granted by
the board and ensures the board undertakes regular reviews
of conflict authorisations

Executive directors are not perrmitted to accept external
appointments without the prior approval of the board

In March 2014 lan McHoul was appointed as a non-executive
director of Britvic ple Prior to accepting the appointment the
board reviewed the nature of the position and time commitment
required and concluded that it would not adversely impact

on tus abihty to fulfil us role as Chuef Financial Officer of

Amec Foster Wheeler plc
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Effectiveness

Professional development

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in the
co-ordination of director induction and ongoing training

A comprehensive iInduction programme 1s in place for all new
directors which takes into account their previous experience
background and role on the board The programme 1s tallored
accordingly to

» provide an understanding of the duties and responsibilities
of a director and their particular role

» build an understanding of how the board operates within
Amec Foster Wheeler s structure,

» further their knowledge and understanding of Amec Foster
Wheeler s culture its business and operations and the
markets and countries in which it operates,

» establish a hink with Amec Foster Wheeler's management
and people and

» establish an understanding of the company s main
relationships

New directors are provided with key board, operational

and financial information and relevant legislatory and
regulatory guidance Essential to the success of the programme
15 the varied delivery of materials, at intervals that aliow

the absorption of information at a steady pace Delivery

of the induction programme involves a combination of
documentation, accessible via the portal used by the board

to communicate and share documents electronically meetings
with other members of the board, senior management and their
extended teams, key external parties including the company s
advisers and where appropriate major shareholders and,

site visits where possible Where a new director 1s to serveon a
board committee induction material relevant to the committee
is alse provided Progress against the induction programme

15 reviewed with the director midway through the process to
ensure a smooth transitton into director training and ongeing
development

Ongoing traimng relevant to each director's individual
development needs, continues after appointment The
Chairman endeavours to review the training and development
needs of the directors at least annually The aim s to ensure
the further enhancement of their skills and knowledge of the
business, so that they continue to effectively fulfil their role
on the board and its committees

Internally facilitated training 1s arranged by the Company
Secretary on topics and issues relevant to the operation of

the board and the responsibilities of the directors The board
recewves presentations from management on changes and
significant developments in the business Regular updates

on changes in legislation and communications from the
Company Secretary’s office on key developments in corporate
governance are also provided In addition use 1s made of
external auditor and advisor training programmes During the
year the board received presentations from external experts on
such matters as UK and US requirements in relation to mergers
and acquisitions and on health and safety legal requirements
From time to time the directors indwidually attend sermunars
and conferences related to their areas of expertise and
responsibihty
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To further develop the directors understanding of the group s
operations and culture, the board undertakes visits to various
places of Amec Foster Wheeler business As previously
mentioned, the board visited the group's Aberdeen operations
and also Robert Gordon University in 2014

Evaluation

in line with the recommendations of the Code, each year a
formal performance evaluation review 1s undertaken of the
board, its committees and the directors indwidually 1n 2014

the performance evaluation was externally facihtated by
Lintstock, a third party service provider Lintstock have been
the provider of the company s insider ist management software
since 2011 but other than this and the performance evaluation
have not undertaken any other work of any kind for the board
or the company

The review process involved the completion by each director

of a survey designed to establish their perceptions in areas such
as the current composition and expertise of the board board
dynamics and the relationships between board members and
the board and senior management the board’s management

of ime and the scope of board agendas the qualty of both
internal and external support to the board including information
presented at meetings and updates on major developments
between meetings and the hoard s strategic oversight
Opmnions were also sought on the appropnateness of the

board s nisk appetite and approach to risk management and

on succession planning and human rescurce management

The surveys that informed Lintstock s subsequent report

ta the board for discussion at its December 2014 meeting,
were distributed prior to the completion of the acquisition

of Foster Wheeler In summary the results were very positive
and demonstrated improvement against the outcomes of the
2013 evaluation process The averall role played by the board in
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler was very highly rated as was
its oversight of the ongoing post acquisition integration process
In line with the outcomes of the 2013 review process areas for
improvement were again relatively minor and will be addressed
as the board focuses on the integration of Foster Wheeler and
achievement of cost and revenue synergies

» although there was a high degree of consensus as to the top
strategic issues facing the company over the next three to five
years it was agreed that ensuring greater involvement and
time spent focusing on strategy and risk and assisting with
the determination of the strategic direction of the company
needed to remain a key area of focus

» the introduction of the new organisational structure following
the acquisition intended to address the appropriateness
of the structure of the company at senior levels will be
supplemented by greater priontisation of succession planning
for the executive directors and key management positions
below board level and as well increasing the board s exposure
to top management to improve their ability to evaluate their
capabilities and

» whilst the composition of the board was rated highly, and has
subsequently been enthanced by the addition of Stephanie
Newby and Kent Masters key changes were identified that
should be made to the profile of the board over the next three
to five years to match the company’s strategic goals including
increased o1l and gas experience
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In addition and as required by the Code, during the year

the Seruor Independent Director, having taken the views

of the non-executive and the executive directors reviewed

the performance of the Chairman The Senior Independent
Director met with the Chairman in December 2014 to review his
performance during 2014 The Chief Executive conducts annual
performance development reviews with his direct reports

In 2015 the performance evaluation review will again be
externally facilitated and will include in depth face to face
interviews with each member of the board

Information and support

The Company Secretary is fundamental in ensuring the
efficiency and effectiveness of the board and is responsible for
ensuring that the directars have timely access to full accurate
and relevant information Agendas and supporting papers for
board and committee meetings are circulated approximately
one week prior to the meeting date to allow sufficient time for
review and enable informed debate and challenge at meetings
Manthly interim reports are prepared including a report from
the Chief Executive and these are circulated to the board if

a meeting 1s not scheduled in the month

Where the directors, particularly non-executive directors

require further insight on an 1ssue the Company Secretary will
facilitate this from the business or relevant members of the
senior management team Members of senior management are
regularly invited to attend board meetings to present on specific
projects and issues The Company Secretary ensures that the
correct board procedures are followed and that the board Is
informed on legislative, regulatory and governance matters
related to its operation

In addition to the adwice and services of the Company
Secretary, a formal process exists for the directors to

obtain independent professional advice at the company's
expense where appropriate and necessary to discharge their
responsibilities The Company Secretary 1s responsible for
the orgamsation and co-ordination of access to such advice
The Company Secretary 1s also accountable for ensuring that
an accurate record s taken of all meetings of the board and
its committees If a director had a concern about the running
of the company or a proposed action that could not be
resolved this would be recorded in the minutes In addition,
upon resignation should a director have any such outstanding
concerns, they would be invited to prowvide the Chairman

with a written statement for circulation to the board No such
statements were received during 2014 The appointment

and removal of the Company Secretary I1s one of the matters
reserved for the board

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Accountability

Internal control

The board 1s responsible for reviewing Amec Foster Wheeler's
systems of internal control Reviews cover the effectiveness
and adequacy of financial operational, compliance and risk
management systems and are undertaken regularly These
systems can however only provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of faiture to achieve
business objectives

The board and its committees have an ongoing process that 1s
reviewed regularly by the board and accords with the Turnbuill
guidance for identifying evaluating and managing significant
risks faced by Amec Foster Wheeler including strategy

major projects to be undertaken, significant acquisitions and
disposals as well as entry into and exit from different markets
The acquisition of Foster Wheeler was cormpleted in the fourth
quarter of 2014 and we are currently reviewing the control
framework and integrating the risk and control systems with
those of the wider group Where appropnate, business decisions
are reached following a structured and documented review

of potential cpportunities and threats taking steps designed
to manage or mitigate any risk exposure

The threats and opportumties associated with tender
submissions are reviewed by commercial review beards at
various levels in the group 1n line with delegated authonities
The highest value tenders are inaddition reviewed by the
tender review commiitee Amec Foster Wheeler applies a set

of contracting principles under which the level of approval
required 1s dependent on the contractual provision in guestion
The most signihicant 1ssues in terms of risk require the approval
of the relevant business unit lead and the Group Commercial
Director

The internal control processes are complemented by an annual
control self-assessment exercise carried out by the principal
businesses This covers health, safety and environment legal
commercial and contractual financial information technology
and human resources The results are reviewed by the board,
through the audit committee as part of the ongoing internal
contro! monitoring process

Amec Foster Wheeler has interests in a number of joint
arrangements where controls may not be reviewed as part
of the group's formal corporate governance process because
of the joint management responsibidities Responsibility for
such reviews rests with the joint venture and joint operations
boards and these are reviewed from time to time as part of
Amec Foster Wheeler s normal internal audit process

Details of significant joint arrangements can be found on
page 191

Details of the Group’s risk management process including
reporting and monitoring, and roles and respansibilities can
be found on page 20
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Accountability continued

The Company s group internal audit function, established by
authority of the board has its responsibilities defined by the
audit committee The head of the function is accountable to
the Chief Executive and the audit committee, however on

a day-to-day basis accountability is exercised by the Chief
Financial Officer

We have carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
(as such term 1s defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under
the Exchange Act) under the supervision and the participation
of the Group Leadership Team, which 1s responsible for the
management of the internal contrels, and which includes

the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer There are
inherent irmitations to the effectiveness of any system of
disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of
human error and the circumvention or overniding of the controls
and procedures Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls
and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of
achieving their control objectives Based upon our evaluation
as at 31 December 2014, the Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that the disclosure controls and
procedures {1} were effective at a reasonable level of assurance
as of the end of the period covered by this annual report in
ensuring that information required to be recorded processed
summarised and reported in the reports that are filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act, 1s recorded, processed
surmmansed and reported within the time periods specified in
the SEC's rules and forms and (u) were effective at a reasonable
level of assurance as of the end of the period covered by this
annual report in ensuring that information to be disclosed In
the reports that are filed or subrmtted under the Exchange Act
Is accumulated and communicated to the management of the
Company, including the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial
Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

This annual report does not include a report of management s
assessment regarding internal controi over financial reporting
or an attestation report of the Company's registered public
accounting firm due to a transition period estabhshed by rules
of the SEC for newly public comparies

Changes In Internal control over financial reporting

During the period covered by this annual report we have

not made any changes to our internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likety
to materially affect, our internal contrel over financial reporting
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Engagement

Relations with shareholders

The executive directors undertake an extensive programme
of meetings with institutional shareholders during each year
Events such as results presentations and other capital market
events are available on our website for those unable to attend
N persen

Each year the Charrman and Senior Independent Director offar
to meet with all major shareholders Since the publication of the
previous annual report, six such meetings have taken place

The Chairman attends full-year results presentations

Ad-hoc requests from shareholders for meetings with members
of the board are facilitated by the investor relations team

The board also receives unedited feedback reports following
shareholder meetings and all matenal brokers research notes,
together with a report at each meeting showing the company's
standing/benchmark within its peer group

The company has previously appointed an independent
consultant to collate the views of shareholders and produce an
annual perception report This report was last presented to the
board n February 2013 and 1t 1s expected that a new report will
be commussioned during 2015

Information regarding our forthcoming AGM can be found
on page 85

. ______________________________ |
Find out more online

We publish our results and presentations ¢n our Investor website at

amecfw com/investors
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Directors’ report

Our directors present their annual

report and the audited accounts of
Amec Foster Wheeler plc (the Company)
and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the Group) for the year ended

31 December 2014

Achievements in 2014 and priorities for 2015

Disclosures relating to particulars of mportant events affecting
the Group which have occured since the last financial year and
an indication of likely future developments in the business of
the Group can be found n the strategic report on pages 1 to 41

Change of name

0On 13 November 2014 following the acquisition of Foster
Wheeler AG the company changed its name to Amec Foster
Wheeler plc The names of certain of the Group s matenal
subsidiaries are also in the process of being changed to
reflect the acquisition

Dividends

The directers are recommending a final ordinary dividend

in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of 28 5 pence
per share This final dividend will be payable on 2 July 2015

to shareholders on the register at the close of business on

29 May 2015 Anintenm dividend for the year ended

31 December 2014 of 14 8 pence per share was paid on

5 January 2015 Further information on the payment of
dwidends to shareholders and the holders of American
Depasitary Shares (ADSs) can be found on pages 177 to 178

Dividends paid during 2014 compnised an interim dividend of
13 5 pence per share and a final dividend of 28 5 pence per
share, both in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013

Changes to the board of directors

Details of the directars of the company as at the date of this
report together with brief biographical details and board
committee memberships, are set out on page 45 to 47

Changes to the board since 1 January 2014
]

Tim Faithfull Non-executive Retired
director 3Apni 2014
Stephanie Newby  Non-executive Appointed
director 13 November 2014
Kent Masters Non-executive Appointed
director 13 February 2015

In addition, Simon Thompson wilt step down as a director at the
conclusion of the 2015 AGM

Directors’ indemnity arrangements

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ hability
insurance cover In additton, throughout the financial year
and at the date of this report, quahfying third party indemnity
provisicns within the meaming of Sections 232~234 of the
Companies Act 2006 were In place for all of the directors
and the Company Secretary

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Directors’ interests

None of the directors s, or was matenially interested in any
contract of significance to Amec Foster Wheeler’s businesses
during or at the end of the financial year Details of directors
share interests and of their nights to subscribe for shares are
shown in the remuneration report on page 72

Corporate governance statement

The company's statement on corporate governance is set
out on pages 44 to 85 and 15 corporated into this report
by reference

Share capital

The primary market for Amec Foster Wheeler s ordinary shares
1$ the London Stack Exchange where we have a premium
hsting and our shares are admitted to the main market Since
the completion of the offer for Foster Wheeler, the company’s
securities have also been traded on the New York Stock
Exchange in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADS)
Further information on the company's ADS programme can

be found on pages 177 to 178

The 1ssued share capital of the company as at 31 December
2014 and movermnents during the year are set out in note 22 on
pages 144 to 146 The rights and obligations attaching to the
shares are set out in full in the articles of association of the
company and are described on pages 180 to 182 In summary
each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings

of the company and no right to a fixed iIncome There are no
restrictions on voting nghts

Authority was granted to the directors at the 2014 AGM to allot
shares or grant nghts to subscribe for or to convert any secunty
to shares up to a nonunal amount of £49 181,027 (Section 551
amount) of which up to £7451 671 could be allotted for cash
other than in connection with a pre-emptive offer {(Section 561
amount) To allow the directors to allot shares to Foster Wheeler
shareholders in connection with the acquisition without
prejudice to the existing authority conferred on the directors
and approved at the 2014 AGM this authonty was increased at
the General Meeting held on 23 Octeber 2014 by 2 maximum
nominat value of £45,458 521 50, such authority to expire on

31 December 2015 In anticipation that the offer for Foster
Wheeler would become effective and the 1ssued share capital
of the company would increase as a result of the 1ssue of new
shares to Foster Wheeler shareholders the authority conferred
on the directors at the 2014 AGM was also renewed at the
General Meeting without prejudice to the authonty conferred
In respect of the new shares to be 1ssued in connection with the
offer up to an aggregate nominal amount of £59 228 684 50 of
which up to £8,974.043 could be allotted for cash other than in
connection with a pre-emptive offer, such authority to expire at
the end of the AGM in 2015 or 1 June 2015 whichever i1s earlier

In connection with the acquisition of Foster Wheeler

85,052 989 shares were 1ssued to Foster Wheeler shareholders
on 24 November 2014 as partial consideration for the
acquisition of thewr Foster Wheeler shares Pursuant to the
Squeeze-Out Merger imtiated on 8 December 2014 to acquire
the remaining outstanding 1ssued and to be issued Foster
Wheeler voting rights, a further 4 255 970 shares were 1ssued
to Foster Wheeler shareholders on 19 January 2015
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Directors’ report continued

Resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to
extend this authority to the end of the AGM 1n 2016 or 1 June
2016, whichever I1s earlier The revised Section 551 amount
will be £64 158 715 and the revised Section 561 amount will
be £9 721,017 The directors have no present intention of
1ssumng any shares other than in respect of the exercise of
share options No issue will be made that will effectively alter
the control of the company without the pnor approval of
shareholders at a General Meeting

Since the completion of the £400m share buyback programme
in February 2013, the company has not made any purchases

of its shares in the market At the 2014 AGM authonity was
granted to the directors to make market purchases of up to

29 806 683 of the company's shares In anticipation that the
offer for Foster Wheeler would become effective and the 1ssued
share capital of the company would increase as a result of

the 1ssue of new shares to Foster Wheeler shareholders, this
authority was renewed at the General Meeting in October 2014
allowing the purchase of up to 35,896,172 of the company's
shares in the market This further authorty will expire at the
end of the 2015 AGM or 1 June 2015, whichever is earlier

A resolution will be proposed at the 2015 AGM to extend the
authority of the directors to make market purchases of up to
10% of the company's shares withuin prescribed limits

Major interests in shares

On the basis of notifications received under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR 5) and other notifications received
by Amec Foster Wheeler plc from shareholders, shareholdings
of 3% or more of the voting rights of the company as at

31 December 2014 were as follows

________________________________________________________________]
MNumber 9%

Meondrian Investment Partners Limited 20 253 855 528
BlackRock, Inc 14946 032 501

The shareholding percentages reflect the 1ssued share capital
at the time of the notifications On 23 March 2015, pursuant to
DTR 5 BlackRock Inc notified the company of therr interest In
21,904 416 shares, representing 5 63% of the voting nights of
the company There were no other notifications received under
DTR 5 between 31 December 2014 and 25 March 2015

There are no shareholdings that carry special nghts relating
to control of the company

Financial instruments

Disclosures relating to the group’s use of financial instruments
can be found in note 19 on pages 134 to 139 and are
incorporated into this report by reference

Significant arrangements — change of control

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithng the counterparties to exercise termmnation or other
rights in the event of a change of control of the company

Under each of the £377m five year multi-currency revolving
credit facility agreement dated 18 July 2012 (as amended from
time to time) between, amongst others, the company and The
Royal Bank of Scotland plc (as facility agent) and the $2,260m
facilities agreement dated 13 February 2014 (as amended

and re-stated from time to time), between amongst others,
the company and Bank of America Merriil Lynch International
Lirmited {as facility agent) the company must promptly nohfy
each facility agent if it becomes aware of any change of control

Following such notice the lenders under the relevant agreement
are required to negotiate with the company for a period of

30 days with a view to agreeing terms and conditions
acceptable to the company and all the relevant lenders for
continuing the relevant facilities If agreement 1s not reached
by the relevant parties before the end of the 30-day period,

if a lender so requires, the relevant facility agent must by
notice of not less than 30 days to the company cancel the
commitments of that lender under the relevant agreement
and declare the participations of that lender in all outstanding
loans under that agreement together with accrued interest
and all other amounts accrued under that agreement to be
immediately due and payable

A change of control accurs if any person or group of persons
acting in concert gains control of the company

Depending on the nature of the transaction entittements !
under the company's share plans may be triggered by a

change of control Further detail can be found in the directors’ |
remuneration report

Employees

Cur employees embody our knowledge brand and reputation
and it 1s through their activities day by day that we deliver

on our business objectives and commitments to shareholders,
clients and the wider community Information on employee
development and training, how we engage with our employees
to ensure they understand the direction in which the company
15 going and are commutted to Amec Foster Wheeler's values
the actions taken to share knowledge with our employees and
keep theminformed of developments how we assess and

act on employee opinion and encourage involvement in the
company's performance and our commitment to cultural
diversity and equal opportunities can be found on page 16 and
Is Incorporated in this report by reference As ¢an be seen inour
Code of Business Conduct Amec Foster Wheeler 1s comrmutted
to providing a workplace which offers equal opportunity for
promotion and advancement As part of the integration of the
two AMEC and Foster Wheeler businesses, a revised Code of
Business Conduct 1s being produced that will meet the needs
of the wider Group
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As part of the company s equal opportunities policy precedures
are In place that are designed to provide for full and fair
consideration and selection of disabled apphcants toensure
they are properly trained to perform safely and effectively and
to provide career opporturities that allow them to fulfil themr
potential Where an employee becomes disabled in the course
of their employment, Amec Foster Wheeter will actively seek

to retain them wherever possible by making adjustments

to therr work content and environment or by retraining them

to undertake new roles

Sustainability

Summary details about cur commitment to sustainability

and its importance to our day-to-day actmties are set out
specifically on page 24 and in general throughout our strategic
report Further detail 1s availlable in our sustainabibty report
and on cur website

Greenhouse gas emissions

Disclosures relating to the group s greenhouse gas emissions,
as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006
(strategic report and directors' report) Regulations 2013

can be found in the strategic report on page 24

Political donations

Dunng 2014 Amec Foster Wheeler made no political donations
in the UK or European Union, including donations as defined for
the purposes of the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums
Act 2000

Amec Foster Wheeler Americas Limited {formerly AMEC
Americas Limited) a subsidiary of the company in Canada,
made contributions to non-EU political parties in Canada
totalling C$1 810 (£995)

Going concern

The directors having made enquirtes, consider that the group
has adequate resources to operate for the foreseeable future
and therefore, it 1s appropriate to cantinue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the accounts Further details of this
review can be found on page 39

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the AGM for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of the company

Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of thus
directors’ report confirm that so far as they are each aware
there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's
auditor s unaware and the directors have taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as directors to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit infformation and to establish that
the company s auditor 15 aware of that information

The above statement 1s made in accordance with Section 418
of the Companies Act 2006

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Responsibility statements

The statement of directors responsibiities including the farr,
balanced and understandable statement, in respect of the
annual report and accounts can be found on page 86

The statement by the Company s auditor relating to their
reporting responsibilities can be found on pages 93 and 94

Annual general meeting

This year s AGM will be held at Glaziers Hall 9 Montague Close
London Bridge, London SE1 8DD on 14 May 2015 at 11 O0am
The notice of meeting which includes explanatory notes on the
business to be transacted at the meeting, accompanies this
report and i1s also avallable on our website

Separate resolutions will be proposed at the AGM to receive
the annual report and accounts, to declare a final dwidend,
to approve the remuneration report and remuneration policy
to re-elect all of the current directors who will retire in
accordance with the provisions of the Code, to re-elect

Ernst & Young LLP as auditor and to authorise the directors
to fix the auditor’s remuneration

Shareholders will also be asked to renew both the general
authority of the directors tc allot shares in the company

and to allot such shares without the apphcation of statutory
pre-emption rights In addition, shareholders will be requested
to authorise the company to make market purchases of its own
shares within prescribed lirmits and approve the resolution,

to be repeated at each AGM going forward to authorise the
calling of general meetings other than annual general meetings,
on 14 clear days notice This year shareholders will be asked to
approve updated UK and International Sharesave Scheme rules
together with the rules for a new LTIP (Amec Foster Wheeler ple
Long Term Incentive Plan 2015)

The board views the AGM as an opporturity to directly
communicate the group s progress and engage with
shareholders Where possible, the entire board will attend the
AGM and will be available to answer questions from those
shareholders present The board encourages all shareholders
to attend and participate where possible

On behaif of the board

Alison Yapp
General Counsel and Company Secretary
26 March 2015

Find out more online
Vigit gur website at amecfw com/investers for further information regarding
this year s AGM
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Responsibility statements of the directors

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect

of the annual report and the accounts

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report
and the consolidated and parent company accounts in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare consohdated
and parent company accounts for each financial year Under
that law the directors are required to prepare the consolidated
accounts Iin accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company
accounts in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under Company law the directors must not approve the
consohdated and parent company accounts unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for
that period

In preparing each of the consalidated and parent company
accounts the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent

» for the consolidated accounts state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

» for the parent company accounts state whether applcable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the parent
company accounts and

» prepare the consolidated and parent company accounts on
the going concern basis unless it Is inappropriate to presume
that the consolidated and the parent company will continue
n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the parent company and
enable them to ensure that its accounts comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
otherirregularities

Under apphcable law and regulations, the directors are also
responsible for preparing a strategic report directors report
directors’ remuneration report and corporate governance
statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on

the company's website Legislation in the UK governing

the preparation and dissermnation of consolidated and parent
company accounts may differ from legislation in

other jurisdictions
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Responsibility statement of the directors in respect
of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

» the accounts prepared in accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities financial position and profit or loss of the company
and the undertakings included in the consoldation taken as a
whole and

» the strategic report and directors report includes a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the 1ssuer and undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole together with a description
of the principal rsks and uncertainties that they face

In addition, we confirm that the annual report and accounts
taken as a whole 15 fair balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the positton and performance strategy and business model

of the company

Signed on behalf of the board

Samir Brikho
Chief Executive

lan McHoul
Cheef Financial Officer
26 March 2015
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Independent auditors' report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler plc
Registered number 1675285

Opinion on financlal statements
In our opimion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and of the Parent Company's affarrs as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
We have audited the financial staterments of Amec Foster Wheeler ple for the year ended 31 December 2014 which comprise

Group Parent Company
Consolidated income statement Company balance sheet
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income Related notes 1to 10

Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated statement of changes inequity
Consolidated cash flow statement

Related notes 1 to 27

As explained in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements the Group has apphed International Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRS") as adopted by the European Union The financial reperting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
Parent Company financial statements 1s applicable law and Urited Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

Overview
|
Materiality » Overall Group matenahty of £14m which represents
5% of adjusted profit before tax
Audit scope » We performed an audit of the complete financial information
of 6 components and audit procedures on specific balances
for a further 36 components
» The 42 reporting components where we performed full and
specific scope audit procedures accounted for 92% of Group
revenue and 90% of the Group's profit before tax
» We performed imited scope audit procedures on 18 further
components
» We performed additional procedures to address any residual
rsk at non-specific scope locations
Areas of focus » Revenue recogmtion on contracts

» Adequacy of contract related provisions

» Purchase price allocation on Foster Wheeler acquisition
» Goodwill mpairment

» Tax planning and deferred tax asset recognition

» Adequacy of legacy liabihities

» Presentation of exceptional items

» Risk of fraud and management override

Our application of materiality

We determined matenality for the Group to be £14m (2013 £15m) whichs calculated as 5% of adjusted profit before tax, key
elements of which are outlined below We believe that this adjusted profit measure provides us with a consistent year on year basis
for determining materiality and 1s the most relevant performance measure to the stakeholders of the entity

This page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler plc continued

How we determined matenality:
]

Starting basis Profit before tax £155m

Adjustments Exceptional items
» Transaction integration and other exceptional costs of £82m
» Loss on business disposals and closures of £16m
Asbestos related costs of £9m
Tax on results of joint ventures of £6m

Materiality Take 5% of the adjusted profit before tax

Audrit procedures have been performed on matenial exceptional items The adjusted profit before tax provides a basis for identifying
and assessing the nsk of material misstatement and determiring the nature tirming and extent of further audit procedures

On the basis of our risk assessments together with our assessment of the Group's overall control envircnment and other qualitative
considerations, our judgement was that overall performance matenality (1 ¢ our tolerance for misstatement in an individual
account or balance) for the Group should be 50% (2013 75%) of planning matenalty, namely £7m (2013 £11m) Our objective In
adopting this approach was to reduce to an appropriate level the probability that the aggregate of total undetected and uncorrected
misstatements for the accounts as a whole did not exceed our planming matenality Due to the Foster Wheeler acquisition, Amec
Foster Wheeler ple1s now a dual hsted entity in the UK and US for the first time and there 1s therefore a change in the overall nisk
profile from the prior year which (s reflected in the lower performance materiality

Audit work at individual components 1s undertaken based on a percentage of our total performance materiality The performance
materiality set for each component 1s based on the relative size of the component and our view of the risk of misstatement at that
component in the current year the range of performance materabty allocated to components was £1m to £7m The upper end

of the range was allocated to those components which reflected 100% of a single line tem within the consclidated balance sheet

or the related notes

We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to the commuttee all audit differences in excess of £0 5m (2013 £0 5m)
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstaterments against both the quantitative measures of matenalty discussed above and in the
hght of other relevant qualitative considerations

Scope of our audit

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes

an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition we read all the financial and non-financia!l information in the annual report to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently matenally
incorrect based on or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Following our assessment of the risk of matenal misstatement to the Group financial statements, we selected 60 components
which represent the principal business units within the Group s five reportable segments 6 of these components were subject
to a fultaudit 36 were subject to a specific scope audit and 18 were subject to a imited scope audit The extent of audit work
on specific and hmited scope audits was based on our assessment of the risks of material misstatement outlined below and the
matenalty of the location’s business cperations relative to the Group The audit procedures at specific scope components may
not include testing of all significant accounts of the location but accounts subject to audit procedure contribute to the coverage
of significant accounts tested for the Group The group audit team directs the component teams at all stages of the audit Full
and specific component testing of significant risks focused on revenue recognition on contracts, adequacy of contract related
provisions tax litigation and purchase price allocation

This page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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For the remaining components we performed other procedures to test or assess that there were no sigrificant risks of matenial
misstatement in these components in relation to the Group financial statements The components subject to full audit or specific
scope audit procedures accounted for 92% of Group revenue and 90% of the Group's profit before tax For components that
comprise a sub consolidation further scoping has been performed This means that not all balances within certain full scope
components have been audited The group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been designed
to ensure that the Senior Statutory Auditor or his designate visits each full scope location at least once every two years on a
rotational basis The group audit team visited 5 components in total over the course of the current year audit including Amec
Foster Wheseler head office in London UK Foster Wheeler head office in Reading, UK, Amec Foster Wheeler in Knutsford UK
Foster Wheeler in New Jersey, USA Amec Europe in Aberdeen UK and Amec Americas in Toronto Canada The group audit team
were responsible for auditing 29 components directly, including 1 full scope, 16 specific scope and 12 imited scope audits For all
full scope entities the group audit team has reviewed key working papers and challenged conclustons on significant risk areas
relevant to each component as identified at the scoping stage, primarily revenue recogmtion on contracts adequacy of contract
related provisions and the purchase price allocation on the Foster Wheeler acquisttion

Cur assessment of risks of material misstatement

We consider that the following areas present the greatest risk of material misstatement in the financial statements and
consequently have had the greatest impact on our audit strategy the allocation of resources and the efforts of the engagement
team, inciuding the mare senior members of the team

- ________________________________________________________________________________]

Principal risk area and ratignale flesponse

Revenue recognition on contracts & adequacy of contract related provisions

Amec Foster Wheeler has reimbursable cost lump sum We performed audit procedures on the controls in place
and target cost contracts The majority of contracts are to assess the appropniate deterrmination of the percentage
reimbursable however the acquisition of Foster Wheeler has completion of each significant fixed price contract

increased the exposure of the enlarged Group to fixed price

contracts and the risks associated with these contracts We challenged management In respect of the reasonableness

of judgements made regarding the cost to complete

Contract accounting and the associated judgements over estimate, the timing of recognition of variation orders and
revenue and costs 1s highlighted as a key estimate in Amec the appropnateness of assumptions made in calculating
Foster Wheeler s accounting policies warranty provisions

Risks include Whilst revenue recognised on Foster Wheeler contracts was

not matenal to the Group in 2014 we focussed our audit
testing on the recoverabiity of unbilled receivable balances
and adequacy of cost contingencies within contracts

» Inappropriate percentage of completion accounting,
» Incorrect recognition of vanation orders,

» inappropriate end life forecast costs estimated profit and We challenged management s assessments around the
contingencies potential for iquidated damages for projects behind schedule

and the adequacy of contingency provisions to mitigate

contract specific risks For those balances subject to clams

» warranty accounting based upon inaccurate data and we made enquires of external and internal legal counsel
assumptions

» Inaccurate recognition of costs and

We consider these to be the key judgemental areas driving
Contract related provisions comprise disputes with customers,  the recognition of revenue and margms in respect of long
application of the Group s aged WIP policy recoverability of term contracts We also assessed whether management's
receivables and other contractual disputes policies and processes for making these estimates continue
Risks include to be appropnate and are applied consistently to ail contracts

of a similar nature
» unrecorded habilities for contractual disputes, and

» mis-application of Group’s accounting policies

This page does not form part of Amec Foster Wheeler $ annual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler plc continued

Principal nisk area and rationale

Response

Preliminary purchase price allocation on Foster Wheeler acquisition

0On 13 November 2014, the Group acquired Foster Wheeler AG
for £1 9bn The acquisition accounting includes the need to
determine the fair value of the acquired assets and habilities
at the acquisthion date This included complex valuation
considerations and required the use of specialists

Risks include

» Inappropriate judgements in determimng the fair values for
the assets acquired,

» use of inaccurate forecast financial and operational data that
underpins valuations

» costs are provided before there 1s an obligation and

» accounting policy differences on the Foster Wheeler
acquisition are not identified

We focused on this area given the significant judgements
involved In assessing the preliminary fair values of assets
and labilities acquired for the purposes of the 2014 Group
financial statements The fair values are based on valuation
techniques built, in part on assumptions around the future
performance of the business We challenged the assumptions
underpinmng the valuations, assessed the fair value of the
identified assets and labihties audited the accounting
differences upon alignment of policy and IFRS conversion
and evaluated the adequacy of the disclesures in the Group s
financral statements

The two most significant adjustrments recognised were for
acquired intangible assets (£738m) and asbestos liabilities
(£347m)

» With involvement of EY valuation specialists, we challenged
and evaluated management s valuation of acquired
intangible assets as prepared by their advisers This
included challenge of the key assumptions made by
management, such as the discount rates and royalty rates
applied and the projected financial information We have
re-performed certain aspects of the valuation We consider
that the preliminary valuation for the total intangibles
recognised on acquisition falls within a reasonable range

» The Company utihsed a third party actuarial firm to
estimate the farr value of the asbestos-related lability
Significant inputs into the hability estimate include number
of open claims estimated cost per claim and forecasted
future claim levels In addition, there are assumptions
including the discount rate and risk free rate within the
actuarial analysis to determine the fair value of the hability
We tested the accuracy of a sample of claims data to
source documentation and verified the completeness and
accuracy of the data utilized in the valuation to the claims
database We also engaged EY actuanal specialists to
assess the appropriateness of the methodology followed
and to evaluate the sigmificant assumptions utilised in the
valuation We also considered alternative assumptions to
challenge the sensitivities and uncertainties relating to
the habilities

We challenged the recognition and measurement of other
adjustments recogmsed including legal and environmental
provisions and unfavourable lease obligations for

which further EY specialists assistance was obtained
where necessary

This page does net form part of Amec Foster Wheeler s annual report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC
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Princtpal risk area and rationale

Respanse

Goodwiil impairment

The Group has £2 390m goodwill at the year end This has
increased by £1 633m from 2013 fargely as a result of the
Foster Wheeler acquisition Irrespective of whether there 1s
any indication of impairment, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is required to be tested for impairment annually
Animpairment arises when the recoverable amount 1s less
than the carrying value of the investment

Risks include

» the incorrect determination of the cash generating units used
to assess goodwill for mpairment,

» the Incorrect allocation of goodwill to cash generating units

» inaccurate models are used to calculate the Value in Use of
cash generating units and

» the assumptions to support goodwill values (e g discount
rates and growth rates) are inappropriate

We chaltenged the allocation of goodwill anising on acquisition
to cash generating units

We reviewed the vatuations prepared by management and
supporting third party evidence We have performed audit
procedures on the integrity of models and appropriateness of
cash generating units

We challenged the assumptions used in respect of forecast
growth rates and involved EY valuation specialists to review
the appropnateness of the discount rates used which
included comparison to economic and industry forecasts
where appropriate

We have compared the forecasts used in generating the
value 1n use to current trading conditions, and challenged
management on the assumptions underpinming the forecasts

We applied prefessional scepticism when reviewing the
forecasts by stress testing key assumptions, assessing the
impact on the sensitivity analysis and understanding the
degree to which assumptions would need to move before
impairment would be triggered

Tax planning and reserves

The Group enters into tax planning strategies to reduce its

tax exposure where tax laws permit In particular there are
financing structures in Canada, the US and Austrahia that
reduce the overall tax rate of the Group Risk provisions are

held where it 1s more likely than not that a hability will crystallise
in refation to planning, a tax position taken in retation to
submitted returns ar a tax audit The amount of provision and
whether it is more likely than not that 1t will crystallise are both
judgemental areas

Given the volume and complexity of the intra-group
transactions including management recharges, transfer pricing
1s an area of complexity and judgement, and Is closely managed
Certain provisions recorded to reflect areas of uncertainty

Risks include

» significant jJudgements involved In determining the provision
for tax habilities ¢an result in misstatement of provisions, and

» there are a range of possibie transfer prices therefore there
15 a risk of challenge by the tax authorities particularly with
the increased focus on tax and multinational businesses

We challenged and appled professional scepticism to tax
exposures estimated by management and the risk analysis
associated with these exposures along with claims or
assessments made by tax authonties to date We have
audited the components of the tax nsk provision to ensure
they reflect the tax risks inthe business and that the
provisions are appropriate in the circumstances We have also
reviewed documentation in relation to tax audits to ensure
that any exposures the tax authorities are raising have been
considered and provided for where necessary

We have reviewed the significant transfer pricing policies
applied by the Group and the support for them We have
challenged these where appropriate with involvement of
our own specialists, and ensured that the tax nsk provision
includes appropriate provisions for such risks
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler plc continued

Principal nisk area and rationale

Response

Deferred tax asset recognition

There are significant deferred tax assets inthe US Canada

and Austraha the recognition of which depends on the future
profit forecasts for those businesses As the forecasts, and what
period can reliably be forecasted are inherently judgemental
this 15 an area we focus on

Risks include

» significant jJudgements involved In determining the recogmition
of deferred tax can result in misstaterment of deferred tax
assets and labilities, and therefore the groups tax charge and
effective tax rate

We challenged and applied professional scepticism to
management s rationale for their reassessment of forecast
models considered the appropriateness of management's
assumptions and the consistency of approach across the
various tax groups in relation to the hkelihood of generating
suitable future profits to support the recognition of deferred
tax assets

We evaluated the historical accuracy of farecasting taxable
profits and the integrity of the forecast models and, as a
result of these procedures we formed our own view on

the Group's capacity to obtain effective relief for deferred
tax assets

In particular we assessed the consistency between the
different countries regarding the recognition of deferred
taxes and that a consistent methodology was applied
by the Foster Wheeler entities

Adequacy of legacy liabilities

Risk remains with divested businesses in respect of claims or
potential clams Determmining the impact and likely outcome of
any htigation matters requires significant judgement Therefore
estimating itigation reserves and contingent liabiities can
mvolve highly judgemental estimates

Risks include

» the judgements involved in determiming the likely outcome
of legal cases or investigations results in a nsk those legal
provisions may be incorrect and

» failure to provide on a timely basis for claims due tolack of
understanding or awareness of the claim

We challenged and applied professional scepticism

to judgements and accounting treatments made by
management arising from contractual disputes and other
nsks We performed audit procedures on supporting
calculations and assumptions to challenge whether these are
appropriate in the circumstances and in hine with the Group s
accounting policies as well as the requirements of IFRS

Where appropriate we have held discussions with
management's legai experts and also obtained and
considered legal letters and other supporting documentation

Presentation of exceptional items

Amec Foster Wheeler consider the separate reporting of
exceptional costs helps to provide a better indication of the
group's underlying business performance where items are
matenal by size or nature

Continuing pre-tax exceptional costs recorded in the current
year are £107m (2013 £25m)

Risks include
» inappropnate classification of costs as exceptional items,

» inconsistent treatrment of exceptional items from year to year
and

» inappropriate quantification of exceptional costs

We have tested a sample of costs classed as exceptional to
assess whether the cost has been recorded in the appropriate
period We have also challenged whether the items are
recarded in ine with the Group s policy for exceptional tems
and are excluded from trading profit appropriately

In parhicular we have reviewed and challenged the
appropnateness of the workings and rationale supporting the
inclusion of internal labour within acquisition and integration
costs as well as restructuring costs

We have applied specific consideration to the level of
transparency of the disclosures and that the policy has been
consistently applied year on year
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Principal nsk area and rationale

Response

Risk of fraud and management override

The nisk of fraud exists in any business However, fraud involving Procedures included analytical procedures and journal

the manipulation of results to achieve performance targets
are particularly harmful to shareholder value and the current
econormic environment has increased their risk of occurrence

Furthermore, the evolution of the business and geographical
footprint across new territores heightens the risk of fraud and
bribery and corruption Business practice in emerging markets
may expose Amec Foster Wheeler to financial, legal and
reputational nsk

Risks include
» manipulation of results to achieve performance targets

» asset mus-appropnation particularly involving thwrd party
suppliers who may overbill for goods or services and

» faciitation payments

entry testing in order to identify and address the risk of
management override of controls We designed testing
procedures and thresholds for all balances in such a way
as to ensure that the risk of fraud and error 1s mitigated

We have reviewed group internal audit reports in remote
locations and assessed whether findings are indicative of
fraudulent actiwities, tarloring our audit approach accordingly

We have reviewed key management bonus and long term
mecentive plans and challenged assumptions used in the
calculations

We challenged and corroborated the basis of management s
key estimates

We constdered Transparency International s Corruption
Perception Index 2013 when performing our scoping exercise
Components with significant operations in countries which
are high on the Index have been included in our In scope
components

Opimon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

» the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act

2006 and

» the Information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financiat statements

are prepared I1s consistent with the financial statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilittes Statement set out on page 86, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility is to
audit and express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report I1s made solely to the company s members as a body 1in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company s members as a body for our audit work for this report, or for

the opinions we have formed
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Amec Foster Wheeler plc continued

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you i, in our opimion, information in the annual report 15
» materially inconsistent with the information 1n the audited financial statements, or

» apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course
of performing our audit or

» 1S otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during
the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual report is far balanced and understandable and whether the

annual report appropniately discloses those matters that we commurucated to the audit committee which we consider should
have been disclosed

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if 1n our opinien

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us or

» the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

» we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the directors statement set out on page 85 n relation to going concern, and

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company s compliance with the nine provisions of the U¥
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review

Hywel Ball (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor London

26 March 2015

Notes

1 The maintenance and integrity of the Amec Foster Wheeler Plc web site 1s the responsibility of the directors the work carnied out by the auditors does
not involve consideration of these matters and accordingly the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial
statements since they were iInitially presented on the web site

2 Legislation in the Uruted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Amec Foster Wheeler plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Amec Foster Wheeler plc as of December 31 2014 and 2013
and the related consolidated statements of iIncome comprehensive income changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31 2014 These financial staterents are the responsibility of the Company s management
Qur responsibility 1s to express an opiruon on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement We were not engaged to perferm an audit of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting Qur audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for desigrung audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinton An audrt alse includes exarmiming

on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that
our audits prowide a reasonable basis for our opinion

Inour opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Amec Foster Wheeler plc at December 31 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2014 n accordance with International Financia! Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union and International Financial Reporting Standards as 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board

Ernst & Young LLP
London England

26 March 2015
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013 2012
Before Amartisation,
amartisation exceptional Before  Amortisation Before  Amertisation
excaptional items and amortisation and amortisation and
itemns and asbesios and axceptional and exceptional
ashestos related items exceptional Hems excephional tems
ralated Htems {note 5) Total items (note 5) Tolal ems (note 5) Total
Nate £m Em £m £m £m £m £m im
Continuing operations
Revenue 23 3,993 - 3,993 3974 - 3974 4088 - 4,088
Cost of sales (3.475) -  {(3475) (343D - (3431) (3.556) - (3.556)
Gross profit 518 - 518 543 - 543 532 - 532
Administrative expenses (219) (135) (354) (228) ©5) (293) (221) (68) (289)
Loss on business
disposals and closures - (16} as) - %) o)) - - -
Profit/(loss) before net
financing expense a 299 (151) 148 315 {(72) 243 311 (68) 243
Financial income n - 1 12 - 12 10 - 10
Financial expense (11) (5) (16) 14) - 14) (1) - (11)
Net financing expense 7 - 5) (5) (2) - {2} (1) - (4)]
Share of post-tax results
of joint ventures 213 12 - 12 14 - 14 12 - 12
Profit/(loss) before
income tax 2 mn (156) 155 327 72) 255 322 (68) 254
Income tax (67) 18 (49) (67) (2) (69) (68) 21 47)
Profit/(loss) for the
year from continuing
operations 244 (138) 106 260 (74) 186 254 A7) 207
(Loss)/profit for the
year from discontinued
operations 3 (8) (19) (27) 8) - 8) (3) 5 2
Profit/(loss) for the year 236 (157) 79 252 (74) 178 251 (42) 209
Attributable to
Equity holders of the
parent 82 179 208
Non-controlling interests 3) 4))] i
79 178 209
Basic earmings/(loss)
per share 10
Continuing operations 81.8p 36.1p 890p 63 8p 801p €5 2p
Discontinued operations (2.6)p (8.9)p (27)p @7 (0 8)p O6p
79.2p 27.2p 863p 611p 79 3p 658p
Diluted earnmings/{loss)
per share 16
Continuing operations 79.5p 351p 872p 62 5p 78 6p 64 0p
Discontinued operations {2.5)p (8.6)p (27p 27p (0 8p 06p
TI0p 26.5p 84 5p 53 8p 778p 64.6p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014

201 2013 2012
Note £m Em £m
Profit for the year 79 178 209
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Exchange movements
- Exchange movements on translation of foreign subsidianes 17 (70) (34)
- Net (loss)/gain on hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiaries 19 (4) (1) 1
- Jax on exchange movements - 1 (1}
Cash flow hedges
- Effective portion of changes n fair value 1) 3 3
- Tax on effective portion of changes in fair value - 1) 1)
- Transferred to the income statement - 1 -
12 (67) (32)
tems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 14 (58) 40 37
Tax on actuanal {losses)/gans bi | (20) (24)
“4n 20 13
Other comprehensive income (35) (47) 12
Total comprehensive iIncome 44 131 190
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent a7 133 189
Non-controling interests (3) (2) 1
Total comprehensive Income 44 131 190
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Registered number 1675285

2004 2013

Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 1 157 39
Intangible assets 12 3,319 907
Interests in joint ventures 13 122 52
Dervative financial nstruments 19 2 1
Retirement benefit assets 14 102 102
Cther receivables 20 149 24
Deferred tax assets 15 6l 35
Total non-current assets 3912 1160
Current assets .
Inventories 16 14 3
Trade and other recevables 7 1,506 956 :
Derwvative financial instruments 1 12 5
Current tax receivable 18 10
Bank deposits (more than three months) 23 21 18
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 2 495 232
Total current assets 2,066 1,224
Total assets 5.978 2.384
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 23 (710) (129)
Trade and other payables 18 (1.3381) (801}
Derwative financial instruments 19 (14) 1)
Current tax payable {132) (73)
Total current Labilities (2,237) (1,004)
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and berrowings 23 (609) -
Trade and other payables 20 (83) (€h))]
Dervative financial instruments 19 (5) -
Retirement benefit labilities 1 (188) (62)
Deferred tax liabilities 15 (136) (20)
Provisions 21 (696) (163)
Total non-current habilities (1,717} (256}
Total habilitles (3,954) (1.260)
Net assets 2.024 1124
EQUITY
Share capital 22 194 152
Share premium account 22 978 101
Hedging and translation reserves »n 45 33
Capital redemption reserve 2 34 34
Retained earnings 2 744 802
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,995 1122
Non-controlling interests 29 2
Total equity 2,024 1124

The accounts on pages 96 to 155 were approved by the board of directors on 26 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

Samir Brikho lan McHoul
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Share Share Hedging Translation redercl:'lze:gar: Retained contr;rl?:g Tota!
capital presmum reserve reserve reserve earmngs Total nterests oquity
£m £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2014 152 101 1 32 34 802 1,122 2 1124
Profit for the year - - - - - 82 82 (3) 79
Exchange movements on
translation of foreign subsicharies - - - 17 - - 17 - 17
Net loss on hedges of net
investment in foreign subsidiaries - - - (4) - - {4) - {(4)
Effective portion of changes in farr
value of cash flow hedges -~ - 1) - - - (1) - (1)
Actuanal lesses on defined
benefit pension schemes - - - - - (58) (58) - (58)
Tax on actuarial losses - - - - - 11 1 - nu
Other comprehensive income
for the year - - 1) 13 - 47) (35) - (35)
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (1) 13 - 35 a7 (&) 44
Diwvidends - - - - - (124) (124) - (124)
Equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - 25 25 - 25
Utilisation of treasury shares - - - - - 6 6 - 6
Arnising on business combimations - - - - - - - 30 30
Shares issued 42 877 - - - - 919 - 919
As at 31 December 2014 194 978 - 45 34 744 1,995 29 2,024
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued
For the year ended 31 December 2013

. _________________________________ |
Capital Non

Share Share Hedging Translaton redemption Ratained contmling Total
capial premium reserve reserve raserve earnings Total Interasts equity
£m &m £m Zm £m £m £Em £m £m
As at 1 January 2013 154 101 2) 101 32 693 1079 4 1,083
Profit for the year - - - - - 179 179 (€} 178
Exchange movements on
translation of foreign subsidianes - - - &%) - - {69) (48] (70)
Net loss on hedges of net
investment in foreign subsidiaries - - - (8))] - - (1) - 1)
Tax on exchange movements - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Effective portion of changes in fair
value of cash flow hedges - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Tax on effective portion of
changes n fair value of cash flow
hedges - - (1) - - - (1) - (1)
Cash flow hedges transferred to
the income statement - - 1 - - - 1 - 1
Actuarnial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - 40 40 - 40
Tax on actuarial gains - - - - - (20} (20) - (20)
Other comprehensive income
for the year - - 3 (69) - 20 (48) (1) (47)
Total comprehensive iIncome
for the year - - 3 (69) - 199 133 (2) 131
Dividends - - - - - (108) (108) - (108)
Equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - 14 14 - 14
Tax on equity-settied share-based
payments - - - - - n ()] - {1)
Acquisition of shares by trustees
of the Performance Share Plan - - - - - 2 {2) - {2)
Utilisation of treasury shares - - - - - 7 7 - 7
Acquisition of shares under the
buyback programme (2) - - - 2 - - - -
As at 31 December 2013 152 101 1 32 34 802 1122 2 1124
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Capital Nan
Share Share Hedging Translaton redemption Retained controlling Total
capial prermium resene eserve reserve earnings Total nterests equity
£m Em £m &m im Em £m £m

As at 1 January 2012 165 101 4 135 17 955 1,373 1 1374
Profit for the year - - - - - 208 208 1 209
Exchange movements on
translation of foreign subsidiaries - - - (34) - - (34) - {34)
Net gain on hedges of net
investment in foreign subsidiaries - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Tax on exchange movements - - - (1) - - (8 ) - (1)
Effective portion of changes in fair
value of cash flow hedges - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Tax on effective portion of
changes in fair value of cash flow
hedges - - )] - - - 1) - (1)
Actuanal gains on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax onactuarial gains - - - - - (24) (24) - (24)
Other comprehensive income
for the year - - 2 (34) - 13 (19) - 19)
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 2 (34) - 221 189 1 190
Dividends - - - - - (98) (98) - {98)
Equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - 15 15 - 15
Acquisition of shares by trustees
of the Performance Share Plan - - - - - (6) (6) - (6)
Utilisation of treasury shares - - - - - 9 9 - 9
Acquisition of treasury shares - - - - - (36) (36) - (36)
Acquisitron of shares under the
buyback programme (15) - - - 15 (322) (322) - (322)
Forward share purchase
agreement as at
31 December 2012* - - - - - (45) (45) - (45)
Arising on business combinations - - - - - - - 2 2
As at 31 December 2012 154 101 (2) 101 32 693 1079 4 1,083

*See note 19 for further details
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013 2012
Note £m Em Em
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax from continuing operations 155 255 254
(Loss)/profit before income tax from discontinued operations 9 (33) (16) 2
Profit before income tax 122 239 256
Financial ncome 7 (11) (12 10)
Financial expense 7 16 14 11
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures 2n (12) 14) (12)
Intangible amortisation 512 49 a7 44
Impairment of joint venture investment ki - - 3
Depreciation il 16 12 11
Loss on disposal of businesses 5 44 6 11
Difference between contributions to retirement benefit schemes
and current service cost {2) - (5)
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment - (¢} (2)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 1 - 1
Equity-settled share-based payments 8 14 15
231 305 323
Decrease ininventories - 1 -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 106 66 (154)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables and provisions (137 (80) 102
Cash generated from operations 200 292 271
Tax paid (54) (52) (29)
Net cash tlow from operating activities 146 240 242
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of businesses (net of cash acguired) 24 (781) (20) (159
Funding of joint ventures (1) ) (1)
Purchase of property plant and equipment (14) (10} {19)
Purchase of intangible assets Qa7 (13) (15)
Movements in bank deposits (more than three months) (3) 3] 1
Disposal of businesses (net of cash disposed of) (2) ) (6)
Disposal of joint ventures (21) - -
Disposal of property plant and equipment - 1 4
Interest received 4 9 8
Dwvidends receved from joint ventures 13 14 8 1
Amounts paid on maturity of net investment hedges ) (3) {7}
Net cash flow from Investing activities (828) 40) (183)
Net cash flow before financing activities (682) 200 59
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from other borrowings 1,198 100 150
Repayments of other borrowings (100) (130) -
Cash flows in respect of facihty arrangement fees 13) - -
Interest paid (¥)] (11) Q)
Dwidends paid (124) (108) {98)
Acquisition of shares for cancellation - (45} (322)
Cash flows in respect of treasury shares (net)* 6 7 27
Acquisition of shares by trustees of the Performance Share Plan - {2) {6)
Net cash flow from financing activitles 960 (189) (312)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 278 11 (253)
Cash and cash eguivalents as at the beginning of the year 223 232 493
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (6) (20) &)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 23 495 223 232
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank and in hand 23 377 153 169
Bank deposits (less than three months) 23 us 79 89
Bank overdrafts 23 - ) (26)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 23 495 223 232
Bank deposits (more than three months) 23 21 18 17
Bank loans 23 (1.267) (120) {150)
Fees capitalised against bank faciities 23 9 - -
Finance leases 23 (61) - -
Net (debt)/cash as at the end of the year (803) 121 a9

*Net of £6m (2013 £7m 2012 £9m) received from SAYE aption holders on exercise of options
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Notes to the consolidated accounts

1 Significant accounting policies

On 13 November 2014 following Amec plc acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG the company changed its name from Amec plc to
Amec Foster Wheeler plc The pnimary market for Amec Foster Wheeler's shares 1s the London Stock Exchange where we have a
premium hsting and our shares are admitted to the main market Since the completion of the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, the
company's securities have also been traded on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of American Depasitary Shares

Amec Foster Wheeler plcis a pubbic imited company and incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom

Statement of compliance

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of Amec Foster Wheeler plc and all of its subsidianes made up to 31 December
each year, and the Group's share of the profit after interest and tax and net assets of joint ventures based on the equity method
of accounting

In accordance with EU law (IAS Regulation EC 1606/2002), the consolidated accounts of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted for use in the EU as at 31 December 2014 (adopted
IFRS), International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The company has elected to prepare its parent company accounts

in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) these are presented on pages 156 to 162

Frorn the Group s perspective there are no applicable differences between adopted IFRS and IFRS as 1ssued by the |ASB and
therefore the financial statements also comply with IFRS as issued by the IASB

Accounting standards adopted in the year
There are no IFRS, IAS amendments or IFRIC interpretations effective for the first time this financial year that have had a matertal
impact on the Group

New standards, amendments and interpretations i1ssued but not effective which have not been early adopted by the Group
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ replaces the existing gurdance in IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recaognition and Measurement®
IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments including the new expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets and the new general hedge accounting requirements It also
carries forward guidance on recognition and derecogrition on financial instruments from 1AS 39 IFRS 9 1s effective for annual
periods beginming on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permtted

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including 1AS 18
‘Revenue |AS 11 'Construction Contracts' and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective Under IFRS 15 an entity
recognises revenue when {or as) a perfermance obligation 1s satisfied That 1s when the control of goods or services underlying
the particular performance abhgation 1s transferred to the customer The standard provides far more prescriptive guidance with
regards to specific scenarios and requires extensive disclosures {FRS 15 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2017 with early application permitted

The application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 151n the future may have a material impact on the amounts reporied and disclosures made
In the Group's accounts However 1t 1s not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review

Other than as described above there are no other IFRS 1AS amendments or IFRIC interpretations which are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact on the Group

Basis of preparation

The accounts are presented in Sterling, rounded to the nearest mullion All calculated numbers for example earnings per share
are calculated on the underlying numbers to one decimal place precision They are prepared on the histonical cost basis except
that derwvative financial instruments and retirement benefit assets and habilities are stated at far value

The preparation of accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
Jjudgements estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilibes that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from
these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that pertod, or in the pertod of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of preparation continued
Amec Foster Wheeler believe some of these policies require a high level of judgement and the most critical accounting policies
and significant areas of jJudgement and estimation anise from

» acquisition accounting under IFRS 3 Business Combinations’,

» fong-term contracts under IAS 11 'Construction Contracts

» iIntangible assets including goodwill under IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 36 ‘tmpairment of Assets
» provisions under IAS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabihties and Contingent Assets and

» defined benefit pension schemes under |AS 19 (rewised) Employee Benefits

In addstion, jJudgement has also been applied in the presentation of certain research and development government credits and
In presenting the UK conventional power business as a discontinued operation in 2013

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

During the year the Group acquired Foster Wheeler The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase under IFRS 3 Determining
the fair value of the assets and habilities acquired involved significant judgement and estimates This invelved the use of valuation
models to determine the fair value of the intangible assets acquired Inputs to these models include estimates of the future cash
flows of Foster Wheeler, the appropnate discount rate to apply to these future cash flows estimates of the retention rates for

key customers and the Iikelihood of renewal of significant service contracts Further information about the assumptions used

for calculating provisions and goodwill are documented below

IAS 11 Construction Contracts
A significant amount of the Group s activities 1s undertaken via long-term contracts These contracts are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 11 Construction Contracts which requires estimates to be made for contract costs and revenues

Management bases Its judgements of contract costs and revenues on the latest avallable information which includes detailed
contract valuations In many cases the results reflect the expected outcormne of long-term contractual obligations which span more
than one reporting period Contract costs and revenues are affected by a variety of uncertainties that depend on the outcome

of future events and often need to be revised as events unfold and uncertainties are resolved The estimates of contract costs

and revenues are updated regularly and significant changes are highlighted through established internal review procedures In
particular the internal reviews focus on the timing and recognition of incentive payments and the age and recoverability of any
unagreed income from vanations to the contract scope or clams The impact of the changes in accounting estimates is then
reflected in the ongoing results

Principally, there are two types of long-term contracts being cost reimbursable contracts and fixed price contracts Due to the
nature of these contracts the significant estimates tend to arise on fixed price contracts rather than cost rembursable contracts

IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets’

The Group has a significant amount of Intangible assets on its balance sheet Goodwill arising on acquisitions represents

the excess of the farr value of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the assets and liabihities acquired Goodwill 1s
capitalised and subject to impairment review both annually and when there are indications that its carrying value may not be
recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recognised to the extent that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

The determination of carrying value involves significant Judgements when allocating goodwill to the cash generating units (‘'CGUs')
expected to benefit from the acquisition The estimation of the recoverable amounts also requires significant judgements and
estimates including the future cash flows of the CGU, terminal growth rates and the appropriate rate at which to discount those
cash flows See note 12 for further details of the impairment reviews performed during the year

Intangible assets other than goodwill are stated at cost tess accumulated amortisation and impairment losses The cost of an
intangible asset acquired in a business combination 1s the fair value of the asset at the date of acquisition Amortisation 1s charged
to the Income statement over the estimated useful hves of intang ble assets
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of preparation continued

IAS 37 ‘Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

When accounting for provisions for litigation and other items the Group has takeninternal and external advice in considering
known legal claims and actions made by or against the Group It carefully assesses the likelhood of success of a clarm or action
Appropriate provisions are made for legal claims or actions against the Group on the basis of likely outcome but no provisions
are made for those which in the view of management, are unlikely to succeed

The Group has a significant asbestos related provision Some of the Group's US and UK subsidianies are defendants in numerous
asbestos-related lawsuits and out-of-court informal claims pending in the US and UK Plaintiffs claim darmages for personal
njury alleged to have arisen from exposure to or use of asbestos in connection with work allegedly performed by the Group s
subsidiaries during the 1970s and earlier

The provision for asbestos 1s the Group's best estimate of its obligation required to settle claims that s expected to continue
up until 2050 The provision 1s discounted back to a net present value using a US Treasury yield curve discount rate

See note 21 for further details of the Group's provisions

IAS 19 (revised) 'Employee Benefits’

Defined benefit pension schemes are accounted for in accordance with the advice of iIndependent qualified actuaries but
significant judgements are required in relation to the assumptions for future salary and pension increases discount rate inflation
and mermnber life expectancy that underpin thew valuations For Amec Foster Wheeler these assumptions are important given the
relative size of the schemes that remain open for future accrual

See note 14 for further details of the Group s retirement benefit schemes

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operattons’
In accordance with [FRS 5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’, the post-tax results of discontinued
operations are disclosed separately in the consolidated income statement

Discontinued operations include the non-core Bult Environment businesses which were sold during 2007, SPIE, which was sold
in 2006 and the UK conventional power business that was discontinued 1n 2013 The cash flows of discontinued operations are
fully consolidated within Amec Foster Wheeler up to the date of sale The results and other disclosures in respect of disconthinued
operations are shown in note 9

Going concern
The directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to operate for the foreseeable future

During the year the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG was partially funded by utiising committed banking facilities This resulted
In the Group having net debt of £803m as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013 net cash of £121m) In addition, as at

31 December 2014 the Group had committed banking faciities of £1 863m As at 31 December 2014 the undrawn partion of the
Group s committed facilities was £440m

The Group has complied with all apphicable covenant requirements and has assessed 1t will be able to meet expected mandatory
interest and repayment of its banking facilities in place

The Group will finance operations and growth from its existing cash resources and its committed banking facihties The Group's
policy aims to ensure the constant availability of an appropriate amount of funding to meet both current and future forecast
requirements consistent with the Group's budget and strategic plans

If for any reason the Group is unable to continue as a going concern 1t could iImpact the Group's abibity to realise assets at their
recogrised values, in particular goodwill and other intangible assets and to extinguish liabilities in the normal course of business
at the amounts stated in the consolidated accounts

Accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have unless otherwise stated, been apphed consistently to all peniods presented in these
consolidated accounts
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts comprise the accounts of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 Control s achieved
when the Group 1s exposed or has rights, to vanable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the abidity to affect
those returns through 1ts power over the investee Generally there 1s a presumption that a majority of voting nghts result in control

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate there 1s a change of control
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary Assets liabilities income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated accounts from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsicdiary

Protit or loss and each component of comprehensive income 1s attnbuted to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and

1o the non-controlling interests, even If this resutts in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance When necessary
adjustments are made to the financial staternents of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into hne with the Group's
accounting poficies Allintra-Group assets and hiabilities, egquity, ncome, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation

A change in the ownerstip interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control 1s accounted for as an equity transaction

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary 1t derecognises the related assets (including goodwill) liabiities non-controlling
interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss 1s recogrised in profit or loss Any investment retained
1s recognised at fair value

A Joint venture 15 a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement which exists only when
decistons about the relevant activities require unamimous consent of the parties sharing control

The considerations made in determining joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries

The Group's investments in its joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method Under the equity method, the investment
in a joint venture 1s initially recogrised at cost The carrying amount of the investment 1s adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date The results of the joint ventures are included in the
consolidated accounts from the date the joint controf commences until the date that it ceases

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of a joint venture s shown on the face of the income statement and represents
profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the joint venture

Losses of a joint venture are recognised only to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint venture unless the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obhgations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture

A joint operation 1s a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and cbligations for the habilities, relating to the arrangement

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its
interest in a joint operation

» Its assets and liabilities, including its share of any assets and habilities held jointly,
» its revenue from the sale of its share of the output ansing from the joint operation
» 1ts share of the revenue from the sale of the output by joint operation, and

» Its expenses including its share of any expenses incurred jointly

Bid costs

Bid costs are expensed as incurred until the Group 1s appointed as the preferred lidder Subsequent to appointment as preferred
bidder, bid costs are capitalised and held on the balance sheet prowided the award of the contract 15 virtually certain and it 1s
expected to generate sufficient net cash flow to allow recovery of the bid costs Where bid costs are reimbursed at financial close,
the proceeds are apphed first against the balance of costs included in the balance sheet with any additional amounts treated as
deferred income and released to profit over the period of the contract

Business combinations and goodwill
The purchase method i1s used to account for all business combinations

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the assets hiabilities and
contingent habilities acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisitions since 1 January 2004 15 capitalised and subject to an impairment review both annually and when
there are indications that its carrying value may not be recoverable Goodwill1s not amortised
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments
Cash compnses cash balances and deposits repayable on demand and available within one working day without penalty

Cash equivalents are other deposits with a maturity period of three months or less from date of acquisition convertible without
an undue period of notice and not subject to a significant risk of changes in value

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of Amec Foster Wheeler's cash management are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows

In the consolidated balance sheet bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current habibties
Deposits with a matunity peniod of more than three months at inception are classified as bank deposits (more than three months)

Development expenditure

Expenditure that is directly attnbutable to the development of wind farm projects 1s recognised as an intangtble asset when
the Group can demonstrate it 1s probable that the wind farm development will generate future economic benefits in excess
of the amounts capitalised and other relevant cniteria for capitahsing such costs in accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets
have been met

Foltowing imitial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset Is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accurnulated impairment losses Amortisation of the asset begins when the wind farm development 1s complete
and the asset Is available for use It s amortised over the period of expected future benefit Dunng the penod of development the
asset 1s reviewed for impairment annually

Discontinued operations and assets and liabilities held for sale

A discontinued operation 1s a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations that has either been disposed
of, abandoned or Is part of a plan to dispose of a major line of business or geographic area An operation is classified as a
discontinued operation in the year that the above critena are met

Certain legacy settlements and relevant provision adjustments are allocated to discontinued operations when those settlements
and provisions arise from or are directly related to the discontinued operations

Dividend imcome
Dvidend income 1s recognised when the right to receive payment is established

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised in the income statement as incurred

Defined benefit plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans Is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned inreturn for thewr service in the current and prior periods That benefit 1s
discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price) is deducted The hability discount
rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA-rated corporate bonds that have matunity dates approximating to the terms
of the Group’s obligations The calculation s performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method

Anet surplus from a defined benefit plan is recognised on the balance sheet when the asset would be recoverable as aresult
of an expected future refund after a gradual settlement of plan liabihities

Net interest 15 calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit hability or asset
Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they anse

Exceptional items

As permitted by IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’, certain items are presented separately as exceptional on the face

of the consolidated income statement In the opinion of the directors these exceptional items require separate disclosure by virtue
of their nature size or incidence in order to obtain a clear and consistent presentation of the Group s underlying performance and
to provide consistency with internal management reporting Exceptional items may include but are not restricted to acquisition-
related costs, restructuring costs gamns and losses on the disposal of fixed assets, and gains and losses on the disposal or

closure of businesses Acguisition-related costs may include transaction costs (including external advisory legal, valuation and
other professional fees and attributable internal costs), the amortisation of acquisition-related faciity fees payments to selling
shareholders that are accounted for as remuneration and changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments
Financial mstruments are imtially recorded at far vatue Subsequent valuation depends on the designation of the instrument

Cash bank deposits borrowings and trade receivables and payables are held at amortised cost

Bank loans and similar borrowings are recogmised initially at fair value (1 e proceeds receved) net of directly attnbutable
transaction fees Interest expense including transaction fees is recognised over the life of the bank loan using the effective
interest method

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value The gain or loss on re-measurement to farr
value 15 recognised immediately in the income statement However where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged The farr value of derivative financial instruments

1s deterrmined by reference to market values for similar financial instruments or by discounting the expected future cash flows

at prevailing interest rates

The sale and purchase of derwvative financial instruments are non-speculative

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial Instrument is designated as a hedge against the vaniability in cash flows of a recognised asset or
hability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, any gain or loss on the effective part of the derivative financial instrument
15 recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated within the hedging reserve The gain or loss on any ineffective
portion of the hedge 1s recogmsed immedsately in the iIncome statement

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting expires, or

15 sold, terminated or exercised The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the hedging reserve remains there untif the
forecast transaction occurs The cumulative gain or loss in the hedging reserve Is transferred to the income statement in the same
period that the hedged 1item affects profit or loss

Net investment hedges

Foreign currency differences arising on the retranslation of financial instruments designated as a hedge of a net investment

Iin a foreign operation are recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective The gain or loss
of any ineffective portion of the hedge 1s recogrused immediately in the iIncome statement On disposal of the foreign operation
the cumulative value of gains and losses recorded In equity 1s transferred to the income statement

Foreign currencies

The Group s consolidated accounts are presented in Sterling which is also the parent company’s functional currency Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the accounts of each entity are measured using that
functional currency An entity s functional currency reflects the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to it

At anindividual entity level, transactions in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity are translated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the day of the transaction Entities which have multiple foreign currency
transactions apply the average rate for the month as an approximation of the exchange rate on the day of the transaction
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and any foretgn exchange differences arising are recognised in the income statement
except those anising on intra-Group balances settlement of which s neither planned nor probable to occur, which are recogrised
mn other comprehensive Income Non-monetary assets and liabilities are measured in terms of historical cost and are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transactien

On consolidation, the results of entities with a functional currency other than Sterling are translated into Sterling using a monthly
average exchange rate The net assets of such entities are translated into Sterling at the closing exchange rate

Exchange differences arnsing on the translation of foreign currency net investments and any foreign currency borrowings or
forward contracts used to hedge those investments are taken to a translation reserve They are recycled and recognised as a
profit or loss on the disposal or closure of a business The cumulative translation difference for all foreign operations was deemed
to be zero as at 1 January 2004, the date of transition tc adopted IFRS

Impairment

The carrying values of all of the Group s assets other than inventories balances onlong-term contracts and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any indication of impairment f there are indications

of an impairment in the carrying value then the recoverable amount 1s estimated and compared to the carrying amount

For goodwill and assets not yet available for use, the recoverable amount 15 estimated at each balance sheet date An impairment
loss 1s recognised to the extent that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Intangible assets other than goodwili

Intangible assets acquired by the Group which include customer relationships brands/trademarks order backlog, patents
and software, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses The cost of an intangibie asset acquired
i a business combination is its fair value at date of acquisition

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight ine basis over the estimated useful hves of intangible assets
from the date they are avaitable for use

The estimated fives of intangible assets held at 31 December 2014 are as follows

Customer relationships Two to 18 years
Brand/trademarks Up to 20 years
Qrder backiog Three to five years
Patents 15 years

Software Three to seven years
Other Up to six years
Inventories

Inventones including land held for and in the course of development are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsabie value

Development land and work in progress Is included at cost less any losses foreseen in completing and disposing of the
development Costincludes cost of acquisition and development to date including directly attributable fees and expenses net
of rental and other income attributable to the development

Leases

The determunation of whether an arrangement 1s {or contains) a lease 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease The arrangementis or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a rnight to use the asset or assets even if that right 1s not exphicitly specified
In an arrangement

Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease A lease that transfers substantially ali the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group 1s classified as a finance lease

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the iInception date fair value of the leased property or if lower
at the present value of the mimimum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction

of the lease liahbility so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabiity Finance charges are
recognised In finance costs in the Income statement

Aleased asset 1s depreciated over the useful hfe of the asset However, if there 1s no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset I1s depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful ife of the asset and the
lease terim

Operating lease costs including incentives received are charged to the ncome statement on a straight ine basis over the period
of the lease

Net financing expense

Net financing expense comprises interest recewvable on funds invested interest payable, pension financing income, the unwinding
of discounted balances and foreign exchange gains and losses Interest income and interest payable are recognised in the income
staternent as they accrue, using the effective interest method

Directly attributable finance costs are capitalised in the cost of purchased and constructed property, plant and equipment, until
the relevant assets are brought into operational use
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses The cost of property
plant and equipment as at 1 January 2004, the date of transition to adopted IFRS was determined by reference to its fair value
at that date

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and eguipment with the exception of freehold land, at rates calculated to write
off the cost, less estirated residual value of each asset on a straight line basis over its estimated useful Iife Reviews are made
annually of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of individual assets

The esttmated lives used are

Freehold buldings Upto 50 years

Leasehaold land and bulldings The shorter of the lease term or 50 years
Plant and equipment Mainly three to five years

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event it 1s probable
that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the cbligation

The Group has taken internal and external advice in considering known and reasonably likely legal claims and actions made by
or against the Group It carefully assesses the likelihood of success of a claim or action Appropriate provisions are made for legal
claims or actions against the Group on the basis of likely outcome, but no provisions are made for those which, in the view of
management are unlhkely to succeed These possible but not probable liabilities are disclosed in note 26 as contingent habilities

Research and development government credits

The Group claims research and development government credits in the UK US and Canada These are judged to have
characteristics more akin to grants than income taxes and are offset against the relevant expenditure caption Credits are
recognised to the extent there 1s reasonable assurance they will be recewved which, given the necessary claims processes,
can be some time after the original expense 1s incurred

Revenue recognition and long term contracts

Revenue represents the amount received or receivable for goods and services supplied by the Group to its customers including
the Group s share of revenue from work carnied out by jointly controlled operations Revenue excludes intra-Group sales and value
added tax and other sales taxes

The Group s revenue is derived principally from service and construction-type contracts Contract revenue 1s recognised over
the term of the contract by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of each reporting period

Revenue from cost reimbursable contracts 1s based on the services provided, typically represented by man-hours worked, and
1S measured by reference to agreed charge-out rates or to the estimated total contract revenue Flow-through costs on cost
reimbursable contracts, typically consisting of materials equipment or subcontractor services, are included as both contract
revenue and contract costs

Revenue from fixed pnice contracts 1s recogrnised using the percentage-of-completion method measured by reference to physical
completion or the ratio of costs incurred to total estimated contract costs If the ocutcome of a contract cannot be estimated
reliably, as may be the case in the initial stages of completion of the contract, revenue 1s recogmsed only to the extent of the
costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable If a contract 1s expected to be loss-making the expected amount of the loss

15 recogrised immediately in the iIncome statement

Avariation 1s an instruction by the customer for a change in the scope of the work to be performed under the contract Variations
are included in contract revenue when it 1s probable that the customer wilt approve the variation and the related adjustment to the
contract price can be measured rehably

A claim i1s an amount that the contractor seeks to collect fram the customer as reimbursement for costs whose inclusion in

the contract price 1s disputed, and may arise from, for example delays caused by the customer errors in specification or design
and disputed variations in contract work Claims are included in contract revenue when negotiations with the customer have
reached an advanced stage such that it 1s probable that the customer will accept the claim and the amount of the claim ¢can

be measured reliably
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1 Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition and long term contracts continued

Incentive payments are additional amounts payable to the contractor if specified performance standards are met or exceeded
Incentive payrments are recogrised when the contract i1s sufficiently far advanced that it is probable that the required performance
standards will be met and the amount of the payment can be measured rehably

Gross amounts due from customers included in trade and other receivables represent the costs incurred plus recognised profits,
less provision for recognised losses and progress billings Progress bilings that have not been settled by custormers (inctuding
retentions retated to contracts in progress) are included in trade receivables where they are stated after allowance for any
doubtful debts

Gross amounts due to customers included in trade and other payables represent payments on account received from customers
In excess of the gross amounts due from customers and advances Advances are amounts receved by the customer before the
related work 1s performed

Share-based payments

There are various share-based payment arrangements which allow Amec Foster Wheeler employees to acquire Amec Foster
Wheeler shares, these awards are granted by Amec Foster Wheeler The fair vatue of awards granted 1s recognised as a cost of
employment with a cerresponding increase in equity The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the period during
which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the award The fair value of the award 1s measured using a valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted The amount recognised as an expense
1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest except where non-vesting 1s due to total shareholder return not
achseving the threshold for vesting

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises the sum of the current tax charge and the movement in deferred tax

Current tax payable or recoverable 1s based on taxable profit for the year using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years Tax is recognised
in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recogmsed in other comprehensive ncome or equity 1n which
case it 1s recognised In other comprehensive Income or equity as appropriate

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the accounts and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax habilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences with deferred tax assets being recognised where it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utiised The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjustrments made to the extent that it 15 no longer probabte that sufficient profits will be avallable

Assets and habilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the imitial recognition {(other than in a business
combination) of assets and liatulities in a transaction that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
except where the Group I1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax s calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted to apply when the deferred
tax asset is realised or the hability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets and hatilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and it s
intended that they will be settled on a net basis
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations

Amec Foster Wheeler designs delivers and maintains strategic and complex assets for its customers across the global energy
and related sectors

Segment information 1s presented on a consistent basts with the information presented to the Group Leadership Team for the
purposes of allocating resources within the Group and assessing the performance of the Group s businesses

Prior to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler in November 2014, the Group’s continuing operations comprised of four operating
segments Americas, Europe, Growth Regions and Investment Services For the short period between its acquisition and the
end of 2014, Foster Wheeler's results were presented to the Group Leadership Team analysed by its existing operating segments
E&C Services and Global Power Group

With effect from 1 January 2015, the Group adopted three new geographical operating segments Amenicas Northern Europe

& CI8, and Asta Middle East Africa & Southern Europe with Foster Wheeler's E&C Services segment being merged into these
segments Foster Wheeler's Global Power Group continues to be reported as a separate operating segment Investment Services
also continues to be reported separately Details of the services offered by each segment and the end markets in which they
operate are given on pages 3 to Sand 26 to 27

The Group Leadership Team uses trading profit as the measure of the profitability of the Group s businesses Trading profit is,
therefore the measure of the segment profit presented in the Group's segment disclosures Trading profit represents profit before
net financing expense excluding exceptional items the amortisation of intangible assets, and asbestos-related costs (net of
insurance recoveries} Trading profit includes the Group's share of the trading profit of joint ventures

Revenue and resuits
- ]

Revenue Profit/(loss)

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

£Em £m £m £m im £m

Americas 2,072 2,247 2500 207 241 233
Europe 119 1,227 1080 101 93 95
Growth Regions 590 536 531 30 33 32
E&C Services 221 - - 4 - -
Global Power Group 53 - - 2 - -
Investment Services 6 6 9 8 1 7
4,061 4016 4120 352 378 367

Internal revenue {68) (42 (32) - - -
External revenue 3,993 3,974 4088 - - -
Corporate costs! {31) (35) {(33)
Trading profit? 3z 343 334
Net financing expense? 4) (11) &)
Adjusted profit before tax 317 332 327
Tax on results of joint ventures? {6) 5) 5)
31 327 322

Intangible amortisation (49) @7 (44)
Exceptional and asbestos related tems (107 (25) (24)
Profit before income tax 155 255 254

1 Corporate costs comprise the costs of operating central corporate functions and certain regional overheads

2 Trading profit 1s earnings from continuing operations before net financing expense tax intangible amortisation pre-tax exceptional items and asbestos related
iterms of £299m (2013 £315m 2012 £31im) but including joint venture trading profit of £22m (2013 £28m 2012 £23m)

3 Net financing expense includes Amec Foster Wheeler s share of net interest payable of joint ventures

4 The share of post tax results of joint ventures 1s further anaiysed as foliows

2014 2013 2012
£m £m im
Trading profit 22 28 23
Net financing expense (4) €)) 6
Tax (6) (E)) (%)
12 14 12
112 g%faﬁ:;g;t\'\;?%e;aoums 2014



2 Segmental analysis of continuing operations continued

Transactions between reportable segments are conducted on an arm s length basis Internal revenue arises in the segments
as follows

_____________________________________________________________________________________ |
2014 2013 2012
£m £m im
Armericas 13 18 15
Europe 30 17 8
Growth Regions 24 7 9
Investment Services 1 - -
68 42 32

Other information

Share of post tax results of pint ventures Depreciation Intangible amortisation

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

£m im m £m £m £m Em £m £m

Americas 1 2 1 6 7 6 17 18 18
Europe 8 7 12 4 3 3 17 17 16
Growth Regions 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 12 10
E&C Services - - - 3 - - 7 - -
Global Power Group 2 - - 1 - - 4 - -
Investment Services 1) 3 (3) - - - - - -
12 14 12 16 12 1 49 47 44

Geographical origin

Revenue Non current assets

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m &m Em

United Kingdom 1067 1112 1030 774 326 336
Canada 938 1104 1,260 297 188 211
United States 1,218 1070 1,097 1131 284 278
Rest of the world 770 688 701 1,396 225 261
3,993 3974 4088 3,598 1023 1086

The non-current assets analysed by geography include property plant and equipment intangible assets and interests in joint
ventures
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

3 Revenue
]
2014 2013 2012
£m £m Em
Construction contracts 917 342 414
Services 3,076 3632 3674
3,993 3974 4,088

The revenue from construction contracts shown above i1s based on the defimition of construction contracts included in 1AS 11 and
includes revenue from all contracts directly related to the construction of an asset even if Amec Foster Wheeler s role 1s as a service
provider, for example project management

4 Profit before net financing expense — continuing operations

.___________________________________________________________________________________________________|
2014 2013 2012

£m &m £&m
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 16 12 11
Minimum payments under operating leases 87 96 92
Research and development government credits (23) (22) 5

There are no material receipts from subleases

2014 2013 2012
£m £m £m
Fees paid to the auditor and its associates

The auditing of the accounts 39 03 03
The auditing of accounts of any subsidianes of the company 15 11 10
Taxation compliance services 0.4 03 03
All taxation advisory services other than compliance - 01 01

All services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into, or proposed
to be entered into by or on behalf of the campany or any of its associates 6.4 16 02
All other non-audit services 01 01 01
123 35 20
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5 Amortisation, exceptional iterms and asbestos-related items
]

2004 2013 2012
&m £m £m
Continuing operations

Administrative expenses - exceptional items (86) (18) 24)
Administrative expenses — intangible amortisation (49) (47) 44
(135) (65) (68)

Loss on business disposals and closures {16) (&) -

Net financing expense (5) - -
(156) {72) (68}

Taxation credit/(charge) on exceptional items of continuing operations 6 (6) 9
Taxation charge on restructuring - (16) -
Taxation credit onintangible amortisation 12 20 12
18 (2) 21

Post-tax amortisation and exceptional tems of continuing operations {138) (74) 47
Exceptional items of discontinued operations {post—tax) {19) - 5
Post-tax amartisation and exceptional iterns (157) (78) 42)

Post-tax exceptional items for 2014 are further analysed as follows

2014
Profitin Loas on
respect of business o Other

drspascs I and closures related items " jtems Total

&m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations (21) 5 (16) (9) (82) (107)
Discontinued operations (23) - (23) - - (23)
Loss before tax (44) 5 (39) (9 (82) 130)

Taxation on exceptional items 5 - 5 - 5 10
Loss after tax (39) 5 (34) (9) 77 (120)

During the year ended 31 December 2014 the Group disposed of its investment in the Lancashire Waste project at a loss of

£21m mainly arising from a reverse premium payable on exit This combined with additional indemnity provisions and costs of
£23m associated with businesses sold n prior years (and classified as discontinued) to give a pre-tax loss on disposal of £44m
This includes a provision £11m in respect of a new claim recerved in the year related to a contract completed by the DPS business

which was sold in 2007

There was a credit of £5m from the release of a provision no longer required in respect of a business closed in a prior year

{and classified as continuing)

Other exceptronal iterns of £82m includes transaction costs of £37m relating to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG £35m costs
of integrating the two businesses and £4m of fees associated with the borrowings taken on to fund the acquisitton Integration

costs include consultancy and other costs of identifying cost synergies of £18m which includes associated internal labour
plus £17m costs of achueving cost synergies (including £14m redundancy costs) In addition £6m was incurred in completing

the previously announced restructuring into geographic business umits There was a charge of £8m relating to a change in the
discount rate apphed to the asbestos hability and £1m in respect of unwinding the discount Qut of the £82m of other exceptional

items £58m was paid in cash duning the year
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

5 Amartisation, exceptional items and asbestos-related items continued

Post-tax exceptional items for 2013 are further analysed as follows

2013
Lossm Lossen
respect of business Other
Lossan business oisposals exceptional
disposals closures and closures tems Total
m £Em im £m Em
Continuing operations - ) ) (18) (23)
Discontinued operations (&) - (6) - (6)
Loss before tax (6) )] (13) (18) (31)
Taxation charge on restructuring - - - {16) (16)
Taxation on exceptional items 6 - 6 ©) -
Loss after tax - ) ) (40) 47

Additional indemnity provisions of £10m and costs in respect of businesses sold in prior years {and classified as discontinued)
were offset by the release of a £5m litigation provision and indemnity provisions no longer required and give a pre-tax exceptional

loss on disposals of £6m

There were additional itigation provisions of £9m offset by releases of £2m in respect of businesses closed in a prior year and

classified as continuing

Exceptional costs of £18m in continuing operations includes £14m restructuring costs associated with the management

reorganisation into geographic business umts and transaction costs of £4m which in hine with IFRS 3, are charged to the iIncome

statement

Atax provision of £16m has been established for potential withholding tax following a Group restructuring that resulted

in a significant amount of cash being repatnated from foreign subsidiaries

Post-tax exceptional items for 2012 are further analysed as follows

2012

Lossin Loss on
respect of business Other
Lesson business disposals exceptional
disposals closures and clesures tems Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations - - - (24) (24)
Discontinued operations (11) - (11) 17 6
Loss before tax an - (11) )] (18)
Taxation on exceptional items 3 - 3 5 8
Loss after tax ® - (8) {2) (10)

A loss on disposals of £11m arose from adjustments to provisions held in respect of a business sold in prior years (and classified as
discontinued) and foreign exchange movements on provisions established on the disposal of SPIE

Exceptional costs of £24m in continuing operations included the £11m costs of funding a joint venture which was part of a recent
acquisition costs of £11m associated with restructuring following the management recrganisation into geographic busimess units
and transaction and deferred compensation costs which, in line with IFRS 3 are charged to the income statement Transaction

costs of £2m were incurred in the year

The exceptional gain in discontinued operations of £17m arises from the recognition of an insurance receivable following the UK

Supreme Court judgement on mesothelioma liabihty, a provision against which was established a number of years ago
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6 Staff costs and employee numbers — continuing cperations

2014 2013 2012

Em £m £m

Wages and salaries 1,466 1,459 1424
Social security costs 100 98 94
Equity-settled share-based payments (note 22) 8 14 15
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 37 36 34
Defined benefit pension scherne expense (note 14) 3 32 32
1642 1639 1,599

204 2013 2012
number number number

The average number of people employed was as follows
Americas 11,839 13046 13,516
Europe 7154 7216 7294
Growth Regions 3,295 3,070 2,348
E&C Services 1,357 - -
Global Power Group 322 - -
Investment Services/Centre 258 240 221
24,225 23,572 23379

The average number of people employed by E&C Services and Global Power Group relates to the period following the acqwisition

of Foster Wheeler
Details of directors remuneration are provided in the Directors remuneration report on pages 61 to 74

The average number of ernployees as stated above excludes agency staff

7 Net financing expense — continuing operations

2014 2013 2012
&m £m £m
Financial income
Interest income on bank deposits 3 7 7
Other interest and similar income 5 3 2
Pension financing income 2 1 -
Foreign exchange gains 1 1 1
n 12 10
Financial expense
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (10) &) (5)
Other interest and similar expense {4) ) (2)
Pension finance expense - - (3
Foreign exchange losses 1) @) (£}
Unwinding of the discount on the asbestos provision (1) - -
(16) (14) (11)
Net financing expense (5) @ (1)

The unwinding of the discount on the asbestos provision of £1m and the amortisation of facility fees of £4m (included within
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts) have been presented as exceptional items in the income statement There were no

exceptional items included in net financing expense in the year ended 31 December 2013 or 31 December 2012
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

8 Income tax — continuing operations
Income tax anses in respect of the different categories of Income and expenses as follows

2014 2013 2012
&m £m £m

Income tax expense on continuing operations before amortisation exceptionals
and asbestos related items 67 67 68
Income tax credit on amortisation (12) 20) (12)
income tax charge on restructuring - 16 -
Income tax (credit)/charge in respect of other exceptional items (6) 6 (9)
Total Income tax expense from continuing operations in the income statement 49 69 47

2014 2013 2012
Em £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 21 5% (2013 23 25%, 2012 24 5%) 21 18 16
Double tax relef (2) (3) )
COverseas tax 53 80 56
Adjustments in respect of prior years (6) (26) {7
66 69 61
Deferred tax
UK deferred tax at 20 0% {2013 200% 2012 23 0%)
pension surplus at 20 0% (2013 20 0%, 2012 35 0%)
- ongination and reversal of temporary differences 1 (16) 4
Overseas deferred tax (14) 14 (15)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 4 2 3)
{17) - (14)
Total Income tax expense for continuing operations 49 69 47

In tus budget speeches on 21 March 2012 and 20 March 2013 the UK Chancellor of the Exchequer announced reductions in the
rate of corporation tax to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 21% from 1 April 2014 and 20% from 1 Apnl 2015

As at 31 December 2014, the reduction in the rate of corporation tax to 20% had been substantively enacted
Factors affecting the tax expense for the year are explained as follows

2014 2013 2012

£m £m £m

Profit before Income tax from continuing operations 155 255 254
Expected iIncome tax expense 34 59 62
Non-deductible expenses - pre-exceptional 13 12 9
Non-deductible expenses — exceptional n - 1
Non-taxable income - pre-exceptional (6) (6) (5)

Impact of providing deferred tax on pension surplus at 20 0%
(2013 20 0%, 2012 350%) - 2n o))

Impact of change in UK tax rate to 20 0% (2013 200%, 2012 23 0%) on deferred tax - 3
Overseas income and expenses taxed at rates other than 21 5%

{2013 23 25% 2012 24 5%) 7 25 3
Change in recognmition of deferred tax assets 2 28 (11)
Other adjustments in respect of prior years (10) (24) (10)
Effects of results of joint ventures (2) 4) (4)
Total income tax expense for the year for continuing operations 49 69 a7
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8 Income tax — continuing operations continued

2014 2013 2012
Em £m £m

Tax recognised directly in equity
Current tax - - (1)
Deferred tax (note 15) ) 21 27
Tax (credit)/charge recogrised directly m equity 1) 21 26

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 the deferred tax bability artsing on the UK pension surplus has been measured
at the substantively enacted UK tax rate of 20% |t was measured as at 31 Decernber 2012 at 35% being the tax rate that would
be applied If the surplus was refunded The change in 2013 reflected the fact there was no longer any reasonable expectation of
arefund of the pension surplus in advance of anything that may have become due on the eventual winding-up of the scheme

The impact of the change was a deferred tax credit inrespect of continuing operations of £21m a deferred tax credit in respect
of discontinued operations of £4m and a deferred tax charge of £12m recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 December 2013

9 (Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent the residual assets and retained obligations in respect of businesses sold in prior years,
as well as the UK conventional power business which was discontinued in 2013

In accordance with IFRS 5 the post-tax results of discontinued operattons are disclosed separately in the consolidated income
statement

The results of the discontinued operations are all attributable to the equity holders of the parent and are as follows

2014 2013 2012
£m £m m
Revenue (13) 15 70
Cost of sales and net operating expenses 3 (25) (74)
Loss before exceptional itemns and income tax (10) (10) 4)
Attributable tax 2 2 1
(8) 8) 3)
Loss on disposal (23) (6) (11)
Tax on disposals 4 6 3
QOther exceptional items - - 17
Tax on exceptional items - - (4)
{Loss)/prohit for the year from discontinued operations 27) (8) 2

The negative revenue of £13m and loss of £10m hefore exceptional items and income tax in 2014 relates to the settlement of final
accounts and addittonal provisions on certain contracts within the UK conventional power business

The loss on disposals of £23m (2013 £6m) refates to additional indemnity provisions and costs associated with businesses sold in
prior years

Other exceptional items in 2012 related to the recognition of an insurance recewvable, following the UK Supreme Court judgement
on mesothekoma hability

Net cash flows attributable to discontinued operations
The net cash flows attributable to discontinued operations during the year were as follows

2014 2013 2012
£&m im £Em
Net cash flow from operating actvities €3] (12) (12)
Net cash flow from investing activities 3 (2) “4)
- 14) (16)
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

10 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earrungs per share are shown on the face of the income statement The calculation of the average number of
shares in1ssue has been made having deducted the shares held by the trustees of the Performance Share Plan and those held

In treasury by the company

2014 2013 2012
Weghted Weaighted Weighted
BYerags average average !
Earnings shares Earnings shares Earmings !
Enrnings number per share Earnings number per share Earnings number per share
£m million pence £m rrullion pance £m rmilhon pance !
Basic earnings from
continuing operations 109 302 361 187 293 638 206 315 652
Share options - 2 (0.2) - 2 ©4) - 2 04y
Employee share and
incentive schemes - 7 (0.8) - 4 (09 - 4 (08)
Diluted earnings from
continuing operations 109 31 351 187 299 625 206 321 640
Basic (loss)/earnings from
discontinued operations (27) 302 (89) (8) 293 27 2 315 06
Share options - 2 01 - 2 - - 2 -
Employee share and
incentwe schemes - 7 02 - 4 - - 4 -
Diluted (loss)/earnings from
discontinued operations 27) 31 (8.6) (8) 299 27 2 321 06

Basic and diluted profit from continuing operations 1s calculated as set out below

2014 2013 2012

£m £m £m
Profit for the year from continuing operations 106 186 207
Loss/(profit) attributable to non-controlling interests 3 1 e}
Basic and diluted profit from continuing operations 109 187 206
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10 Earnings per share continued

In order to appreciate the effects on the reported performance of intangible amortisation, exceptional items and asbestos related

items additional calculations of earnings per share are presented

2014 2013 2012
Waighted Weighted Weighted
Average average average
shares Earnings shares Earmngs shares Earnings
Earnings number per share Earnings numbsar per share Earrngs number per share
£m million pence Im milhon pence £m mulkgn pence
Basic earnings from
continuing operations 109 302 361 187 293 638 206 315 652
Exceptional items and
asbestoes related items
(post-tax) 101 - 334 47 - 160 15 - 47
Amortisation (post-tax) 37 - 123 27 - 92 32 - 102
Basic earnings from
continuing operations
before amortisation,
exceptional items and
asbestos related items 247 302 81.8 261 293 830 253 315 801
Share options - 2 (0.5) - 2 06) - 2 (05
Employee share and
incentive schemes - 7 1.8) - 4 (12) - 4 {10)
Diluted earnings from
continuing operations
before amortisation,
exceptional items and
asbestos related items 247 31 79.5 261 299 872 253 321 786
Basic (loss)/earnings from
discontinued operations (27) 302 (8.9) (8) 293 27 2 315 06
Exceptional items (post-tax) 19 - 6.3 - - - (5) - (14)
Basic {loss)/earnings from
discontinued operations
before exceptional items (8) 302 (2.6) (8) 293 27 3 315 (08)
Share options - 2 - - 2 - - 2 -
Employee share and
incentive schemes - 7 0.1 - 4 - - 4 -
Diluted loss from
discontinuing operations
before exceptional items (8) 31 (2.5) (8) 299 27 (€)] 321 (08)
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

11 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and
buidings equipment Total
£m £m £m

Cost
As at 1 January 2014 30 a5 125
Exchange and other movements 5 1) 4
Acquired through business combinations 84 34 118
Additions 6 8 14
Disposals (1) &)} 4)
As at 31 December 2014 124 133 257
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2014 17 69 86
Exchange and other movements 2 - 2
Provided during the year 6 10 16
Disposals 1 3) 4)
As at 31 December 2014 24 76 100
Cost
As at 1 January 2013 32 103 135
Exchange and other movements 2) (4) (6)
Additions 2 8 10
Disposals (2} (12) (14)
As at 31 December 2013 30 95 125
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2013 17 75 92
Exchange and other movements (¢4 {3 C))
Provided during the year 3 9 12
Disposals @ (12) (14)
As at 31 December 2013 17 69 86
Net book value
As at 31 December 2014 100 57 157
As at 31 December 2013 13 26 39
As at 1 January 2013 15 28 43

31D b 30
2014 2013
£m £Em
The net book value of land and buildings comprised
Freehold 68 5
Short leasehotd 32 8
100 13

The carrying value of fand and builldings held under finance lease at 31 December 2014 was £6m (2013 £nil) The amount acquired
through business combinations was £6m (2013 £nil) Additions during the year include £ril (2013 £nil) under finance leases

2 Amec Foster Wheeier
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12 Intangible assets

Custamer Brands/ QOrder
Goodwill relationships tradermarks backlog Patents Software Total
Im im £m £m £m £m im

Cost
As at 1 January 2014 792 192 23 9 - 66 1082
Exchange and
other movements 15 8 1 1 - 2 27
Acquired through
business combinations 1617 372 155 127 110 5 2386
Additions - - - - - 51 51
Disposals and retirements - €)] - oy - 1) (5
As at 31 December 2014 2424 569 179 136 110 123 3,541
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2014 35 85 19 7 - 29 175
Exchange and cther
movements (4] 2 - - - 1 2
Provided during the year - 24 3 6 1 15 49
Disposals and retrements - (€)] - (1) - - {(4)
As at 31 December 2014 34 108 22 12 1 45 222
Cost
As at 1 January 2013 831 197 35 12 - 53 1128
Exchange and .
other movements (52) 5 1y - - 1 G
Acquired through
business combinations 13 5 1 - - - 19
Additions - - - - - 15 15
Disposals and retirements - (5 (12) (3) - ¢y 21)
As at 31 December 2013 792 192 23 9 - 66 1,082
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2013 40 61 27 10 - 21 159
Exchange and
other movements (5) (4] (4] (1) - (n (10}
Provided dunng the year - 31 5 1 - 10 47
Disposals and retirements - {5 (12) (3) - (1 D
As at 31 December 2013 35 85 19 7 - 29 175
Net book value
As at 31 December 2014 2,390 461 157 124 109 78 3,319
As at 31 December 2013 757 107 4 2 - 37 07
As at 1 January 2013 791 136 8 2 - 32 969

The carrying value of software held under deferred payment arrangements which are similar to finance leases as at 31 December
2014 was £30m (2013 £nul) Additions during the year include £33m (2013 £nil) of software held under deferred payment
arrangements
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

12 Intangible assets continued

The Group 1s required to test its goodwill and intangible assets for impairment at least annually or more frequently if indicators
of impairment exist

The review of goodwill for indications of impairment by management is performed against the three core geographies of Americas
Europe and Growth Regions, along with the two new reportable segments of Foster Wheeler, E&C Services and Global Power
Group being the lowest level of cash-generating units (CGU) monitored for goodwill purposes

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler has been allocated to the CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition This has resulted in an allocation of goodwill generated by the acquisition to the Amencas, Europe and Growth
Regions CGUs

The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been based on value-in-use calculations These calcutations use cash flow projections
included in the financial budgets approved by the Board for 2015 and pre-tax discount rates as set out In the table below For the
purposes of the calculation of the recoverable amount, the cash flow projections beyond the budgeted period include no growth
in 2016 and 2017, 10% growth in 2018, 2019 and 2020 and 3% growth per annum thereafter In 2013 financial budgets approved
by management covertng a two-year period were used together with a 2% growth thereafter The long-term growth rates are in
line with long-term average growth rates for the regions in which the CGUs operate The value in use has heen compared to the
carrying value for each CGU and no impairment is required nor has been charged in respect of any of the CGUs

The financial budgets reflect management’s yjudgement of the future cash flows which includes past experience and expectations
of future performance The most significant assumptions relate to trading profit margin! and the conversion of trading profit

into cash (cash conversion) Revenue I1s underpinned by a secure order book for each CGU and the order book remains strong at
L6 3 billion as at 31 December 2014 (2013 £4 1 billlen) The selection of trading profit margin takes into account the margins being
generated on contracts in progress and management's view of the margin on orders received, and 1s censistent with Amec Foster
Wheeler's growth strategy The cash conversion reflects past experience and current contract mix

Goodwill 1s as follows

Goodwilll Pre-tax Goodwill Pre tax

31 Decamber discount rate 31 December discount rate

2004 2014 2013 2013

tm % %

Americas 635 1n 431 12
Europe 399 1n 250 12
Growth Regions 203 1 76 12
E&C Services 675 n - -
Global Power Group 478 12 - -

1 Before intangible amortisation and exceptional items but including joint venture trading profit as a percentage of revenue

A sensitivity analysis has been performed, at the indmidual CGU ievel in order to review the impact of changes in key assumptions
For example, a 10% decrease in volume with all other assumptions held constant or a 1% decrease in margin with all other
assumptions held constant did not identify any impairments Similarly, zero growth after the witial two-year period with all other
assumptions held constant or a 2% increase in discount rate, did not identify any impairments in the Amenicas Europe E&C
Services or Global Power Group CGUs

The value in use calculation referred to above showed headroom of £100m in the Growth Regions CGU However, applying zero
terminal growth a 1% reduction on margin or a 2% increase in discount rate would eliminate the headroom in thus CGU
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13 Interests injoint ventures

Interests In joint ventures
The Group does not hold any indiwidual material interests in joint ventures in either the current or priar year

Details in aggregate of the Group s interests in all ndividually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity
method are as follows

im
Net book value

As at 1 January 2014 52

Acquired through business combinations 73

Disposal of businesses (2)
Additions 1

Total comprehensive iIncome 12

Dividends received (14)
As at 31 December 2014 122

As at1 January 2013 47

Exchange and other movements (1)
Additions 1

Reclassifications (1)
Total comprehensive iIncome 14

Dwidends received (8)
As at 31 December 2013 52

During 2013 total comprehensive income of £14m was net of provisions of £15m taken against the comprehensive income of one
Joint venture entity, where the corresponding increase In the carrying value of the joint venture was not recoverable Thig joint
venture was disposed during the current year

Principal Group companies are listed on pages 190 to 191

PPP service concessions
Detalls of the PPP service concessions are as follows

Financial Equity Concession Net equity

closa stake period invested

Transport Al3 Thames Gateway 2000 25% 30 years -
Incheon Bridge, Korea 2005 23% 30 years £13m

Power Petropower Energia Limitada Chile 1998 85% 20 years £54m

Interests in Jjoint operations
The Group does not hold any individual matenal interests in joint operations in either the current or prior year
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirement benefit assets and liabilities

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates a number of penston schemes for UK and overseas employees

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG there are three principal defined benefit schemes In the UK these are the
AMEC Staff pension scheme (which also has an associated executive top-up schermne) and the Foster Wheeler Pension Plan
and in the US, The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaried Employees Pension Plan The AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes are
closed to new members but remain open to further accrual The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan is a hybrid benefit arrangement
The defined benefit section I1s closed to new members and further accrual but the defined contribution section remains open
to further accrual The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaried Employees Pension Plan i1s also closed to new members and further accrual
Contributions by the Group into defined contribution schemes are disclosed innote 6

The AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes are average salary plans for UK employees The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan was
a final salary pension plan All three schemes require contributions to be made to a separately adrministered fund These schemes
are governed by the employment laws of the UK The level of benefits provided depends on the member s length of service and
salary each year Once the benefits are in payment the pension is adjusted each year relative to the UK’s Retaill Prices index for the
AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan 1s adjusted each year relative to the UK's Consumer
Price Index Each scheme s established under trust law and are governed by a Board of Trustees which consists of employers

and employees representatives In addition the AMEC Staff and Executive pension schemes have two independent trustees

The Board of Trustees Is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investrment strategy

Every three years the Board of Trustees is required by legislation to review the level of funding in the pension plans The Board

of Trustees decides the contnibution levels in consultation with the employers based on the results of this triennial review In the
event that there 1s a funding defcit the Trustees and the employer will agree a recovery plan to eliminate that deficit over as short
a period as I1s reasonably affordable

Due to the nature of the labilities the pension plans are exposed to inflation interest rate risk and changes in the life expectancy for
pensioners As the plan assets include significant iInvestments in quoted equities the Group 1s also exposed to equity market risk

The valuations used have been based on the preliminary valuation of AMEC Staff pension scheme and the final valuation of the
AMEC Executive pension scheme as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2011 respectively The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan s most
recent valuation took place as at 1 Apnl 2013 These schemes have been updated by the schemes' actuaries for the requirement
to assess the present value of the liabilities of the schemes as at 31 December 2014 The assets of the schemes are stated at their
aggregate market value as at 31 December 2014

The Foster Wheeler Inc Salaried Employees Pension Plan provides pension benefits to certain full-time employees Under the
pension plan retirement benefits are primarily a function of both years of service and level of compensation The pension plan
ts closed to new members and further accrual
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14 Retirement benefit assets and liabilities continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
The principal assumptions made by the actuaries are as follows

31 December
2014

31 December
2013

% % %
The AMEC Statf pension scheme and the AMEC Executive pension scheme
Rate of discount 36 46 45
Rate of inflation 30 33 29
Rate of increase in salaries 30 33 29
Rate of increase in pensions in payrment {service before/after 1 January 2008) 29720 32/22 28720
The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan
Rate of thscount 37 - -
Rate of inflation 30 - -
Rate of increase in salanes 19 - -
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 11 - -
The Foster Wheeler Inc. Salaried Employees Pension Plan
Rate of discount 36 - -
Rate of inflation 25 - -
Rate of increase in salaries N/A - -
Rate of increase in pensions in payment N/A - -

In addition the Group has a number of smaller overseas schemes During the year the rate of discount ranged from 1 8% 109 0%
(2013 4 8% to 4 9% 2012 4 2% to 4 3%) The rate of increase in salaries ranged from 1 9% to 2 5% (2013 2 8%, 2012 2 8%)

For the three principal defined benefit schemes, the assumed life expectancy 1s as follows

31D 3 b 31 December

3t December
2013

31 December

31December

2014 2014 2013 2012 2012
Male Famale Male Female Male Fernale
YRS yaars years years years years
The AMEC Staff penslon scheme and
the AMEC Executive pension scheme
Member aged 65 (current life expectancy) 225 246 229 244 228 243
Member aged 45 (Iife expectancy at 65) 242 26.5 247 263 246 262
The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan
Member aged 65 (current life expectancy) 23.5 232 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Member aged 45 (life expectancy at 65) 25.3 251 N/A N/A NAA N/A
The Foster Wheeler Inc. Salaried
Employees Pension Plan
Member aged 65 (current life expectancy) 216 237 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Member aged 45 (life expectancy at 65) 23.2 25.4 N/A N/A N/A N/A

The assumptions used by the actuaries are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanal assumptions which due

to the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirement benefit assets and habilities continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

31 December 31 Decernber 31 December

2014 2013 202

£m £m £m

Retirement benefit assets 102 102 86
Retirement benefit labilities (188) (62) (93)
Retirement benefit net (liability)/asset (86) 40 {7

The retirement benefit net (hability)/asset 1s analysed as follows

31 December 31 Decernber 31 December

2014 2013 2012

£m £&m £m

The AMEC Staff and the AMEC Executive pension scheme 65 102 86
The Foster Wheeler Pension Plan 37 - -
The Foster Wheeler tnc Salaried Employees Pension Plan (57} - -
Other smaller pension schemes (131) (62) (93)
(86) 40 7

The retirement benefit labilities of £188m (2013 £62m 2012 £93m) reflect primarily the deficits on the smaller overseas schemes

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

31 December 31 December 31 Decernber

2014 2013 2012

% % %

Equities 354 413 358
Bonds (including gilts) 52.6 476 518
Property 8.4 88 82
Cther 36 23 (0]
100.0 1000 1000

The equities and bonds as listed above are predominantly quoted investments There 1s a small tnvestment in privately held pooled
fund investments and the property/other investments are unquoted

The amounts recogmised in the iIncome statement are as follows

2014 2013 2012
£m im im
Current service cost and administrative expenses 33 33 29
Interest cost 84 72 75
Interest iIncome (86) (73) {72)
Total amount recognised in the income statement and included within staff costs
{note 6) 3 32 32
Settlement gain (3) - )
Total amount recognised in the iIncome statement 28 32 28
The total amount is recognised in the Income statement as follows
Cost of sales 20 19 15
Administrative expenses 10 14 10
Net financing (iIncome)/expense (2) 48] 3
Total amount recognised in the income statement 28 32 28

8 Amec Foster Wheeler
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14 Retirement benefit assets and habilities continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit hability are as follows

2014 2013 2012
im Em

As at 1 January 1,743 1652 1618
Exchange and other movements 3 (14) (6)
Acquired through business combinations 898 - -
Current service cost 29 31 29
Interest cost 84 72 75
Plan participants contributions 12 12 12
Actuanal charges ansing from changes in financial assumptions 278 58 8
Actuarial (gains)/charges ansing from changes in demographic assumptions (19) 7 -
Settlements (12) @) (13)
Benefits paid (85) (71) 71)
As at 31 December 2931 1,743 1652

The defined benefit obligation can be allocated to the plans participants as follows

204 2013 2012

% % %

Active plan participants 22.0 252 234
Deferred plan participants 313 338 325
Retirees a67 410 441
100.0 1000 1000

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period s 17 years

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows

2014 2013 2012
£m £m £Em
As at 1 January 1,783 1645 1,569
Exchange and other movements 3 (8) 3
Acquired through business combinations 826 - -
Interest income 86 73 72
Actuanal gains 201 105 45
Employer contributions 32 29 30
Plan participants’ contributions 12 12 12
Administrative expenses {4) 2) -
Settlements (9) - 9)
Benefits paid (85) 71) 71)
As at 31 December 2,845 1783 1645
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

14 Retirement benefit assets and habilities continued

Defined benefit schemes continued
The movement in the scheme net (hability)/asset during the year 1s as follows

2014 2013 2012

Em £m £m

Scheme net asset/(hability) as at 1 January 40 {7 (49)
Exchange and other movements - 6 3
Acquired through business combinations (72) - -
Total charge as per note 6 3D (32) (32)
Employer contributions 32 29 30
Settlements 3 4 4
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in other comprehensive income (58) 40 37
Scheme net (liability)/asset as at 31 December (86) 40 7

The impact on the defined benefit obligation of the principal pension schemes of changes in the most significant assurmptions as
at 31 December 2014 is shown below

The AMEC Staft The Foster Wheeler
and the Inc Salaried
AMEC Executive  The Foster Wheeler Ermnployees
penson schemes Pensien Plan Pension Plan
Lm £rm Em
Discount rate
-10 bps (32) ) 3
+10 bps 32 9 3
Inflation
-10 bps 26 6 -
+10 bps (26) (&) -
Salary increase
-10 bps 4 1 _
+10 bps 4) ey -
Mortality
+1 year 1) (13) (10)
-lyear 61 15 10

The sensitivity analysis above is based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring as at 31 December 2014

The defined benefit obligations of the other benefit schemes are significantly lower than those of the principal defined benefit
schemes Sensitivity analysis of reasonable changes in the key assumptions as at 31 December did not indicate any sigrmificant
changes to the defined benefit obligations of those schemes

Expected benefit payments from the defined benefit plans in future years are as follows

.|
£m

Year 1 126
Year 2 128
Year 3 132
Year 4 136
Year 5 140
Next five years 751

L413

The Group expects to contribute £33m to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2015 This includes special contributions of £6m
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15 Deferred tax assets and habilities

Deferred tax assets and habilities are attributable to the following
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Assals Liabilties

3 Decernber 31 December 31 December 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £Em £&m

Property, plant and equipment 26 15 (14) {2)
intangible assets 3 - (233) 33)
Retirement benefits 68 8 (46) 20
Derwative financial instruments 2 1 - (1)
Provisions 18 46 - -
Employee share schemes 1 3 - -
Other items 5 13 (27) (18)
Tax losses carried forward 20 3 - -
Tax credits carried forward 2 - - -
Deferred tax assets/(Irabilities) 245 89 (320) (74)

Offset of deferred tax assets and habilities relating

to income tax levied by the same taxation authority (184) (54) 184 54
Net deferred tax assets/{habilities) 6l 35 (136) (20)

As at Exchange As ot
I January and other Recognised F d n

2014 mavements Acquisitions n Income n equity 2014

£m £m £m £Em Em £Em

Property, plant and egquipment 13 - (5 4 - 12
Intangible assets (33) (3) (202) 8 - (230)

Retirement benefits 12) - 28 )] 11 22

Derwative financial instruments - - 2 - - 2

Provisions 46 2 72 (2) - 118

Employee share schemes 3 - - @) - 1
Other items 5) - {19 2 - (22)

Tax losses carned forward 3 - 6 11 - 20

Tax credits carried forward - - 1 1 - 2
15 )] (1N 17 11 {75)
]

As at Exchange As at

1 January and other Regognised Recogmised 31 Decernber

2013 movements Acguisitions nncoma In equity 2013

£m £m Em £m Em &

Property, ptant and equipment 10 (05 - 4 - 13
Intangible assets (48) 1 - 14 - 33)
Retirement benefits {11) (2) - 21 (20) (12)

Provisions 60 (2) - (12) - 46

Employee share schemes 4 - - - €))] 3
Other items 3 2 - {10) - (5)

Tax losses carned forward 15 L - (11) - 3

33 (3) - 6 (21) 15

The deferred tax credit of £17m (2013 £6m) recogrised inincome consists of & credit of £16m (2013 £nil) relating to continuing

operations and a £1m credit (2013 £6m) in respect of discontinued operations
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

15 Deferred tax assets and habilities continued

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years
There are a number of factors that may affect the Group’s future tax charge including the resolution of open 1ssues with tax
authorities corporate acquisitions and disposals, the use of brought-forward losses and changes in tax legislation and tax rates

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items

31 Decembar 31 0ecember

2014 2013

Em £m

Deductible temporary differences 259 33
Tax losses 103 20
362 53

In addition, clatms have been made to HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) to offset tax losses of up to £79m against the Group's

UK taxable profits These losses were generated in a legacy German business in accounting perniods up to 31 December 2002 If
successful the claims will result in a refund of UK cerporation tax The amount and avallability of the refund depends on a number
of factors which are currently being discussed with HMRC This potential refund 1s not included as an asset in the accounts

As at 31 December 2014 the expiry dates of unrecogrised deferred tax assets carried forward are as follows

Deductible

temporary
Tax losses differences Total
im £m £m
Expiring within 5 years 5 28 33
Expiring within 6-10 years 2 55 57
Expiring within 11-20 years 51 - 51
Unhimited 45 176 221
103 259 362

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because 1t 1s not probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the Group can utilise these assets

Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities

No deferred tax habiity has been recogmsed in respect of £1 440m (2013 £355m) of unremitted earnings of subsidiaries and joint
ventures because the Group I1s In a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s not probable
that such differences will reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of unrecognised deferred tax liabilities in respect of these unremitted earnings is estimated to be £29m (2013 £16m})

16 Inventories

31 Decamber 3t Dacember

2014 2013

Em Im

Raw materials and consumables 14 -
Development land and work in progress - 3
14 3
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17 Current trade and other receivables

31 Decamber 31 December
2014 2013
Em
Amounts expected to be recovered within one year
Gross amounts due from customers 544 385
Trade recevables 784 471
Amounts owed by joint ventures 20 22
Other receivables 63 18
Prepayments and accrued income 60 56
Asbestos related insurance recovery debtor (note 21) 13 -
1,484 952
Amounts expected to be recovered after more than one year
Trade receivables 6 2
Amounts owed by joint ventures 1 2
Other receivables 15 -
22 4
1,506 956

Trade recevables expected to be recovered within one year include retentions of £56m (2013 £34m) relating to contracts in
progress Trade receivables expected to be recovered after more than one year include retentions of £5m (2013 £2m) relating

to contracts in progress

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recogrised profits (less recogrised losses) for all long-term contracts in progress

for continuing businesses at the balance sheet date was £16,082m (2013 £4 960m)

Trade receivables amounts owed by joint ventures and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables

18 Current trade and other payables

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Em
Amounts expected to be settled within one year
Trade payables 597 449
Gross amounts due to customers 361 76
Other taxation and social security costs 37 59
Other payables 139 134
Accruals 236 75
1,370 793
Amounts expected to be settled after more than one year
Trade payables 1 -
Gross amounts due to customers 5 -
Other payables 4 3
Accruals 1 5
u 8
1,381 801

Gross amounts due to customers include advances received of £l {2013 £3m)
Trade payables, other payables and accruals are classified as other inancial habilities
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

19 Capital and financial nsk management

Capital management

The objective of the Group's capital management 1s to ensure that it has a strong financial position from which to grow the
business and to maximise shareholder value The appropriate capital structure for the Group comprises of a mix of debt and
equity The mix s determined by considering business profile and strategy financial policies and availabibity and cost of funding

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler the Group 1s currently 1n a net debt position The long-term net debt is targeted to
be no more than two times trading profit The Group may exceed this operating parameter should the business profile require 1t
However 1t 1s expected that any increases would be temporary given the net operational cash flows of the Group

The Group has commutted banking faciities of £1,863m (2013 £477m) This consists of a $56m (£37m) project debt and a
£377m multi-currency revolving facility that was taken out on 18 Juty 2012 The facility 1s committed for five years and I1s available
for general corporate purposes In 2014 the Group entered into acquisition facilities totalling $2 260m (£1,449m) This comprises
of the following

» $250m (£160m) bridge to cash faciity maturing August 2015

» $830m (£532m) bridge facility which matured February 2015 with two further six month extensions at the Group s option
(see below),

» $830m (£532m) term loan maturing in equal nstalments in 2017 2018 and 2019, and
» $350m (£225m) revelving credit facility maturing May 2016

The Group extended the $830m (£532m) bridge facility for 6 months in February 2015 and it 15 the intention to refinance this
faciity in the capital markets during 2015

As at 31 December 2013 the Group had a £100m Sterling term loan This was settled in full during the year As at 31 December
2014, £1,267m (2013 £120m) of the loans and facilities were utilised by way of debt and £156m (2013 £nily was utilised by way
of Letter of Credit As at 31 December 2014 the undrawn portion of the Group s commutted facilities was £440m

In February 2012 the board approved a share buyback programme of £400m A total of 37 million shares were purchased under
this programme During 2012 and 2013 this included the use of forward share purchase contracts through close penods The
Group completed the buyback programme on 8 February 2013 and no further purchases took nlace during 2014

In November 2014, as part of the acquisttion of Foster Wheeler AG the Group 1ssued 85 million of ordinary shares This increased
share capital by £42m and generated a share premium of £877m

No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during 2014 or 2013

Financial nsk management

The principal financial nisks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign currency exchange nisk, funding and hquidrty nisk
counterparty credit nisk, and interest rate nsk The board has approved policies for the management of these risks which are
reviewed annually

The Group s treasury department manages funding, iquidity, credit nsk and risks anising from movements in interest and foreign
currency rates within a framework of policies and guidelines approved by the board most recently in October 2014 The treasury
department does not operate as a profit centre and the undertaking of speculative transactions 1s not permitted
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19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group pubhshes its consolidated accounts in Sterling The majonty of the Group s trading income 1s denominated in the local
currency of the business operations which provides a natural hedge against the currency of its cost base Where commercial
contracts are undertaken which are denominated in foreign currencies, the Group seeks to mitigate the foreign exchange risk,
when the cash flow giving rise to such exposure becomes certain or highly probable This s achieved through the use of forward
currency arrangements which may include the purchase of currency options There are currently no materral transactional
exposures which have been identified and remain unhedged The Group has no reason to believe that any outstanding forward
contract will not be able to be settled from the underlying commercial transactions

A significant portion of the Group’s earnings 1s generated in non-Sterling currencies Such overseas profits are translated into
Sterling at the average exchange rate prevailing throughout the year There s currently no hedging in place for prohts generated
in non-Sterling currencies but the impact on Group profits 1s monitored on an ongoing basis In addition, the Group has various
assets denominated in foreign currencies, principally US Dollars, Canadian Dollars and Euros With the introduction of the
acguisition facihties detailled above the Group hedges translation exposure, wherever possible by matching the currency of

its borrowing (either directly or via derivatives) to the currency of its net assets and future free cash flow As aresult in 2014,

the Group has designated a series of derivatives and financial instruments as hedging instruments in net investment hedge
relationships In specific circumstances for example the planned repatriation of foreign assets, the Group may from time to time
enter into additional net investment hedges to manage foreign exchange risks The Group applies hedge accounting in respect
of transactions entered into to manage the cash flow exposures of its borrowings Forward foreign exchange contracts and cross
currency interest rate swap contracts are held to manage the cash flow exposures of a portion of borrowings denominated in
foreign currencies and are designated as cash flow hedges

Based on the Group's net debt as at 31 December 2014 (f Sterling were to weaken against all other currencies by 10%, the Group's
net debt would increase by £44m (2013 £26m increase in net cash) This represents a £134m increase in foreign currency
borrowings (2013 £nil), a £47m increase in derivative assets designated as cash flow hedges of Group borrowings (2013 £nil)
and a £43mncrease in foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (2013 £26m)

If Sterling were to weaken against all other currencies by 10%, then the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross
currency interest rate swaps, cther than those designated as cash flow hedges of foreign currency borrowtngs as at 31 December
2014 would decrease by £57m (2013 £8m)

Movements in the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency interest rate swaps would be recogrnised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging reserve or translation reserve

Hedging of foreign currency exchange risk — cash flow hedges

The Group looks to mitigate the foreign exchange risk ansing on foreign currency borrowings and where contracts are awarded in,
or invelve costs in non-local currency Forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps are used for this purpose

and are designated as cash flow hedges The notional contract amount carrying amount and fair values of forward contracts and

swaps designated as cash flow hedges are as follows

2014 2013 2014 2013

Notianal Notonal Carrying Carrying

contract contract amaunt and amount and

amount amount falr value fair value

£m £m £m £m

Non-current assets — cash flow hedges of foreign currency borrowings 105 - - -
Total non-current assets 105 - -

Current assets — cash flow hedges of contracts mn foreign currencies 15 56 - 3

Current assets - cash flow hedges of foreign currency borrowings 318 - 1 -

Total current assets 333 56 1 3

Current llabihties - cash flow hedges of contracts 1n foreign currencies 44 12 ) -

Total current habilities 44 12 Q) -

482 68 - 3
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

The following tables indicate the periods in which the cash flows associated with the forward foreign exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges are expected to occur and the periods in which they are expected to impact profit or loss

2014
Carrying Expected 12 months Lto 2 2tas
amount cash tiows or less years yoars
&m Em &m £m £m

Forward exchange contracts
Assets 1 438 332 - 106
Liabilities (03] 44 44 - -
- 482 376 - 106

Hedging of foreign currency exchange risk — cash flow hedges

2013
Carrying Expected 12 months e 2 2to5
amount cash tlows or kess years years
£m £m £m im £m

Farward exchange contracts
Assets 3 56 55 1 -
Liabilities - 12 12 - -
3 68 67 1 -

There was no charge for ineffectiveness recognised in either 2014 or 2013
Hedging of foreign currency exchange risk - fair value through income statement

Certain forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange swaps are not designated as cash flow hedges and changes
in their fair value are recogrised through the income statement The notional contract amount, carrying armount and fair values

of these forward contracts and swaps are as follows

2014 2013 2014 2013

Notional Notionai Carrying Carrying

contract contract amount and amount and

amount amount fair value fair value

£m £m £m £m

Current assets 229 36 2 2
Current habdities 422 13 12) -
651 49 10) 2

Hedging of foreign currency exchange risk — net investment hedges

The Group has forward foreign exchange contracts which have been designated as hedges of the net investments in core
subsidiaries in Canada, the US and Europe The notional contract amount carrying amount and fair values of swaps designated as

net investment hedges are as follows

2014 2013 2014 2013

Notiona! Notional Carrying Carrying

contract contract amount and amount and

amount amount fair value farr valug

£m £m &m £m

Non-current assets 105 - 2 -
Current assets 318 - 8 -
423 - 10 -

A net foreign exchange loss for the year of £4m (2013 £1m) was recogmsed it the translation reserve in respect of these forward

foreign exchange contracts and currency interest rate swaps
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19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

Other financial derivative assets and liabilities
The Group has other financial derivative assets of £1m (2013 £1m) and financial derivative liabilities of £6m (2013 £1m)

Funding and hquldity risk

The Group s policy aims to ensure the constant availabiiity of an appropriate amount of funding to meet both current and future
forecast requirements consistent with the Group’s budget and strategic plans The Group will finance operations and growth from
its existing cash resources and the £440m undrawn portion of the Group s committed banking facilities as at 31 December 2014
The requirement to enter into additional external facilities has been kept under review during the year This includes discussions
with the Group s main relationship banks to ensure additional bilateral lending capacity i1s avallable

Appropriate facilties will be mantained to meet ongotng requirements for bank guarantees and letters of credit

Counterparty credit nisk
The Group 1s exposed to credit risk to the extent of non-payment by either its customers or the counterparties of its financial
instrurments The effective monitoring and controlling of credit risk I1s a key component of the Group's risk management activities

The maximum credit nsk exposure on derivatives at 31 December 2014 was £10m, being the total net debit fair values per
derivative counterparty on forward foreign exchange contracts currency swaps and interest rate swaps A 60 basis pont
deterioration in the credit quality of the Group s derivative counterparties would have no impact on the Group's 2014 income
statement (2013 £rul) Credit nisks ansing from treasury activities are managed by a central treasury function in acgcordance with
the board approved treasury policy The objective of the policy is to diversify and minimise the Group s exposure to credit risk from
its treasury activities by ensuring that surplus funds are placed with a diversified range of 25 to 30 mainstream banks and with
each counterparty up to a pre-approved hmit These lumits are set at prudent levels by the board and are based primarily on credit
ratings set by Moody's, Standard & Poor s and Fitch Credit ratings are monitered continualiy by the Group treasury department

The maximum credit nisk exposure on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits {more than three months) at 31 December
2014 was £516m (2013 £241m) The Group treasury department manitors counterparty exposure on a global basis to avaid an
over-concentration of exposure to any one counterparty

The credit risk associated with customers is considered as part of each tender review process and 1s addressed initially through
contract payment terms Where appropriate payment securityis sought Credit control practices are applied thereafter during
the project execution phase A right to interest and suspension s normally sought in all contracts

The ageing of trade recewvables at the year end was

Gross Gross
receivables Impairment receivables Impairment
31 Decembear 31 December 310ecember 31 Decemnber
2014 2014 2013
Em &m £m Em
Not past due 402 - 234 -
Past due O to 30 days 163 - 107 -
Past due 31 to 120 days 99 - 79 (1)
Past due 121 to 365 days 46 (6) 28 (10)
Mare than one year 33 (8) 5 (5)
743 (14) 453 (16)

The above analysis excludes retentions relating to contracts in progress of £56m (2013 £34m) expected to be recovered within
one year and £5m (2013 £2m) expected to be recovered after one year Net receivables as at 31 December 2014 include £25m
(2013 £nil) in respect of amounts overdue by more than one year
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

19 Capital and financial nsk management continued

Counterparty credit risk continued
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ]
2014 2013

£m £m
As at1 January (16) (15
Increase in iImpairment allowance (7) &)
Decrease in impairment allowance 9 2
As at 31 December (14) (16)

Based on past experience, the Group believes that no matenal impairment allowance 1s necessary in respect of trade recevables
not past due

Trade receivable exposures are typically with large companies and government-backed organisations and the credit ratings of
these organisations are monitored Credit risks are minimised through the use of letters of credit parent company guarantees,
insurance instruments and forward funding where achievable

The Group's most significant customer in 2014 accounted for around 8% (2013 8%) of continuing revenues, and around 4%
(2013 4%) of current trade and other receivables The revenue was generated in the Americas

Interest rate risk
The £377m multi-currency revolving credst facility 1s subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin depending on leverage

The $250m (£160m) bridge to cash facility 1s subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin

The $830m (£532m) bridge facility Is subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin which increases over time
The $830m (£532m) term loan 15 subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin depending on leverage

The $350m (£225m) revolving credit facility 1s subject to an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin

The $56m (£37m) project debt is subject to a mixture of fixed and vanable interest rates $49m (£31m) 1s subject to an interest
rate of EURIBOR plus a margin The remainder 1s subject to fixed rates of interest

The Group 1s exposed to interest rate risk on cash and borrowings Cash Is viewed as temporary with any longer term surplus used
to repay credit facilities

When required the Group uses interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to meet its objective of protecting
borrowing costs within parameters set by the Board The Group's policy 1s to keep between 30% and 70% of its borrowings

at fixed rates of interest Movements in the far value of interest rates swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps that are
designated as cash flow hedges of the Group s borrowings resulting from changes in market interest rates are recognised in other
comprehensive ncome and accumulated in the hedging reserve with the fair value recorded in the balance sheet At 31 December
2014 after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps approximately 23% of the
Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2013 nil) The year-end position which was below the lower threshold has been
rectified in early 2015

Based on the Group's gross borrowings as at 31 December 2014, if interest rates were to increase by 100 basis pointsin all
currencies then the annual net interest charge would increase by £9m (2013 £1m) A decrease In interest rates by 100 basis
points in all currencies would have an equal but opposite effect
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19 Capital and financial sk management continued

Interest rate risk - contractual maturity and effective interest rates
In respect of Interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial labilities the following table indicates therr effective
interest rates at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they mature

2014
Effective 6 months 6to 12 1lto2 2to5 Over 5
intarest rate Total or lass months Yyoars years years
] £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bank deposits
{more than three months) 0.80 21 18 - 2 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents
(excluding bank overdrafts) L24 495 495 - - - -
Fees capitalised against
bank facihties - 9 4 1 2 2 -
Bank overdrafts 100 - - - - - -
Bank loans 145 (1,.267) (633) (73) (5) (545) (11)
Finance leases 6.54 (61) 3) (6) 9 (26) an
(803) (119) (78) (10) (568) (28)

2013

Effective 6 months 6tol2 ltc 2 2ta5
nterest rate Total or less months years years
% £m £&m £m m £m
Bank deposits

{more than three months) 056 18 13 3 1 1

Cash and cash equivalents
{excluding bank overdrafts) 082 232 232 - - -
Bank overdrafts 021 (% () - - -
Bank loans 125 {120) (120} - - -
121 116 3 1 1

Interest payments of £11m are expected to be paid within one year £13rm between one and two years £22m between two and five
years and £1m over five years

Group borrowing
The Group's bank overdrafts are all denominated in US Dollars (2013 US Dollars) and the bank loans are denominatedin Sterling

and US Dollars (2013 Sterling)
All covenants attached to barrowings have been complied with throughout the current and prior years

Fair values
Fair values are determined using observable market prices (level 2 as defined by IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement') as follows

» The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward
price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate and

» The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps are estimated by discounting estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and maturnity of each contract and using market rates

All dervative fair values are venfied by comparison to valuations provided by the dervative counterparty banks There are no
matenal credit valuation adjustments (CVA) or debit valuation adjustments (DVA) required on the dervatives outstanding at

31 December 2014
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

20 Other non-current receivables and payables

Other non-current receivables
-

2014 2013

£m im

Asbestos related insurance recovery debtor 90 12
Indemnities recevable 13 12
Insurance recevables 4 -
Lease incentives 28 -
Other non-current recevables 14 -
149 24

Other non-current payables

2014 2013

£m £m
Deferred consideration on acquisition 2 3
Lease incentives 7 8
QOther payables 35 -
Other post employment benefits n -
Other non-current accruals 28 -

83 11

21 Provisions

Obligations.
Asbestos relating to Property
related Project dispased related
Iitigaton htigation businesses provisions Other Total
£m £m £m £m &m Em
As at 1 January 2014 12 37 71 8 35 163
Exchange and other movements 3 3 €} 1) - 4
Acquired through business combinations 347 100 - 82 4 533
Transfer out to trade payables - (13) - - - (13)
Utihsed 3) 4] (3) @ (1) (19
Provided 4 2 20 - 4 30
Released - (8) - 3) - an
Change in discount rate 8 - - - - 8
Unwinding of discount 1 - - - - 1
As at 31 December 2014 372 120 87 85 32 696
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21 Provisions continued

Asbestos-related litigation

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries in the US and the UK are defendants in numerous asbestos-related lawsuits and
out-of-court informal claims pending in the US and the UK Plaintiffs claim damages for personal injury alleged to have arisen
from exposure to asbestos primarily in connection with equipment allegedly manufactured by certamn of our subsidiaries during
the 1970s or earlier We expect that these subsiciaries will be named as defendants in additional and/or similar suits and that new
claims will be filed in the future Whilst some of these claims have been and are expected to be made in the UK the overwhelming
majority have been and are expected to be made in the US

We assumed the majority of our asbestos related habihties when we acquired Foster Wheeler in November 2014 Management
worked with independent asbestos valuation experts to measure the asbestos-related liabilities assumed Asbestos-related
liabihties recogrised by the Group in¢clude estimates of indernmity amounts and defence costs expected to be incurred in each
year n the pencd to 2050, beyond which time management expects that there will no fonger be a significant number of open
clams Management s estimates were based on the following information and/or assumptions the number of open claims
the forecasted number of future claims the estimated average cost per claim by disease type - mesothehoma lung cancer
and non-malignancies, claim filngs which result in no monetary payments (the ‘zero pay rate’) as well as other factors

Over the iast several years certamn of our subsidharies have entered into settlement agreements calling for insurers to make
lump-sum payments, as well as payments over time for use by our subsidiaries to fund asbestos-related indemnity and defence
costs and in certamn cases for reimbursement for portions of out-of-pocket costs incurred Asbestos-related insurance recoveries
under executed settlement agreements are recognised in trade and other receivables together with our best estimate of actual
and probable insurance recovertes relating to our hability for pending and estimated future asbestos claims in the period to

2050 Our actual insurance recoveries may be limited by future insolvencies among our insurers We do not recognise insurance
recoveries due from currently msolvent insurers unless they are subject to court-approved settlement in hquidation proceedings

We have discounted the expected future cash flows with respect to the asbestos-related habihties and the expected insurance
recoveries using discount rates determined by reference to appropriate risk-free market interest rates

Asbestos-related Labihities and assets recognised on the Group s balance sheet were as follows
|

2014 2013
us UK Tatal us UK Total
£m £m £m £m im £m

Asbestos-related provision

Gross provision 446 37 483 - 12 12

Effect of discounting (76) - (76) - - -

Net provision? 370 37 407 - 12 12

Insurance recovertes

Gross recoveries (75) (36) (111) - (12) (12)
Effect of discounting 4 - 4 - - -

Net recoveries ) (36) (107 - (12) (12)
Net asbestos-related habilities 299 1 300 - - -

1 The netasbestos provision 1s made up of £372m included in provisions and £35m in respect ot asbestos provisions included in trade and other payables

Estimation of asbestos-related habilities and insurance recoveries 1s subject to a number of uncertainties that may result in
significant changes in the current estimates Among these are uncertainties as to the ulttmate number and type of clairns filed,
the amounts of claim costs the impact of bankruptcies of other companies with asbestos claims uncertainties surrounding the
litigation process from junisdiction to jurisdiction and from case to case, as well as potential legislative changes

Fluctuations in market interest rates could cause significant changes in the discounted amount of the asbestos-related habilities
and insurance recoveries
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

21 Provisions continued

Project litigation
As described in note 26, the Group 1s party to itigation involving clients and sub-contractors arising out of project contracts

Management has taken internal and external legal advice in considering known or reasonably likely legal claims and actions

by and against the Group Where a known or likely claim or action s identified, management carefully assesses the likelihcod

of success of the clairm or action Generally, a provision is recognised only in respect of those claims or actions that management
considers are probable of success Additionally however, the Group recognises provisions for known or likely claims against

an acquired business If, at the acquisition date 1t 1s possible that the claim or action will be successful and 1its amount can be
relably estimated

Provision 1s made for management s best estimate of the future legal costs to be incurred in defending each claim or action and
of the Iikely settlement costs and/or damages to be awarded for those claims and actions that management considers are likely
to be successful Due to the inherent commercial legal and technical uncertainties underlying the estimation of our project claims
the amounts ultimately paid or realised by the Group could differ materially from the amounts, if any, that are recognised in the
financial statements

As at 31 December 2014 there were two significant ongoing disputes Both of these disputes involve Foster Wheeler and were
ongoing at the acquisition date Accordingly in measuring Foster Wheeler's identifiable assets and habiities at the acqusition
date management established provisions in respect of these disputes and made appropriate reductions to the carrying amount
of the related receivables

Power Plant Arbitration - US

Foster Wheeler 1s involved in arbitration ansing from its role in the construction of a power plant in West Virginia, US Foster
Wheeler contracted with its chent Longview Power LLC ('Longview’), the owner of the power plant, to supply the steam generation
equipment Separate contracts existed between Longwiew and Siemens Energy Inc (‘Siemens’) for the supply of the turbine,
electricity generator and other plant equipment and with Kvaerner North American Construction Inc (Kvaerner) for the erection
of the plant

Beginning in 2011 various claims and counterclaims were made between Foster Wheeler Kvaerner Stemens and Longview

In February 2014, Foster Wheeler reached a partial settlement with Longview In December 2014 vartous settlement agreements
were entered into involving the parties, leaving the clams between Foster Wheeler and Kvaerner the only claims to be resolved
Kvaerner s total claims against Foster Wheeler amount to approximately US$190m in relation to compensation for alleged delays,
disruptions, inefficiencies and extra work associated with the construction of the plant allegedly caused by Foster Wheeler's
performance under its steam generation equipment supply contract Foster Wheeler has claimed approximately US$26m from
Kvaerner in relation to claims for extra work delays scope disputes, and improperly assessed delay liguidated damages as well as
the cost to perform certam ongoing rehabilitation work on the steam generation equipment due to erection falures by Kvaerner
Pursuant to the settlement agreements reached in December 2014 Foster Wheeler received from Kvaerner a parental guarantee
securing its claims aganst Kvaerner Arbitration of the dispute between Foster Wheeler and Kvaerner s being conducted by the
American Arbitration Association Weintend to vigorously defend the claims against us in the arbitration and pursue our claims
against Kvaerner Management considers that the arbitration process is hkely to be concluded during 2015

Refinery Project Arbitration = India

In Novermber 2012, Foster Wheeler commenced arbitration in India against Indian Oil Corporation Limited (1OCL ) seeking
collection of unpaid invoices arising from services performed on a rembursable basis for IOCL in connection with the construction
of an ail refinery plant in north-eastern India 10CL rejected the claims and has submitted counterclarms totalling approximately
70 billion Indian rupees for damages including claims for revenue loss and loss of tax benefits due to delay In the execution of the
project 10CL has also withheld payment of Foster Wheeler invoices on account of delay liquidated damages

We strongly dispute IOCL's claims Any hiability for delay iquidated damages 1s capped under the contract at a specified
percentage of the contract value currently equivalent to approximately £12m, an amount already retained by I0CL Moreover the
contract also excludes Lability for special damages and consequential damages, incluging lost profits or preduct and contains
an overall cap on liability for claims in the aggregate of up to a specified percentage of the contract value currently equivalent to
approximately £25m

An arbitration panel was formed in 2013 and held a number of hearings dunng 2014 A partial award was made to Foster Wheeler in
March 2014 but IOCL have petitioned the court for its annulment We will continue to defend strenuously the claims made by IOCL
and pursue the collection of unpaid invoices As the project i1s still in execution, the unpaid amount that we are seeking to collect
has increased to the equivalent of approximately £54m and may increase further should IOCL continue to withhold amounts from
our Invoices Management have made appropriate allowances against these recevables

1 42 Amec Foster Wheeler
Annuzl report and accounts 2014



21 Provisions continued

Indemnities and retained obligations

As described in note 26 the Group agreed to indemnify certain third parties relating to businesses and/or assets that were
previously owned by the Group and were sold to them As at 31 December 2014 we recogrnised indemnity provisions totalling
£87m (2013 £71m) Indemnity provisions principally relate to the indemmification of the purchasers of SPIE in 2006 and the Built
Environment and other peripheral businesses that were sold in 2007 Duning 2014, the Group recognised additional indemnity
prowvistons of £20m tn relation to businesses sold in previous years which included a provision of £11min respect of a new claim
received relating to a contract completed by the Built Environment business

Certain of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, in particular the US and the EL), have environmental laws under which
current and past owners or operators of property may be jointly and severally hable for the costs of removal or remediation of toxic
or hazardous substances on or under their property regardless of whether such matenals were released in viclation of law and
whether the operator or owner knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of such substances Largely as a consequence of the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler the Group currently owns and operates or owned and operated, industrial facilities Itis likely that
as aresult of the Group's current or former operations hazardous substances have affected the property on which those facilities
are or were situated The Group also have received and may continue to recewe claims pursuant to mdemnity obhgations from the
present owners of facilities we have transferred which claims may regquire us to incur costs for investigation and/or remediation
As at 31 December 2014, the Group held provisions totalling £33m (2013 £nil) for the estimated future environmental clean-up
costs in relation to industrial facilities that it no longer operates Whilst the timing of the related cash flows 1s typically uncertan,
the Group expect that certain of our remediation obligations may continue for up to 60 years

Property-related provisions
Property-related provisions comprise provisions for onerous leases certain leases held by acquired businesses and dilapidation
of leasehold buildings

On the acquisition of a business, pravisions are recognised to the extent that the terms of any property leases held by the acquired
business are unfavourable relative to prevailing market terms During 2014, the Group recognised provisions for unfavourable
leases totaling £65m on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler which are expected to be utilised by 2024

The Group has discounted the provision using discount rates determined by reference to appropriate nisk-free market interest rates

Other provisions

Other provisions include £2m (2013 £2m) in respect of the Group's legal and constructive obligations to fund loss-making joint
ventures and to meet its share of certain of their obligations. and insurance provisions of £28m (2013 £27m) relating to the
potential labihities in the Group s captive insurance entity and provisions in refation to risks associated with insurance claims
These potential labihities and nisks relate predominantly to industrial disease of former employees
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

22 Share capital and reserves

Movements in share capital and reserves are shown in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 99 to 101

Share capital

The share capital of the company comprises ordinary shares of 50 pence each All the ordinary shares rank pari passu 11 all
respects To the company’s knowledge and behef, there are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in the company or on voting
rights between holders of shares

The movement ini1ssued share capital during the year was as follows

Number £m
As at 1 January 2013 307997570 154
Cancellation of shares acquired under the buyback programme (4174 716) 2
As at 31 December 2013 303822854 152
tssued during the year 85,052,989 42
As at 31 December 2014 388,875,843 194

Share buyback programme

During 2013, £4m ordinary shares were purchased at an average price of £10 84 and a total cost of £45m, this completed
the £400m share buyback programme Of the shares acquired 34 mullion, including all of the share acquired in 2013 were
subsequently cancelled

Reserves

As at 1 January 2014, there were 6 186 965 shared hetd in treasury (2013 7.291 522) during the year 755 651 shares were
transferred to share scheme participants (2013 1104 557) leaving a balance held in treasury as at 31 December 2014 of 5,431,314
(2013 6186 095) £57m (2013 £62m) has been deducted from equity in respect of these shares

The hedging reserve compnises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the accounts of foregn
operations as well as from the translation of habilities and the cumulative net change in the fair value of instruments that hedge
the company s net investment in foreign subsidiaries, that have arisen since 1January 2004 being the date of transition to
adopted IFRS

Share-based payments

Offers are made periodically in certain countries under the UK and International Savings-related Share Option Schemes which are
open to all employees in those countries who meet mirimum service eriteria Grants of share options are made to participating
employees that entitle them to buy shares in the company normally after three years at up to 20% discount to the market price of
the shares at the time of offer In the US to conform with the relevant tax rules, options are granted at a maximum discount of 15%
to the share price at the time of grant and are normally exercisable after two years

Under the Performance Share Plan, annual awards are made to directors and selected senior employees of restricted shares that
are subject to both market and non-market based conditions calculated over a three-year peniod Detailed terms of this plan are
included in the Directors remuneration report on pages 61 to 74

Under the Restricted Share Plan, awards are made to selected employees as restricted shares which vestin full after three years
provided the employee has remained in continuous employment

Prior to the acquisition Foster Wheeler s Compensation and Executive Development Committee administered the Foster Wheeler
AG Omnibus Incentive Plan for Foster Wheeler s employees non-employee directors and third-party service providers

Under the terms of the Implementation Agreement, equivalent awards of AMEC shares were granted by AMEC in replacement of
Foster Wheeler awards and the terms of those replacement awards will be egquivalent in all matenal respects to the terms of the
Foster Wheeler Omnibus Plan All employees of Foster Wheeler and its subsidiaries and/or affiliates ts non-employee directors
and certain of its third-party service providers were eligible to participate in the Foster Wheeler Omnibus Plan As at the date of
acquisition only Foster Wheeler options, Foster Wheeler RSUs and Foster Wheeler PRSUs were outstanding under the Foster
Wheeler Omnibus Plan

The share-based payment arrangements operated by the Group are equity settled and other than in defined good leaver
circumstances, require participants to be stillin employment with the Group at the time of vesting

1 Amec Foster Wheefer
44 Anpual report and accounts 2014




22 Share capital and reserves continued
Share-based payments continued

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options under the Savings-related Share Option Scheme are as follows

Weighted Weighted
avarzge average
exerctie price Number of exgrcise price Number of
2014 options 2013 options
pence 2014 pance 2013
Qutstanding on 1 January 794 6,691,883 751 6 954,867
Lapsed/cancelled 822 (777,995) 789 (901776)
Exercised 777 (765,267) 644 (1127999)
Granted 874 2563,374 866 1,766,691
Qutstanding on 31 December 819 7,711,995 794 6691 883
Exercisable on 31 December 902 200,943 760 283867

Options were exercised on a regular basis during the year and the average share price for the year was 1102 pence

(2013 1.070 pence)

Options outstanding on 31 December 2014 have wetghted average remaining contractual lives as follows

Waighted Weghted

sverage average

remaining remanmg
contractual life Number of contractual hfe Number of
2014 options 20 opticns
years 2014 years 2013
600 00 pence to 693 99 pence - 2,391,513 04 2711612
70000 pence to 799 99 pence - - - 683 313
800 00 pence to 899 99 pence 11 3807935 07 1488608
Over 900 00 pence 0.2 1,512,547 04 1,808,350
7,711,995 6691883

The numbers of shares held under the Performance Share Plan and Restricted Share Plan are as follows

Number of Number of

shares shares

2014 2013

As at 1 January 4,194,248 3923198

Lapsed (1,110,559} (766,743)

Vested {250,328) (591 863)

Granted 3,883,876 1629656

As at 31 December 6,717,237 4194 248
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

22 Share capital and reserves continued

Share-based payments continued

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted and shares awarded are measured by reference to the fair
value of those instruments For grants in either the current or preceding years the pricing models used and inputs (cn a weighted
average basis where appropriate) into those models are as follows

Foster

Savings related Share Optxan Scheme Perfarmance Share Plan Restncied Share Plan ov:?rﬁ;
{Black Schales model) (Monte Carle model) {Monte Carle model) plan
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014
Weighted average fair value
at measurement date 198p 217p 239p L006p 948p 1053p 949p 960p 990p 1,027p
Weighted average share price
at measurement date 1,014p 106lp 1103p L1O0S5p 1060p 113Sp 1082p 1070p 1106p 1,081p
Exercise price 874p 866p 927p n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Expected share price volatility 27% 27% 28% 26% 28% 29% n/a n/a n/a n/a
QOption fe 33 33 33 31 28 30 2.7 27 27
years years years years years years years  years years n/a
Expected dividend yield 35% 40% 33% n/a n/a n‘a 35% 30% 30% 3.5%
Risk-free interest rate L0% 10% 10% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Comparator share price volatility n/a n/a n/a 32% 33% 35% n/a n/a n/a n/a
Correlation between two
companies in comparator group n/a n/a n/a 50% 50% 50% n/a n/a n/a n/a

The expected share price votatility 1s based on the historical volahility of the company s share price

The performance conditions attaching to the Performance Share Plan involve a comparison of the total shareholder return of
the cormpany with that of its comparators and achievement of targeted earnings per share growth The former 1s a market based
test and as such 1s incorporated into the grant date fair value of the award There are ne performance conditions attached to the
Restricted Share Plan

Prior to the acquisition Foster Wheeler had 1ssued shares awards to employees non-employee directors and certain third parties
under the Foster Wheeler AG Omnibus Incentive Plan Under the terms of the Implementation Agreement equivalent awards of
Amec Foster Wheeler shares were granted in replacement of these Foster Wheeler awards On acquisition awards of 2 400,766
Amec Foster Wheeler shares were granted There are no performance conditions attached to these awards

Dividends

The directors are propesing a final dividend i respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 28 5 pence per share
which will absorb an estimated £107m of equity Subject to approval it will be paid on 2 July 2015 to shareholders on the register
of members on 29 May 2015 This dividend has not been provided for and there are no income tax conseguences for the company
Thus final dividend together with the interim dividend of 14 8 pence (2013 13 5 pence, 2012 11 7 pence) per share results in a total
dividend for the year of 43 3 pence per share (2013 42 O pence 2012 365 pence)

2014 2013 2012
&m £m £m
Dividends charged to reserves and paid
intennm dividend in respect of 2013 of 13 5 pence (2013 interim dividend in respect of
2012 of 11 7 pence, 2012 interim dividend in respect of 2011 of 10 2 pence) per share 40 36 34
Final dividend in respect of 2013 of 28 5 pence (2013 final dvidend in respect of 2012
of 24 8 pence 2012 final dividend in respect of 2012 of 20 3 pence) per share 84 72 64
124 108 98

The amount waived by trustees of the Performance Share Plan in respect of the interim and final dividends was £1m (2013 £im,
2012 £1m)
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23 Analysis of net (debt)/cash

As at

Exchange and As =t

1L fanuary other non cash 31 Decamber

2014 Acquisition Cash flow movements 2014

£m £&m £m £m Em

Cash at bank and in hand 153 239 {9) (6) 377
Bank deposits (less than three months}) 79 29 10 - 118
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 232 268 1 (6) 495
Bank overdrafts (9) - 9 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 223 268 10 (6) 495
Bank deposits {(more than three months) 18 - 3 - 21
Bank loans (120) (39) (1102) {6) 1,267)
Fees capitalised against bank facilities - - 13 4) 9
Finance leases - (32) 4 (33) (61)
Net (debt)/cash as at the end of the year 121 197 (1,072) (49) (803)

As at Exchange and As at

1 January other non cash 31 Dacember

2013 Cash flow mavements 2013

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank andin hand 169 5 (21) 153
Bank deposits {less than three months) 89 (11) 1 79
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 258 (6) (20) 232
Bank overdrafts (26) 17 - {9}
Cash and cash equivalents 232 1 20) 223
Bank deposits (more than three months) 17 1 - 18
Bank loans (150) 30 - (120}
Net cash as at the end of the year 99 42 (20) 121

The far value of bank loans 1s £1,268m (2013 £120m) compared to a carrying value of £1 267m (2013 £120m) The fair value of
finance leases 1s £66m (2013 £nil) compared to a carrying value of £61m (2013 £nil)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2014 includes £60m (2013 £25m) that 1s held in countries from which prior
approval 15 required to transfer funds abroad There are restrictions on the use of £7m (2013 £7m) of cash held on behalf of joint
venture arrangements and £28m (2013 £nil) held on behalf of customers and collateral against bank guarantees In addition
there are restrictions on the use of a further £16m (2013 £16m} of cash and cash equivalents in respect of commutments of the

Group's captive insurance subsidiary to certan insurers
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

24 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions in 2014

Foster Wheeler

Background

On 6 October 2014 the Group launched a public tender offer to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of Foster Wheeler AG

the ultimate parent company of Foster Wheeler Pursuant to the tender offer, which closed on 13 November 2014 (the acquisition
date) the Group acquired 95 3% of the 1ssued share capita!l of Foster Wheeler AG

Foster Wheeler 1s a leading international engineering, construction and project management contractor and power equipment
supplier with approximately 12,000 employees in more than 30 countries Management believes that the combination of Foster
Wheeler with the Group s existing operations will complement the Group's growth strategy and low-risk, cash-generative business
model and will position the Group to take advantage of, and create, new growth opportunities Specifically management expects
that the addition of Foster Wheeler will enable the Group to expand its operations in the mid and downstream oil and gas markets,
to increase its presence in growth regions such as the Middle East and Latin America, and benefit from Foster Wheeler's strong
profitable power equipment business

Under the terms of the tender offer Foster Wheeler shareholders were offered US$16 in cash and O 8998 crdinary shares or ADSs
in the Company for each share in Foster Wheeler AG held Foster Wheeler shareholders were able to elect to receive either US$32
in cash or 17796 ordinary shares or ADSs in the Company for each share in Foster Wheeler AG held, subject to hmitations on the
total amount of the consideration permitted to be settled in cash ar in the Company’s ordinary shares or ADSs On completion of
the offer, US$1 540m was paid in cash and 29 million ordinary shares and 56 million ADSs were issued Cash consideration was
financed by a combination of the Group s existing cash resources and by drawing on new debt financing facilities

Whilst the tender offer did not extend to employee-held ophions and awards over shares in Foster Wheeler AG separate
arrangements were made whereby certain of these options and awards were replaced by options and awards over orcinary shares
or ADSs in the Company

Purchase price allocation

Consideration payable for the interests in Foster Wheeler acquired by the Group amounted to £1 915m (measured at fair vatue at
the acquisition date) of which £979m was settled in cash £919m was settled by the 1ssue of ordinary shares and ADSs and £17m
was settled by the grant of replacement share options and awards

Due to the relatively short pertod of time that has elapsed since the acquisition date, management has not yet finalised its
assessment of the fair values at the acquisition date of certain of Foster Wheeler's property, plant and equipment equity-accounted
investments, and property-related legal and environmental obligations Management expects to substantially complete the fair
value assessment during the first half of 2015

As at 31 December 2014, provisional goodwill of £1 583m was recognised on the acquisition of Foster Wheeler Management
constders that the goodwill1s attributable to the future strategic growth opportunities arising from the acquisition, Foster
Wheeler s hughly skilled customer-oriented and collaborative assembled workforce, the significant cost synergies that are
expected to result from the integration of Foster Wheeler with the Group s existing operations and the potential for tax synergies
None of the goodwill i1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes

Acquisition-related costs relating to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler totalling £37m were recogrnised within admintstrative
expenses during 2014 Costs of 1ssuing the Company's ordinary shares and ADSs in relation to the acquisition amounting to
£877m were set against the Company's share premium account

On 19 January 2015 the Group acquired the 4 7% non-controlling interest in Foster Wheeler by way of a squeeze-out merger
under Swiss law for consideration of £85m of which £61m was paid in cash and £34m was settled by the 1ssue of 5 milkon of the
Company's ADSs

Non-controlling interests in Foster Wheeler were measured at their proportionate share of Foster Wheeler's identifiable assets and
abilitres at the acquisition date

Subsequent to its acquisition Foster Wheeler contributed £274m to the Group's revenue and £1m to the Group's trading profit
After amortisation of the acquired intangibles exceptional items and asbestos related items, Foster Wheeler generated a loss
of £44m in the period from acquisition to 31 December 2014
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24 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Acquisitions in 2014 continued
Summary of financial effect
Purchase consideration was provisionally aliocated as follows

. ____________________________________________________________________________________________|]
im

Assets acquired

Property. plant and equipment 117
Identifiable intangtble assets 738
Interests in joint ventures 73
Current tax asset 1
Deferred tax assets 27
Inventories 1
Trade and other receivables 771
- Gross contractual amounts receivable 801
- Allowance for doubtful debts (30)
Derwative financial instruments (12)
Cash and cash equivalents 265
Liabilities assumed
Bank loans (39)
Finance lease obhgations (32)
Trade and other payables (772)
Current tax hability (53)
Net retirement benefit habilities 72)
Deferred tax habihties (138)
Provisions {533)
Net identifiable assets acguired 362
Non-controlling interests (30)
Goodwill 1583
1,915
Consideration
Share based payments 17
Cash paid on completion 979
Shares issued including share premium 919
1,915

Management estimates that if Foster Wheeler had been acquired on 1 January 2014 the Group s revenue for the year would have
been £1,814m higher than reported at £5 807m Managemenit 1s, however unable to estirnate rehably what the Group's profit or
loss for the year would have been on this basis principally because 1t is not practicable to retrospectively apply the sigmificant
purchase accounting adjustments that were made to the carrying amounts of the assets and habilittes of Foster Wheeler at its
acquisition date and the tax effects of those adjustments

Scopus

0On 15 Decemnber 2014 the Group acquired the entire 1Issued share capital of Scopus Group (Holdings) Limited (Scopus) for £68m
with £67m paid on completion and £1m deferred for one year Headquartered in Aberdeen UK with bases ininternationai ol and

gas hubs, Scopus has around 200 employees who provide speciabst engineering services to the global ol and gas petrochemical
and nuclear industries

Due to the relative short pertod of time that has elapsed since the acquisition date management has not yet finalised its
assessment of the fair values at the acquisition date of 15 December 2014 Management expects to complete the fair value
assessment during the first half of 2015

As at 31 Decemnber 2014, provisional goodwill of £34m was recognised on the acquisition which management considers

15 principally attributable to its skilled workforce which did not meet the cnteria for recognition as an intangible asset at the date
of acquisition This specialist expertise will complement Amec Foster Wheeler s existing project delivery capability across the
lifecycle of a project

Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014 ].49

Governance Strategic report

Ftnancials

Additionalinfarmation



T —

Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

24 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Acquisitions in 2014 continued
Summary of financial effect
Purchase consideration was provisionally allocated as follows

£m

Identifiable intangible assets 3l
Property, plant and equipment 1
Trade and other receivables 7
Cash and cash equivalents 3
Trade and other payables (2)
Deferred tax hiability (6)
Net identifiable assets and tiabilities 34
Goodwill on acquisition 34
68

Consideration

Cash — paid on completion 67
- deferred 1

68

Scopus did not make a material contribution to the Group s results for the year and would not have done s0 even if it had been
acquired on 1 January 2014

Acquisitions in 2013

Automated Engineering Serwvices Corp

0On 15 November 2013 the Group acquired all of the shares in Automated Engineering Services Corp (AES) for up to US$35m of
which US$29m (£18m) was paid on completion and up to $6m (£4m) will be paid after three years dependent on the achievernent
of certain performance targets

AES 15 a professional design engineering nuclear services firm based in Napervilie flinois US It provides plant design/
modification engineering, engineering analysis, safety licensing and regulatory services, and engimneering programme support

to existing nuclear utilities primarily in the US We acquired AES to build on the Group s position in the nuclear industry in the US,
allowing us to better serve our clients and providing a strong platform from which te achieve further growth in nuclear services
Goodwill of £12m was recognised on the acquisition of AES

Purchase consideration was allocated as follows

£m
Intangible assets 6
Trade and other recevables 6
Trade and other payables (2)
Net identifiable assets and habilities 10
Goodwiil 12
Consideration 22
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24 Acquisitions and disposals continued

Acquisitions in 2012
Unidel
On 30 May 2012, the Group acquired all of the shares in Unide! Group Pty Limited (Unidel) for £16min cash

Unidel operates in Australia’s energy resources and infrastructure sectors and provides a range of environmental and infrastructure
services Unidel has experience of projects involving gas field exploration development production and transmussion coal seam
rmethane and water pipelines We acquired Unidel to build to expand the Group's capabilities to allow us to better serve customers in
the oil & gas miming and clean energy markets in one of the key growth regions Goodwill of £5m was recognised on the acquisition
of Unidel

Energy, Safety and Risk Consultants
On 29 june 2012, the Group acguired all of the shares in Energy Safety and Risk Consultants (UK) Limited (ESRC) for £137m
in cash

ESRC was Serco Group plc s nuclear techrical services business It s based at a number of sites in the UK and provides
consultancy and project sclutions for customers inctuding the UK Ministry of Defence, EDF, Magnox and the Nuclear
Decommussioning Authority We acquired ESRC to build the Group s footprint and capabilities in the clean energy market ESRC s
team of highly skilled professionals will complement the Group s existing expertise in nuclear support activities

Goodwill of £75m was recegnised on the acquisition which was attributed to the value of ESRC’s assembled workforce and the
significant growth opportunities for the combined business

Other acquisitions
During 2012 other acquisitions were made for total consideration of £8m, of which £6m was paid on completion and the balance
of £2m will be paid dependent on the achievement of earnings targets Goodwill of £6m was recognised on these acquisitions

Purchase consideration was allocated as follows

ESRC Umidal Other Total

Em £m £m £m

Property plant and equipment 1 - - 1
Intangible assets 74 11 6 o1
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1 - 2
Trade and other recervables 13 7 2 22
Trade and other payables 7) (5) {2 (14)
Deferred tax habihities (20} (3) 2) (25)
Net identifiable assets acquired 62 1 4 77
Non-controlling interests - - (2) (2)
Goodwll 75 5 6 86
Consideration 137 16 8 161

Net cash outflow on acquisitions
The net cash out flow on acquisitions was as follows

2014 2013 2012
£m £m £m

Cash consideration paid!
Current year acquisitions 1,049 18 159
Acquisitions in prior years - 2 2
1,049 20 161
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (268) - (2)
Net cash outflow 781 20 159

1 The £1 049m includes £3m exchange loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 This was ¢reated due to the movernent in exchange rates between the date
the Group acquired Foster Wheeler AG and the date when the liability was settled net of cash flow hedges
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

25 Commitments

Operating lease commitments
The total obligations under non-cancellable operating lease rentals for continuing operations are as follows

31 Decambar 31 December

2014 2013

£m £Em

In one year or less 29 66
Between one and five years 249 157
Over five years 124 61
472 284

Amec Foster Wheeler enters into the following types of lease short-term plant hires leases for motor vehicles and office equipment
with lease periods of two to five years, and longer-term property leases None of the leases include any contingent rentals

Finance lease and hire purchase commitments

The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of property and deferred payment arrangements
which are similar to finance leases for software These leases have terms of renewal but no purchase options and escalation
clauses Renewals are at the option of the specific entity that holds the lease Future mimimum lease payments under finance
leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of the net rminimum lease payrments are, as follows

2014 2013

Minimum Present valus Minimum Present value

payments of payrrnts payments of payments

Em £m £m £m

In one year or less 12 9 - -
Between one and five years 47 35 - -
Qver five years 20 17 - -
Total mimmum lease payments 79 61 - -
Less amounts representing finance charges (18) - - -
Present value of minimum lease payments 61 61 - -
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26 Contingent habilities

Legal claims and actions

From time to time the Group s party to htigation involving clients and sub-contractors anising out of project contracts

Such Iitigation icludes claims or actions by and against the Group for cancelled contracts for additional costs incurred in
excess of contract provisions, as well as for back charges for alleged breaches of warranty and other contract commitments

As described in note 21, we have recognised provisions for certain known or reasonably likely legal ¢claims or actions against
the Group We do not expect known and reasonably likely legal claims or actions for which a provision has not been established
to have a matenal impact on the Group s financial position results of operations or cash flows

Guarantees and indemnities

Guarantees

The Group have guaranteed certain performance obligations in a refinery/electric power generation plant located in China in which
we hold a non-controlling interest

Borrowings of joint ventures are generally without recourse to the Company or any of its subsidianes

Indemnities and retained obligations

We have agreed to indemnify certain third parties relating to businesses and/or assets that were previously owned by the Group
and were sold to them Such indemnifications relate primarily to breach of covenants breach of representations and warranties
as wel! as potential exposure for retained habilities environmental matters and third party claims for activities conducted by the
Group prior to the sale of such businesses and/or asset

As described in note 21, we have established provisions for those indemnities in respect of which we consider it probable
that there will be a successful clairm We do not expect indemnities or retained obligations for which a provision has not been
established to have a material impact on the Group s financial position results of operations or cash flows

Mount Polley

The Mount Polley mine 1s owned and operated by Mount Polley Mining Corperation a subsidiary of Impenal Metals Corporation
and s located near the town of Lively Bntish Columbia Canada On 4 August 2014 a tailings pond facility at the mine failed
releasing large quantities of water and mine tailings into the local environment The dam was in the process of being raised at
the time of the faliiure One of cur subsidiaries along with other parties had various design and quality assurance responsibilities
associated with the expansion of this facility Our subsidrary was the engineer at the time of the breach, but did not perform

the original design Anindependent Review Panel 1ssued its report on 30 January 2015 concluding that the cause of faillure was
shearing along a zone containing a weak soil layer along with other contributory factors At this time nolitigation has commenced
against the Group and management’s opinion Is that its employees performed in a professional manner consistent with the
standard of care for a competent engineer on a project of this nature Management has taken external legal advice and in ight

of this advice and, given the early stages of this matter 1t1s not considered probable that there will be an outflow in respect of
this issue
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Notes to the consolidated accounts continued

27 Related party transactions

During 2014 there were a number of transactions with the semor management group joint venture entities and subsidiary
companies

Transactions with the senior management group

Following the acquisition of Foster Wheeler in late 2014 the senior management group now consists of Amec Foster Wheeler plc
board members and the presidents of the Americas, Europe and Growth Regions geographies along with the presidents of the
Foster Wheeler segments of E&C Services and Global Power Group In 2013 the senior management group consisted of Amec
Foster Wheeler plc board members and the presidents of the Americas, Europe and Growth Regions geographies

The senior management group and relatives controlled 0 64% of the voting rights of the company as at 31 December 2014

In addition to their salaries the company also provides non-cash benefits to executwe directors and other senior managers and
they receive share awards under the Performance Share Plan The company also contributes to a defined benefit plan on behalf
of certain executive directors Details of their compensation are as follows

2014 2013
£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 5 6
Pension costs - -
Equity-settled share-based payments 1 3
6 9

Transactions and related balances outstanding with joint ventures
The transactions and related balances outstanding with joint venture entities are as follows

Value of iransactions. Outstanding batance

N the year as at 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

Em £m £m £m

Services received 3 - - -
Services rendered 26 38 12 15
Provision of finance 9 8 16 41

In September 2012 the UK government's Department for Business, Innovation and Skills announced a change to UK legislation
with respect to the requirement for a UK company to be subject to annual audit An additional audit exemption has been
introduced, such that for a subsidiary of a parent established in a European Economic Area state that subsidiary can be exempt
from annual audit If certain conditions are met The principal conditions are the requirement for the subsidiary's shareholders
to agree to the exemption and a guarantee to be 1ssued to the subsidiary by the parent undertaking. guaranteeing all of the
subsidiary's outstanding liabilities at the year end until they are satisfied in full
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27 Related party transactions continued

Transactions and related balances outstanding with joint ventures continued
The Group will be exempting the following companies from an audit in 2014 under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
all of which are fully consohdated in these accounts

Amec Foster Wheeler Finance Asia Limited {Registered number 6205760)

AMEC Hedge Co 1 Limuted (Registered number 07870120)

AMEC Kazakhstan Holdings Limited (Registered number 4530056)

Amec Foster Wheeler Property and Overseas Investments Limited (Registered number 1580678)
AMEC USA Finance Limited (Registered number 5299446)

AMEC USA Holdings Limited {Registered number 4041261)

AMEC USA Limited (Registered number 4044800)

Pl Energy & Emissions Limited (Registered number SC209704)

Sandiway Solutions (No 3) Limited (Registered number 5318249)

Sigma Finanaial Facihties Limited (Registered number 3863449)
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2014
]
204 2013
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2 32 27
Investment in subsidiaries 3 4,480 2353
4,512 2380
Current assets
Debtors including amounts falling due after one year of £1 102m {2013 £mil) 4 1,149 40
Cash at bank and in hand 93 76
1,242 116
Current liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5 (2.026) {154)
Net current liabilities (784) (38)
Total assets less current liabilities 3,728 2342
Creditors amounts falling due after one year 6 (1,324) (761)
Net assets 2404 1581
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 78 194 152
Share premium account 978 1
Capital redemption reserve 8 34 34
Profit and loss account 8 1,198 1294
Equity shareholders’ funds 2404 1,581

The accounts an pages 156 to 162 were approved by the board of directors on 26 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

H

Samir Brikho lan McHoul
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the company balance sheet

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that derivative financial instruments are stated
at fair value 1n accordance with applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 2006

The company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

Cash flow statement
The company 1s exermpt from the requirement of FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements' to prepare a cash flow statement as its cash flows
are included within the consolidated cash flow of the Group

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all tangible assets other than assets in the course of construction, at rates calculated to write off the
cost or valuation less estimated residual value of each asset on a straight line basis over its estimated useful hfe The estimated
ives of tangible assets as at 31 December 2014 are as follows

Plant and eguipment Three to five years
Software Three to seven years
Depreciation s provided from the month in which the asset 1s available for use

Dividend income
Dividend income 1s recognised when the right to receive payment 1s established

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are imtially recorded at fair value Subsequent valuation depends on the designation of the instruments
Cash deposits and short-term mvestrnents are held at amortised cost Derivative financial instruments are accounted for as
described in note 1 to the consolidated accounts

The company I1s exempt from the disclosure requirements of FRS 29 'Financiat Instruments Disclosures' as the financial
instruments disclosures of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures and IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ are included
in the notes to the consolidated accounts

Foreign currencies

Transactions in a currency other than Sterling are translated to Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and habilities denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at rates of exchange ruhng at the
balance sheet date and exchange differences are taken to profit and loss accounts in the year Non-monetary assets and labilities
are measured in terms of historical cost and are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Interest
Interest 1s recognised in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the effective interest method

Investments

Investments are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value Where equity-settled share-based payments are
granted to the employees of subsidiary companies, the fair value of the award 1s treated as a capital contribution by the company
and the investment in subsidiaries are adjusted to reflect this capital contribution

Pensions

The company participates in the Amec Staff and Executive defined benefit pension schemes The assets of these schemes are
held separately from those of the company The company 1s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and habilities of
the schemes on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore as required by FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits' accounts for these
schemes as If they were defined contribution schemes As aresult the amount charged to the profit and loss account represents
the contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting peried

Details of the defined benefit schermes can be found in note 14 of the consohdated accounts

Remuneration of auditors
The detarled information concerning auditors’ remuneration 1s shown in note 4 of the consolidated accounts
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Notes to the company balance sheet continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Share-based payments

There are share-based payment arrangements which allow Amec Foster Wheeler employees to acquire Amec Foster Wheeler
shares, these awards are granted by Amec Foster Wheeler The farr value of awards granted is recogrised as a cost of employment
with a corresponding increase in equity The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the period durning which the
employees become unconditionally entitied to the award The fair value of the award 1s measured using a valuation model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted The amount recognised as a cost 1s adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest except where non-vesting i1s due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting

Taxation
The charge for taxation 1s based on the results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

Deferred tax i1s recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timung differences between the treatment of certain items for
taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date except as otherwise required
by FRS 19 Deferred Tax’

2 Tangible assets

. _______________________________________________________________________ ]
Plant and

eguipment Software Total
£m £m £m

Cost
As at 1 January 2014 4 30 34
Additiens - 11 11
As at 31 December 2014 4 41 45
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2014 3 4 7
Provided durning the year - 6 0
As at 31 December 2014 3 10 13
Net book value
As at 31 December 2014 1 3 32
As at 1 January 2014 1 26 27

15 8 Amec Foster Wheeler
Annual report and accounts 2014




3 Investments (held as fixed assets)
]

Amounts Total
Sharesin owed by nvestment in
subsidianes subsidiaries subsharies
im Em £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2014 1,525 874 2,399
Exchange and other movements - (15) {15)
Additions 2537 2 2539
Loan repayment - (397 (397)
As at 31 December 2014 4,062 464 4526
Provisions
As at 1 January and 31 December 2014 46 - 46
Net book value
As at 31 December 2014 4,016 464 4,480
As at 1 January 2014 1479 874 2,353
Principal Group companies are hsted on pages 190 to 191
4 Debtors
]
31 Decembar 31 Degember
2014 2013
£m £m
Debtors amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 5 2
Dervative financial instruments 13 5
Corporation tax 24 27
Prepayments and accrued income 5 5
Other debtors - 1
a7 40
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year
Derwvative financial instruments 2 -
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 1100 -
1,149 40

The deferred tax balance i1s analysed as follows
e |

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Em m

Difference between accumulated depreciation and capital allowances (1) 1
Share-based schemes 1 (1)

In his budget speeches on 21 March 2012 and 20 March 2013 the UK Chancellor of the Exchequer announced reductions in the
rate of corporation tax to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 21% from 1 April 2014 and 20% from 1 Apnl 2015

As at 31 December 2014 the reduction in the rate of corporation tax to 20% had been substantively enacted
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Notes to the company balance sheet continued

5 Creditors amounts falling due within one year

31 Dacember 31 December

2014 2013

&m Em

Bank overdrafts 8 i
Bank and cther loans 693 120
Trade creditors 37 2
Derwative financial instruments 12 5
Other taxation and social secunty costs - 14
Other creditors - 4
Accruals - 8
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 1,276 -
2,026 154

The company has committed banking facilities of £1 826m (2013 £477m) This consists of a £377m multi-currency revolving
facility that was taken out on 18 July 2012 The facility 1s committed for five years and 1s available for general corporate purposes

In addition on 13 February 2014 the company entered into acquisition facilities totalling $2,260m {£1 449m) This compnises of the

following

» $250m (£160m) bridge to cash faciity maturing August 2015

» $830m (£532m) bridge facility which matured February 2015 with two further six month extensions at the company s option

» $830m (£532m) term loan matunng in equal instalments in 2017 2018 and 2019 and
» $350m ($225m) revolving credit facility maturing May 2016
It 1s the intention of the Company to refinance the $830m (£532m} bridge facility in the capital markets during 2015

Previously the company had a £100m Sterling term loan for a period of 12 months This was settled in full during the year

As at 31 December 2014 £1,230m (2013 £120m) of the loans and facilities were utilised by way of debt and £159m (2013 nil)

was utiised by way of Letter of Credit

6 Creditors amounts falling due after one year

e e

31 Decembar 31December
2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts owed to subsidianies 794 761
Bank and other loans 528 -
Dervative financial instruments 2 -
1,324 761
|
Amec Foster Wheeler
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7 Share capital

The share capital of the company comprises ordinary shares of 50 pence each All the ordinary shares rank par passu in all
respects To the company's knowledge and belief there are no restnctions on the transfer of shares in the company or on voting
rights between holders of shares

Strategic report

31 Decembar 31 December
20, 2013
£m
Allotted called up and fully paid ordinary shares of 50 pence each 194 152

The movement in 1ssued share capital during the year was as follows

Number £Em
As at 1 January 2014 303,822,854 162
Shares issued 85,052,989 42
As at 31 December 2014 388,875,843 154

Share-based payment
Detalls of share-based payment schemes operated by the company are provided in note 22 to the consolidated accounts

8 Reserves
.|
Share Capital Profit
Share premium redemption and loss.
capital account resenve account Total
£m £m &m £m Em
As at 1 January 2014 162 101 34 1294 1581
Loss for the year - - - 3 (3)
Dwvidends - - - (124) (124)
Equity-settled share-based payments - - - 25 25
Utilisation of treasury shares - - - 6 5]
Shares 1ssued 42 877 - - 919
As at 31 December 2014 194 978 34 1,198 2,404

Details of dividends approved by the company and paid during the year are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated accounts

During 2012 Amec Foster Wheeler plc generated a significant profit from an internal restructuring This becomes distributable
as qualifying consideration 1s passed to Amec Foster Wheeler plc As at 31 December 2014 £746m of reserves are considered
to be distributable

The company's profit for the year In 2013 was £148m
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Notes to the company balance sheet continued

9 Contingent liabilities

Guarantees and indemnities
Guarantees given by the company in respect of borrowings of subsidiaries amounted to £nil as at 31 December 2014 (2013 £nil)

in addition, the company 1s party te cross-guarantee arrangements relating to overdrafts for certain Group companies
The maximum gross exposure as at 31 December 2014 was £34m (2013 £20m)

The company will guarantee the debts and habilities of the following UK subsidiaries in accordance with Section 479C
of the Companies Act 2006

Amec Foster Wheeler Finance Asia Limited (Registered number 6205760)

AMEC Hedge Co 1 Limited (Registered number 07870120)

AMEC Kazakhstan Heldings Limited (Registered number 4530056)

Amec Foster Wheeler Property and Overseas Investrments Limited (Registered number 1580678)
AMEC USA Finance Limited (Registered number 5299446)

AMEC USA Holdings Limited (Registered number 4041261)

AMEC USA Limited (Registered number 4044800)

Pl Energy & Emissions Limited (Registered number SC209704)

Sandiway Solutions (No 3) Limited (Registered number 5318249)

Sigma Financial Facihities Limited (Registered number 3863449)

The company has assessed the probability of loss under these guarantees as remote

10 Related party transactions

During the year the only related party transactions for which disclesure 1s required under FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures
were with the senior management group As allowed by FRS B transactions with wholly owned subsidiary undertakings are
not disclosed

Transactions with the senior management group
The senior management group of the company consists of Amec Foster Wheeler plc board members

The senior management group of the company and therr immediate relatives controlled Q 60% of the voting nghts of the company
as at 31 December 2014

In addition to their salaries the company also provides nen-cash benefits to executive directors and other senior managers and
they receive share awards under the Performance Share Plan The company also contributes to a defined benefit plan on behalf
of certain executive directors Detalls of their compensation are as follows

2014 2013

£m &m

Short-term employee benefits 3 4
Pension costs - -
Equity-settled share-based payments 1 3
4 7
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History and development

Detaits of incorporation

Amec Foster Wheeler pic (formerly AMEC plic)is a publhc imited
company that 1s incorporated in England and Wales with the
registered number 01675285

AMEC plc changed its name to Amec Foster Wheeler plc on
13 November 2014 when it took control of Foster Wheeler AG

The Company's registered office Is situated at Booths Park
Chelford Road Knutsford Cheshire WA16 8QZ UK

The Company operates under Enghsh law

The Company s agent in the US 1s CT Corporation whose contact
address 1s 111 Esghth Avenue, New York, New York 10011, US

Origins

AMEC plc was formed in 1982, when Fairclough Construction
merged with William Press Group The Matthew Hall Group
of Companies was acquired in 1988 As a business, we can
trace our history back over 150 years to the origins of these
predecessor companies

Subsequent transformation

Inrecent years the Group s activities have been transformed
by exiting from civil construction and becoming a consultancy
engineering and project management business We have
achieved this transformation through a combination of orgamic
growth acquisitions and divestment of non-core activities

» In 2000 we acquired AGRA Inc a North American
environmental, engineering and construction services
company and Ogden Environmental and Energy Services
Co Inc, a US environmental consulting company

» In 2005 we acquired Paragon Engineering Services, Inc ,
a Houston-based o1l and gas engineering services company
and NNC Holdings Limited a UK nuclear consultancy and
engineering busimness

+ In 2007, we sold our UK-based civil construction businesses

» N 2008 we acquired Geomatrix Consultants inc a Calfornia-
based technical consulting and engineering firm, Rider Hunt
International Limited a project services company to the il
gas, chemical, energy and process industries and Bower
Damberger Rolseth Engineering Limited

» In 2008, we sold our wind developments business

» {0 2009 we acquired GRD Limited, an engineering and project
delivery company based in Perth, Australia specialising in the
design procurement and construction of mineral projects

» in 2010, we acquired Entec Heldings Limited a UK-based
environmental and engineering consultancy company

» in 2011 we acquired MACTEC Inc a US engineering and
environmental services company, and QED International
Limrted, or ged, an oIl and gas completions and
COMMISSIONING SErVICeS company

» In 2012 we acquired Energy Safety and Risk Consultants
(UK)Limited or ESRC, a UK-based nuclear technical services
business Unidel Group Pty Limited or Unidel a consulting
engineenng and techncal services company serving
Australia’s energy resources and infrastructure sectors,
and a 50% stake in Kromav Engenhana Ltda or KROMAV
a participant in the Brazihan o1l and gas market

Amec Foster Wheeler
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» in 2013 we acquired Automated Engineening Services Corp
a US design engineering nuclear services firm which provides
support to existing nuclear utilities

Between 1997 and 2006, we bought and sold interests in SPIE
which provided electrical engineering. communications services
and specialist activities in the energy and rail industries
predorminantly in France

Developments during 2014

Acquisition of Foster Wheeler

In Navember 2014, the Company acquired control of Foster
Wheeler AG a leading internationa! engineering construction
and project management contractor and power equipment
suppler, by way of a public tender offer

Foster Wheeler AG was a Swiss-registered company that
was isted on NASDAQ inthe US At 31 December 2014 the
Company owned through a wholly-owned subsidiary, 35 3%
of the issued share capital of Foster Wheeler AG Details of
the acquisition are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements

During January 2015 the Company acquired the remaining
shares in Foster Wheeler AG by way of a so-called squeeze-
out merger’ conducted under Swiss law and Foster Wheeler
AG merged with and into one of the Company s wholly-owned
subsidiaries

At the time of the acquisition Foster Wheeler had around
12,000 employees and operated in over 30 countries Foster
Wheeler operates through two business groups

» E&C Services, which designs, engineers and constructs
onshore and offshore upstream oll and gas processing
faciities natural gas hquefaction faciities and receiving
terminals, gas-to-liquids facilties, oll refining, chemical and
petrochemical, pharmaceutical and iotechnology facilities
and related infrastructure, Inchuding power generation
faciities, distribution facilities, gasification facilities and
processing faciities associated with the minerals and
metals sector and is also invelved in the design of facilities
in developing market sectors, including carbon capture and
storage solid fuel-fired integrated gasification combined-cycle
power plants, coal-to-liquids coal-to-chemicals and biofuels,
and

» Global Power Group, which designs, manufactures and installs
steam generators and auxihary equipment for electric power
generating stations, district heating and power plants and
industnal facilities worldwide and also provides a wide range
of aftermarket services

Acquisition of Scopus

In December 2014, the Company acquired Scopus Group
(Holdings) Lirmited (Scopus) Headguartered in Aberdeen
UK., with bases ininternational oil and gas hubs, Scopus has
around 200 employees who provide speciahst engineering
services to the global ol and gas petrochemical and nuclear
industries Details of the acquisition are set out in note 24

to the consolidated financial statements
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Risk factors

We describe below those risks and uncertainties that we
consider to be significant because their outcome may have

a material adverse effect on the Group's business financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows We have not listed
these risks and uncertainties in any particular order of prionty
Other risks and uncertainties that are currently unknown to us
or that are known but not considered by us to be significant
could also have such material adverse effects

Adverse global economic conditions or other
macro-economic developments in the geographic

regions and markets in which we operate.

We expect to denve the majonity of our revenue from the OiIl &
Gas market Combining Foster Wheeler s mid- and downstream
capabilities with our existing upstream capabilities has resulted
In greater exposure across the Onl & Gas value chain Many

Qil & Gas companies are reducing their capital expenditure

in response to market and investor pressure

In our other markets such as Clean Energy, spending

by customers will depend on cost developments for new
technolegies, support for government initiatives and the
availlabihty of funding for projects whilst demand forraw
materials from China may have a significant impact on Mining
projects We have experienced increased competition for new
contracts and some customers have requested different less
favourable contract terms due to these conditions

We expect to denve the majonity of our revenue from Europe
the US and Canada and will be exposed to the impact of
global and local economic conditions affecting these regions
We may therefore be adversely affected if conditions in these
regions detenorate

Adverse or volatile economic conditions may impact hquidity
and the availability of credit, as well as the demands of
investors for greater returns in these markets, which may

in turn influence customer spending on capital Investment
and/or asset maintenance and may result in delays or
cancellation of projects

If we are unable to successfully anticipate changing econormic
and pohtical conditions affecting the jurisdictions and markets
n which we operate we may be unable to effectively plan for
or respond to those changes

Risks associated with operating in emerging markets.

We conduct a portion of our operations in emerging markets
Going forward, we expect that our operations will be more heavily
focused in the Middle East, as well as in other emerging markets
such as Latin America and parts of Asia Our operations in these
markets are exposed to risks that may not be encountered in
countries with more well-established economic and political
systems whichinclude, to a greater or lesser extent changes in
international governmental regulations trade restrictions and
laws tariffs and cther barriers, the potential for nationalisation

of enterprises or government policies favouring local production
renegotiation or nullifrcation of existing agreements, fluctuations
1IN interest rates and currency exchange rates, the introduction of
exchange controls and other restrnictions by foreign governments,
timeliness of client payments differing protections for intellectual
property and enforcement thereof and divergent environmental
laws and regulations
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Continuing political and social unrest in the Middle East may
have a negative impact on exishng and future opportunities
in the region

Changes in commodity prices may impact demand

for our services.

Commodity prices are volatile and are influenced by a
number of external factors, including the supply of and
demand for commodities, speculative activities by market
participants, global political and economic conditions the
levels of production in major commodity-producing countries
and the costs of exploring for developing, producing and
delivering the commodities Fluctuations in commodity prices
may impact customer spending on capital investment and
asset maintenance and may result in delays or cancellation
of projects

A sustained reduchion in orl pnices may adversely impact
investment in both il and gas preduction by driving
international oIl comparies to focus on ways in which they
can be more capital efficient Such companies may choose to
reduce overall levels of upstream capital expenditure and look
at optiens to improve the efficiency of cperating expenditure
Fluctuations in the price of metals and minerals such as gold
and copper, have alsc impacted mining customer spending

Such dechnes in the levels of customer spending as a result
of a reduction in commodity prices could negatively impact
our operations Any delay deferral or size reduction in our

customers projects may restrict the opportunities availlable
to us for organic growth and the achieverment of our targets

Expected cost, revenue and tax synergies tn relation

to the acquisition of Foster Wheeler may not be achieved
or may be materially lower than has been estimated.

We expect that the acquisition of Foster Wheeler will produce
significant cost and revenue synergies We estimate that the
acquisition will create cost synergies of at least US$125m per
year. princtpally from overhead reduction and the removat of
other administrative cost duplication with the full benefit of
the cost synergies estimated to be realised by the third year
after completion of the acquisition We also believe that the
acquisition will result in a number of operational benefits, such
as greater scale in Latin Amenica the Middle East and Asia and
cross-selling opportunities to a combined customer base If we
are not able to successfully complete the integration process
in an etficient and effective manner, the anticipated synergies
may not be realised fully or at all or may take longer to realise
than expected

Furthermore any expected revenue synergies may not
matenalise or may be offset by competing commercial
considerations anising out of the acquisition for example,

our existing business and Foster Wheeler may act for
competing private sector customers which, for confidentiality
reasons, may not wish to award work to businesses that also
provide services to their competitors

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Integration of Foster Wheeler involves numerous
challenges that may be more time-consuming and costly
than expected.

Qur future success may, In part depend upon our abihty

to integrate Foster Wheeler without disruption to our existing
businesses The integration process i1s complex and will require
the co-ordinated efforts of our management teams and
employees Integration may take longer than expected may
prove more difficult than currently anticipated or unanticipated
difficulbies may anse thereby posing a risk to our profitability

A significant amount of management s time will be required to
achieve the integraticn of the businesses, and this may distract
the management team from running our ongoing businesses

In addition it 1s possible that certain key personnel may leave
during the integration period and the management team may
be required to spend additional ime and money hiring suitable
replacements

We currently estimate that we will incur approxamately
US3$75m to US$90m in costs over the first two years following
completion of the acquisition in order to achieve the expected
cost synergies However the costs of achieving the expected
synergies may be higher than we anticipate or there may be
significant additional unanticipated costs that we may not be
able to recover

Adverse changes in macro-economic, market and other
conditions could resuit in the impairment of goodwill and
other intangible assets.

Goodwillis tested for iImpairment annually, or more often if

an event or circumstance indicates that it may be mpaired
Other intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is an indication of imparrment An imparrment test s an
assessment of whether the carrying amount of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of the future cash flows that
are expected to be derived from it either by use in the business
or from sale Anmpairment test requires management to make
certain critical assumptions including future sales volumes
profit margins and long-term growth rates and to determine an
appropriate discount rate to apply to the estimated cash flows
Other factors that may affect revenue and profitability (for
example intensifying competition pricing pressures regulatory
changes and other industry developments) are also considered
Discount rates are based on current yields on government
bonds the level of which may change substantially from period
to pertod and which may be affected by political and economic
developments which are beyond our control

Animparrment loss may be recogmsed in the future if there 1s
an adverse change Iin the assumptions undertying the estimated
future cash flows or in the discount rates applied to those

cash flows Whilst an impairment loss does not in itself affect
cash flows 1t may be an indication that future cash flows wll
decline Moreover no assurance can be given that any future
imparrment loss would not affect the Company’s distributable
reserves and, therefore, our ability to pay dvidends to

our shareholders
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Failure to meet customer expectations on project delivery
could result in damage to our reputation and/or loss of
repeat business and potentially lead to litigation.

Many of the contracts which we enter into with cur customers
are long term and may contain liguidated damages clauses
relating to on-time delivery and/or hquidated damages relating
to performance and/cr hability in respect of unliguidated
damages A number of factors including failure to follow

best practice guidelines could mean that projects are not
delivered to time cost, quality or appropniate health, safety and
environmental standards and therefore do not meet customer
expectations or the expectations of the relevant third party

Any fallure to deliver in accordance with customer expectations
could subject us to damages and/or reduce our margins

on these contracts Failure to meet custormer expectations
may also result in disputes or hitigation cancelled contracts
addibional costs incurred in excess of current contract
provisions, or back-charges for alleged breaches of warranty
and cther contract commitments

Damage to reputation or loss of repeat business as a result
of our failure to meet our customers expectations could
negatively mpact our ability to win new contracts in the future

Long-term contracts may be subject to early termination,
variation or non-renewal provisions.

We enter into long-term contracts with customers, which are
performed over a period that may exceed two years Such
contracts may be terminated earlier than expected, either within
the relevant notice pertods or upon default or non-performance
by ourselves which may result in additional costs If adequate
compensation 1s not recewved

Projects included in our order book may be delayed

or cancelled.

Changes in project scope or schedule create uncertamnty as
to the portion of orders that can be performed or the amount
of revenue that will be recogrused in any given year Customers
may also not be able to secure the necessary financing and
approvals for ther progjects, which could result in a defay or
canceliation of the proposed project Even where a project
proceeds as scheduled 1it1s possible that contracted parties
may default and faill to pay amounts owed Furthermore,
fluctuations in currency exchange rates may affect the value
of the order book As a result of these uncertainties the order
book may not be a reliable indicator of our future revenue

or profitabihty

165

Governance Strategic report

Financials

Additional information




Risk factors continued

Lump-sum contracts are more subject to unanticipated
modifications, technical problems and delays.

Prior to the acguisition of Foster Wheeler, we usually entered
into reimbursable contracts but in imited circumstances
where the custorner and project are well known to us such

as with work for the US federal government or in the Clean
Energy business in the Americas or on occasion in other AMEC
businesses we have entered into lump-sum contracts in which
we contracted based upon specifications and other design
information provided by the customer

Comparatively Foster Wheeler historically entered into a higher
percentage of lump-sum contracts including lump-sum turnkey
contracts and other fixed-price contracts, mostly within its
Global Power Group

Lump-sum contracts carry different nsks than reimbursable
contracts because the selling price of the project i1s agreed
based on estimates at the time the contractor enters into the
contract and the contractor assumes a greater proportion of
the risks associated with completing the project In particular
in the EPC contracts in which we engage, the contractor often
assumes the risk of variations from original contract projections
due to engineering design changes or project modifications
that the contractor has to make after submitting its tender
There may also be unanticipated technical problems with

the equipment being supplied or developed by the contractor,
changes In the costs of components matenals or labour
difficulties in obtaining required governmental permits or
approvals, changes in labour conditions and other unexpected
delays or costs We may incur a loss on contracts that are
subject to these amendments if we are unable to obtain a
variation of the contract or are not sufficiently reimbursed for
the costs incurred as a result of these changes or modifications

We may lose key management or face difficulty n
attracting and retaining appropriately skilled personnel.
Our future success Is dependent on our abiity to attract and
retain key management, qualhfied engineering managers and
lead engineers project managers and other highly skilled
personngl It will beé particularly important for us to retain the
expertise of Foster Wheeler s management and personnel in
markets and jurisdictions in which we were not involved befare
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler Many of the markets in which
we operate continue to experience a scarcity of resources for
key positions and we face intense competition for suitably
guabfied and experienced personnel from other companies
and organmisations

While we may have appropriately qualified and experienced
personnel, we may find it difficult to move them between
projects and regions and this could impact our ability to meet
obligations under our contracts

Senior management departures or prolonged absences key
personnel shortages and difficulties in relocating our personnel
could adversely affect our ability to smplement our strategy and
manage our operations efficiently
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Failure to comply with health, safety and environmental
laws may result in losses.

We are subject to numerous laws regulations and pohcies
concerning the protection of health safety and the
environment, such as those concerning the use and production
of waste and by-products considered to be hazardous under the
envircnmental laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which
we operate including nuclear and other low-level radioactive
matenals the remediation of environmental contamination
waste water and waste disposal or that otherwise relate to
environmental protection Failure to comply with such laws,
regulations and policies and non-compliance could potentially
lead to reputational damage fines litigation and claims for
compensation which can be substantial Such faillure may also
result In the withdrawal or suspension of licences and permits
or we may be forced to undertake extensive remedial ¢clean-up
action or to pay for government-ordered remedial clean-up
achions, even incases where such hazards have been caused
by third parties

We may be subject to habihties for environmental
contarmination as an owner or operator (or former owner

or operator) of a facility or as a generator of hazardous
substances without regard to negligence or fault Qur Clean
Energy business is involved in providing services to operators
and utihties in the full hifecycle of nuclear energy from new
bBuild and reactor support to nuclear decommissioning and the
management of radioactive and hazardous matenals We could
therefore be exposed to rnisks associated with the nuclear
industry and the impact of nuclear regulation As part of any
contract involving work or services at or m connection with
nuclear facilities we typically require an indemnity in respect
of nuclear habiity from our customers Where an indemnity 1s
not prowided international nuclear conventions such as the
Paris Convention and the Vienna Convention, protect us against
labihty, prowvided that our contracting entity 1s registered in a
country which 1s a signatory of the relevant convention In cases
where our customers are not prepared to provide an indemnity
of this nature and no protection 1s provided by international
convention, we may be required to bear the cost of such
habilities in addition to any reputational damage

Changes in environmental laws and regulations remediation
obligations, enforcement actions, stricter interpretations of
existing requirements future discovery of contarmination or
claims for damages to persons property natural resources
or the environment could resuit in unanticipated materiai
costs and hiabilities
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A major safety incident could lead to reputational damage
and increase potential liabilities.

We are involved In activities and environments that can be
dangerous and that have the potential to cause serious injury
to personnel or damage to property or the environment Our
projects are increasingly complex and place employees and
others near large equipment, dangerous processes, highly
regulated materials or in remote and challenging environments
We are responsible for the safety and secunity of our employees
travelling on company business and while working at project
sites and of third-party personnel while working at project

sites under our supervision and, accordingly, must implement
safety procedures

Failure to comply with such procedures may cause us to be
subject to losses and hability under client contracts or statutory
regulations Any failure in health and safety performance

which results in 2 major or significant health and safety or
environmental incident 1s likely to result in additional costs

in terms of potential habilities or remediation costs Such

fallure could generate significant adverse publicity resuliing

n employee turnover and damage to cur reputation which

may adversely impact our ability to win new business

Failure or security breaches of our IT systems and/or data
security or failure to effectively integrate Foster Wheeler's
IT systems may result in losses.

We are dependent on the efficient operation of our IT systems
Such systems may fall and/cr sensitive data held by them

may be lost Information and commurication systems are

by their nature suscephble to internal and external security
breaches, including computer hacker and cyber terrorist
breaches employee wilful breaches and the risk of employees
succumbing to cniminal scamming from external sources, and
can fail or become unavailable for a significant period of time

A significant perfermance failure of the Group's IT systems
could lead to loss of control over critical business, project
infarmation and/or systems (such as design toals contract
costs invaicing payroll management and/or internal reporting)
resulting in an adverse impact ¢n the ability to operate
effectively or to fulfil contractual obligations Such failure may
In turn lead to a loss of customers revenue and profitabiiity
and the incurring of significant remedial costs

Qur operations are especially dependent on the use of internal
data and customer data We have incurred and will continue to
incur expenses to comply with mandatory privacy and security
standards and protocols imposed by law, regulation, industry
standards or contractual obligations relating to the collection
use and security of personal information data Farure to comply
with such data privacy laws and regulations may result in fines
penalties claims and reputational damage Additionally if data
security controls fail, there i1s a risk that we will unintentionally
disclose protected or sensitive data, including important
intellectual property which could lead to the violation of client
confidentiality agreements reputational harm and the loss of
critical data
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We have developed a plan to harmonise Foster Wheeler s IT
systems with our own As a result of the differences between
our existing IT systems and Foster Wheeler s there can be no
assurance that this harmonisation will be successful We may
expertence failures in either Foster Wheeler s IT systems or our
own as we work to integrate them

Failure to comply with anti-corruption laws and
regulations, economic sanction programmes or other laws
and regulations may resutt in us becoming subject to fines
or penalties and the disruptron of our business activities.
Many of the countries in which we operate have anti-corruption
laws and regulations that restrict the offer or payment of
anything of value to government officials or other persons with
the ntent of ganing business or favourable government action
We are subject to these laws and regulations, including the

US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 and the UK Bribery
Act 2010 Additionally economic sanctions programmes
including those administered by the United Nations, the EU

and the US Office of Foreign Asset Control restrict our business
dealings with certain sanctioned countries Many of these
regulations and sanctions programmes establish record-
keeping obligations

We are exposed to the rnisk of violating anti-corruption laws

and sanctions regulations applicable in those countries where
we, our partners or agents operate Some of the locations in
which we currently operate lack a developed legal system have
high levels of corruption and have proven to be susceptible to
the occurrence of fraud Whilst we mandate compliance with
relevant policies laws and regulations (including anti-corruption
laws) and have implemented procedures and controls to
monitor internal and external compliance, there can be no
assurance that our policies and procedures will be followed

at all times or will effectively detect and/or prevent violations
of the applicable laws or other fraudulent activity by one or
more of our employees consultants subcentractors agents

or partners

Violations of anti-corruption laws and sanctions regulations
are punishable by civil penalties, including fines, denial of
export priviteges, Injunctions, asset seizures, debarment from
government contracts (and termination of existing contracts)
and revocations or restrictions of Iicences, as well as criminal
tines and impnisonment In addition any major violations of
policy, law or regulation (including instances of fraud) could
have a significant impact on our reputation and consequently
on our ability to win future business
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Risk factors continued

Funding risks In relation to defined benefit pension
schemes.

We operate a number of defined benefit pension schemes,
where careful judgement is required in determining the
assumptions for future salary and pension increases (for those
plans that are not frozen), discount rate, inflation, iInvestment
return and member longevity We expect to continue to cperate
these schemes although the most significant schemes are now
closed to new entrants Based on our current assumptions

we expect that we will be able to fund these pension schemes
without seeking recourse to additional external ftnancing
Actual outcomes could however differ from our assumptions
For example a prolonged period of lower than expected asset
returns and/or unexpected increases in longevity could create
or worsen a funding shortfall on one or more of the schemes

N which circumstances we rmay agree or be required to make
additional cash contnibutions to the schemes to eliminate the
funding shortfall If significant, such additional contributions
may constrain our ability to invest in acquisitions or undertake
capital expenditure thereby adversely impacting our growth
and profitability

If the actual number and/or cost to the Group of resolving
asbestos-related claims is higher than expected., there
may be an adverse effect on our cash flows and our results
to the extent that the additional cost i1s not covered by
insurance, or expected insurance recoveries are not,

in fact, realised.

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries have been named

as defendants in numerous lawsuits and out-of-court
administrative claims in which the plaintiffs claim damages for
alleged bodily injury or death arising from exposure to asbestos
primarily in connection with asbestos placed by others on
steam-generating units and auxiliary equipment assembled,
installed and/or seld, by those subsidiaries Inthe US, certain
of Foster Wheeler's subsidiaries have received ¢laims alleging
personal injuries due to contracting work performed by

them and more rarely from exposure to asbestos-containing
components installed in therr steam-generating units and
auxihary equipment We expect that these subsidiaries will be
named as defendants in additional and/or similar suits and
that new claims will be filed in the future Whilst some of these
claims have been and are expected to be made in the UK the
overwhelming majonty have heen and are expected to be made
nthe US

We have provided for the estimated indemmity amounts and
defence costs that we expect to incur in relation to open and
expected future asbestos-related claims in each year in the
period to 2050 We have also recognised the estimated future
recoveries under our Insurance arrangements against the costs
of resolving these claims
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It 1s possible that the actual number of future claims brought
against us and the cost of resolving pending and future claims
could be substantially higher than expected due to a number
of factors which include

» an increase In the rate at which new claims are filed and
increases in the number of new claimants

» adverse changes in the mix of diseases alleged to be sutfered
by the claimants

» adverse changes in the mix of claimants making allegations

» INcreases in Indemmnity payments or defence costs associated
with asbestos-related claims

» decreases In the proportion of claims dismissed with zero
indemnity payments,

» Indemnity payments being required to be made sooner than
expected,

» adverse fluctuations inthe discountrate (e g the 30-year US
Treasury rate) used to discount the prowvision for asbestos-
related claims and related insurance recoveries,

» adverse changes to forecasting estimation or valuation
assumphions or methaodologies (whether related to potenhal
habilities, claims and/or associated costs)

» payment of damages in amounts greater than expected, and

» adverse changes in legislative or Judicial standards governing
the filing handling or resoclution of asbestos-related claims

Whilst certain of these claims are covered by insurance, the
settlements that we made with our insurers were sometimes
for fixed monetary amounts and/or provide cover only for
claims made before a specified future date Accordingly. a
future increase in the Group's asbestos-related Lhabilities would
not result in an equivalent increase in the amount recoverable
from those insurers It 1s also possible that insurance recoveries
may not be realised in full and on time or at all, due to insurer
Insolvency or for some other reason To the extent that any
defence and/or indemnity costs incurred by us for open and
expected future asbestos-related claims are not covered by
Insurance proceeds, we would be responsible for the payment
of those costs, which would adversely affect our cash flows

Obligations and lLiabilities relating to divested and
non-core businesses.

We remain at risk to potential iibigation and business claims

in relation to divested and non-core businesses where we

have provided custormary warranties to the purchaser or have
centinuing obligatiens such as to carry out environmental
remediation Where appropriate we have made provision for
these obligations but it 1s possible that the actual costs incurred
in setthing any claims will matenally exceed those provisions
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Performance measures

We assess the financial performance of our businesses using a variety of measures Certam of these measures are particularly
important and we have termed them key performance indicators’ We refer to these measures in the strategic report and use
thernin presentations to investors Inthis sechion we explain the relevance to us of each of these measures and show how they
are calculated

Somne of these measures are non-IFRS measures because they exclude amounts that are included in or include amounts that are
excluded from, the most directly comparable measure calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS, or are calculated using
financial measures that are not calculated in accordance with IFRS We do not regard these non-IFRS measures as a substitute
for, ar superior to, the equivalent measures calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS and it should be noted that they
may not be comparable with similarly-titled measures used by other comparies

Scope revenue
Scope revenue represents reported revenue less flow-through procurement revenue

Flow-through procurement revenue and costs are recognised when we purchase matenals equipment or third-party services for our
customers on a reimbursable basis We do not recognise any profit on flow-through procurement costs Scope revenue s a non-fFRS
measure that we present because it represents the revenue that we have earned from providing services to cur customers We use
scope revenue in the calculation of trading margin because our margins would otherwise be reduced by flow-through revenue on
which we earn no profit and would fluctuate from one penod to another depending on the extent of procurement activities

2014 2013 2012
£&m £m &m

Continuing operations
Revenue 3,993 3974 4088
Flow-through procurement revenue (73) (120) (320)
Scope revenue 3,920 3854 3768

Profitability measures

Management uses three measures of profitability that are not recognised measures under IFRS trading profit trading margin
and adjusted profit before tax Each of these measures 1s based on an IFRS measure of profit but excludes specific items whose
inclusion in the IFRS measure hinders the comparison of the trading performance of our businesses from one periwod to another,
with each other or with those of our competitors

Management has identified the following specific items that are excluded in arriving at these non-IFRS measures exceptional
items the amortisation of intangible assets and asbestos-related costs (net of Insurance recoveries) Exceptional items are items
of income and expense that are material by their size, incidence or nature and may include but are not restnicted to acquisition-
related costs, restructuning costs, gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets and gains and losses on the disposal or

closure of businesses Acquisition-related costs may include transaction costs (including external advisory legal valuation and
other professional fees and attributable internal costs), the amortisation of acquisition-related facifity fees payments to selling
shareholders that are accounted for as remuneration and changes in the fair value of contingent consideration Exceptional items
that were recogmised in continuing operations are analysed in note 5 to the conschidated financial statements

Trading profit, trading margin and adjusted profit before tax exclude items that can have a significant effect on the Group s profit
or loss and should, therefore, be used in conjunction with and not as a substitute for, the equwvalent IFRS measures Management
compensates for these imitations by separately monitoring the items that are excluded from the equivalent IFRS measures in
calculating these non-IFRS measures

Trading profit
Trading profit represents profit before net financing expense excluding exceptional items, the amortisation of intangible assets, and
asbestos-related costs (net of insurance recoveries) Trading profit includes the Group s share of the trading profit of joint ventures

Trading profit 15 the measure used by management to assess the trading performance of the Group's individual businesses and s the
measure of segment profit that we present under IFRS Trading profit 1s a men-IFRS measure when presented on a consolidated basis

2014 2013 2012
£m £m im

Continuing operations
Profit before net financing expense 148 243 243
intangibles amortisation 49 47 44
Net asbestos-related costs 8 - -
Exceptional tems 94 25 24
Share of trading profit of joint ventures 22 28 23
Trading profit 321 343 334
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Performance measures continued

Trading margin
Trading margin represents trading profit expressed as a percentage of scope revenue

Trading margin 1s a non-IFRS measure that 1s used by management to measure the success of our businesses in managing their
cost base and \mproving profitability

£m unless stated otherwise 2014 2013 2012
Continuing operations

Scope revenue 3,920 3854 3768
Trading profit 321 343 334
Trading margin 8.2% 895% 89%

Adjusted profit before tax
Adjusted profit before tax represents profit before tax before exceptional items, the amortisation of intangible assets asbestos-
related costs and interest expense (net of insurance recoveries) and the Group s share of tax on the results of joint ventures

Adjusted profit before tax Is a non-IFRS measure that 1s used by management to assess the trend in the Group s overall profitability

2014 2013 2012
£m £Zm £m

Continuing operations
Profit before tax 155 255 254
Intangibles amortisation 49 47 44
Net asbestos-related expense 9 - -
Exceptional iterns o8 25 24
Share of Income tax of joint ventures 6 5 5
Adjusted profit before tax 317 332 327

Cash flow measures

Trading cash flow (previously operating cash flow)

Trading cash flow represents cash generated from operations before cash flows arising from exceptional itemns, asbestos-related
payments (net of iInsurance recoveries), the difference between retirement benefit contributions and the current service cost
legacy settlements and discontinued operations and currency translation differences on working capital but including dwidends
received from joint ventures

Trading eash flow 1s a non-IFRS measure which 1s an indicator of the Group's ability to generate cash from its continuing operations
before taking into account exceptional items and the servicing of long-term obligations and the settlement of legacy 1ssues

L _____________________________________|]
2014 2013 2012

£m £m £m
Cash generated from operations 200 292 271
Net asbestos-related payments 5 - -
Excess of pension contributions over current service cost 2 - 5
Cash outflow on exceptional items 58 21 19
Legacy settlements and discontinued operations 9 14 -
Currency translation differences (5) 6 6
Dwvidends received from jount ventures 14 8 1n
Trading cash flow 283 341 312

Cash conversion
Cash conversion represents trading cash flow expressed as a percentage of trading profit Cash conversion i1s a non-IFRS measure
that we use as a measure of the efficiency of our businesses in converting their trading results into cash

£m unless stated otherwise 2014 2013 2012
Trading cash flow 283 341 312
Trading profit 321 343 334
Cash conversion 88% 99% 93%
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Other measures

Underlying change in revenue

Management uses the undertying change mn revenue to measure the organic growth of our businesses retative to each other,
to our markets and to our competitors

We define the underlying change as the year-on-year change excluding the effect of flow-through procurement, acquisitions
and disposals of businesses and currency exchange rate movements

Underlying change — 2014 compared with 2013
|

Currency IIUS';:::EE: Undertying Underlying
2013 translaton procurement Acquisitions change 20)4 change
£m £m Em £Em &m £m %
Continuing operations
Americas 2247 (193) {70) 17 71 2072 +4%
Europe 1227 8 - 1 (101 1119 -8%
Growth Regions 536 (37) - - 91 590 +18%
Investment Services 6 - - - - 6 0%
Intercompany eliminations 42) - - - 26) (68) n/a
AMEC 3974 (238) (70} 18 35 3,719 +1%
E&C Services 221
Globat Power Group 53
Foster Wheeler 274
Amec Foster Wheeler 3,993

Underlying change — 2013 compared with 2012
]

Change in
Currency  flow through Underlying Underlywng
2012 translation procurementi Acquisitions change 2013 chan;

&m £m &m £m £m £m %2

Continuing operations
Americas 2 500 (10) (200) 13 (56) 2247 2%
Europe 1080 1 - 29 117 1227 +11%
Growth Regions 531 (13) - 8 10 536 +2%
Investment Services 9 - - - (3) 6 0%
Interccmpany eliminations (32) - - - (10) (42) n/a
AMEC 4,088 (22) {200) 50 58 34974 +2%

Adjusted diluted EPS

Adjusted dituted earnings per share represents profit for the year from continuing operations before exceptional items the
amortisation of intangible assets asbestos-related costs and interest expense (net of insurance recovenes) and the tax effect
of those items divided by the diluted number of ordinary shares

Growth in adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations is an indicator of the underlying trend in the Group's ability to generate
earnings and may be useful to nvestors in assessing the value of the Company s ordinary shares (for example, by way of price
earnings multiples)

Whilst IFRS does not define any adjusted EPS measures the presentaton of such measures is permitted in financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS Accordingly. reconciiations of adjusted diluted EPS to diluted EPS from continuing operations
for each penod presented are included in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements
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Performance measures continued

Dividend cover
Dwvidend cover 1s a non-IFRS measure that represents adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations as a multiple of the
dividend per ordinary share

Whilst dividend cover 1s an indicator of the sustainability of future dividend payments in the context of the Group s underlying
trading performance we can only pay dividends to the extent of the Company's accumulated distributable reserves

2014 2013 2012
Dwidend per ordinary share 43 3p' 42 0p 365p
Adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations 79.5p 872p 78 6p
Dividend cover 18x 21x 22x

1 Includes the proposed final dividend for 2014 of 28 5 pence per ordinary share

Order book

Qur order book represents the total remaining value of secured projects to be executed up to any break point in the relevant
contracts Contracts are included in our order book only when they are signed and we do not include contracts won by joint
ventures

Our order book and order intake are ssgnificant indicators of our future revenues As at 31 December 2014, our order book was
£6 3bn (2013 £4 1bn) We discuss significant recent contract wins in the strategic report on page 18
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Prior year operating results

Continuing operations
|

Underlywng
£m unless stated 2013 2012 Changa change?
Reported under IFRS
Revenue 3,974 4088 -3%

Profit before net

financing expense 243 243 0%

Profit before tax 255 254 0%

Profit for the year 186 207 -10%

Adjusted measures?

Scope revenue 3.854 3,768 2% +2%
Trading profit 343 334 +3%

Trading margin 8.9% 89% Obps

Adjusted profit before tax 332 327 +2%

1 Restated for the adoption of IAS 19 {Revised 2011) Employee Benefits
and the reclassification of the UK conventional power business as a
discontinued operation

2 See Perfoermance measures on pages 169 to 172

Revenue
Revenue for the year declined by 3% compared with 2012
to £3974m (2012 £4 088m)

Revenue declined across all regions in the mining market to
£493m (2012 £682m) Revenue from unconventional oit and
gas (0l sands) in Canada declined to £510m (2012 £568m)
primarily the result of reduced service and flow-through
procurement activity at the Kearl ol sands facility

Revenue from conventional oil and gas increased by £237m
primarily as a result of growth in the number of brownfield
projects across the world

Currency exchange rate movements reduced revenue by £22m
in 2013 compared with 2012

Excluding flow-through procurement, underlying revenue
increased by 2% dniven by growth in o1l and gas and
renewables

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were £293m (2012 £289m) including
intangibles amortisation and exceptional costs totalling £65m
(2012 £68m)

Administrative expenses before intangibles amortisation and
exceptional costs increased by 3% to £228m (2012 £221m)
principally due to the inclusion for a full year of the administrative
expenses of ESRC which was acquired during 2012 and
increased corporate costs

Corpoerate costs which comprise the costs of operating central
corporate functions and certain regional overheads ncreased
by £2m to £35m (2012 £33m)

Profit before net financing expense
Profit before net financing expense was unchanged compared
with 2012 at £243m

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Intangible assets principally compnse goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets that were recognised in relation to acquired
businesses

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 15 subject to an annuat
impairment test Noimpairment was recogrised in either 2013
or 2012

Intangibles amortisation was £47m (2012 £44m), the increase
being due to the full-year impact of acquisitions completed

in 2012 and accelerated amortisation of the intangible assets
recognised on a prior year acquisition

Exceptional items

Exceptional costs and losses totalling £25m (2012 £24m)
were recogrmised in arriving at profit before tax from continuing
operations, as follows

» exceptional costs of £18m which comprised transaction costs
of £4m and restructuring costs of £14m associated with the
re-orgamsation of the management structure of the Group
into geographical business units

» a loss of £7m ansing from adjustments to provisions made in
respect of disposals and closures of businesses in prior years

Additionally in 2013 there was an exceptional iIncome tax
expense of £16m due to the prowvision for potential withholding
tax following a group restructuring that resulted in significant
amounts of cash being repatnated from foreign subsidiaries

Trading profit and trading margin
. _____________________________________________________________|

Underlying
£Lm unless stated 2013 2012 Change change'
Revenue 3974 4,088 -3%
Flow-through
procurement {120) (320)

Scope revenue 3854 3,768 -2% +2%
Profit before net

financing expense 243 243

Intangibles

amartisation 47 44

Exceptional items 25 24

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 28 23

Trading profit! 343 334 +3%

Trading margin! 8.9% 89% Obps

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 16910 172)

Trading profit increased by 3% to £343m (2012 £334m)
Trading margin was unchanged at 8 9% (2012 8 9%)
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Prior year operating results continued

In Americas trading profit and trading profit margin increased
as aresult of the successful close-out () & the settlement of
final accounts) of a number of projects within the oil and gas
and mining markets which enabled the release of contingencies
and provisions related to certain projects Trading margin also
benefited from the reduction i flow-through procurement

By contrast in Europe trading profit and trading margin were
adversely affected by the reduction in contribution from the
NMP joint venture and losses incurred from contract delays

at the Teesside Gas Processing Plant Trading profit margin

was also affected by changes in business mix In the Growth
Regions, the positive impact on trading prefit and trading
margin of cost efficiencies arising from integrating the business
into the new geographic structure was offset by difficult market
conditions in Australia

Currency exchange rate movements reduced trading profit by
£2mm 2013 compared with 2012

Net financing expense

Net financing expense was £2m (2012 £1m) and comprised net
bank interest payable of £2m (2012 £2m receivable), net foreign
exchange losses of £1m (2012 £nil) and net interest iIncome on
pension assets and habilities of £1m (2012 £3m expense)

A net currency exchange loss of £1m (2012 gain of £1m) was
recognised in the translation reserve in respect of dervatives
held in designated net investment hedging relationships

Share of results of joint ventures
The Group's share of joint ventures profit for the year was
£14m (2012 £12m)

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was broadly unchanged at £255m
(2012 £254m) after intangibles amortisation of £47m
(2012 £44m) exceptional costs and losses of £25m
(2012 £24m) and the Group's share of joint ventures
tax expense of £5m (2012 £5m)

Adjusted profit before tax was 2% ahead at £332m
(2012 £327m)

Taxation

Income tax on continuing operations was £69m (2012 £47m)
During 2013 there was an exceptional iIncome tax expense

of £16m (2012 £nil) and a tax charge on other exceptional
iterns of £6m (2012 tax credit of £9m) the effect of which was
partially offset by an increase in the tax credit on intangibles
amortisation to £20m (2012 £12m)

The Group s share of joint ventures income tax expense was
£5m (2012 £5m)

The Group's effective tax rate on continuing operations
(incfuding its share of joint ventures Income tax expense but
before exceptional items and intangibles amortisatien) declined
to 21 99 (2012 22 5%) The reduction principally reflected
decreases In statutory tax rates areductioninthe tax rate
apphed to the UK pension surplus changes in the recognition
of tax losses and the agreement of histerical items with various
tax authorities
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Profit for the year from continuing operations

Profit for the year from continuing operations was £186m
(2012 £207m) after intangibles amortisation of £47m

(2012 £44m), exceptional costs and losses of £25m

(2012 £24m) anincome tax credit on those itemns of £14m
(2012 £21m) and, in 2013, an exceptional Income tax expense
of £16m

Adjusted profit far the year from continuing operations
increased by 2% to £265m (2012 £259m)

Results by operating segment

Amenicas

. " |
Undertying

£m unless stated 2013 2012 Change change!

Revenue 2,247 2500 -10%

Flow-through

procurement (120) (320)

Scope revenue! 2127 2180 -2% -2%

Profit before net

financing expense 21 212

Intangibles

amortisation 18 18

Exceptional items 10 1

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 2 2

Trading profit! 241 233 +3%

Trading margint 11.3% 107% +60bps

1Non-IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 169 to 172}

Revenue in Arnericas was £2 247m (2012 £2 500m), a decline
of 10% Growth of £49m across conventicnal oil and gas and
renewables was outweighed by a dechine in miming of £112m
and in o1l sands due to the phasing of work on certain major
projects and the £200m reduction in flow-through procurement
to £120m Excluding flow-through procurement, underlying
revenue dechined by 2% compared with 2012

Trading profit Increased by 3% to £241m (2012 £233m)
Trading margin was 11 3%, up 60 bps compared with 2012
largely as a result of the benefits of cost efficiencies following
the geographucal restructuring in 2012, favourable project
close-outs and from increased grants from the US government
for research and development activities
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Europe

]
Underlymg

£m unless stated 2013 2012 Change change!

Revenue 1,227 1080 +14% +11%

Profit before net

financing expense 63 61

Intangibles

amortisation 17 16

Exceptional items 1 3

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 12 15

Trading profit! 93 95 2%

Trading margin! 76% 88% -120bps

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 169 to 172)

Revenue in Europe improved by 14% to £1 227m (2012
£1,080m) primarily due to the level of ol and gas actvity in
the North Sea and the inclusion of a full year’s revenue of ESRC
in the clean energy market following its acquisttion in 2012

Trading profit dechined 2% to £93m (2012 £95m) Trading
margin was 76%, down 120 bps compared with 2012 Trading
margin declined largely as the result of a reduced contnbution
from the Sellafield joint venture (£12m 1in 2013 compared with
£15m in 2012) and losses incurred due to delays in the Teesside
Gas Processing Plant contract

Growth Regions

|
Underlying

L unless stated 2013 2012 Change changet

Revenue 536 531 +1% +2%

Proft before net

financing expense 10 1

Intangibles

amortisation 12 10

Exceptional items 7 18

Share of trading profit

of joint ventures 4 3

Trading profit! 33 32 +3%

Trading margin? 62% 61% +10bps

1 Non IFRS measure (see Performance measures on pages 169 to 172)

Revenue in Growth Regions improved by 1% to £536m

(2012 £531m), primarily driven by increased revenue from ol
and gas activities in the Middle East which was partially offset
by the dechne in mining revenue i Austraha

Trading profit increased by 3% to £33m (2012 £32m) and

the trading margin was 6 2%, up 10 bps compared with 2012
Cost effictencies resulting from the geographical restructuring
in 2012, were offset by the effect of weak market conditions

in Austraba
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Investment Services

During the pericds under review, Investment Services
principally compnised the Incheon Bridge PPP project in Korea
and the Lancashire waste PFI project (which was subsequently
exited in 2014), the Group s insurance captve the Group's
residual UK wind development activities and a range of other
non-core actvities

Revenue in investment Services was £6m (2012 £9m)

Profit before net financing expense was £11m (2012 £7m),

of which £7m (2012 £2m) was derived from joint ventures
The Investment Services result increased significantly in
2013 compared with 2012 due to the successful resolution of
disputes relating to the Group's former construction business
in North America

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations represent the residual assets and
retained obhgations of businesses sold In prior years together
with the UK conventional power business that was classified
as a discontinued operation duning 2013

Discontinued operations generated a trading loss before
tax of £10m (2012 loss of £4m) and after a tax credit

of £2m (2012 £1m) generated a loss for the year of
£8m (2012 loss of £3m)

Discontinued operations included a loss on disposals of

£6m (2012 loss of £11m) and 1n 2012 an exceptional gain

of £17m on the recognition of an insurance recovery inrelation
to mesothelioma habilities following a judgement of the UK
Supreme Court

Discentinued operations generated an overall loss for the year
of £8m (2012 profit of £2m) Before exceptional items and
losses on disposals, discontinued operations showed a loss
for the year of £8m (2012 loss of £3m}

175

Governance Strategic report

Financials

Additional information



Information for shareholders

Our website

Our website, amecfw com s the best source of useful
up-to-date information about Amec Foster Wheeler and its
activibies, including annual reports AGM documents and other
shareholder communications

All announcements made to the London Stock Exchange can
be found on our website and you can arrange to receive email
alerts of such announcements

Information made available on cur website or other websites
mentioned In this annual report, are not, and should not be
considered as being part of or incorporated into this annual
report or our annual report an Form 20-F

Financial calendar

We published the Group s full-year 2014 results and the

2014 annual report later than usual as a consequence of the
acquisition of Foster Wheeler having completed so close to the
Group s year-end date Management expects to mave towards
the Group's normal financial calendar during 2015 as follows

Annual General Meeting? 14 May 2015
Payment of final dwidend for 20142 2 July 2015
Half-year 2015 results 1ssued 27 August 2015
Payment of intenm dividend for 2015 January 2016
Full-year 2015 results 1ssued 10 March 2016
2015 annual report published? March 2016

1 Information on the Company s AGM 1s provided in the Directors report
2 Subject to approval by shareholders

3 Our annual report will be filed with the SEC on Form 20-F and periodic
results announcements will be furmshed to the SEC on Form 6 K

Where they have not yet been deterrmined, the exact dates
of the above events will be finalised as the year progresses
and can be found on our website

Share price

The latest price of the Company s shares can be found on
our website and may also be obtained from the London Stock
Exchange s website www londonstockexchange com {in bath
cases the live share price 1s updated with a 15-minute delay)

Dividends

We usually announce our intenim dividend for the year with our
half-year results in August and it 1s paid in the following January
We propose our final dividend for the year with the full-year
results and subject to shareholder approval at the subsequent
AGM 1tis paid in the followmng July

Dwvidends can be paid directly into your bank or building
society account and can also be paid in local currency in
certain overseas territories Shareholders should contact the
Company s registrars to take advantage of these faciibies

We have a DRIP to aliow shareholders to acquire more of

the Company s shares rather than recerve cash dividends
The DRIP 1s only available to shareholders in certain countries
You can find out more on our website or by contacting the
Company s registrars
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Registrars

The Company s registrars are Capita Asset Services They
maintain the sharehelder register on our behalf and handle
all adminustration related to it They should be your first port
of call if you have any queries relating to your shareheolding
in Amec Foster Wheeler

For DRIP, electronic communications and general enquiries
Email shareholderenguines@capita ¢o uk

Website
Postal address

www capitaassetservices com

Capita Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Urited Kingdom

Telephone? UK 0871664 03002
Others +44 20 8639 3399

Payrent of dividends overseas
Telephone? +44 20 8639 3405
Email Ips@capita co uk

1 Lines open 9 00am to 5 30pm UK time Monday to friday
{excluding public holidays)

2 Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network extras

Electronic shareholder communication

The majority of our shareholders now receive iInformation from
us electronically If you have elected to do so and have provided
an email address, you will receive an email from us whenever
any new shareholder information s published If you have not
provided an email address you will be sent a letter that includes
details of where the information can be found on our website

You can register for electronic shareholder communication
and alsc manage your personal shareholding online at

www capitashareportal com You will need your Investor Code
(IVC) which can be found on your proxy card share certificate
or dividend tax voucher

Printed copies of the annual report

Shareholders may receive a printed copy of the Company s
latest annual report on request by writing to our registered
office or by filhkng in the form on our website

Unauthorised brokers (boiler room scams)

Shareholders are advised to be wary if they recewve any
unselicited calls or correspondence making claims of highly
profitable investment opportunities Typically these investments
turn out to be worthless or simply do not exist Such
approaches are usually made by unauthorised companies and
indwiduals and are commonly known as boiler room scams

If you recerve any unsolicited investment advice or offers to buy
shares from a source that 1s unknown to you, we recommend
that you obtain the name of the person and organisation

that has contacted you and check whether they are properly
authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority by visiting its
website at www fca org uk/register

If you think that you have been approached by an unauthorised
organisation, you are advised to contact the Financial Conduct
Authaority s consumer helphne on +44 (0)800 111 6768 or email
consumer enquiries@fca org uk
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Other iInformation

Holders of ADSs

ADSs and ADRs

The Company s ordinary shares are traded in the form of ADSs
onthe NYSE Each ADS represents one ordinary share

The ADSs are evidenced by ADRs 1ssued by Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas as Depositary under a deposit
agreement dated 2 October 2014 The ADRs are 1ssued In
respect of ordinary shares deposited with State Street Bank
& Trust Company as custodian for the Depositary

ADSs may be held directly by having an ADR (a certificate
evidencing a specific number of ADSs) registered in your

name or by holding ADSs in the Direct Registration System

or indirectly through a broker or other financial institution If you
hold ADSs directly, you are an ADS holder The Company s ADSs
aressued through the Direct Registration System unless the
investor specifically requests to receive certificated ADRs

A registered holder I1s one whose name appears on the books of
the Depositary The registered holder 1s considered the owner of
record A beneficial holder 1s one whose holdings are registered
in a name other than their own, such as the name of a broker,
bank or nominee

ADS holders are not members of the Company but may instruct
the Depositary on the exercise of voting nghts relative to the
number of ordinary shares represented by their ADSs

?

Role of the Depositary
The Deposttary performs the following roles for ADS holders

v distributes company circulars and documents in relation
to general meetings of the Company (including the AGM),

» distriputes dividends in US dollars

» facilitates the voting process and the exercise of voting nghts
of ADS holders at any general meeting of the Company,

» Issues and cancels the Company s ADSs
» acts as the stock transfer agent, and
» records and maintains the register of ADS holders

The Company provides to the Depositary all notices of
meetings of the Company's shareholders and other reports

and communications that are made available to the Company's
shareholders The Depositary makes such notices reports and
communicabions availlable for inspection by recorded holders of
ADSs and sends voting instruction forms by post to all recorded
holders of ADSs

investors who are not registered with the Depositary because
their ADRs are held through a nominee account may need to
make arrangements with their nominee if they wish to receive
such documents and to be able to exercise their vote through
the Depositary at general meetings of the Company

ADS holders may receive a printed copy of the Company s
latest annual report on request by writing to our registered
office or by filkng 10 the form on our website
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Dividends

The Depositary will pay to ADS holders cash dividends or other
distributions it or the custodian receives on the Company’s
shares after deducting its fees and expenses ADS holders

will receive these distributions in proportion to the number of
the Company's shares the ADSs represent at the record date
{(which will be as close as practicable to the record date for the
Company s ordinary shares) set by the Depositary with respect
to the ADSs

The Depositary will usually convert any cash dividend or other
cash distribution on the Company s shares or any net proceeds
from the sale of any ordinary shares rights securities or other
entitlements into US dollars Before making a distnibution to
ADS holders, any taxes or other governmental charges that
must be pard together with the fees and expenses of the
Depositary, will be deducted

ADS enquines
All engquines regarding ADS holder accounts and payment
of dwidends should be addressed to the Depositary

Deutsche Bank Shareholder Service
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
Peck Shp Station

PO Box 2050

New York NY 10272-2050

us

Telephone (tol free) +1 866 706 0509
Telephone (international)  +1 718921 8137
Email db@amstock com

DB Global Direct

US residents may enrol in DB Global Direct, enabling them to
invest directly in the Company s ADSs with reduced brokerage
commissions and service costs Registered ADS holders may
reinvest all or a portton of their dividends in the Company's
ADSs through OB Global Direct

For further information on DB Global Direct please contact
Deutsche Bank (as above) or visit www adr db com

ADS price

The iatest price of the Company's ADSs can be found on

our website and may also be obtained from the NYSE s website,
www nyse com (in both cases the live ADS price 1s updated
with a 15-rminute delay)

Fees payable by ADS holders
ADS holders are required to pay certain service fees to the
Depositary

The Depaositary collects its fees for defivery and surrender of
ADSs directly from investors depositing shares or surrendering
ADSs for the purpose of withdrawal or from intermediaries
acting for them The Depositary collects fees for making
distributions to investors including payment of dividends

by the Company by deducting those fees from the amounts
distributed or by selling a portion of distributable property

to pay the fees The Depositary may collect its annual fee for
depositary services by deductions from cash distributions aor by
directly biling investors or by charging the book-entry systermn
accounts of participants acting from them The Depositary may
generally refuse to provide fee-attracting services until its fees
for those services are paid
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Other information continued

|
Service Fees

To any person to whom ADSs are 1ssued Up to US$0 05

or to any person to whom a distribution per ADS 1ssued

1s made 1n respect of ADSs pursuant to

share dividends or other free distributions

of shares bonus distributions stock

sphts or other distributions {except where

converted to cash)

Cancellation of ADSs (including inthe case  Up to US$0 05
of termination of the deposit agreement) per ADS cancelled

Distribution of cash dvidends Upto US$0 05
per ADS held

Distribution of cash entitlements Up to US$005

(other than cash dividends} and/or cash per ADS held

proceeds, including proceeds from the sale

of nghts secunties and other entitlements

Distribution of ADSs pursuant to exercrse Up to US$0 05

of rights per ADS held

Depositary services Up to US$005
per ADS held on
the applicable
record date(s)

established by
the Depositary

ADS holders are also responsible for paying certain fees and
expenses incurred by the Depositary such as

» fees for the transfer and registration of the Company’s shares
charged by the registrar and transfer agent for the shares in
the UK

» expenses Incurred for converting foreign currency into US
doliars and

» expenses for cable, telex, fax and electronic transmission and
for delivery of securities

Since the Company’s ADSs were first 1ssued in November
2014 a fee of US$0 01 per ADS was levied on the 2014 interim
dwmidend that was paid in January 2015

Fees paid by the Depositary to the Company

The Depositary has agreed to reimburse the Company for a
portion of certain expenses the Company incurs that are related
to establishment and maintenance of the ADR programme
including but not imited to investor refations expenses and
expenses assgciated with being a company listed in the US
There are imits on the amount of expenses for which the
Depositary will reimburse the Company Further, the Depositary
has agreed to reimburse the Company with certain fees payable
to the Depositary by ADS holders

In the penod from 2 October 2014 (the date of the deposit
agreement with the Depositary) to 25 March 2015 the
Company did not recerve any amounts from the Depository but
it expects to receive reimbursement of certain cests incurred in
that penod during the fourth quarter of 2015

178

Share capital

As permitted by English faw the Company has no authonsed
share capital The Company's share capital may be increased
consolidated or sub-dvided by ordinary resolution at a general
meeting of the Company

As at 25 March 2015 the Company s 1ssued share capital
was £196 565 507 divided into 393,131 813 ordinary shares
of 50 pence each Of thus number 4 291 115 ordinary shares
were registered as treasury shares, leaving a balance of
388,840,698 ordinary shares with voting rights

All of the Company s ordinary shares are fully pard or were
1issued as fully pad Accordingly, no further contribution of
capital may be required by the Company from the holders
of those shares

The Company has neither authorised nor 1ssued any conditional
share capital and has not issued convertible or exchangeable
bonds, warrants or other securities granting rights to the
Company s shares other than secunties granted to directors,
senior management and employees under the Company s
share-based compensation plans Information on these plans

15 provided in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 25 March 2015 there were 5 976,299 share options
outstanding under the Company's UK and International SAYE
schemes and 5 783,597 shares reserved for share awards under
the Company s share-based compensation plans (in relation to
which 2 015 Q70 shares were held in the Company s Employee
Share Trust)

The Articles authornise the Company to purchase its own
shares A resolution passed at the Company s General Meeting
on 23 October 2014 provides the directors with the authority
to purchase up 35,896.172 of the Company s ordinary shares
in the market, such authority to expire at the end of the
Company s next AGM or 1June 2015, whichever is earlier

A resolution will be proposed at the Company s AGM in May
2015 to extend the authority of the directors to make market
purchases of up to 10% of the Company’s ordinary shares
within prescribed hmits The Company may repurchase shares
only if the shares are fully paid and out of distributable profits
or the proceeds of a new 1ssue of shares made for the purpose
of the repurchase The UKLA requires that purchase of 15% or
maore of any ¢lass of the Company's share capital must be by
way of a tender offer to all shareholders of that class

The Company rmay reduce its share capital, share
premium account capital redemption reserve or any other
undhistributable reserve only by special resolution of its
shareholders and having obtained the consent of the High
Court of Justice in England and Wales

Markets

The primary trading market for the Company s ordinary shares
1$ the London Stock Exchange on which they have been listed
since the Company's formation in 1982 The Company has a
premium histing on the Londan Stock Exchange and its ordinary
shares are admutted to the main market The Company's SEDOL
number 1s 0028262 (I1SIS Code GBOQ00282623) and its
trading symbol 1s AMFW
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As at 25 March 2015, the Company s total market capitahsation
was approxmately £3 8bn and it was a constituent of The
Financial Times Stock Exchange 250 Index (FTSE 2503

Since November 2014, the Company’s ordinary shares have
been traded in the form of ADSs on the NYSE The Company s
CUSIP code 1s 00167X205 (ISIN Code US00167X2053) and its
ticker symbol s AMFW

Share price history

For the periods incicated in the tables below the highest and
lowest middle market quotation for the Company s ordinary
shares on the London Stock Exchange (as derived from the
Daily Official List of the UK Listing Authority) and the highest
and lowest sales price of its ADSs on the NYSE (as reported
on the NYSE composite tape) were as follows

£ per ordinary share US$ per ADS!
Year ended 31 December High Low High Low
2010 1168 734 n/a n/a
2011 12 51 741 n/a n/a
2012 172 923 n/a n/a
2013 1207 966 n/a n/a
2014 1262 789 16 97 14 47

£ per ordinary share US$ per ADS!
Quarter High Low High Low
2013
First quarter 1124 1010 n/a n/a
Second quarter 1098 966 n/a n/a
Third quarter 110 1002 n/a n/a
Fourth quarter 1207 1040 n/a n/a
2014
First quarter 1124 1020 n/a n/a
Second quarter 1262 1165 n/a n/a
Third quarter 1245 1058 n/a n/a
Fourth quarter 105 789 1697 1225
2015
First quarter? 995 777 1483 1275

£ per ordinary share US$ per ADS!
Month High Low High Low
September 2014 1120 1059 n/a n/a
October 2014 1092 990 n/a n/a
November 2014 1105 535 1697 1447
December 2014 936 790 14 47 12 25
January 2015 862 777 1311 1189
February 2015 903 831 1383 1239
March 20152 995 873 1479 1300

1 From 13 November 2014
2 Up to and including 25 March 2015
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Shareholdings

As at 25 March 2015, 17130.827 ADSs equivalent to 4 4% of
the number of the Company’s ordinary shares in1ssue were
outstanding and were held by 1 321 registered holders

As at 25 March 2015, 154,517 ordinary shares were held
by 386 registered holders with a registered address in the
US Since certain of the ordinary shares were registered in
the names of nominees the number of shareholders with
a registered address in the US may not be representative
of the number of beneficial owners of crdinary shares who
are resident in the US

In accordance with the DTRs of the UKLA, major shareholders
are considered to be those that have a beneficial interest in
3% or more of the Company s 1ssued ordinary shares

On the basis of notifications receved under the DTRs (DTR 5)
and other notifications received by the Company from
shareholders, shareholdings of 3% or more of the voting

rights in the Company were as follows
_______________________________________________________|

Percentage of voling rights held

As at 31 December 2014 2013 2012 2011
Artisan Partners

Limited Partnership na  520% n/a n/a
Mondrian Investment

Partners Limited 528% 515% n/a n/a
BlackRock, Inc 501% n/a 98%7% 994%
Legal & General

Assurance n/a n‘a 398% 39%6%

1 Inresponse to a disclosure request under Section 793 of the Companies
Act 2006 Blackrock Inc advised the Company on 19 December 2012 that
their holding had reduced to 5 52%

On 23 March 2015, pursuant to DTR 5 BlackRock, Inc notified
the Company of their interest in 5 63% of the voting nights in
the Company Otherwise there were no notifications received
under DTR 5 between 31 December 2014 and 25 March 2015

Each of the Company s ordinary shares including those held
by major shareholders carries equal voting nights

Purchase of ordinary shares

in February 2013, the Company completed a £400m share buy-
back programme During 2014 the Company did not purchase
any of its own shares in the market and no purchases of the
Company s shares were made by trustees of the Company s
employee share schemes

Options and awards made under the Company s employee
share schemes that were exercised or vested during 2014 were
satisfied by the transfer to the participants of the shares held
by the Company in treasury or by the trustee of the relevant
scheme Details of the Company s employee share schemes
are set out In note 22 to the consoldated financial statements
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Other information continued

Articles of Association

We summarnise below certain provisions of the Articles

and applicable Enghsh law The summary is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the Companies Act 2006 and the
Articles Please refer to Documents on display on page 187 for
information on where copies of the Articles can be obtained

In the following description a ‘shareholder 15 the person
registered \n the Company's register of members as the holder
of a share or shares

Principal objects
The Articles of Association do not restrict the Company s
chjects or purposes

Directors

The board

Under the Articles, the board shall consist of not less than three
nor more than 15 directors who shall manage the business and
affairs of the Company subject to the requirements of English
law, the Articles and any resclutions of shareholders

Appontment retirement and re-election

Directors may be appointed by the board at any time Any
director appointed since the last AGM holds office only until
the conclusion of the next AGM and then shall be eligible for
election by sharehclders

Under the Articles, all directors retire by rotation and are
ehgible for re-election every three years However in line with
the recommendations of the UK Corporate Governance Code,
each of the directors who wishes to continue in office and 1s
considered eligible by the board actually offers himself or
herself for re-election at every AGM

Under the Articles there are no age hmits relating to a persons
qualfication to hold office as a director
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Restrictions on voting

Under the Articles a director may not vote in respect of any
contract arrangement, transaction or proposal in which he or
she, or any person connected with him or her has any material
interest other than by virtue of that person s interests in the
Company's ordinary shares or other securities However, this
restriction on voting does not apply to proposals

» giving the director or a third party any guarantee, secunty
or indermnity in respect of obligation incurred at the request
of or for the beneiit of the Company,

» gIVIng any guarantee security or mdemnity to the director or
a third party in respect of obligations of the Company for which
the director has assumed responsibility under an indemnity
or guarantee

»relating to an offer of securities of the Company in which the
director 1s entitled to participate as a holder of shares or other
securities or in the underwriting of such shares or securities

» concerning any other company in which the director (together
with any connected person) is a shareholder or an officer or
15 otherwise interested provided that the director (together
with any connected person) Is not interested in 1% or more of
any class of such other company s equity share capital or the
voting nights available toits shareholders,

» relating to the arrangement of any employee benefit in which
the director will share equally with other employees, and

» relating to any msurance that the Company purchases or
renews for its directors or any group of people including
directors

Compensation awarded to the executive directors 1s
determined by the remuneration commuttee

A director shall not vote nor be counted in any quorum present
at a general meeting of the Company's shareholders in relation
to a resolution on which he or she 1s not entitled to vote

Borrowing powers

The directors are empowered to exercise all the powers of the
Company to berrow money, subject to the hmitation that the
borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries may not exceed
two times the "adjusted capital and reserves’ (as defined in the
Articles)

Shareholding requirements
Directors are not required under the Articles to hold any shares
of the Company as qualification to act as a director

Any director who I1s not a shareholder is entitled to attend and
speak at general meetings of the shareholders
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Rights attaching to ordinary shares
In accordance with English law the Company s ordinary shares
rank equally in all respects

Dividends

The Company s ordinary shares carry the nght to receve
dividends and distrnibutions that have been declared by the
Company Except in relation to dividends that have been
declared and nghts on a hquidation of the Company ordinary
shareholders have no rights to share in the profits of the
Company

Enghsh law requires that dividends are paid only out of profits
availlable for distribution as determined in accordance with
UK GAAP and by the Companies Act 2006, and additionally
restricts a public company from making a distnbution f

that would reduce the net assets of the company below the
aggregate amount of its called-up share capital and certain
undistributable reserves

Cividends are proposed by the directors Dividends are
declared following approval by ordinary resolution of the
Company s shareholders at a general meeting of the Company
Shareholders may not declare a dividend in excess of the
amount proposed by the directors The directors may declare
and pay interim dividends if they believe that the Company s
financial position justifies such payments

Any unclaimed dividend may be invested or otherwise applied
for the benefit of the Company until the dvidend 1s claimed
Any dividend that remains unclaimed for 12 years after the date
on which it was declared, or became due for payment, shall be
forfeited and shall revert to the Company

If authorised by ordinary resolution of the shareholders the
directors may offer to shareholders the right to elect to receive
a dividend, in whole or in part by way of an allotment of new
ordinary shares credited as fully paid

Voting rights

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares have the nght to
receive notice of and to attend and vete at all general meetings
of the Company

Any shareholder who i1s entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting 15 entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any
of his nghts to attend speak and vote at the meeting

Voting at any general meeting is by a show of hands unless a
poll1s duly demanded and held Under English law, shareholders
of a public company are not permitted to pass resolutions by
written consent

On a show of hands each shareholder who 1s present in
person at the meeting has one vote regardless of the number
of shares held
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Ona poll every shareholder who s present in person or
by proxy has one vote for each ordinary share he!d by him
A poll may be demanded by the following

»the chairman of the meeting, or

» not less than three members present or by proxy entitled
to vote or

» a member or members present in person or by proxy and
representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights
of all the members having the nght to vote at the meeting or

» a member or members present in person or by proxy and
halding shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the
meeting, being shares on which an aggregate sum has been
pard up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid
up en all the shares conferring that nght

Unless the directors determine otherwise, iIf any sum remains
unpaid in relation to a member's shareholding, that member
1s not entitled to vote in relation to that holding

Rights in a winding up

If the Company 1s hquidated (whether the iquidation s
voluntary or court-superwised) the liquidator 1s obliged to
realise the assets of the Company to its creditors and subject
to any special rights attaching to any other class of shares that
may be in 1ssue at the time any surplus would be distributed to
the ordinary shareholders according to the amounts paid-up
on the shares held by them

Pre-emption rights

English law provides for statutory pre-emption rights that
apply on an allotment of equity secunties (whichinclude the
Company s ordinary shares or securities convertible into the
Company s ordinary shares)

Pre-emption rights can be disapplied by a special resolution
passed by shareholders at a general meeting Such a
resolution was passed at the Company’s General Meeting on
23 October 2014 and provides the directors with the authority
to allot equity securities or grant nghts to subscnbe for or

to convert any security to shares up to a nominal amount of
£59,228.684 5, of which up to £8 974 043 could be allotted for
cash without offering the shares to existing shareholders such
authority to expire at the end of the Company s next AGM or
1June 2015, if earhier

Variation of rights

Whenever the share capital of the Company 1s divided into
different classes of shares, the nights attached to any class
can only be changed either

» with the wnitten consent of the holders of three-quarters in
nominal value of the 1ssued shares of that class (exciuding
shares held as treasury shares), or

» with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
meeting of the holders of the shares of that ¢lass

The nghts attached to any class of shares are not unless
otherwise expressly provided by the terms of 1Issue deemed
to be varied by the creation or 1ssue of further shares ranking
equally wath them
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Other information continued

General meetings

An AGM of the Company must be held each calendar year
and within a period of 51x months of the day following the
Company's accounting reference date (which 1s 31 December)

Otherwise the directors may call a general meeting whenever
they think fit or where required to do so by shareholders hoiding
at least 10% of the voting nights of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying voting nghts (excluding shares held as
treasury shares)

General meetings may be held at such place date and time
as may be decided by the directors

An AGM must be convened by giving not less than 21 days
notice Other general meetings must also be convened by giving
not less than 21 days notice unless shareholder approval has
been given for such meetings to be convened on giving only

14 days notice (such approval has been given by the Company’s
shareholders and 1s effective until the next AGM when it1s
proposed that it should be renewed)

General meetings may be called on shorter notice if in the
case of an AGM all of the members entitled to attend and vote
at that meeting so agree orif inthe case of other general
meetings, 95% of the members entitled to attend and vote

at that meeting so agree

For the purposes of determining which persons are entitled to
attend or vote at a meeting and how many votes such persons
may cast, the Company must specify in the notice of the
meeting a time, not more than 48 hours before the time fixed for
the meeting by which a person must be entered on the register
in order to have the nght to attend or vote at the meeting

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unfess
aquorum s present at the time when the meeting proceeds to
business Two shareholders present in person or by proxy shall
be a quorum

The directors may require attendees to submit to searches

or put in place such arrangements or restrictions as they think
fit to ensure the safety and security of attendees at a general
meeting Any member proxy or other person who fails to
comply with such arrangements or restrictions may be refused
entry to, or removed from, the general meeting

Limitations on voting and shareholding

Neither English law nor the Articles impose any imitation on the
rights of non-UK residents or foreign shareholders to own the
Company s ordinary shares or ADSs including the rights to hold
or exercise voting rights on those shares or ADSs

Disclosure of interests in the Company’s ordinary shares

Under the DTRs a person s required to notify the Company in
wniting within two days of becoming aware that the voting rights
which he holds as a shareholder or through his direct or indirect
holding of financial instruments reaches or exceeds 3% of the
voting nights in the Company and reaches exceeds or falls
below each 1% thresheld thereafter
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Under the Companies Act 2006 the Company may send a
notice to any person whom it knows or believes to be interested
in the Company's shares requiring such person to confirm
whether he has such an interest and, If so, the details of the
interest and any other interest in the Company s shares of
which he s aware

Under the DTRs, persons discharging manageral
responsibiities {primarily directors and some senior
executives) and their connected persons are required to notify
the Company in wnting of the accurrence of all transactions
conducted on their own account in the Company’s shares

or derwatives or any other financial iInstruments relating to
those shares within four business days of the day on which the
transaction occurred

Mandatory brds

The Articles contain no provisions that would have an effect
of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of the
Company

However, under the UK City Code on Takeovers & Mergers, f an
acquisition of the Company s shares increases the aggregate
holding of an acquirer and its concert parties to shares carrying
30% or more of the voting rights in the Company, the acquirer
and, depending on the circumstances, its concert parties,
would be required (except with the consent of the Panel on
Takeovers & Mergers) to make a cash offer for the remainder of
the Company s shares at a price not less than the highest price
paid for the Company s shares by the acquirer or its concert
parties during the previous 12 months Such an offer would also
be triggered by any acquisition of shares by a person holding
{together with its concert parties) shares carrying between
30% and 50% of the voting nghts i the Company If the effect
of such acquisition were to Increase that person s percentage
of the voting nights

Amendments
Under English law, the Company s shareholders may by special
resolution alter delete substitute amend or add to the Articles

The directors are not authorised to change the Articies

Material contracts

During the last two years, the Group entered into the following
material contracts (other than contracts entered into in the
ordinary course of business)

Acquisition of Foster Wheeler AG

Pursuant to an implementation agreement between AMEC

and Foster Wheeler entered into on 13 February 2014 (as
amended by the letter agreement dated 28 March 2014,

the deed of amendment dated 28 May 2014 and the

deed of amendment dated 2 Cctober 2014 together the
Implementation Agreement) AMEC commenced an offer to
acquire all outstanding Foster Wheeler AG shares on 6 October
2014 (the Offer) The Offer closed on 13 November 2014 and
upon completion of the Offer AMEC had acquired 95 3% of the
outstanding Foster Wheeler AG shares
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Following completion of the Offer on 8 December 2014 AMEC
(through its subsidiaries) and Foster Wheeler entered into a
merger agreement which provided for the squeeze-out merger
of Foster Wheeler AG under Swiss law The squeeze-out merger
was subject to the approval of the merger agreement by at least
90% of the outstanding voting nights of Foster Wheeler AG
which was received on 19 January 2015

Agreements with former Foster Wheeler directors

Pursuant to the Implementation Agreement, AMEC entered into
letters of appointment with Kent Masters and Stephanie Newby
regarding thewr appointment as non-executive directors of Amec
Foster Wheeler following the completion of the acquisition
Amec Foster Wheeler also entered into a co-ordination and
settlement agreement with Kent Masters relating to his
termination arrangements as CEQ of Foster Wheeler

Credit facility agreement

In February 2014, the Group entered nto a US$2 160m
credit facility agreement with Bank of America Merrill Lynch
International Limited as facility agent and Bank of America
Merril Lynch International Limited, Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi
UFJ Ltd Barclays Bank PLC and The Royal Bank of Scotland
plc as onginal lenders In July 2014 the facility was amended
to Increase the financing available to US$2,260m The credit
facility comprises three loan facilities totalling US$1,910m
and a multi-currency revolving credit faciity of US$350m
Further details of the terms and conditions of the credit
facility agreement are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements

Exchange controls and other limitations affecting

security holders

There are no UK government laws, decrees or regulations that
restrict or affect the export or import of capital or that affect the
payment of dividends, interest or other payments to non-UK
resident holders of the Company’s securities, except for certain
restrictions tmposed from time to time by the UK Treasury
pursuant to legislation such as the United Nations Act 1964
and the Emergency Laws Act 1964, against the government or
residents of certain countries

There are no imitations, either under the laws of the UK or
under the Articles restricting the rght of non-UK residents to
hold or to exercise voting rights in respect of the Company s
ordinary shares except that where any overseas shareholder
has not provided a UK address for the service of notices the
Company 1s under no obligation to send any nottce or other
document to an overseas address It1s however the Company s
current practice to send every notice or other document to all
shareholders regardless of the country recorded In the register
of members with the exception of details of the Company's
DRIP which are not sent to shareholders with recorded
addresses in the US or Canada
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Taxation information for US Holders

Background

A surnmary s provided below of the matenial US federal income
tax and UK tax consequences for a US Holder (defined below)
of owning or disposing of ordinary shares or ADSs of the
Company This section addresses only the tax position of a US
Holder who holds ordinary shares or ADSs as capital assets

This section does not censider the provisions of the IRC known
as the Medicare Contribution tax or the tax consequences for
holders subject to other special rules, such as

» certain financial institutions
» INSUrance companigs

» dealers and traders in secunities who use a mark-to-market
method of tax accounting

» persons holding ordinary shares or ADSs as part of a straddle
conversion or other integrated transaction or wash sale or
persons enterning into a constructive sale with respect to the
ordinary shares or ADSs

» persons whase functional currency for US federal income tax
purposes 1s not the US dollar,

» partnerships or other entities classified as partnerships for
US federal income tax purposes

» persons hable to the alternative minimum tax

» persons who hold ordinary shares or ADSs in indwidual
retirement accounts or other tax-deferred accounts,

» persons who have ceased to be US citizens or lawful
permanent residents of the US

» tax-exempt organisations,

» persons who acquired the Company s ordinary shares or ADSs
pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options
ar atherwise in connection with employment or

» persons who directly indirectly, or by attribution own 10%
or more of the Company s voting stock

Except where expressly stated to the contrary, this section
does not deal with the position of a US Holder who is resident
or domiciled in the UK for UK tax purposes or who s subject

to UK taxation on income or capital gains by virtue of carrying
on a trade profession or vocation in the UK through a branch,
agency or permanent establishment to which ordinary shares
or ADSs are attnibutable 1 e those who are referred to below as
trading In the UK
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Other information continued

As used herein a‘US Holder’ 1s a person who for the purposes
of US federal income tax and UK tax 1s a beneficial holder of
ordinary shares or ADSs and Is

» a citizen or iIndividual resident of the US

» 2 corporation (or other entity taxable as a corporation)
created or organised in or under the faws of the US or any
pahtical subdivision thereof

» an estate whose income 1s subject to US federal income tax
regardless of its source

» atrust, if a US court can exercise primary supervision over
the trust s adrministration and ane or more US persons are
authorised to control all substantial decisions of the trust or

» a trust that has validly elected to be treated as a domestic
trust for US federal income tax purposes

This section 1s based on the IRC, its legislative history existing
and proposed regulations published rulings and court
decisions, and on UK tax laws and the published practice of
HMRC all as at 25 March 2015 These laws and that practice
are subject to change possibly on a retroactive basis

This section is further based in part upon the representations of
the Depositary and assumes that each obhgation in the deposit
agreement and any related agreement will be performed In
accordance with its terms For US federal income tax purposes.
the owner of ADRs evidencing ADSs will generally be treated

as the owner of the underlying shares represented by those
ADSs For UK tax purposes it s likely that HMRC will also regard
holders of ADSs as the beneficial owners of the ordinary shares
represented by those ADSs

Generally exchanges of ordinary shares for ADSs, and ADSs for
ordinary shares, will not be subject to US federal income tax or
UK taxation on capital gains although UK stamp duty reserve
tax may anse as descnbed below

The US Treasury has expressed concerns that parties to
whom ADRs are pre-released may be taking actions that are
inconsistent with the clarming of foreign tax credits by US
Holders of ADSs Such actions would also be inconsistent with
the claiming of the preferential rates of tax described below
for qualified dividend iIncome Accordingly the availability of
preferential rates of tax for quahfied dividend income coulid be
affected by actions taken by parties to whom ADRs are pre-
released

The following discussion assumes that the Company is not and
will not become, a PFIC We cutiine below the consequences for
US Holders should the Company become a PFIC in the future

Investors should consult their own tax advisers regarding
the US federal, state, and local, the UK and other tax
consequences of owning and disposing of ordinary shares
or ADSs of the Company in their particular circumstances.
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Taxation of dividends

UK taxation

Under current UK tax law the Company is not required to
withhold tax at source from its dividend payments

A US Holder who 1s not resident in the UK for UK tax purposes
and who 1s not trading in the UK will generally not be liable for
UK taxation on dividends received in respect of the Company s
ADSs or ordinary shares

US federal tncome taxation

A US Holder 1s subject to US federal income tax on the gross
amount of any dividend paid by the Company out of its current
or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined for US
federal Income tax purposes) Distnibutions in excess of the
Company s current and accumulated earmings and profits wall
be treated as a return of capital to the extent of the US Helder's
basis in the shares or ADSs and thereafter as a capital gain
Because the Company has not historically maintained, and
does not currently maintain books in accordance with US tax
principles the Company does not expect to be in a position

to determine whether any distnibution will be in excess of the
Company s current and accumulated earmings and profits as
determined for US federal income tax purposes As aresult the
Company expects that the amounts distributed will be reported
to the IRS as dividends

Subject to applicable hmitations, dividends paid to certain
non-corporate US Holders of ordinary shares or ADSs may

be taxable at the favourable tax rates applicable to long-term
capital gain if the dividends constitute qualified dividend
income A US Holder will be eligible for these rates only if it has
held the ordinary shares or ADSs for more than 60 days during
the 121-day period beginning 60 days before the ex-dividend
date The Company expects that the dividends paid by the
Company with respect to its ordinary shares or ADSs will
constitute quabfied dividend income US Holders should consult
their own tax advisers to determine whether they are subject
to any special rules that imat their ability to be taxed at these
favourable rates

Dvidends must be included in income when the US Holder

In the case of shares, or the Depositary in the case of ADSs
actually or constructively recetves the dividend and will not be
eligible for the dividends-received deduction generally allowed
to US corporations in respect of dividends receved from other
US corporations For foreign tax credit imitation purposes,
dividends paid by the Company will be income from a source
outside the US

The amount of any dividend paid in pounds sterling will be the
US dollar value of the sterling payments made determined

at the spot sterling/US dollar exchange rate on the date the
dividend is included in income for federal income tax purposes,
regardless of whether the payment 1s in fact converted into

US dollars [f the dividend 1s converted into US dollars on

that date a US Holder should not be required to recognise a
foreign currency gain or loss in respect of the dividend incorme
Generally, any gain or loss resulting from currency fluctuations
during the period from the date the dividend payment is
included i income to the date the payment 1s converted into US
dollars will be treated as ordinary income or loss from sources
within the US
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Taxation of capital gans

UK taxation

A US Holder who s not resident in the UK for UK tax purposes
and who 15 not trading in the UK will not generally be liable for
UK taxation on capital gains, or eligible for relief for allowable
losses, realised or accrued on the sale or other disposal of the
Company s ordinary shares or ADSs A US Holder who s an
indmwvidual and has temporanly ceased to be a resident in the
UK or has been temporanly treated as non-resident in the UK
for UK tax purposes for a period of not more than five years
and who sells or otherwise disposes of ordinary shares or ADSs
during that periocd may for the year of assessment when the
individual becomes resident again in the UK be hable for UK tax
on capital gains (subject to any available exemption or relief)
notwithstanding the fact that the individual was not treated as
resident in the UK at the time of the sale or other disposal

US federal income taxation

A US Holder who sells or otherwise disposes of ordinary shares
or ADSs will recogrise a capital gain or loss for US federal
income tax purposes equal to the difference 1If any between
the amount realised on the sale or other disposal and the
adjusted tax basis of the securities Any capital gain or loss will
be a long-term capital gain or loss where the holder has held
the securities for more than one year The capital gain or l0ss
will generally be incorme or loss from sources within the US

for foreign tax credit imitation purposes The deductibihity of
capital losses 1s subject to imitations

PFIC status

Management believes that the Company was not a PFIC for
US federal income tax purpeoses for its taxable year ended
31 December 2014 Management reviews the Company s
PFIC status annually and it I1s subject to change

If the Company were to be treated as a PFIC any gain realised
on the sale or other disposal of the Company’s ardinary
shares or ADSs would 1n general not be treated as capital
gain Instead any gain would be treated as if the US Holder
had realised the gain rateably over the period dunng which the
ordinary shares or ADSs were held Any gain that s allocated
to the taxable year of the disposal and to any taxable year
before the Company became a PFIC, would be taxed as ordinary
income Any gain allocated to each other taxable year would
be taxed at the highest tax rate in effect for the taxable year

to which the gain was allocated and an interest charge in
respect of the tax attributable to each such year would also
apply Similar rules would apply to any ‘excess distnbution

(as determined for US federal income tax purposes) receved
on the ordinary shares or ADSs The preferential rates for
quabhied dividend income received by certain non-corporate
US Holders would not apply to dividends received in any year
in which the Company was a PFIC or in any year immaediately
following a year in which the Company was a PFIC

If the Company was to be treated as a PFIC certain elections
may be avaitable to US Holders that would result in alternative
treatments of the ordmary shares or ADSs If the Company were
to be treated as a PFIC in any taxable year in which a US Holder
held ordinary shares or ADSs, the holder may be required to file
annual reports with the IRS containing such information as may
be required by the US Treasury Department
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Inheritance and estate taxes

UK inhentance tax may apply to a deemed transfer which
occurs on death and to gifts to individuals within the seven
years preceding death For UK inheritance tax purposes a
transfer of shares at less than full market value may be treated
as a gift and particular rules apply where the donor reserves or
retains some benefit in the shares Special UK inhentance tax
rules also apply to companies and to trustees of settlements

Anindividual who s neither domiciled nor deemed domiciled
in the UK 1s only chargeable to UK inheritance tax to the extent
the individual owns assets situated in the UK Whilst UK tax law
Is unclear as to whether the Company s ADSs are considered
to be situated in the UK for inheritance tax purpaoses, HMRC

1s hkely to take the view that they as well as the Company s
ordinary shares are situated in the UK

However, HMRC considers that the US/UK Double Taxation
Convention on Estate and Gift Tax applies to inhertance tax
Consequently, a US Holder who 1s domiciled in the US for
the purposes of the US/UK Double Taxation Convention and
1s not for such purposes a UK national will not be subject to
UK inhentance tax on their death or on a hifetime transfer of
the Company s ordinary shares or ADSs provided that any
applicable US federal gift or estate tax i1s paid, unless the
ordinary shares or ADISs are part of the business property of
a permanent establishment of an enterprise situated in the
UK or pertain to a UK fixed base used for the performance of
independent personal services Where the ordinary shares
or ADSs have been placed into trust by a settlor, they may
be subject to UK inheritance tax unless when the trust was
created the settlor was domiciled in the US and was not a UK
national

A UK national wha 1s domiciled n the US wili be subject to both
UK inheritance tax and US federal estate tax but will be entitled
to a credit for US federal estate tax charged in respect of the
Company s ordinary shares or ADSs in computing the habihty
to UK inhentance tax Similarly a US citizen who 1s domiciled
or deemed domiciled in the UK will be entitled to a credit for
UK inheritance tax charged in respect of the Company s
ordinary shares or ADSs in computing the hatility for US
federal estate tax
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Other information continued

US information reporting and back-up withholding
Payments of dividends and other proceeds to a US Holder
with respect to the Company s ordinary shares or ADSs by
a US paying agent or other US intermediary will be reported
to the IRS and to the US Holder as may be required under
applicable regulations

Unless the US Holder 1s an exempt recipient back-up
withholding tax may apply to these payments if the US Holder
fails to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number or
certification of exempt status or fails to comply with applicable
certification requirements

Any back-up withholding tax deducted may be credited agamnst
the US Holder s US federal income tax hability and where the
back-up withheolding tax exceeds the actual hiabibity the US
Holder may obtain a refund by timely filing the appropriate
refund claim with the IRS

Fereign financial asset reporting

US taxpayers that own certain foreign financial assets, including
debt and equity of foreign entities with an aggregate value

in excess of US$50,000 at the end of the taxable year or

US$75 000 at any time during the taxable year (or for certain
individuals living outside the US and married individuals filing
joint returns, certain higher thresholds) may be required to file
an information report with respect to such assets with their US
federal iIncome tax returns

The Company s ADSs or ordinary shares constitute foreign
financial assets subject to these requirements unless they
are held in an account at a finanoal institution (in which case
the account may still be reportable if maintained by a foreign
financial institution)

UK stamp duty and SDRT

UK stamp duty 1s charged on certain documents, including
instruments for the transfer of registered ownership of ordinary
shares Transfers of ordinary shares are generally subject to UK
stamp duty at the rate of 0 5% of the consideration (rounded
up to the nearest £5)

SDRT i1s charged where there 1s an unconditional agreement to
transfer shares in UK companies for consideration in money or
money's worth SDRT 1s generally charged at the rate of 0 5%
of the agreed consideration {rounded up to the nearest penny)
The charge to SDRT will be cancelled and any SDRT already
paid will be refunded If within six years of the unconditional
agreement an instrument of transfer 1s produced to HMRC and
the appropriate stamp duty paid

Neither stamp duty ner SDRT will be payable cn any purchase
or transfer of the Company’s ADSs, provided that the ADSs and
any separate instrument or written agreement to transfer are
executed and remain at all times outside the UK

186

UK legistation does, however, provide for stamp duty or SDRT
to be charged at the rate of 1 5% of the amount or value of

the consideration {or 1n some circumstances the value of the
shares concerned) on a transfer or 1ssue of ordinary shares

to the Depositary or to certain persons providing a clearance
service (or their nominees or agents} for the conversion into
ADRs In accordance with the deposit agreement any tax or
duty payable on deposits of ordinary shares by the Depositary
or by the custodian of the Depositary will be typically charged to
the party to whom ADSs are delivered against such deposits

Following itigation on the subject HMRC has accepted that it
will no longer seek to apply the 1 5% SDRT charge when new
shares are 1ssued to a clearance service or depositary receipt
system on the basis that the charge s not compatible with

EU law In HMRC s view however the 1 5% SDRT or stamp
duty charge will continue to apply to transfers of shares into a
clearance service or depositary receipt system unless they are
an integral part of the 1ssue of share capital HMRC s view 1S
currently being challenged in further litigation

Neither stamp duty nor SDRT will be payable on a transfer of
ordinary shares where no beneficial interest passes including
the transfer of underlying ordinary shares from the Depositary
to a holder of the Company's ADSs

Foreign currency translation

For the periods indicated in the tables below the average
exchange rate between Sterling and the US dollar calculated by
using the average of the exchange rates at the close of business
in London on the last trading day of each month in the perniod
were as follows

Year ended 31 December £1=Us%
2010 154
2011 160
2012 188
2013 157
2014 165

For the periods indicated in the table below, the high and low
exchange rate between sterling and the US dollar were as
follows

£1=US$
Month High Low
September 2014 166 161
QOctober 2014 162 159
November 2014 160 156
December 2014 157 155
January 2015 154 150
February 2015 155 150
March 2015! 154 147

1 Up to and including 25 March 2015

At the close of business in London on 25 March 2015 the
sterhng/US dollar exchange rate was £1=U5%1 49
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Significant differences between corporate governance
practices and NYSE listing standards

Background

QOur corporate governance practices are desighed to be
comphant with the principles and provisiens specified by the UK
Corporate Governance Code Qur staternent of compliance with
the principles and provisions of the Code 1s set cut on page 44

We have also adopted the corporate governance requirements
of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related listing
standards of the NYSE to the extent that they are applicable
to a foreign private issuer We disclose below the significant
differences between our corporate governance practices and
those that are required of US companies that are histed on the
NYSE

Corporate governance guidelines

The Code contains a series of principles and provisions Itis not,
however, mandatory for companies to follow these principles
Instead compames must disclose how they have applied

them and if applicable must disclose and explain the reasons
for any areas of non-compliance By comparison the NYSE
hsting standards require US companies to adopt and disclose
corporate governance guidehnes

Independence

Different tests of independence for directors are applied under
the Code and the NYSE listing standards The Board has carnied
out an assessment based on the independence requirements

of the Code and has determined that nits judgement each of
the non-executive directors except Kent Masters 1s independent
within the meaning of those requirements As the Company 1s

a foreign private issuer, the Board i1s not required to take into
consideration the definition of iIndependence set out in the
NYSE s listing standards

Committees

NYSE listing standards require US companies to have a
nominating/corporate governance committee an audit
comrruttee and a compensation committee, each composed
entirely of iIndependent directors Lach of these committees
1s required to have a written charter which addresses

the committee s purpose and responsibilities and the
compensation committee must have sole authonty and
adequate funding to engage compensation consultants
independent legal counsel and other external advisers

We have terms of reference for our Nominations Committee,
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, each of which
complies with the requirements of the Code and s avallable for
inspection on our website Whilst these terms of reference are
generally consistent with the requirements of the NYSE hsting
rules they may not address all aspects of those rules
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NYSE listing standards specify that the nominating/corporate
governance commuttee is responsible for identifying individuals
gualifred to become members of the Board and to recommend
to the Board a set of corporate governance principles The
Code requires companies to have a norminations committee
but does not require a corporate governance committee

Our Norminations Comruttee 1s concerned only with the
membership of the Board Corporate governance issues

are discussed and decided upon at meetings of the Board

NYSE listing standards require the audit committee to
comprise at least three independent directors Whilst our Audit
Commuttee compnses independent non-executive directors
{and currently has five members), it should be noted that only
two members of the commuttee need be present for there to
be a quorum

Comphance certification

NYSE rules require that the CEQ of a US company must

certify to the NYSE each year that he or she 1s not aware of

any violation by the Company of any of the NYSE s corporate
governance listing standards As the Company is a foreign
private issuer the CEQ 1s not required to make this certification
However the CEO is required to notify the NYSE promptly in
writing if any of the Company s executive officers become aware
of any non-compliance with those NYSE corporate governance
listing standards that are apphcable to the Company

Documents on display

The Company s subject to the information requirements of
the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934 applicable to foreign
private issuers In accordance with these requirements the
Company files an annual report on Form 20-F and other related
documents with the SEC Certain other announcements made
by the Company are furmshed to the SEC on Form 6-K

Information submitted by the Company to the SEC rmay be
inspected at the SEC s public reference rooms located at
100 F Street NE, Washington, DC 20549 information on the
operation of the pubhc reference room can be obtained by
calling the SEC’'s Office of Investor Education and Advocacy
on +1800732 0330

You may also access information submitted by the Company
to the SEC through the SEC's website, www sec gov
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Cross reference to Form 20-F

Item Forrn 20~F caption Locaton in this document Page
1 Identity of directors, semor management and advisers Not applicable n/a
2 Offer statistics and expected timetable Not applicable n/a
3 Key information
A — Selected financial data Five-year record 192
Foreign currency translation 186
B - Capitalisation and indebtedness Not applicable n/a
C — Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds Not applicable n/a
D - Risk Factors Risk Factors 164-168
4 Information on the Company
A — History and development of the Company History and Development 163
Note 24 — Acgquisitions and disposals 143-151
B - Business overview Amec Foster Wheeler at a glance 2-5
Chief Executive s statement 8-1
Our business model 14-15
Delwvering excellence 16-19
Our markets 26-27
Financial review — Seasonality 31
C - Organisational structure Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures 190-191
D - Property, plant and equipment Financial review - Property, plant and equipment 38
4A  Unresolved staff comments None
5 Operating and financial review and prospects
A — Operating results Financial review - Operating results 30-35
Prior year operating results 173-175
B - Liquidity and capital resources Financial review - Liguidity and ¢apital resources 35-37
Note 19 - Capital and financial nsk management 134-139
Note 23 - Analysis of (net debt)/cash 147
C - Research and development, patents, licences etc Financial review - Research and development 37
D - Trend information Global market trends 25
Financial review — Operating results 30-35
E — Off-balance sheet arrangements Financial review - Off-balance sheet arrangements 39
Note 25 -~ Commitments - Operating lease 152
commitments
Note 26 — Contingent habilities 153
F — Tabular disclosure of contractual obligations Financial review — Contractual obligations 39
G - Safe harbor Forward-looking statements 194
6 Directors senior management and employees
A — Directors and semor management Cur board of directors 45-47
B - Compensation Directors remuneration report 68-73
Note 27 ~ Related party transactions 154
C - Board prachices Qur board of directors 45-47
Directors’ remuneration report 66
Audit committee 51
Remuneration committee 60
D - Employees Note 6 — Staff costs and employee numbers 117
E - Share ownership Note 22 — Share capital and reserves 144
— Share-based payments
Note 27 - Related party transactions 154
7 Major shareholders and related party transactions
A - Major shareholders Other information — Shareholdings 179
B - Related party transactions Note 27 - Related party transactions 154
C - Interests of experts and counsel Not applicable n/a
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Item Form 20-F caption Lacation in this document Page
8 Financial information
A - Consolidated financial statements and other Consolidated financial statements 96-155
financial information Report of independent registered pubhc 95
accounting firm
- Legal proceedings Note 26 - Contingent liabilities 153
- Dividends Financia! Review — Dividend 33
B - Signficant changes None n/a
9 The offer and hsting
A - Offer and histing details Other information = Share price history 179
B - Plan of distribution Not applicable n/a
C - Markets Other information = Markets 178-179
D - Selling shareholders Not applicable n/a
E - Dilution Not applicable n/a
F - Expenses of the issue Not applicable n/a
10  Additignal information
A - Share capital Not apphcable n/a
B - Memorandum and articles of association Other information — Articles of Association 180-182
C - Material contracts Qther information - Material contracts 182-183
D - Exchange controls Other informatron — Exchange controls and other 183
hmitattons affecting secunty holders
E - Taxation Other information — Taxation information for US 183-186
MHolders
F - Dividends and paying agents Not applicable n/a
G - Statement by experts Not applicable n/a
H - Documents on display Other information — Documents on display 187
| — Subsidiary information Not applicable n/a
11  Quantitative and qualtative disclosures about market sk Note 19 - Capital and financial risk management 134139
12 Description of securities other than equity securities
A - Debt securities Not applicable n/a
B - Warrants and rights Not applicable n/a
C - Other securitres Not applicable n/a
D - American depositary shares Other information — Holders of ADSs - Fees 177-178
payable by ADS holders
13 Defaults dividend arrearages and delinguencies None n/a
14  Matenal modifications to the nights of secunty holders
and use of proceeds None n/a
15 Controls and procedures Accountability - Internal controls 82
16A  Audit Committee financial expert Auchit committee - Members 51
16B Code of ethics Leadership - Board role and responsibilities 49
16C Principal accountant fees and services Audit commuttee - External audit 54
16D Exemptions from the hsting standards for audit Not applicable n/a
committees
16E Purchase of equity securities Cther information — Purchase of ordinary shares 179
16F Change in registrant s certifying accountant Not applicable n/a
16G Corporate governance Other information — Significant differences 187
between corporate governance practices and
NYSE histing standards
16H Mine safety disclosure Mot applicable n/a
17  Financial statements Not applicable n/a
18 Financial statements Consolidated financial statements 96-155
19 Exhitats Filed with the SEC
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Principal subsidiaries and joint ventures

As at 31 December 2014

We set out below details of the Company s principal trading subsidiaries and joint ventures Except where indicated all subsidhares
listed below are wholly owned incorporated in England & Wales and carry on their activities principally in their countries of

incorporation Except where marked with an asterisk the Company’s shareholdings are held indirectly through subsidiaries A full
list of the Company s subsidiaries and joint ventures will be filed with the Company's annual return to the Registrar of Companies

Subsidiaries
AMEC CADE Ingenieria y Desarollo de Proyectos Limitada
{Chile)

AMEC Canada Holdings inc {Canada)

Amec Foster Wheeler Australia Holding Company Pty Ltd
(Austraba)

tAmec Foster Wheeler AES Inc (US)

tAmec Foster Wheeler Americas Limited (Canada)
Amec Foster Wheeler Australia Pty Limited (Australia)
Amec Foster Wheeler Asia KK (Japan)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Asia Pacific Pte Ltd (Singapore)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Bimas Birlesik Insaat vs Muhendishik

A'S (Turkey)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Constructors Inc (US)

~tAmec Foster Wheeler Consulting Paland Sp Z O O (Poland)
Amec Foster Wheeler Earth and Environmental {UK) Lirmted

~Amec Foster Wheeler Energi Aktiebolag (Sweden)
~Amec Foster Wheeler Energia GmbH (Germany)
AtAmec Foster Wheeler Energia S L U (Spain)
AtAmec Foster Wheeler Energy Limited

AtAmec Foster Wheeler Energy Management (Shanghal)
Company Limited (China)

Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & Infrastructure Pty Limited

{Australa)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Engineering & Construction Design

{Shanghai} Co, Ltd (China)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Engineering & Consulting (Shanghai) Co

Ltd (China)

Amec Foster Wheeler Engineering Holdings Pty Limuted
(Austraha)

Amec Foster Wheeler Engineering Pty Limited (Australia)

Amec Foster Wheeler Environment & Infrastructure UK Limited

tAmec Foster Wheeler Environment & Infrastructure Inc (US)

tAmec Foster Wheeler E&C Services Inc (US)
Amec Foster Wheeler E & | GmbH (Germany)
*Amec Foster Wheeler Finance Limited

Amec Foster Wheeler Finance Asia Limited
~tAmec Foster Wheeler France S A (France)
~tAmec Foster Wheeler Global E&C S rl (ltaly)
*Amec Foster Wheeler Group Limited

~tAmec Foster Wheeler iberia S LU (Spain)
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tAmec Foster Wheeler Inc (Canada)
~Amec Foster Wheeler India Private Limited (India)

~tAmec Foster Wheeler International Trading (Shanghar)
Company Limited (China)

AtArmec Foster Wheeler tahana S rl (Italy)
tAmec Foster Wheeler Kamtech, Inc (US)
~Amec Foster Wheeler Martinez Inc (US)
tAmec Foster Wheeler NCL Limited (Canada)
~Amec Foster Wheeler North America Corp (US)

tAmec Foster Wheeler Nuctear Czech Republic as (Czech

Republic)

tAmec Foster Wheeler Nuclear France SAS (France)
Amec Foster Wheeler Nuclear Holdings Limited

Amec Foster Wheeler Nuclear International Limited
TAmec Foster Wheeler Nuclear RO SRL (Romania)
TAmec Foster Wheeler Nuclear Slovakia s r¢ (Slovakia)
Amec Foster Wheeler Nuclear UK Limited

tAmec Foster Wheeler Oil & Gas, Inc (US)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Power Group Asia Limited (China)
AtAmec Foster Wheeler Power S rl (ltaly)

~Amec Foster Wheeler Power Systems, Inc (US)

*Amec Foster Wheeler Property and Overseas
tnvestments Limited

tAmec Foster Wheeler s ro (Czech Repubiic)

AAmec Foster Wheeler Talcahuano Operaciones y
Mantenciones Limitada (Chile)

tAmec Foster Wheeler Ventures, Inc (US)

Amec Foster Wheeler Zektin Architecture Pty Limited
Amec Foster Wheeler Zektin Pty Limited

AMEC Holdings Inc (US)

AMEC International Limited

AMEC International Ingemena y Construccidn Limitada (Chile)

AMEC Libena Inc {Liberia)

AMEC (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (Malaysia)
AMEC NSS Limited (Canada)

AMEC Operations Ghana Limited (Ghana)
AMEC Operations S R L (Romania)
AMEC (Peru) S A (Perw)

~Foster Wheeler Chile S A (Chile)
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Subsidiaries continued
"Foster Wheeler ColombiaS A S (Colombia)

“Foster Wheeler E&C (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (Malaysia) (70%)
~Foster Wheeler Energia Oy (Fintand)

“Foster Wheeler Energia Polska Sp z 0 o (Peland)

AFoster Wheeler Engineering A G {Switzerland)

~Foster Wheeler Hellas Engineering & Construction Seciete
Anonyme (Greece)

“Foster Wheeler Inc (US)

~AFoster Wheeler Intercontinental Corporation (US)
AFoster Wheeler International Corporation (US)
~Foster Wheeler Limited

AFoster Wheeler LLC (US)

AFoster Wheeler (Philippines) Corporation {Philippines)
(99 962%)

AFoster Wheeler South Africa (PTY) Lirmited (South Africa)
(70%)

AFoster Wheeler (Thailand) Linuted (Thailand)

~Foster Wheeler Services (Thailand) Limited (Thailand)
AFoster Wheeler USA Corporation (US)

Kromav Engenhana S A (Brazil) (60%)

~000 Foster Wheeler (Russia)

~Martinez Cogen Limited Partnership (US) (99%)
AMossel Bay Energy IPP Limited (South Africa) (90%)
~PT Amec Foster Wheeler Indonesia (Indonesia) (55%)
APT Foster Wheeler O&G Indonesia (Indonesia) (90%)

QEBI Commissioning and Completions (Canada) Limited
(Canada)

QED International (UK) Limited (Scotland)
Rider Hunt International Limited

Rider Hunt International (USA) Inc (US)
Terra Nova Technologies, In¢ (US)

*Directly owned

~ Entity acquired with Foster Wheeler im Novernber 2014 The Company
imtially acquired a 95 3% interest in Foster Wheeler but acquired the non

contralling interest on 19 January 2015 In the above table the interest shown

1s that owned by the Company as at 19 January 2015 In each case the
Company owned only 95 3% of the interast shown as at 31 December 2014

1 Name shown 1s the entity s name at 25 March 2015 which 1s different from
its name at 31 Decernber 2014
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Joint ventures
AMEC Black Cat LLC (Qatar) (49%)

AMEC Black & McDonald Limited (Canada) (50%)

AMEC Larastia Sdn Bhd (Malaysia) (49%)

AMEC Samsung Ol and Gas LLC (US) (49%)

ACentro Energia Ferrara S p A (Italy) (41 65%)

~Centro Energia Teverola S p A (ltaly) (41 65%)

Clough AMEC Pty Ltd (Australia) (50%)

AConstruccion e Ingenienia Chile FI Limitada (Chile) (50%)

AConstruccion e Ingenieria FIM Chile Limitada (Chile)
(33 33%)

Core Tech-AMEC-SKEC LLC (Guam) (50%)

“Foster Wheeler and Partners Engineering Company

(Saudi Arabia) (50%)

AFoster Wheeler Energy FAKOP Sp z o 0 (Poland) (53 35%)
"“Foster Wheeler Kentz Energy Services DMCC (UAE) (50%)

“Foster Wheeler Power Machinery Company Lirmited (Chuna)
(52%)

AFW (Hebei) Engineering Design Co Ltd (China) (49%)
AFWP Joint Venture (Singapore) {50%)

Incheon Bridge Co Ltd (Korea) (23%)

“Lomellina Energia S rl (italy) (39 2%)

Nuclear Management Partners Limited (UK) (36%)

Paragon Angola Engenharnia E Servigos Limitada (Angola)
(60%})

“Petropower Energia Limitada (Chile) (85%)
“Project Management Holdings Limited (Ireland) (25%)
PT AMEC Berca Indonesia (50%)

Shanghai Zone Petrochemical Engineenng Co  Ltd (China)
(50%)

~Socar-Foster Wheeler Engineenng LLC (Azerbaijan) (35%)
~Voreas S rl (Italy) (50%)
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Five-year record (unaudited)

Consolidated income statement data

Year ended 31 December

Restated’ Restated' Restated'
£m unless stated 2014 2013 2012 201 2010
Continuing operations
Revenue 3,993 3,974 4088 3133 2786
Adjusted profit before tax? 317 332 327 316 282
Exceptional items (98) 25) 24) (6) 11
Amortisation of intangible assets (49) 47 44) (3%) (25)
Net asbestos-related expense {(9) - - - -
Share of tax of joint ventures (6) )] (5) 0 O]
Profit before tax 155 255 254 264 261
Income tax (49) (69) 47 (53) (25)
Profit from continuing operations 106 186 207 2n 236
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations 27) 8 2 16 )]
Profit for the year 79 178 209 227 227
Earnings per ordinary share
Contmuing operations
- Basic 36.1p 63 8p 65 2p 64 4p 730p
- Adjusted diluted? 79.5p 872p 78 6p 716p 62 6p
Total operations
- Basic 27.2p 6l 1p 65 8p 689 2p 701p
— Diluted 26.5p 598p 64 6p 678p 68 5p
Dividends per ordinary share? 43.3p 420p 36 5p 305p 26 5p
Dvidend covers 1.8x 21x 22x% 2 3x 24x

Consolidated balance sheet data

As at 31 December
Lm unless stated 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Goodwilt and other intangible assets 3,319 907 969 848 621
Other non-current assets 593 253 245 203 199
Current assets 2,066 1,224 1,304 1404 1443
Total assets 5,978 2384 2518 2455 2263
Current hiabilities (2,237) (1004) (1,151) (828) (746)
Non-current habihities (1,717 (256) (284) (253) (242)
Net assets 2,024 1124 1083 1374 1,275
Share capital 194 152 154 169 169
Other reserves 1,801 970 925 1,204 1103
Equity attributable to holders of the parent 1,995 1122 1079 1373 1272
Neon-controlling interests 29 2 4 1 3
Total equity 2,024 1124 1083 1374 1275
Number of ordinary shares inissue (mithons) 389 304 308 338 338
Net working capital 23 99 54 55 (43)
Net (debt)/cash (803) 121 99 521 740

1 The selected financial data set out above has peen extracted from the consolidated financial staternents for the relevant year prepared in accordance with
IFRS except that the Income statement data for 2012 2011 and 2010 has been restated to reflect the reclassification in 2013 of the UK conventional power
business as a discontinued operation and the adoption of IAS 19 (Revised 2011} Employee Benefits

2 Adjusted profit before tax represents profit betare tax before exceptional items the amartisation of intangible assets asbestos-related costs and interest
expense (net of insurance recoveries) and the Group s share of tax on the results of joint ventures

3 Adjusted diluted earrings per share represents prodit for the year from continuing operations before exceptional items the amortisation of intangible assets
asbestos-related costs and interest expense (net of Insurance recoveries) and the tax effect of those itemns divided by the diluted number of ordinary shares

4 The drwidend for 2014 includes the proposed final dividend for the year of 28 5p per ordinary share
5 Dividend cover represents the dividend per ordinary share as a muttiple of adjusted diluted earnings per share frorn continuing operations
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Glossary

ADSs

American Depositary Shares evidenced
by ADRs, the form in which the
Company s ordinary shares are traded
on the NYSE

ADRs

American Depositary Receipts, 1ssued

in respect of ordinary shares deposited
with State Street Bank & Trust Company,
as custodian for the Depositary

AGM

Annual General Meeting of the
Company's shareholders

AMEC

used for convenience to refer to the
Company and its subsidiaries prior to
the acquisition of Foster Wheeler, unless
the context requires otherwise

Amec Foster Wheeler

used for converience to refer to the
Company and its subsidiaries, unless
the context requires otherwise

the Articles the Company's Articles of Association
which set out the Company s
constitution

Basis point one hundredth of one percentage point

the hoard the collective term for the executive and
non-executive directors of the Company

CEC Chief Executive

CFO Chief Financial Officer

the Code the UK Corporate Governance Code

1ssued by the FRC (formerly the
Combined Cede)

the Companies Act
2006

the Companies Act 2006 of England and
Wales as amended

the Company

Amec Faster Wheeler plc formerly
AMEC plc

the Depositary

Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, the Depositary for the
Company s ADR programme

Downstream the refining or processing of crude oll
into fimished fuel products

the DRIP the Dividend Re-Investment Plan
operated by the Company

the DTRs the Disclosure & Transparency Rules of
the UKLA

E&C Engineering & Construction

E&l Environment & Infrastructure

EPC Engineering, Procurement &
Construction (conducted on a fixed
price basis)

EPCM Engineering Procurement &
Construction Management (conducted
on a cost- reimbursable basis)

the EU the European Union

Amec Foster Wheeler
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Eurcor € the common currency used in the
majonty of the member countries
of the EU

the FCA the UK Financial Conduct Authonty

Foster Wheeler

used for convenience to refer to Foster
Wheeler AG and its subsidiaries, unless
the context requires otherwise

the FRC the UK Financial Reporting Council

GPG the Global Power Group one of the
Group s business units

the Group the Company and its subsidianes

HMRC Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs the
UK taxation authority

the IASB the International Accounting Standards
Board

IFRS Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standards comprising accounting
standards issued by the IASB

the IRC the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended

the IRS the Internal Revenue Service the US
taxation authonty

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate, a
benchmark interest rate for instruments
of the specified currency and matunity

NASDAQ the National Association of Securities
Dealers Automated Quotattons

the NYSE the New York Stock Exchange

a PFIC a Passive Foreign Investment Company
for US federal iIncome tax purposes

Pound sterling &, the currency of the UK

pence or p

SDRT Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

the SEC the US Secunties and Exchange
Commission

SOX the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

UK the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland

UK GAAP accounting practice generally accepted
inthe UK

UKLA UK Listing Authonty

Upstream the exploration production and
transportation of ol and gas

us the United States of Amenica

USdollars, US $ the currency of the US

centsor ¢

US GAAP accounting principles generally

accepted inthe US
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Forward-looking statements

This annual report contains a number of ‘forward-looking
| statements with respect to the Group's financial condition
| results of operations and certain of the Group s plans

and objectives

In particular, such forward-looking statements include
statements with respect to

» our expectations regarding the Group s financial and operating
performance including statements contained within the
strategic report on pages 1to 41 of this document including
the Qutlook statement on page 39 and the performance of
joint ventures and newly-acquired businesses,

»intentions and expectations regarding the contracts entered
into by the Group or by third parties, including new services
such as the supply of consultancy, engineernng and project
management services

» expectations regarding the global economy and the Group s
operating environment including future market conditions
and trends

» revenue and growth expected fram Amec Foster Wheeler s
business and its expectations with respect to long-term
shareholder value growth

» our ability to acquire new contracts expected growth
prospects and growth in our customer base generally and

» expected benefits associated with the acquisition of Foster
Wheeler

Forward-looking statements are sometimes but not always
identified by their use of a date in the future or such words
as will, anticipates ‘aims, 'could, ‘may, should, expects,

‘ ‘believes ‘intends’, plans’ or targets’ By their nature forward-
looking statements are inherently predictive speculative and
Involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and
depend on circumstances that will occur in the future There
are a number of factors that could cause actual results and
developments to differ materially from those expressed or
imphed by these forward-looking statements These factors
include, but are not limited te the following

» global economic conditions or other macro-economic
developments in the geographic regions and markets in which
the Group operates, ncluding fluctuations in exchange rates

» changes in commeodity prices which may impact demand
i for the Group s services,

» the Group's exposure to the risks associated with ocperating
N emerging markets
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» the failure to meet customer expectations on project delivery
which could result in damage to reputation and/or loss of
repeat business and potentially lead to htigation

» long-term contracts which may be subject to early
termination, variation or non-renewal provisions,

» projects included in the Group’s order book which may be
delayed or cancelled,

» lump-sum contracts which are subject to the rnisks associated
with unanticipated modifications techrical problems and
delays,

» the loss of senior management cr difficulty in attracting and
retaining appropriately skilled personnel

» the failure to comply with health, safety and environmental
laws,

» the possibility of major safety incidents that can lead to
reputational damage and increase potential habilities

» obligations and habihities relating to the Group s divested and
non-core businesses

» the failure or security breaches of its information technology
systemns and/or data security and

» the failure to comply with anti-corruption laws and regulations,
economic sanction programmes or other laws and regulations
which may result in the Group becoming subject to fines or
penalties and the disruption of its business activities

A review of the reasons why actual results and developments
may differ materially from the expectations disclosed or implhed
within forward-locking statements can be found under the
heading ‘Risk factors’ on pages 164 to 168 of this document

All subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements
attributable to the Company or any persons acting on its
behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the factors
referred to above No assurances can be given that the forward-
looking statements in this document will be realised Subject to
comphliance with applicable law and regulations the Company
does not intend to update these forward-looking statements
and does not undertake any obligation to do so
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